
 

AGENDA |REGULAR TOWN 

COUNCIL MEETING 
Tu es d ay ,  Au g u s t  18 ,  2 020  a t  6 :00  PM  

Counc i l  C ha mb er  at  Ap e x  To wn H a l l ,  73  Hu nte r  S t ree t  

       
 Coun c i l  an d  Admin i s t r a t i on   

       

M a y o r :  J a c q u e s  K .  G i l be r t  |  M a y o r  P r o  T e m :  N i c o l e  L .  D o z i e r  

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r s :  B r e t t  D .  G a n t t ;  Au d r a  M .  K i l l i n g sw o r th ;  C h e r y l  F .  S ta l l i n g s ;  T e r r y  M a h a f f e y  

T ow n  M a n a g e r :  D r e w  Hav e n s  |  As s i s ta n t  T o w n  M a n a g e r s :  S h a w n  P u r v i s  a n d  M a r ty  S t o n e  

T ow n  C l e r k :  D o n n a  B .  H o s c h ,  M M C  |  T ow n  At to r n e y :  L a u r i e  L .  H o h e  

 

COM ME N CE ME N T  

Ca l l  to  Or der   |   I nvo c at i o n   |   P l ed ge  o f  Al l e g i anc e  

PR E S E N T AT I O N S  

PR1 Ma yor  J ac que s  G i lbe r t  

P re s en ta t i on  o f  P roc l a ma t i on  rec o gn i z i ng the  Le a gue o f  Wo m en Vo te r s  o f  Wa ke  

Coun t y  

PR2 John  B os i o ,  P r i nc i pa l  –  MER JE  w i t h  Je nna  S house ,  Lo ng  R an ge  P l anner  –  To wn o f  

Ap e x  

P res en ta t i on  o f  up d a t es  on  t he  To wn  o f  Ap e x  Wa y f i nd i n g S i gn a ge  P ro gr a m,  i nc lu d i n g 

a  su m ma ry  o f  the  Wa yf i nd i ng  An a ly s i s  R e p or t  an d a  p ro po se d s i gn  de s i gn  c onc e p t .   

 

CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

A l l  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  i t e m s  a r e  c o n s i d e r e d  r o u t i n e ,  t o  b e  e n a c t e d  b y  o n e  m o t i o n  w i t h  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  

t h e  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a ,  a n d  w i t h o u t  d i s c u s s i o n .  I f  a  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  r e q u e s t s  d i s c u s s i o n  o f  a n  i t e m ,  t h e  

i t e m  m a y  b e  r e m o v e d  f r o m  t h e  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  a n d  c o n s i d e r e d  s e p a r a t e l y .  T h e  M a y o r  w i l l  p r e s e n t  t h e  

C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  t o  b e  s e t  p r i o r  t o  t a k i n g  a c t i o n  o n  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  i t e m s  

CN1 Donn a Ho sc h ,  To wn C le r k  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  M i nu te s  o f  th e  Ju ly  21 ,  2 020  Wo rk  Se s s i on ,  t he  Ju l y  21 ,  2020  R e gu l a r  

Counc i l  M ee t i ng ,  an d  the  Au g u s t  4 ,  2020  R egu l a r  Counc i l  Mee t i ng  

CN2 Di anne  Kh i n ,  D i rec t o r  o f  P l ann i ng  an d Co m mun i t y  De ve l op men t  

Mo t i on  to  a d op t  a  R eso lu t i o n  D i rec t i n g the  To wn C le r k  to  I nve s t i g at e  Pe t i t i on  

R ec e i ve d ,  t o  ac c e p t  the  Cer t i f i c at e  o f  Su f f i c i enc y  b y  the  To wn C le r k ,  and  to  a do p t  

a  R es o lu t i on  Se t t i ng D at e  o f  Pub l i c  He ar i ng fo r  Se p te mb er  1 ,  2020  on  t he  Qu es t i on  o f  

An n e xa t i on  –  Ap ex  To wn C ounc i l ’ s  i n ten t  to  anne x  Hec t o r  Cu a le s  (P e r r y  H i l l s  Ph as e  6 )  

- Page 1 -



proper ty  c onta i n i ng 1 .66  ac res  loc ated at  0  and 1105  T i ngen  R oad,  An nex a t i on  #695  

i n to  the  To wn ’ s  c or po rat e  l i mi t s .  

CN3 Mi c hae l  Dea t on ,  Wa t e r  R eso u rc es  D i rec to r  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pr o ve  a nd au th or i ze  the  Tow n M ana g er  to  ex ec ut e  the  s a me  fo r  an  

Enc ro ac h men t  Ag ree men t  be t ween th e  To wn an d Co l on i a l  P i pe l i ne  Co mp an y (C P C )  

reg ard i n g an  ex i s t i n g  CP C e a se men t  l oc at e d a d j ac en t  t o  the  i n t e r sec t i o n  o f  S .  Sa le m 

S t ree t  an d Sug ar l an d D r i ve  i n  Ap e x ,  NC .  

CN4 An g e la  R e i nc ke ,  P ark s  an d Green w ay s  P l an ner  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  en c roac h men t  a gree me nt  w i t h  NC DO T  re la t i ve  t o  th e  Ap ex  We s t -  

Am e r i c an  To bac c o T r a i l  g reen wa y c onnec t i on  an d aut hor i ze  To wn M an a ger  to  s i gn  

a l l  nec e ss ary  d oc u me nt s  

CN5 Mar y  Be th  M an v i l le ,  H u ma n R es ou rc e s  D i rec to r  

Mo t i on  t o  a ppr o ve  an  a m en d men t  t o  t he  To wn’ s  E mp lo yee  As s i s t anc e  P ro gr a m  

c ont r ac t  w i th  Beh a v i o ra l  H ea l t h  Se r v i c es  (B H S ) ,  ex ten d i ng  t he  c on t rac t  te r m to  

Se pt e mber  18 ,  2023 .  

CN6 Da vi d  D i l lo n ,  De pu ty  F i re  M ar sh a l l  

Mo t i on  to  ap pr o ve  a n  Or d i nanc e a men di ng Sec t i on  20 -164  w i th  the  a ddi t i on  o f  

sub sec t i on  (38 )  t o  en f o rc e  a  No Park i n g re s t r i c t i on  a lo n g bo th  s i des  o f  Sunn y  Cre ek  

Lane  an d Wi n dy  Cree k  Lane ,  no r th  an d sou th  o f  E ven i ng S t a r  D r i ve .  

CN7 Drew H a vens ,  Tow n M ana g er  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  a mend men t s  to  the  To wn ’s  S pec i a l  E ven t  P o l i c y  to  pu t  i n t o  wr i t i n g  

the  ex i s t i ng  po s i t i on  th at  u s e  o f  to wn  pr o per ty  fo r  a  s pec i a l  e ven t  a t  no  c o s t  i s  

c ons i d e re d c o - sp ons o r sh i p  o f  tha t  e ven t  un de r  ou r  po l i c y  an d to  s t a te  more  c le ar l y  

th at  the  To wn w i l l  n o t  c o - sp ons or  po l i t i c a l  even t s .   

CN8 Jo se  M ar t i nez ,  P W& T  D i rec to r  

Mo t i on  to  a p pro ve  a  Co oper a t i ve  Pu rc ha s i ng Ag ree men t  be t w een the  To wn an d  

Wa ke  C oun ty  c onc er n i ng D i s as te r  De br i s  M o n i to r i ng  Se r v i c es  an d to  a p pro ve  re l a te d 

Coo per a t i ve  Pu rc h as i ng Ag ree men t  w i th  H DR  En g i neer i ng ,  I nc .  o f  th e  C aro l i nas  an d 

au thor i ze  the  To wn  M ana g er  to  e xec u te  bo th  a gree men ts .  

CN9 S te ve  Ad a ms  

Mo t i on  to  ap pro ve  c o nt r ac t  be t ween the  Town an d Ha l le  P ro per t i e s  to  t r ad e  a  To wn  

own ed  pr oper t y  a t  O l d  M i l l  v i l l a ge  fo r  a  H a l le  o wne d pro per t y  o n  Hun te r  S t ree t  

R E G U L AR  M E E T I N G  A G E N D A  

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  w i l l  c a l l  f o r  a d d i t i o n a l  A g e n d a  i t e m s  f r o m  C o u n c i l  o r  S t a f f  a n d  s e t  t h e   

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a  p r i o r  t o  C o u n c i l  a c t i o n s .  

P U B L I C  F O R U M  

P u b l i c  F o r u m  a l l o w s  t h e  p u b l i c  a n  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  a d d r e s s  t h e  T o w n  C o u n c i l .   T h e  s p e a k e r  i s   

r e q u e s t e d  n o t  t o  a d d r e s s  i t e m s  t h a t  a p p e a r  a s  P u b l i c  H e a r i n g s  s c h e d u l e d  o n  t h e  R e g u l a r  A g e n d a .    

T h e  M a y o r  w i l l  r e c o g n i z e  t h o s e  w h o  w o u l d  l i k e  t o  s p e a k  a t  t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e  t i m e .   L a r g e   

- Page 2 -



g r o u p s  a r e  a s k e d  t o  s e l e c t  a  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  t o  s p e a k  f o r  t h e  e n t i r e  g r o u p .    

C o m m e n t s  m u s t  b e  l i m i t e d  t o  3  m i n u t e s  t o  a l l o w  o t h e r s  t h e  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  s p e a k .  

P U B L I C  H E AR I N G S  

PH1 L i z  Lo f t i n ,  Sen i o r  P la n ner  

Pub l i c  He ar i ng an d p os s i b le  mo t i on  t o  ap p rove  R ez on i ng Ap p l i c at i o n  #20C Z06  204  &  

206  Lync h  S t r ee t .  The  ap p l i c an t ,  T r i n i ty  He nder son ,  seek s  to  re z one  a p pro x i ma te ly  

±0.45 acres fo r  the  p r op e r t i e s  l oc a te d at  204  &  206  Lync h  S t ree t ,  f r o m H i gh  Den s i t y  S i n g le  

Fa mi l y  (H D SF )  to  H i gh  Dens i t y  S i ng le  F a mi l y - Con di t i on a l  Z on i ng (H DS F - CZ ) .   

PH2 Am a n d a Bunc e ,  Cu r re n t  P l ann i n g M an a ger  

Pub l i c  He ar i ng  a nd  p os s i b le  mo t i on  re g ar d i ng  var i ou s  a men d ment s  to  the  Un i f i ed  

Deve l op men t  Or d i nan c e as  requ es te d by  P l ann i ng  s t a f f .  

O L D  B U S I N E S S  

OB1 Col leen  Mer ay s ,  D o w nt own  an d S ma l l  Bu s i nes s  De ve lo p men t  C o ord i n at o r  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  t o  mo di f y  c u r re n t  Park i n g - t o -D i n i ng  P r o gra m l ay o ut  a do p te d by  To wn  

Counc i l  on  June  2 ,  20 20  t o  ne w l a you t  p res ente d .  

OB2 Drew H a vens ,  Tow n M ana g er  

D i sc us s i on  an d po ss i b le  mo t i on  to  a d o pt  Te mpor ar y  Or d i nanc e  Mo di f i c a t i ons  

ex t en d i ng  t he  c u r re n t  su spe ns i on  o f  u t i l i t y  d i sc onn ec t i on s  an d ap p l i c a t i on  o f  

pen a l t i e s  an d fee s  fo r  unp a i d  u t i l i t y  b a l anc es .   

U N F I N I S H E D  B U S I N E S S  

N E W B U S I N E S S  

NB1 Drew H a vens  

D i sc us s i on  an d po ss i b le  mo t i o n  to  p ro v i d e  f i nanc i a l  sup p or t  fo r  t he  K i s se na L ane  

Af f o r d ab le  H ous i n g p r o j ec t  i n  the  fo r m of  w a i ve r s  o f  a d mi n i s t r a t i ve  fee s  an d i s su anc e  

o f  g ran t s  f ro m the  Af fo r d a b le  Hou s i ng  Fun d f o r  Wa t e r  a nd Se wer  C a p i t a l  

R e i mbur s e men t  Fee s  an d R ec re a t i on  F ees - i n - l i eu  c on t i ng en t  u p on  a pp l i c at i o n  f o r  

anne xa t i on  o f  the  a s s oc i at ed  p r oper t y  i n t o  the  Ap e x  to wn l i mi t s .  

NB2 Drew H a vens ,  Tow n M ana g er  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  t o  p r o v i de  a  on e - t i me  gra nt  t o  t he  AD B A t o  c o ver  ex pen ses  re la te d  

to  t he i r  no w -c anc e l le d Pe ak T i que  fu nd  ra i s e r .  

NB3 Te r r y  Mah af fe y ,  Coun c i l  Me mber  

D i sc us s i on  an d p os s i b le  mo t i on  to  a m en d S ec t i on  14 -33  o f  the  Ap e x  C od e of  

Ord i n anc es  re l a te d to  p roh i b i te d n o i ses .   

C L O S E D  S E S S I O N  

- Page 3 -



CS1 Mayor  P ro  Tem Doz i e r  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  t o  g o  i n to  C l ose d Se s s i on  t o  d i sc us s  a  pe r s onne l  ma t te r .  

W O R K  S E S S I O N  

AD J O U R N M E N T  

- Page 4 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PR E S E N T AT I O N  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Ma yor  J ac que s  G i lbe r t  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Go vern i ng Bo d y  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

P res en ta t i on  o f  P roc l a ma t i on  rec o gn i z i ng t he  Lea gue  o f  Wo men  Vo t e r s  o f  Wa ke  Cou nt y  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

N/ A 

I tem De ta i l s  

Ma yor  G i l be r t  w i l l  p re sen t  the  P r oc l a ma t i on  t o  D i ann a Wy n n ,  P res i dent  o f  the  Lea gu e o f  Wo men 

Vo t e r s  o f  Wa ke  Cou nt y ,  rec og n i z i ng the i r  w ork  i n  p r o mo t i ng c i t i zen  en ga ge me nt .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Proc la ma t i on  

 

- Page 5 -



 

 

Proclamation 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 
 

 
 
 

from the Office of the Mayor 

100th ANNIVERSARY OF THE LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS 

 

WHEREAS, the movement to enfranchise women began in July 1848, at a convention 

in Seneca Falls, New York; and 

 

WHEREAS, the women’s suffrage movement led to the passage by Congress of the 

19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States in 1919 and was ratified 

by the states by the summer of 1920; and 

 

WHEREAS, the National Women’s Suffrage Association dissolved in 1920 to create 

the League of Women Voters of the United States for the purpose of educating 

voters and registering women to vote; and 

 

WHEREAS, the League of Women Voters of Wake County first met on September 27, 

1920; and 

 

WHEREAS, approximately 120,000 North Carolina women registered to vote for the 

November 1920 election; and 

 

WHEREAS, women today constitute a majority vote in North Carolina and in the United 

States, are running for office in greater numbers, and are more active in the 

election process than ever before in history;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it Resolved that the Apex Town Council recognizes the historic 

impact of the 19th Amendment on women’s voting rights and on the civic life of 

women in our community, in North Carolina, and in the nation, and be it further 

Resolved that the Town of Apex recognizes the League of Women Voters of Wake 

County for their work to promote citizen engagement since their founding in 1920. 

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand  

and caused the Seal of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

to be affixed this the 18th day of August 2020 

  

 

_____________________________________________________ 

                       Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 
- Page 6 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PR E S E N T AT I O N  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  1 8 ,202 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  John  B os i o ,  P r i nc i pa l  –  MER JE  w i t h  Je nna  S house ,  Lo ng  R an ge  P l anner  –  To wn 

o f  Ap e x  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t   

 

R eques te d Mo t i on  

P res en ta t i on  o f  up d a t es  on  th e  Town  o f  Ap ex  Wa yf i n d i ng S i gn a g e P r ogr a m,  i nc lu d i ng a  su m mar y  

o f  the  Wa y f i nd i n g An a l y s i s  R ep or t  an d a  p r op ose d s i gn  de s i gn  c onc ep t .   

 

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

N/ A 

I tem De ta i l s  

N/ A 

At t ac h men t s  

  N/ A 

 

- Page 7 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Donn a Ho sc h ,  To wn C le r k  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Of f i c e  o f  the  To wn C l e r k  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  M i nu te s  o f  the  Ju ly  21 ,  2020  Work  S es s i on ,  th e  Ju ly  21 ,  2020  R egu l a r  C ounc i l  

Mee t i ng ,  an d the  Au g us t  4 ,  2020  R e gu l a r  C ounc i l  Mee t i n g  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Ju l y  21 ,  2020  Wo rk  Se s s i on  M i nu tes  

  Ju l y  21 ,  2020  R e gu la r  Mee t i ng M i nu te s  

  Au g us t  4 ,  2020  R e gu l a r  Mee t i ng M i nu te s  

 

- Page 8 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 139 

 

 

 

 

SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL 
WORK SESSION 
Tu e s d ay ,  J u ly  21 ,  20 20  a t  5 :0 0  PM  

T r a i n i n g  R oo ms  A a nd  B  a t  Ap e x  Tow n H a l l ,  7 3  Hu n te r  S t r ee t  

       
 C o u n c i l  a n d  A d m i n i s t r a t i o n   

       
M a y o r :  J a c q u e s  K .  G i l be r t  |  M a y o r  P r o  T e m :  N i c o l e  L .  D o z i e r  

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r s :  B r e t t  D .  Ga n t t ;  Au d r a  M .  K i l l i n g sw o r t h ;  C h e r y l  F .  S t a l l i n g s ;  T e r r y  M a h a f f e y  

T o w n  M a n a g e r :  D r e w  H av e n s  |  As s i s ta n t  T o w n  M a n a g e r s :  S h a w n  P u r v i s  a n d  M a r t y  S t o n e  

T o w n  C l e r k :  D o n n a  B .  H o s c h ,  M M C  |  T ow n  At t o r n e y :  L a u r i e  L .  H o h e  

 

I n  at te n d an c e  w er e  M a yor  J ac qu e s  K .  G i l be r t ,  M a yor  P r o  Te m Ni c o le  L .  D oz i e r ,  an d 

Coun c i l  M e mbe r s  B r e t t  D .  G an t t ,  Au d r a  M .  K i l l i n gs w or th ,  Ch e r y l  F .  S t a l l i n g s ,  and   

Te r r y  Mah af fe y .   Al s o  i n  a t te n d an ce  we r e  Town  M an a ge r  D r e w H ave n s ,  As s i s tan t   

To wn  M an a ge r s  Sh a w n  P u r v i s  an d  M ar t y  S t on e ,  To wn  C le r k  Don n a B .  H osc h ,  To wn  

At t o r n e y  L au r i e  L .  Hoh e,  Se n i o r  T r an s p or t a t i on  En g i ne e r  Ru s se l l  D a l to n ,  L on g R a n g e  

P l an n i n g M an a ge r  Sh an n on  C ox ,  P la n n i ng  an d C o mmu n i ty  De ve l op me n t  D i r e c tor  D i an n e 

Kh i n ,  Pu b l i c  Wor k s  &  T r an s por t a t i on  D i r e c tor  J o se  M ar t i n e z ,  Su s ta i n ab i l i t y  P r o gr a m 

Coor d i n a t o r  M e gan  P e nde l l ,  an d Su s t a i n a b i l i ty  An a l y s t  Va l e r i a  M er a .   

Se ve r a l  i n te r e s t e d  c i t i zen s  we r e  a l s o  i n  a t te n d anc e .  

COM ME N CE ME N T  

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l l e d t h e  Wor k  S e s s i on  to  o r de r .  

 

S ta f f  ou t l i n e d  th e  mai n  r e a son s  D O T  I s  h av i n g  f u n d i n g i s su e s .   Ta l k e d ab ou t  w as  CO VI D  r e l i e f  

fu n d i n g an d wh a t  i t  i s  sc h e du le d  to  go  t o war d s .   Cou n c i l  s t a te d f u n d i n g i s  s t i l l  a va i l ab l e  

th at  h a s  n o t  b e e n  d i s per se d .  

 

DO T h as  s ta te d th a t  a n y p r o j e c t s  n o t  un de r  c on s t r u c t i on  w i l l  b e  d e la ye d .   S t a f f  s t a te d t h ose  

p r o j e c t s  f o r  Ap e x  w h i c h  w i l l  be  de l ay e d .   We  h a ve  t w o pr o j e c t s  r ea dy  t o  b i d ,  bu t  D O T w i l l  

n o t  l e t  u s  mo ve f o r w a r d  w i t h  th e se .   We  o f f e r e d to  def e r  ou r  r e t u r n ,  but  D O T r e j e c te d  th i s  

o f f e r .   We  h a ve  th r ee  pr o j e c t s  r e a dy  f o r  c ons t r uc t i on  au th o r i za t i on ,  bu t  th e y  w i l l  a l so  be  

de l a ye d .    

 

S ta f f  s ta te d w e ar e  a ppr oac h i n g  th e  n e x t  ap p l i c a t i on  sch e du le .   Ex p l a i n e d w as  th e  t i me  

f r ame  i t  t ak e s  f r o m s u b mi t t a l  o f  p r o je c t s  t o  the  aw ar d i ng  o f  f u n ds .   We  h a ve  su c ce s s f u l l y  

pu r su e d L AP P  fu n d i ng  f o r  Tow n  pr o je c t s ,  an d  s t a f f  ou t l i n e d  th o se  p r o j e c t s .  

- Page 9 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 140 

 

 

 

R e sp on di n g t o  C ou n c i l ,  s ta f f  t a l k e d  a bo u t  a l te r n a t i ve  f u n d i n g sou r ce s .   Th e r e  i s  so me  

fu n d i n g  fo r  t r an s i t  a n d gr e e n w ay s ,  bu t  n ot  fo r  s i de w al k s .   S t a f f  t a l k e d  ab ou t  h o w bu s  r ou t e  

s t a r t  da te s  wou l d  be  a f f e c ted  i f  we  c an ’ t  b u i l d  bu s  s t op s .   S t a f f  t a l k e d  ab ou t  p r o j e c t s  u s i n g  

fu n d i n g r e se r ve s  an d wh at  p r o j ec t s  we  do  h a ve  s o me  f u n d i n g f o r .   Ex p l a i ne d wa s  th at  we  

c an  mo ve  f o r w ar d w i t h  t h e  b i d d i n g  of  p r o j e c ts ,  bu t  w e wou l d  n o t  r e ce i ve  f e de r a l  fu n d s  f o r  

th e se .  

 

S ta f f  s t a t e d  the  f u n d i n g p i c tu r e  i s  ch an g i n g r egu l a r l y ,  an d  th e r e  i s  a  mo n t h l y  r e g i on a l  

me e t i n g  w i th  D O T f r o m wh i c h  w e  r ec e i ve  u pd a te s .   M o s t  mu n i c i pa l i t i e s  don ’ t  h ave fu n d i n g  

to  mo ve  f o r w ar d  w i th  p r o je c t s  on  th e i r  ow n.   Con ve r s at i o n  e n su e d a b ou t  b i d d i n g  p r o j e ct s  

n ow  w h i ch  w ou l d  c o me  i n  l o w er  th an  i f  w e  w ai t  an d don ’ t  ge t  f e de r a l  fu n d i n g  i n  th e  e n d .    

 

S ta f f  s ta te d th at  bu s  r i de r sh i p  h as  de c l i n e d acr o s s  th e  c ou n ty .   I t  c ou l d  de c l i n e  e ve n  m or e  

i f  th e r e  i s  n o t  a  C O VI D  vac c i ne  b y  Apr i l  o f  20 21 .   S t a f f  t a l k e d  a b ou t  p r o j e c ts  th a t  we  cou l d  

po ss i b l y  do  t o da y w i t h  po s s i b l e  l ow e r  p r i c i n g  an d th e  r i s k s  i n  do i n g s o .   Ex p l a i n e d w as  h ow  

i t  w ou l d  b e  c o s t l y  t o  s epar a te  ou t  t h e  d i f f e r e n t  as pe c t s  o f  a  p r o j ec t .   S ta f f  s t a t ed  we  p l an  

to  k e ep  w or k i n g  t o  m o ve  p r o j e c t s  f o r w ar d .   We  c ou l d  b i d  ou t  a  p ar t i c u l a r  p r o je c t  j u s t  to  

se e  w h at  t h e  c o s t  wo u ld  be ,  bu t  i t  w ou l d  n ot  be  a d v i s ab le  to  d o  so  f o r  se ve r a l  p r o je c t s .    

 

Coun c i l  s ta te d  h e  do e sn ’ t  w an t  t o  do  n o th i n g th i s  ye a r .   M o v i n g n ow  w ou l d  be  a  g oo d  w ay  

to  ge t  th i n gs  do n e  ch eap ,  as  p r i c e s  w i l l  s k y r oc k e t  i n  th e  fu tu r e .   S ta f f  s t a te d we  do  h ave  

pr o j e c t s  th at  a r e  n ot  fe der a l l y  fu n de d .   Th e  Ch ath a m S t r e et  s i d e w a lk  p r o je c t  w ou l d  be a  

go o d o ne  to  c on t i n u e  on  w i th .    

 

C on se n su s  o f  C ou n c i l  wa s  to  k e e p mo v i n g f o r w ar d w i th  c u r r en t  p r o j ec t s  a nd   

r e por t i n g  b ac k  t o  C o u n c i l  w i th  up d at e s .  

 

Th e r e  w as  b r i e f  c o n ve r sa t i on  abou t  the  Pe a k wa y  br i d ge ,  i t s  de l a y s ,  a n d po s s i b le  w ay s  t ha t  

we  c ou l d  mo ve  fo r w a r d w i th  th i s .  

 

 

 AD J O U R N M E N T  

Wi t h  th e r e  be i n g n o  fu r the r  bu s i n e s s  an d w i th ou t  o b j e c t i on  f r o m C ou n c i l ,  M ay or  G i l b e r t  

ad j ou r n e d th e  Wo r k sh op .  

  

- Page 10 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 141 

 

 

 

 

 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _  

Don n a B .  H os c h ,  M M C ,  N CC M C  

To wn  C le r k  

AT TE S T :  

 
 

 

 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _  

Jac que s  K .  G i lbe r t ,  M ay or  

  

- Page 11 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 143 

 

 

 

 

REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL 
MEETING 
Tu e s d ay ,  J u ly  21 ,  20 20  a t  6 :0 0  PM  

Coun c i l  C h amb e r  at  Ap e x  To wn  H a l l ,  7 3  Hu n te r  S t r ee t  

       
 C o u n c i l  a n d  A d m i n i s t r a t i o n   

       
M a y o r :  J a c q u e s  K .  G i l be r t  |  M a y o r  P r o  T e m :  N i c o l e  L .  D o z i e r  

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r s :  B r e t t  D .  Ga n t t ;  Au d r a  M .  K i l l i n g sw o r t h ;  C h e r y l  F .  S t a l l i n g s ;  T e r r y  M a h a f f e y  

T o w n  M a n a g e r :  D r e w  H av e n s  |  As s i s ta n t  T o w n  M a n a g e r s :  S h a w n  P u r v i s  a n d  M a r t y  S t o n e  

T o w n  C l e r k :  D o n n a  B .  H o s c h ,  M M C  |  T ow n  At t o r n e y :  L a u r i e  L .  H o h e  

 
I n  at te n d an c e  w er e  M a yor  J ac qu e s  K .  G i l be r t ,  M a yor  P r o  Te m Ni c o le  L .  D oz i e r ,  an d 

Coun c i l  M e mbe r s  B r e t t  D .  G an t t ,  Au d r a  M .  K i l l i n gs w or th ,  Ch e r y l  F .  S t a l l i n g s ,  and   

Te r r y  Mah af fe y .   Al s o  i n  a t te n d an ce  we r e  Town  M an a ge r  D r e w H ave n s ,   

As s i s ta n t  To wn  M an ag e r  Sh a wn  Pu r v i s ,  To w n  C le r k  Don n a B .  Ho sc h ,   

an d Tow n  At t o r n e y  L a u r i e  L .  Ho he  

COM ME N CE ME N T  

M ayor  G i lbe r t  c a l le d  t h e  me e t i i n g  t o  o r de r .   He  r e ad a  s t a te me n t  o f  d i v e r s i t y  an d  i n c lu s i on  

r e la te d  to  r e l i g i on  an d ask e d fo r  a  p r i va te  mo men t  o f  s i le n ce ,  a f t e r  wh i c h  h e  ga ve  the  

I n voc at i o n  an d  le d  th e  P le dge  of  Al l e g i an c e .  

 

PR E S E N T AT I O N S  

Th e r e  w er e  n o  P r e se n t at i o n s  t o  b e  ma de .  

CO N SE N T  AGE N D A 

CN1 Don n a Ho sc h ,  To wn  C le r k  

M i n u tes  o f  th e  J u n e  2 ,  20 20  an d Ju n e  1 6 ,  2 0 2 0  R egu la r  C ou n c i l  M e e t i n gs  

CN2 Am a n da Bun c e ,  Cu r r e n t  P l ann i n g M an a ge r  

S ta te me n t  o f  th e  Ape x  To wn  C ou n c i l  pu r su an t  t o  G .S .  16 0 A- 3 83  addr e s s i n g  ac t i on  on  

th e  v ar i ou s  Un i f i e d De ve lo p me n t  Or d i n an c e  (U D O )  Ame n d me n ts  o f  J un e 16 ,  20 20  

CN3 Sar ah  Van  E ve r y ,  Se n i o r  P l an ne r  

S ta te me n t  o f  th e  To w n  Coun c i l  fo r  R e z on i n g C ase  #1 9C Z2 2  Wo l f e  P r o pe r t i e s  P UD ,  Josh  

Swindel l ,  Envi s ion Homes,  LLC/Tony Streeter  & T imothy V.  Karr ,  B i l ly  Ray Wolfe , Sarah W.  

Ronk,  Wi l l ie  T .  J r  and Donna G.  Wolfe ,  Wi l l iam D.  I I  and Gai le E . Bunce, and John Ter ry  

- Page 12 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 144 

 

 

 

Paton fo r  t h e  p r ope r t y  loc a te d on  1 40 5 ,  1 4 09 ,  1 20 9  &  1 40 1  Wi mb e r ly  R o a d an d 10 12  

&  10 00  Dou b le  He l i x  R oa d  

CN4 Sar ah  Van  E ve r y ,  Se n i o r  P l an ne r  

S ta te me n t  o f  th e  To w n  Cou n c i l  an d  Or d i n an c e  f o r  R ez o n i n g C ase  #1 9C Z23  25 24  &  

26 04  Ke l l y  R o ad ,  B r i an  Gr i f f i th  pe t i t i on e r ,  f o r  t h e  p r op er t i e s  l oc at ed  on  2 52 4  &  26 04  

Ke l l y  Ro ad  

CN5 L aur e n  S tau de n mai e r ,  P l ann er  I  

S ta te me n t  o f  t h e  T o w n  C ou n c i l  an d Or d i n a n c e  fo r  R e z on i n g  C as e  # 20 C Z0 3 ,  Patr ick  

Kiernan, Jones & Cnossen Engineer ing, PLLC./Cathleen  & Kenneth  Watson p e t i t i on e r s ,  

fo r  t h e  p r o pe r ty  loc a t e d on  1 20 0  Ja me s  S t r e e t  

CN6 Di an n e  Kh i n ,  D i r e ct or   

R e so lu t i o n  D i r e c t i n g  t h e  To wn  C l e r k  t o  I n ve s t i gate  Pe t i t i on  R e c e i ve d,  Ce r t i f i c ate  of  

Su f f i c i e nc y  b y  t h e  To w n C le r k ,  an d Re s o lu t i on  S e t t i n g  D a te  o f  Pu b l i c  H e ar i n g  on  th e  

Qu e s t i on  o f  An n e x a t i on  –  Ap e x  To wn  Cou n c i l ’ s  i n te n t  to  an ne x  C h ar le s  an d An n e t t e  

He r n don  an d J  D a l l as  He r n don  He i r s  (Tu l l a mor e )  p r o pe r ty  con t a i n i ng  10 .18 69  ac r es  

loc at e d  at  17 45  an d 1 8 05  Ho l t  R o a d ,  An n e x at i o n  #6 86  i n to  th e  To wn ’ s  c o r por a te  l i m i t s  

CN7 Di an n e  Kh i n ,  D i r e ct or   

R e so lu t i o n  D i r e c t i n g  t h e  To wn  C l e r k  t o  I n ve s t i gate  Pe t i t i on  R e c e i ve d,  Ce r t i f i c ate  of  

Su f f i c i e nc y  b y  t h e  To w n C le r k ,  an d Re s o lu t i on  S e t t i n g  D a te  o f  Pu b l i c  H e ar i n g  on  th e  

Qu e s t i on  o f  An n ex a t i on  –  Ap e x  T ow n  C ou n c i l ’ s  i n te n t  t o  an n e x  F a i th w i l l  H o me s ,  L L C  

( An a n da  a t  Be l l a  Cas a)  p r ope r t y  c on ta i n i n g  2 . 00 58  ac r es  l oc a te d a t  27 08  B l az i n g  

T r a i l  D r i ve ,  An n e x at i o n  # 69 1  i n t o  the  To wn ’ s  co r por a te  l i mi t s  

CN8 Di an n e  Kh i n ,  D i r e ct or   

R e so lu t i o n  D i r e c t i n g  t h e  To wn  C l e r k  t o  I n ve s t i gate  Pe t i t i on  R e c e i ve d,  Ce r t i f i c ate  of  

Su f f i c i e nc y  b y  t h e  To w n C le r k ,  an d Re s o lu t i on  S e t t i n g  D a te  o f  Pu b l i c  H e ar i n g  on  th e  

Qu e s t i on  o f  An n e x at i on  –  Ap e x  To wn  C ou n c i l ’ s  i n te n t  to  an n ex  C on s t r u c t i on  M as te r s ,  

L L C  (Hu mi e  O l i ve  P l ac e )  p r op e r t y  c on t a i n i n g  2  ac r e s  l oc at e d  a t  7 90 4  Hu mi e  O l i ve  

R oad ,  An n e x a t i on  #6 9 4  i n to  th e  Town ’ s  c o r por a te  l i m i t s  

CN9 M ar ty  S t on e ,  As s i s t an t  To wn  M an a ge r  

Au t h or i z a t i on  fo r  t h e  T o wn  M an ager  to  ex e c u te  th e  s ame  f o r  an  En c r o ac h men t  

Ag r e e me n t  be t w ee n  t h e  To wn  an d pr o pe r t y  ow n e r ,  T r i  P o i n te  Ho me s ,  I n c .  r e gar d i n g 

Wa k e  C ou nt y ,  N C P I N#0 74 2 -68 -50 65 ,  8 16  Aml e y  P l ac e ,  a s  r e c or d e d i n  B oo k  o f  M ap s  

20 20 ,  P a ge  2 05 ,  Wa k e  Coun t y  R e g i s te r  o f  D e ed s  

CN10 M ar ty  S t on e ,  As s i s t an t  To wn  M an a ge r  

Au t h or i z a t i on  fo r  t h e  T o wn  M an ager  to  ex e c u te  th e  s ame  f o r  an d  En c r o ach me n t  

Ag r e e me n t  be t w ee n  t h e  To wn  an d pr o pe r t y  ow n e r ,  T r i  P o i n te  Ho me s ,  I n c .  r e gar d i n g 

Wa k e  C ou nt y ,  N C P I N#0 74 2 -68 -50 61 ,  8 20  Aml e y  P l ac e ,  a s  r e c or d e d i n  B oo k  o f  M ap s  

20 20 ,  P a ge  2 05 ,  Wa k e  Coun t y  R e g i s te r  o f  D e ed s  

CN11 M ar ty  S t on e ,  As s i s t an t  To wn  M an a ge r  

- Page 13 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 145 

 

 

 

Au t h or i z a t i on  fo r  t h e  T o wn  M an ager  to  ex e c u te  th e  s ame  f o r  an  En c r o ac h men t  

Ag r e e me n t  be t w ee n  t h e  To wn  an d pr o pe r t y  ow n e r s ,  J a mes  T .  Ma c don e l l  an d  w i f e  

Ka th ar i n e  G.  M ac do n e l l  r e g ar d i n g Wak e  C ou n ty ,  N C P I N# 07 22 -6 4 -5 12 3 ,  2 671  T i mk en  

Fo r e s t  D r i ve ,  as  r e c or de d i n  B ook  o f  Ma ps  20 08 ,  P a ge  3 4 ,  Wak e  Cou n t y  R e g i s te r  o f  

De e d s  

CN12 M ar ty  S t on e ,  As s i s t an t  To wn  M an a ge r  

Au t h or i z a t i on  fo r  t h e  T o wn  M an ager  to  ex e c u te  th e  s ame  f o r  an  En c r o ac h men t  

Ag r e e me n t  be t w ee n  t h e  To wn  an d pr o pe r t y  ow n e r ,  Pu l te  H o me  C o mp any ,  L L C . ,  

r e gar d i n g Gr e e n mo or  Ph as e  1 B  Su b d i v i s i on  as  sh ow n  on  t h e  p l at  r e c or de d  i n  Bo ok  

o f  M ap s  2 01 7 ,  P a ge s  10 27 -1 03 1 ,  Wak e C ou n t y  R e g i s te r  o f  D ee ds  

CN13 Da v i d  Wo o d,  Ha l l e  Cu l tu r a l  Ar t s  C e n te r  M an a ge r  

R e so lu t i o n  de s i gn a t i n g  Ap e x ,  N o r th  C ar o l i n a  as  a  BE E  C I TY  US A®  a f f i l i a t e  

CN14 Am a n da Bun c e ,  Cu r r e n t  P l ann i n g M an a ge r  

R e so lu t i o n  r e af f i r m i n g  S ar ah  Va n  E ve r y  a s  a  Wa k e  C ou nt y  R e v i e w  O f f i c e r  su b se qu e n t  

to  h e r  c h an g i n g  he r  n a me f r o m S a r ah  M .  R a y f i e ld  t o  S a r ah  Van  E v e r y .  Sh e  i s  a l r e a d y  

r e c o gn i zed  a s  a  Wa k e  Cou n t y  Re v i e w Of f i c e r  i n  o r de r  to  c e r t i f y  th a t  e ac h ma p  an d  

p l a t  p r e se n te d to  t h e  Wak e C ou n ty  R e g i s t e r  o f  D e e ds  f o r  r e c or d i n g s a t i s f i e s  th e  

s t a tu tor y  r e qu i r e me n t s  fo r  r e cor d i n g .  

CN15 R u sse l l  D a l t on ,  Se n i o r  T r an sp or ta t i on  En g i n e e r  

R e so lu t i o n  to  Su pp or t  V i s i on  Z e r o  Ap e x  

CN16 Dr e w H a ve ns ,  Tow n  M an a ge r  

Am e n d me n t  t o  t h e  c u r r e n t  Ap e x  Fa r me r s  M ar k e t  Spe c i a l  E ve n t  Pe r mi t  t o  a l l ow f o r  

d r i ve - th r u  p i c k u p a l o n g Se ab oar d S t r e e t  o n  e ac h  S atu r da y ,  b e g i n n i n g Ju l y  11 ,  20 20  

an d e n d i n g Ap r i l  24 ,  2 02 1 ,  t o  c l o se  ma r k e d par k i n g  s p ac es  a l o n g th e  e a s t  s i d e  o f  

Se ab oar d S t r e e t  f r o m  8 :0 0  a . m .  u n t i l  1 :00  p .m.  t h e se  d ay s ,  a n d  r es c i n d t he  p r i o r  

ap pr o va l  t o  c lo se  the  De p o t  p ar k i n g  l o t  fo r  th e  F a r me r ’ s  M ar k et  

CN17 Joh n  L e t t e ne y ,  C h i e f  o f  P o l i ce  

C on t r ac t  f o r  Of f - Du ty  Po l i c e  Of f i ce r  Se r v i ce s  p r o v i de d to  th e  Wak e  C oun ty  Pu b l i c  

Sc ho o l  S ys te m ( WC P S S )  an d au th o r i za t i on  f o r  t h e  C h i e f  o f  P o l i c e  t o  e xe c u te  th e  

c ont r ac t    

CN18 Joh n  L e t t e ne y ,  C h i e f  o f  P o l i ce  

NC G o ve r n o r ’ s  H i gh w ay  S af e ty  P r o gr a m L o ca l  G o ve r n me n t  R e so l u t i on  

CN19 De n n i s  B r o wn ,  Con s t r u ct i on  P r o j e c t  Man age r  

R e ne w al  o f  le as e  w i th  N C S ECU  an d au t h o r i za t i on  f o r  the  Tow n  M ana g e r  to  s i gn  le a se  

fo r  n e w ATM  t o  be  lo c at ed  i n  th e  n e w M a s on  S t r ee t  p a r k i n g  lo t  n e ar  th e  C o mmu n i t y  

C e n te r  

CN20 E r i c  Neu ma n n  

- Page 14 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 146 

 

 

 

Au t h or i z a t i on  fo r  th e  To wn  M an age r  t o  e x e c ut e  t h e  s ame  f o r  an  E nc r o ac h me n t  

Ag r e e me n t  an d  a  U t i l i t y  R e l oc a t i on  Agr e e me n t  be t we e n  the  To wn  an d N CD O T .  

R e mo ve  o ver h ea d f i b e r  l i ne  an d r e l oc a te  t o  u n de r gr ou n d .  

CN21 Dr e w H a ve ns ,  Tow n  M an a ge r  

Or d i n an c e  to  ame n d th e  Ap e x  To wn  Co de  Cha p te r  2 0  r e la te d t o  To wi n g  

CN22 Don n a B .  H os c h ,  To wn  C l e r k  

Ap e x  Ta x  R e por t  

 

T o w n  M a n a g e r  H a v e n s  s t a t e d  t h e r e  w a s  a  r e q u e s t e d  a d d  o n  i t e m :   R e s o l u t i o n  s u p p o r t i n g  

c l e a n  w a t e r  a n d  t h e  c o n t i n u e d  m o n i t o r i n g ,  t e s t i n g ,  a n d  r e m o v a l  o f  r e g u l a t e d  

c o n t a m i n a n t s  t o  e n s u r e  Ap e x ’ s  d r i n k i n g  w a t e r  r e m a i n s  s a f e .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n  t o  a d o p t  t h e  C o n s e n t  Ag e n d a .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  

M a h a f f e y  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n  w i t h  t h e  a d d i t i o n  o f  t h e  s t a t e d  R e s o l u t i o n ;   

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  K i l l i n g s w o r t h  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

 

R E G U L AR  M E E T I N G  A G E N D A  

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n  t o  a d o p t  t h e  R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  Ag e n d a .   C o u n c i l  

M e m b e r  K i l l i n g s w o r t h  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n ;  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  G a n t t  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

 

P U B L I C  F O R U M  

L a r r y  H a r r i s ,  S r . ,  r e p r e s e n t i n g  t h e  F r i e n d s h i p  c o m m u n i t y ,  m a d e  a  p r e s e n t a t i o n  t o  M a y o r  

P r o  T e m  N i c o l e  D o z i e r  f o r  h e r  e f f o r t s  i n  r e c o g n i z i n g  J u n e t e e n t h  a s  a  T o w n  h o l i d a y .   H e  

e x p r e s s e d  h i s  a p p r e c i a t i o n  t o  t h e  e n t i r e  C o u n c i l  f o r  t h e i r  r e c o g n i t i o n  o f  t h e  h o l i d a y  a n d  

t h e  s i g n i f i c a n c e  o f  t h i s  a c t i o n .   M r .  H a r r i s  s t a t e d  w e  a r e  m o v i n g  f r o m  p r o t e s t  t o  p o l i c y ,  

a n d  h e  w a n t s  t o  s e e  u s  c o n t i n u e  t o  d o  t h e  g o o d  t h i n g s  t h a t  c h a n g e  o u r  l i v e s  a n d  r e d e e m  

t h o s e  w h o  h a v e  s u f f e r e d  t h e  o p p r e s s i o n  o f  s l a v e r y .    

 

M r .  H a r r i s  s t a t e d  h i s  g r a t i t u d e  t o  M P T  D o z i e r  f o r  p u s h i n g  t h i s  a c t i o n  f o r w a r d .   H e  s t a t e d  

t h e  c o m m u n i t y ’ s  g r a t i t u d e  a n d  p r e s e n t e d  h e r  w i t h  t h e  g i f t  o f  a  J u n e t e e n t h  t e e  s h i r t ,  

w h i c h  s h e  w o r e  f o r  t h e  r e m a i n d e r  o f  t h e  m e e t i n g .   M T P  D o z i e r  t h a n k e d  M r .  H a r r i s  a n d  

t h e  c o m m u n i t y .  

 

 

 

- Page 15 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 147 

 

 

 

P U B L I C  H E AR I N G S  

PH1 Sar ah  Van  E ve r y ,  Se n i o r  P l an ne r  

R e zon i n g App l i c a t i on  #2 0CZ 05  We s t  Vi l l a g e  PU D Ame n d men t .  T h e  app l i c a nt ,  J osh  

De c k e r ,  M c Ad ams  C o mp an y ,  s e e k s  t o  r ez o n e  a ppr ox i ma te l y  3 5 . 36  ac r e s  loc a te d a t  

24 12  Ke l l y  R o a d (P I N  0 731 33 17 98 )  f r o m P l ann e d Un i t  D e ve lo pme n t - Con di t i on a l  Zon i n g 

(P U D-C Z  # 15 CZ3 3 )  t o  P l ann e d Un i t  D e ve l o pme n t - Con di t i o n a l  Z on i ng  (P UD -C Z )  

S taf f  o r i e n te d  C ou nc i l  to  the  r ez on i n g  s pe c i f i c s .  A n e i g hb or h o o d me e t i ng  w a s  he l d .   An  

e ma i l  f r o m n e i g h bor s  M r .  an d  M r s .  T i m D on n e l l y  w a s  r e ad i n  sup po r t  o f  th e  r e q u e s t .   P l an n i n g  

Bo ar d  an d s ta f f  r e c o m me n de d a p pr o va l  w i th  c on di t i on s  o f fe r e d  by  t h e  ap p l i can t .    

 

R e sp on di n g t o  Cou nc i l ,  s ta f f  an s we r e d  qu e s t i ons  a bou t  th e  4 0 - f oo t  bu f fe r .   J osh  De c k e r ,  

r e pr e s e n t i n g  Mc Ad a m s  C o mp any ,  e x p l a i n e d the  s i tu a t i on  w i th  th e  bu f f e r ,  s ta t i n g  th a t  th e i r  

ac t i o n  w a s  to  th e  s a t i s fac t i on  of  o n e  o f  t h e  n e i gh bor s .  

 

M ayor  G i lbe r t  dec l a r e d th e  P u b l i c  He ar i n g  o pen .   Wi t h  n o  o n e  w i sh i n g  to  spe ak ,  Ma yor  

G i lb e r t  de c la r e d  t h e  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g  c l o se d .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n  t o  a p p r o v e  t h e  r e z o n i n g .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r   

M a h a f f e y  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n ;  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  K i l l i n g s w o r t h  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

PH2 Sh e l l y  M ay o ,  P lan n e r  I I  

Qu a s i - J u d i c i a l  -  Re v i s e d  M aj o r  S i te  P l an  fo r  54 0  F le x  a n d Bu s i ne s s  P ar k  l oc at e d  at  16 00  

O l i v e  Ch ap e l  R o a d .  Th e  sub j ec t  p r o pe r t i e s  a r e  i de n t i f i e d  on  Wa k e  Cou n t y  Tax  M a ps  

as  P I Ns  073 22 35 46 1  &  0 73 22 347 10 .  

M ayor  G i l be r t  r e ad  a  s t a te me n t  ou t l i n i n g  th e  p r oc es s  o f  th e  Qu a s i - J u d i c i a l  He ar i n g .  

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  de c l a r e d th e  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g  ope n .   Al l  t h o se  w i sh i n g  t o  spe ak  we r e  s w o r n  i n  

by  th e  T ow n  C l e r k .  

 

Al l  Cou n c i l  Me mbe r s  s ta te d  th e y  h ad  n o  c o m mu n i c at i on  w i th  the  a pp l i c an t ,  th e r e  we r e  no  

f i n an c i a l  c on f l i c t s ,  an d  th at  t h e y  c ou l d  a l l  de c i de  th e  ma t te r  i mp ar t i a l l y .   N one  h a d v i e we d 

th e  s i te .  

 

O P E N I N G S T AT E M E N T  B Y  S T AF F :   S ta f f  me m be r  S h e l l y  M a yo s ta te d h e r  c r e de n t i a l s  an d 

e mp lo y me n t  h i s t o r y .    

 

- Page 16 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 148 

 

 

 

Sh e the n  o r i e n te d C o un c i l  to  th e  s i te .   A p o r t i on  o f  th e  p l a n  w h i ch  n e e de d to  be  ad j u s t e d  

wou l d  b e d i s cu s se d t h i s  e ven i n g .   A v i r tu a l  n e i g h bor h o o d mee t i n g  w as  he l d .  Th e  p r o j e c t  

c o mpl i e d w i th  a l l  U D O s t an dar d s .    

 

O P E N I N G S T AT E M E N T  B Y  AP P L I C AN T :   D av i d  Go df r e y ,  Sa va ge  &  Go df r e y ,  r e p r e s e n t i ng  th e  

ap p l i c an t ,  s t a te d  s t a f f  e lo qu e n t l y  an d ac c u r at e l y  r e f l e c t e d  t h e  r eas on s  fo r  th i s  r e qu e s t .   

 

C R O S S  E X AM I N AT I O N  O F  S T AF F  BY  C O U N C I L :   Co un c i l  a sk e d  a bou t  th e  l o s s  o f  c an op y  co ver  an d  

i f  th i s  h ad be e n  d i scu s se d w i th  t h e  a pp l i c a n t ,  s t a f f  s t at i n g  i t  ha d n o t .   H o we ver ,  a  z o n i ng  

c ond i t i on  ad de d i n  20 18  d i d  a d dr e s s  t r e e  sc r e en i n g .   R e s pon di n g to  C ou nc i l ,  s t a f f  s ta te d  

th er e  ma y  be op t i o n s  fo r  a d di t i on a l  p l an t i ng s  on  th e  p r o pe r ty ,  b u t  i t  w ou l d  be  the  

ap p l i c an t ’ s  j o b  to  a gr e e  o r  d i s ag r ee  to  d o i n g s o .    

 

R e sp on di n g t o  C ou nc i l ,  s t a f f  ad dr e s s e d  qu e s t i on s  r e la te d  t o  R C A.    

 

C R O S S  E X AM I N AT I O N  O F  S T AF F  B Y  AP P L I C AN T :   M r .  Go df r e y  po se d  se ve r a l  qu e s t i o n s  t o  s ta f f  

r e g ar d i n g th e  a me n d me n t .  

 

Th e r e  w as  n o  n on - r e p e t i t i ve  r e bu t t a l  f r o m s ta f f  o r  the  a pp l i c an t .  

 

T E S T I M O N Y  BY  AP P L I C AN T :   Pe te r  C n o s se n ,  J o ne s  Cn os s en  E n g i n ee r i n g ,  s ta te d  h i s  c r e den t i a l s  

an d pr o f e s s i on a l  b ac k gr ou n d  an d w as  p r e s e n te d as  an  e x pe r t  w i tne s s .    

 

R e sp on di n g  to  M r .  Go df r e y ,  M r .  Cn os se n  d i s t r i bu te d t o  Cou nc i l  a nd  i n t o  th e  r e c or d  Ex h i b i t  

A a n d Exh i b i t  B  wh i c h  sh o we d th e  a r e a o f  i n te r e s t .   Mr .  Cn os se n  f u r th e r  e xp l a i n e d t h e  d e ta i l s  

o f  th e  r e qu e s t  a n d  p r o v i de d bac k gr ou n d  a s  t o  wh y  th e  r e qu e s t  w as  b e i n g  ma de .   He  s t a t e d  

a l l  S t an d ar d s  an d R e q u i r e men ts  h a d be e n  me t  o r  ex c e e de d .    

  

M r .  C n o s se n  c on f i r me d to  M r .  Godf r e y  th a t  n o t r e s s  ha d be e n r e m o ved i n  a  p a r t i c u l a r  a r ea .  

 

C R O S S  E X AM I N AT I O N  O F  AP P L I C AN T :   N on e .  

 

R E B U T T AL  BY  S T AF F :   No ne .  

 

C L O S I N G AR G U M E N T S  B Y  S T AF F :   N one .   

 

C L O S I N G AR G U M E N T S  B Y  AP P L I C AN T :   N on e .  

 

Th e r e  w er e  n o  qu e s t i o ns  o r  s t a t e men ts  f r o m Cou nc i l  r e l at e d  t o  th e  Ch e ck l i s t .  

- Page 17 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 149 

 

 

 

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  de c l a r e d  th e  Pu b l i c  H ear i n g  c lo s e d .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n  t o  a p p r o v e  t h e  r e v i s e d  P l a n .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  

M a h a f f e y  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n ;  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  D o z i e r  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

PH3 Sh an n o n  C ox ,  L on g R an ge P l an n i n g M an a ge r  

Am e n d me n ts  to  th e  T r an s i t  P l an  ma p  an d th e  Th or ou g hf a r e  a n d  C o l l e c t o r  S t r ee t  P l an  

ma p o f  the  Co mpr e he ns i ve  T r a n s por t a t i on  P l an  

S taf f  o r i e n te d C ou n c i l  to  th e  a men dme n t s  r e l a te d  t o  r a i l  an d  b u s  t r an s i t  c e n te r s .   S ta f f  

ta l k e d  ab ou t  th e  sp ac i n g o f  th e  s t a t i on s  an d h o w th i s  r e l a t e d  to  de n s i t i e s .   De s i gn  

c ons t r a i n t s  w er e  v i e w ed .   P lan n i n g Bo ar d  an d s t a f f  r e c o m me n d e d ap pr o v a l .   Th e  T r an s i t  

Ad v i so r y  Co m mi t te e  ha d n o t  h a d  a n  op por tu n i ty  to  f o r mu la te  a  r e c o mme n d a t i on ;  the  

a me n dme n t  h a d be e n  sh a r e d w i th  th e m.  

 

R e sp on di n g t o  C ou nc i l ,  s t a f f  an s w er e d qu e s t i on s  r e l a te d  to  bu s  s t op s .  

 

S ta f f  p r ese nt e d  an d d e t a i le d  Sc e n ar i o s  1  a n d 2  r e l at e d  t o  c han g es  wh i ch  w ou l d  b e  fu r the r  

ad dr e s s ed  i n  Pu b l i c  Hear i n g  4  r e l a t e d  t o  the  t h o r ou gh f ar e  a nd c o l l e c t o r  map s .   S ta f f  

ou t l i n ed  th e  s i mi l a r i t i e s  an d d i f fe r e n c es  be t w ee n  t h e  t wo  sc e n ar i o s .   Th e r e  h ad b e en  

su b s t an t i a l  pu b l i c  i n t e r ac t i on .   S ta f f  r e c o m me n de d a pp r o v a l  o f  Sc e nar i o  1  a s  d i d  th e  

P l an n i n g B o ar d .  

 

S ta f f  r e s pon de d t o  C ou n c i l  qu e s t i on s  r e l a t e d t o  c h an ge s  s t a f f  w i sh ed t o  s e e  i n  Sc en ar i o  2 .   

Ho we ve r ,  s t a f f  r e mi n de d C ou n c i l  i t  d i d  n o t  r e c o mme n d  th i s  sc e n ar i o .   Be c aus e  o f  th at ,  i f  

we  w er e  to  mo v e f o r w ar d  w i th  th i s  sce n ar i o ,  w e w ou l d  n e e d to  loo k  at  a n d  e va lu a te  an y  

fu r th e r  an y  c han ge s .   S t a f f  r e spon de d t o  q u es t i on s  r e l a te d  t o  th e  p os s i b le  un de r e s t i mat e  

o f  t r a f f i c  f l ow  an d i m pac t .  

a n d  

PH4 Am a n da Bun c e ,  Cu r r e n t  P l ann i n g M an a ge r  

Am e n d me n t  t o  th e  20 4 5  L an d  U se  M ap an d R e zon i n g Ap p l i c at i on  # 20 CZ01  De po t  4 99  

PU D .  Th e  ap p l i c an t ,  S te ph e n  Dor n ,  L e n n ar ,  sou gh t  t o  a me n d th e  20 45  L an d Use  M ap  

c la s s i f i c at i on  o f  ap pr ox i ma te l y  5 . 41  ac r e s ,  a  po r t i on  o f  0  Ap e x  B ar b e cu e  R oa d  (P I N  

07 31 76 19 44 ) ,  f r o m Of f i c e  E mpl oy me n t  to  H i gh  D en s i t y  R e s i de n t i a l  a nd  to  r e zo n e  

ap pr o x i mat e l y  2 00 .8  a c r e s  l oc a te d a t  0  Ke l l y  R oa d ;  1 21 6 ,  1 30 0 ,  1 3 30 ,  1 42 0 ,  1 52 5 ,  an d  

16 04  S .  Sa l e m S t r e e t ;  0  an d 6 40 1  Ap e x  B ar be c u e R o a d f r o m R e s i de n t i a l  Ag r i c u l tu r a l  

(R A)  a n d Ne i g h b or h o od Bu s i n e s s -C on di t i on a l  Zon i n g (B 1 - C Z  #0 9 C Z0 1)  t o  P l an n e d Un i t  

De ve l op men t - Con d i t i on a l  Z on i n g (P UD -C Z ) .  

- Page 18 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 150 

 

 

 

S taf f  o r i en te d C ou n c i l  t o  th e  a men d me n t  an d r e zon i n g r e q u es t .   Tw o  ne i gh b or h oo d  

me e t i n g s  w er e  h e l d .   An  a f f o r dab l e  h ou s i n g  zon i ng  c on di t i on  w a s  o f f e r ed  by  th e  ap p l i c an t .   

Th e  P ar k s ,  R e c r e at i o n ,  a n d  Cu l tu r a l  R es o u r c es  C o mmi s s i on  r e c o mme n de d a  f e e  i n  l i eu .   

P l an n i n g s ta f f  r e c o m me n de d a ppr o va l  o f  the  a me n d me n t  b u t  n ot  th e  r e z on i n g u n le s s  

c h an ge s  we r e  mad e  by  t he  ap p l i c an t ,  th o s e  c h an ge s  be i n g i de n t i f i ed .   P lan n i n g Bo ar d  d i d  

n o t  r e c o m me n d appr o va l  o f  th e  a me n d me nt  o r  th e  r e z on i n g an d r e as on s  wh y  we r e  s t at ed .  

 

R e sp on di n g to  C ou n c i l ,  s t a f f  a d dr e s se d qu e s t i on s  a bou t  th e  de s i gn  o f  the  c r o s s i ng  

p r ese nt ed  by  th e  a p p l i c an t  as  w e l l  a s  th e  t r a f f i c  i mpac t  an a ly s i s .   L o ok i ng  a t  the  l a t te r ,  

s t a f f  r e c o m me n de d an  a l te r n a t i ve  t o  t h e  p r e se n te d a na l y s i s  to  w h i c h  th e  ap p l i c an t  ag r e ed .   

S ta f f  ex p l a i ne d  p o ss i b le  f u tu r e  c on c e r n s  a b ou t  w i den i n g of  th e  b r i dge  an d  o th e r  r o a d w ay s .   

S ta f f  r e c o m me n da t i o n s  w er e  p r es e n ted  to  th e  a pp l i c an t .    

 

Ja mi e  Sc h we de r ,  P ar k e r  P oe ,  r e p r e se n t i n g  th e  ap p l i c an t ,  c o v er e d th e  k e y  a spe c t s  o f  th e  

de ve lo p me n t .   Sh e  u r ge d C ou nc i l  to  a ppr o ve  Sc e n ar i o  2 .  

 

R ona l d  S te ve n son ,  Ra i n e y Ke mp an d As s oc i a t e s ,  c o ve r e d  th e  t w o t r an s por t a t i on  p i e c e s  o f  

th i s  p l an  w h i c h  wer e  n o t  n e c e ss a r i l y  ex c lu s i ve  o f  e ac h  o th e r .      

 

Be t t y  Pa r k e r ,  S e n i o r  D i r ec to r  o f  R e a l  E s ta te  Se r v i c es  f o r  t h e  Wa k e  Cou n t y  B oa r d o f  

Edu c a t i on ,  sp ok e  ab o u t  th e  n e e d f o r  s ch o o l s  i n  r e l a t i on  to  the  P U D.   Sh e  s pok e  ab ou t  t he i r  

loo k i n g f o r  s i te s  f o r  s c hoo l s  an d  th e  c o l l a bor a t i on  f r o m th e  c o m mu n i t y  to  ac c o mmo da te  

s tu de nt  ca p ac i ty  i n  t h e  ar e a .   Ms .  Par k e r  sp ok e  abou t  th e  e x p l os i ve  g r o w th  i n  Ap e x  an d 

h ow  t h i s  r e l a te s  to  th e i r  f u tu r e  b u i ld  p l an s .    

 

R e sp on di n g t o  C ou nc i l ,  Ms .  P ar k e r  an s we r e d  qu e s t i on s  r e l a te d t o  a f f o r dab l e  h ou s i n g ,  the  

p r i o r i t i z a t i on  o f  a  p r e -K  an d o t h e r  ty pe s  o f  ce n te r s ,  an d ge t t i n g  th e  max i mu m u se  ou t  o f  

lan d  sp ace .  

 

M ayor  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d f o r  te n - mi n u t e  r e c e ss .  

 

Up on  r e tu r n i n g  to  th e  me e t i n g ,  M a yor  G i l b e r t  dec la r e d the  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g s  o pe n .  

 

E mme t t  H ay w oo d ,  a t to r n ey  f r o m R a l e i gh ,  acc o mp an i e d  by  l an d ow n e r  Pa m U t l e y ,  g a ve  

bac k gr oun d on  Ms .  U t l e y ’ s  p r ope r t y  wh i c h  sh e  a gr e e d t o  se l l  fo r  a  n e w  sc h oo l .   Al s o  

ac c o mp an y i n g  M s .  H ay w oo d w as  p r o pe r ty  o wn er  C ar y  Hu nt e r  w h ose  l an d ha s  be e n  i n  h i s  

fa mi l y  s i n c e  t h e  1 70 0 ’ s .   I n  20 10 ,  DO T to o k  mo s t  o f  M r .  Hu n te r ’ s  p r o pe r t y ,  th e  r e mai n i n g  

ac r e a ge  n o w be i n g  l an d l oc k e d .   Mr .  Hu n t e r  a gr e e d t o  th e  se l l i n g  a  po r t i on  o f  h i s  p r ope r t y  

to  th e  sc h o o l  b o ar d .   Bo th  l an d  ow ne r s  a s k e d f o r  th e  r ez on i n g  to  be  ap pr o ve d ,  a l l o w i ng  

- Page 19 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 151 

 

 

 

n on- r e s i de n t i a l  u se s  o n  the i r  p r o pe r t i e s .   M s .  Hay wo o d t a lk ed  ab ou t  th e  g r a de  se p ar a t i on  

b r i d ge  th a t  w ou l d  h ave a  n e g at i ve  e f fe c t  f o r  th e  p r o pe r ty  o wn e r s .  

 

Dou g P oe ,  sp ok e  ab o u t  th e  f a r m wh e r e  h e  l i ve s ,  bou gh t  b y  h i s  g r an dfa th e r  i n  19 30  b e c ause  

o f  th e  r e pu t at i o n  o f  t h e  sc h o o l  sy s te m.   He  s pok e  a  b i t  ab out  th e  To wn  b ac k  th e n  an d h o w  

th e  bu s i n e s se s  me t  t h e  ne e ds  o f  th e  pe o p le .   M r .  P oe  l i k e s  h ow Ap e x  h a s  p l ann e d f o r  

c h an ge .   He  t h an k e d  L e n nar  f o r  the i r  p r o j e c t  an d s t a te d  h e  s up por te d th e  r e zo n i n g .  

 

R e sp on di n g  t o  Cou n c i l ,  B ob  Z i mma l t  w i th  Mc Ad a ms ,  s t at e d  th e  n e w c o n d i t i on  th a t  the y  

wor k e d on  w i th  s t a f f  r e g ar d i n g g r a de  se p ar a te d  c r o s s i n g s .   He  e xp la i n e d w ha t  a  t o we r  

mi gh t  l o ok  l i k e  an d h ow i t  wou l d  f u n c t i on .   S ta f f  s t a t ed  i f  th i s  c on di t i on  wa s  app r o v e d ,  i t  

wou l d  n e e d  t o  c o me  bac k  t o  Cou nc i l  fo r  a  b i c yc le  an d pe de s t r i a n  s y s te ms  p l an  ma p u pd a te  

a me n dme n t .   C ou nc i l  qu e s t i ons  we r e  an s w er e d r e l a te d to  tu r n  lan es .   R e sp on d i n g  to  

C oun c i l ,  s t a f f  s pok e  t o  th e  i mp ac t  on  t r a f f i c  f low i n  t h e  su r r ou n d i n g a r e a  r e su l t i n g  f r o m  th e  

t r a ns por t a t i on  i mpr o v e men t s  be i n g o f fe r e d .   M s .  Sc h we de r  e l a bor a te d a  b i t  mor e  ab ou t  

i n te r se c t i on s  an d th e  r i ght  o f  w ay  o f  w h i c h  D O T d i d  n o t  ma n da te  ap pr ov a l .    

 

C oun c i l  h e ar d  r ec or d e d  co m men t  f r o m K ar e n  D a v i s  r e l a te d  to  t h e  p r o po se d a me n d m e nt s  

to  th e  th o r ou g h far e  an d s t r e e t  p l an  maps .   Sh e  r e i te r a te d he r  c on ce r n  fo r  a  r e du c t i on  i n  

th e  sp e e d l i m i t  o n  a  p or t i on  o f  th e  r o a d a n d th e  r e su l t i n g  be n e f i t s  t o  th e  r e s i d e n t s .    

 

C oun c i l  h e ar d r ec or de d c o mme n t  f r o m K at h le e n  F r ee r  r e l a t ed  t o  th e  r ez on i n g  an d  he r  

op po s i t i on  to  h i gh  de n s i t y .   Sh e  d i d  n o t  w an t  t h e  la n d  u se  c h an ge d .   Th e  sc h oo l  s ys t e m i n  

i t s e l f  sh ou l d  h ave bee n e nou gh t o  de n y  th e  r e zon i n g .    

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  de c l a r e d  th e  Pu b l i c  H ear i n gs  c lo s e d .  

 

R e sp on di n g to  Cou n c i l ,  s ta f f  sp ok e  a b ou t  th e  3 5 - mph  s pe e d l i m i t  an d h o w  i t  ma y  n o t  a f f e c t  

sa fe t y  be c au se  o f  th e  r oa d b e i n g a  ma jo r  c o l le c t o r  s t r e e t  wh i c h  w ou ld  th e n  g o i n t o  a  

r e s i de n t i a l  a r e a .   A s pee d s tu dy  c ou l d  be  don e i f  th e r e  w er e  pe r c e i ve d p r o b l e ms  i n  th e  

fu tu r e .  

 

C oun c i l  p r es e n ted  de ve lo p me n t  f i gu r e s  fo r  p r o j ec ts  th a t  a r e  ap p r ove d  o r  pe n d i n g .   

 

C oun c i l  w as  g l a d t o  s e e  t h i s  t y pe  o f  mi x e d  u se  an d r e c o gn i ze d  t h a t  th e r e  i s  a  h i gh  n e e d f o r  

a  sc h o o l  i n  th i s  a r e a .  

 

C oun c i l  s t at e d  h e  ap pr o ve d  o f  th e  af f o r d ab le  h ou s i n g  as p ec t ,  t r e e  c a n o py  r e p l ac e me n t ,  

an d i n f r a s t r u c tu r e  i mpr o ve me n ts .   Wh i le  th e r e  w as  n o t  a gr e e men t  on  b o th  s i d es  f o r  

- Page 20 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 152 

 

 

 

e ve r y th i ng ,  fo r  a  p r o j ec t  th i s  s i ze ,  th e r e  w as  s i gn i f i c an t  a gr e e m e n t  on  a  l o t  o f  th i n g s .   We  

ar e  a l mos t  i n  a  sc h oo l  c r i s i s ,  an d  t h i s  p r o j e c t  w ou l d  s o l ve  th at  d i l e mma  n ow  an d g o i n g  i n t o  

th e  fu tu r e .  

 

Coun c i l  a gr e e d w i th  th e  un i qu en e s s  o f  t h e  p r o j ec t .   Sh e  w as  a t t r ac te d t o  th e  af fo r d ab l e  

h ous i n g  p i e c e,  t r e e  p r e se r vat i on ,  ae s th e t i c  an d c u l tu r a l  a s pe c t s ,  an d  th e  sc h o o l  an d  i t s  

va r y i n g  c e n te r s .  

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d t h i s  w a s  n o t  th e  o r i g i n a l  p l an  f r o m 2 00 4 ,  bu t  t h i s  w as  i n  t he  s p i r i t  o f  th e  p l an .   

He  w as  e x c i te d  ab ou t  th e  p r o je c t  an d fe l t  h i s  n e i gh bor h oo d w i l l  be n e f i t  f r o m th e  pr o j e c t ,  

e spe c i a l l y  f r o m th e  a me n i t i e s  t h a t  w i l l  be  w i th i n  w a l k i n g  d i s tan c e .   H e  h ope d  th e  

c o mme r c i a l  p ar t  wou l d  be a  su c c e ss .  

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d th e  h a s  e n jo ye d se e i n g th e  e vo lu t i on  o f  t he  p r o j e c t ,  h e r  h a v i n g me t  w i t h  the  

de ve lo p e r s  th r e e  t i me s .   Th e  de ve l o pe r s  h a ve  d on e  th e i r  u t mo s t  t o  c o mpl y  w i th  h e r  r e q u e s t s ,  

e xc e p t  f o r  th e  t r an s p or t a t i on  p i ec e  f o r  wh i ch  th e r e  w as  no t  t o t a l  a gr e e me n t .   Ho w e ve r ,  she  

wa s  e xc i te d ab ou t  th e  p r o j e c t .  

 

Coun c i l  M e mbe r  Gan t t  ma de  t h e  mo t i on  t o  appr o ve  Sc e nar i o  2  f r o m P u b l i c  He ar i n g  0 3 ,  

w i th  th e  th o r ou ghf ar e  an d c o l l ec t or  s t r e e t  p l an  ma p gr oup i n g a nd t r an s i t  p l an  ma p  

a me n dme n t s ;  Cou n c i l  M e mbe r  K i l l i n gs w or th  se c o n de d th e  mo t i on .  

 

Coun c i l  s t at e d  h e  w a s  ap pr e c i a t i ve  o f  th e  de d i c a t i on  of  s ta f f  a nd  t h e  P l a nn i n g  B o ar d  i n  

de f e n d i n g th e  t r an s i t  map s ,  an d  t h a t  h e  r e spe c te d  t h e i r  j u d g m e n t s .   We  w e r e  ab ou t  t o  

mak e  a  t r a de  o f f  be c au se  o f  the  n ee d o f  a  sc h oo l .   We  we r e  ab ou t  to  go  i n  a  d i f fe r e n t  

d i r e c t i on ,  an d th i s  w a s  n o t  a  c r i t i c i s m o f  an y t h i n g pr e v i ou s l y  don e .  

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d h e  w a s  d i s a pp oi n te d w i th  t h e  t r an s i t  po r t i on .   H owe v er ,  th i ng s  n e e de d t o  

c o me  t o ge th e r  i n  o r de r  t o  ge t  th e  c o mmu t e r  a s pe c t  go i ng .   

 

Th e  mo t i on  c a r r i ed  by  a  5 -0  v o te .  

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l l e d f o r  a  mo t i on  fo r  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g  04 .   C ou n c i l  Me mb e r  

K i l l i n gs wor th  ma de  th e  mot i o n  to  appr o ve  t h e  r e qu e s t  w i th  th e  L an d U se  

M ap a me n d men t  an d  the  r e zo n i n g w i th  t h e  a dd i t i on a l  c on di t i on ;   

Coun c i l  M e mbe r  Gan t t  s ec on de d th e  mo t i o n .  

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

PH5 Am a n da Bun c e ,  Cu r r e n t  P l ann i n g M an a ge r  

- Page 21 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 153 

 

 

 

Va r i ou s  a men dme n ts  to  t he  U n i f i e d  De ve lo p me n t  Or d i n an c e  

S taf f  o r i e n te d  C ou nc i l  to  t h e  a men dme n ts .  R e s pon d i n g to  C ou n c i l ,  s ta f f  s t a te d  th e  U DO  

doe s  n ot  h a ve  a  def i n i t i on  o f  a f f o r dab le  h ou s i n g  r i gh t  n o w ,  bu t  th at  th i s  i s  be i n g w o r k e d  

on .   On ce  co mp l e te d ,  a me n dme n t s  to  th e  UDO  wi l l  c o me  b ef o r e  Cou nc i l .   P l an n i n g  B oar d  

r e c o mmen de d a ppr o va l .    

 

C oun c i l  b r i e f l y  me n t i o n e d h e  wa s  i n t e r e s te d  i n  c o m mu n i t y  g ar d e n s  i n  ne i gh b or h o o ds .    

 

S ta f f  con t i n u e d or i e n t i n g  C ou nc i l  t o  th e  a men dme n ts .   Th e  r e m ai n i ng  th r e e  a me n d me n t s  

p r o po se d by  P l an n i n g s t a f f  w e r e  ou t l i ne d ,  the  P l an n i n g B o ar d  r e co mme n d i n g a pp r o va l .   

R e sp on di n g t o  th e  M a yor ,  s ta f f  s t a t e d th er e  h ave be e n  c o mp la i n t s  i n  th e  pas t  ab ou t  p ar k i ng  

at  th e  h i gh  sc h o o l s .   

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  d e c l a r e d th e  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g  ope n .  Wi t h  n o  on e  w i sh i n g  t o  spe ak ,  M ay or  

G i lb e r t  de c la r e d  t h e  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g  c l o se d .  

 

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  c a l l e d  f o r  a  m o t i o n  t o  a p p r o v e  t h e  a m e n d m e n t s .   C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  

M a h a f f e y  m a d e  t h e  m o t i o n ;  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  D o z i e r  s e c o n d e d  t h e  m o t i o n .  

 

C o u n c i l  s p o k e  a b o u t  h i s  a n d  a d d i t i o n a l  C o u n c i l  b e i n g  o n  t h e  P l a n n i n g  C o m m i t t e e  a n d  

t h i n g s  m o v i n g  i n  t h e  r i g h t  d i r e c t i o n  t h r o u g h  i n c r e m e n t a l  c h a n g e s .  

 

T h e  m o t i o n  c a r r i e d  b y  a  5 - 0  v o t e .  

 

O L D  B U S I N E S S  

T h e r e  w e r e  n o  O l d  B u s i n e s s  i t e m s  f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n .  

 

U N F I N I S H E D  B U S I N E S S  

T h e r e  w e r e  n o  U n f i n i s h e d  B u s i n e s s  i t e m s  f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n .  

 

N E W  B U S I N E S S  

NB1 Ni co l e  Do z i e r ,  M ay or  P r o - Te m  

Am e n d me n t  o f  the  T own ’ s  Pe r son n e l  P o l i c i e s  t o  i n c lu de  Ju n e  1 9 ,  J un e te e n th ,  a s  a  

pa i d  Town  H o l i d ay  fo r  e mpl oye es   

- Page 22 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 154 

 

 

 

Coun c i l  s t at e d  th e  c u r r e nt  p a i d  h o l i d a ys .   As  c ha i r  o f  the  Pe r s onn e l  C o m mi t te e ,  C o u n c i l  

s t a te d J u n e te e n t h  i s  t h e  o l de s t  n at i o n a l l y -c e le br a te d  c o mme mo r at i o n  o f  th e  e n d  of  s l aver y  

i n  th e  Un i te d  S t a te s .   Sh e  p r e se n te d th e  h i s t o r y  o f  s l aver y  l e ad i ng  to  Ju n e t e e n th  an d s t a te d  

th at  th e  Pe r s onn e l  Co m mi t te e  r e c o mme n d e d ap pr o v a l  o f  th e  r eq u e s t .  

 

C oun c i l  M e mbe r  Doz i e r  ma de th e  mo t i o n  t o  a men d To wn  p o l i c i e s  to  i n c lu de  

Ju n e  1 9 ,  J u ne te e n t h ,  a s  a  pa i d  h o l i d ay  fo r  To wn  e mp l o yee s ;  Cou nc i l  Me mb e r  M ah af fe y  

se c on de d th e  mo t i on ;  Cou n c i l  M e mbe r  S t a l l i n gs  mad e  a  t h i r d  to  t h e  mo t i on .  

 

Coun c i l  a sk e d i f  th e r e  wa s  c on s i de r at i o n  f o r  th i s  da y  t o  be  a  r e p l ac e me n t  fo r  a  r e ve n u e  

n e ut r a l  s w i tc h  an d p os s i b l y  l ook i n g at  p r o gr ams  w h i c h  w ou l d  b e ne f i t  th e  c o mmu n i ty  w i th  

th e  r e ve nu e .   C ou n c i l  s ta te d s he  d i d  n o t  th i n k  ab ou t  th i s  bec au s e  th e  c o s t  to  th e  bu d ge t  

as  p r o v i de d b y  th e  To wn  M an a ge r  wou l d  be  mi n i ma l .   Sh e  th ou gh t  ab ou t  the  c o s t  o f  p e op l e  

wa n t i n g  t o  ce l e br a te  o r  b e  pr ou d o f  J u ne  1 9 t h ,  a nd  sh e  s pok e  m or e  ab ou t  h e r  r ea so n s  f o r  

th i s .   C ou n c i l  s t a te d s h e  w ou l d  b e  h ap py t o  c a l l  a  Pe r son n e l  C o m mi t te e  me e t i n g  t o  d i s c us s  

th i s  f u r the r ,  b ut  th a t  s h e  w ou l d  mu c h  r a th e r  g i ve  pe o pl e  mor e  th an l e s s  b e c au se  w e t en d 

to  g e t  be t te r  p r o du c t i v i t y  th i s  w a y .   Cou n c i l  s pok e  abou t  h o w th e  c u r r e n t  h o l i d ay s  a r e  n o t  

qu e s t i on e d r e g ar d i ng  th e  r e ve nu e  f ac tor .   

 

Coun c i l  t a l k e d  a bo ut  po s s i b ly  u s i n g  on e  o f  t h e  Ch r i s t ma s  h o l i da y s  fo r  Ju ne te e n th .   He  s p ok e  

ab ou t  h i s  a d voc ac y f o r  th e  n e i gh bor h oo d  gr an t  p r o gr a m an d h o w  i t  w ou l d  b e  a  h i g h  i mp ac t  

fo r  a  h i gh  n u mbe r  o f  pe o p l e  a t  a  r e l a t i ve ly  l ow  c o s t .   Fu r th e r  c on ve r sa t i on  e n su e d 

c onc e r n i n g  n o t  t ak i n g  h o l i d ays  a wa y  f r o m pe o p le  as  th e  d ow n t i me  i s  n e e de d .  

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d th e r e  i s  a  f lo a t i n g  ho l i d ay  av a i la b le  fo r  d i f f e r e n t  f a i th  t r a d i t i on s .  

 

Coun c i l  th an k e d MP T  Doz i e r  f o r  b r i n g i n g  t h i s  t o  C ou n c i l .   He  a dd i t i on a l l y  th ank e d Wa k e  

Coun t y  C o mmi s s i on e r  Ho l me s  an d R a le i gh  M a yor  Ba l dw i n  f o r  b r i n g i n g fo r th  th i s  i s s ue .   

Ce le b r a t i n g  th i s  h o l i d ay  i s  on e  o f  th e  mo s t  e f fe c t i v e  wa ys  t o  r a i s e  a war e ne s s .  

 

Th e  M ay or  a l s o  th ank e d M P T  D o z i e r  fo r  he r  le a der sh i p ,  a s  th i s  w a s  s o me t h i n g sh e  h a d b e en  

pa ss i on a te  abou t .   He  s t a t e d  tw o y oun g  pe op le  p l an n e d  a  Ju n e t e e n th  e ve n t  do wn to w n  t h i s  

ye ar  an d h ow  i mp or t a nt  th i s  wa s  t o  th e m.   I t  i s  i mp or ta n t  th a t  w e  tak e  c a r e  o f  t h e  y ou t h  i n  

th e  fu tu r e .    

 

 

C L O S E D  S E S S I O N  

 

T h e r e  w e r e  n o  C l o s e d  S e s s i o n  i t e m s  f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n .  

- Page 23 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 155 

 

 

 

 

 

W O R K  S E S S I O N  

T h e r e  w e r e  n o  Wo r k  S e s s i o n  i t e m s  f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n .  

 

AD J O U R N M E N T  

Wi t h  th e r e  be i n g n o  fu r the r  bu s i n e s s  an d w i th ou t  o b j e c t i on  f r o m C ou n c i l ,  M ay or  G i l b e r t  

ad j ou r n e d th e  M ee t i n g .  

 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _  

Don n a B .  H os c h ,  M M C ,  N CC M C  

To wn  C le r k  

AT TE S T :  

 
 

 

 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _  

Jac que s  K .  G i lbe r t ,  M ay or  

  

- Page 24 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 156 

 

 

 

 

REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL 
MEETING 
Tu e s d ay ,  Au g u s t  0 4 ,  2 02 0  a t  6 :00  PM  

Coun c i l  C h amb e r  at  Ap e x  To wn  H a l l ,  7 3  Hu n te r  S t r ee t  

       
 C o u n c i l  a n d  A d m i n i s t r a t i o n   

       
M a y o r :  J a c q u e s  K .  G i l be r t  a n d  M a y o r  P r o  T e m :  N i c o l e  L .  D o z i e r  

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r s :  B r e t t  D .  Ga n t t ;  Au d r a  M .  K i l l i n g sw o r t h ;  C h e r y l  F .  S t a l l i n g s ;  T e r r y  M a h a f f e y  

T o w n  M a n a g e r :  D r e w  H av e n s  |  As s i s ta n t  T o w n  M a n a g e r s :  S h a w n  P u r v i s  a n d  M a r t y  S to n e  

T o w n  C l e r k :  D o n n a  B .  H o s c h ,  M M C  |  T ow n  At t o r n e y :  L a u r i e  L .  H o h e  

Ab s e n t  w a s  M a y o r  P r o  T e m  N i c o l e  L .  D o z i e r  

 
 

I n  at te n d an c e  w er e  M a yor  J ac qu e s  K .  G i l be r t  a n d  Cou n c i l  M e mb er s  B r e t t  D .  G an t t ,   

Au dr a  M .  K i l l i n gs w or t h ,  Ch e r y l  F .  S t a l l i n gs ,  an d  T e r r y  M ah af f e y .   Al so  i n  a t t e n d an c e  w er e  

To wn  M an a ge r  D r e w Ha ve n s ,  As s i s t an t  To w n  M a na ge r  Sh a wn  P u r v i s ,   

To wn  C le r k  D on n a B .  Ho sc h ,  an d To wn  At t o r n ey  L au r i e  L .  Hoh e .  

Ab s e n t  w as  M ay or  P r o  Te m N i c o le  L .  Do z i e r .  

 

M ayor  G i lbe r t  c a l le d  t h e  me e t i n g  t o  o r d e r ,  r e a d a  s ta te me nt  o f  d i ve r s i t y  an d i nc l u s i on  

r e la te d  t o  r e l i g i o n ,  a n d  ca l le d  fo r  a  mo m e n t  o f  s i le n c e .   C ou n c i l  M e mb er  C h e r y l  S t a l l i n g s  

ga ve  th e  I nvoc a t i on ,  a f t e r  wh i c h  th e  M ay or  l e d th e  P l e d ge  o f  Al l eg i an ce .  

PR E S E N T AT I O N S  

PR1 Je s s i ca  B o l i n ,  En v i r on me n t a l  En g i ne e r i n g  M an ag e r  

I n t r oduc t i o n  o f  n e wl y  h i r e d  S u s t a i nab i l i t y  s t a f f  

M s .  Bo l i n  p r e sen te d  b i os  a s  sh e  i n t r o du c e d  an d we lc o me d t wo  ne w s taf f  me mb e r s  to  the  

To wn :   M e gan  Pe n de l l ,  Sus t a i n a b i l i t y  P r o g r am C oor d i na t o r  an d Va le r i e  M e r a ,  Su s t a i n a b i l i t y  

An a l y s t .  

CO N SE N T  AGE N D A 

CN1 Am a n da Bun c e ,  Cu r r e n t  P l ann i n g M an a ge r  

S ta te me n t  o f  th e  Ape x  To wn  Cou nc i l  pu r su an t  to  G .S .  1 60 A- 38 3  ad dr e s s i n g  act i o n  on  

th e  v ar i ou s  Un i f i e d De ve lo p me n t  Or d i n an c e  (U D O )  Ame n d me n ts  o f  J u ly  21 ,  202 0  

CN2 Am a n da Bun c e ,  Cu r r e n t  P l ann i n g M an a ge r  

- Page 25 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 157 

 

 

 

Se t  th e  Pu b l i c  H e ar i n g  fo r  t h e  Au g u s t  1 8 ,  2 02 0  To wn  C ou n c i l  me e t i n g  r e g ar d i ng  

va r i ous  a me n d men ts  t o  the  Un i f i e d  De ve lo p me n t  O r d i n anc e  

CN3 Am a n da Bun c e ,  Cu r r e n t  P l ann i n g M an a ge r  

S ta te me n t  o f  th e  To w n  C ou n c i l  an d O r d i n a n c e f o r  R e z on i ng  C as e  #2 0C Z01  D ep o t  4 99  

PU D ,  S t e ph e n  Dor n ,  L e n n ar ,  pe t i t i on e r  f o r  th e  p r o pe r t y  l oc a te d at  0  Ke l l y  R o ad;  1 21 6 ,  

13 00 ,  1 33 0 ,  1 42 0 ,  1 525 ,  an d 16 04  S .  S a le m S t r e e t ;  0  an d 6 40 1  Ape x  Bar b e c ue  R oad  

CN4 Sar ah  Van  E ve r y ,  Se n i o r  P l an ne r  

S ta te me n t  o f  th e  To w n Cou nc i l  an d Or d i n an c e  f o r  R e z on i n g Ap p l i c at i on  #2 0 C Z 05  

We s t  V i l la ge  P UD  Am e n d me n t .   J os h  De c k e r ,  M c Ad ams  C o mp an y ,  pe t i t i on e r  fo r  th e  

p r o pe r ty  loc a te d a t  2 41 2  Ke l l y  R o a d (P I N 0 73 13 317 98 )  

CN5 L i z  L o f t i n ,  Se n i o r  P l a n n er  

Se t  Pu b l i c  He ar i n g  f o r  th e  Au g u s t  18 ,  20 20  Town  C ou n c i l  me e t i n g  r eg ar d i n g R e zo n i ng  

Ap p l i c at i on  # 20 CZ0 6  2 04  &  206  L yn c h S t r e e t .  Th e  a pp l i c an t ,  T r i n i t y  He n de r s on ,  se e k s  

to  r e z on e  ap pr o x i ma te l y  .45  ac r e s  f o r  th e  p r op e r t i e s  loc a te d at  204  &  2 06  L yn c h  

S t r e e t  f r o m H i gh  D e n s i ty  S i ng le - F a mi l y  R e s i d en t i a l  (H D S F )  to  H i gh  D en s i t y  S i n g l e - Fa mi l y  

R e s i de n t i a l  -C on di t i on a l  Z on i n g (H D S F-C Z ) .   

CN6 Shel ly Mayo, P lanner  I I  

F indings of  Fact ,  Conclus ions  of  Law and Decis ion approving the 5 40  F le x  an d Bu s i n e s s  

Pa r k  M a j or  S i te  P lan  l oca te d a t  1 60 0  O l i v e  Ch a pe l  R o ad  

CN7 Di an n e  Kh i n ,  D i r e ct or  o f  P l ann i n g  an d Co m mun i t y  De ve l op me n t  

Am e n d me n ts  t o  the  T ow n  o f  Ap e x  Ad dr es s  P o l i c y ,  o r i g i n a l l y  a p pr o ve d on  Au g u s t  5 ,  

20 03 ,  t o  c l a r i f y  au th o r i t y  an d u pd a te  s t r ee t  n a mi n g p r oc e s se s  

CN8 Di an n e  Kh i n ,  D i r e ct or  o f  P l ann i n g  an d Co m mun i t y  De ve l op me n t  

Am e n d me n t  t o  Ch a p ter  18  o f  th e  Ap e x  Town  Co de  to  c o r r e s pon d to  th e  To wn ’s  

Ad dr es s  Po l i c y  

CN9 M ar ty  S t on e ,  As s i s t an t  To wn  M an a ge r  

Ap p r o va l  a n d  au th o r i za t i on  f o r  th e  T o wn  M ana g er  to  e x e cu te  th e  s ame  f o r  an  

En cr o ac h me n t  Ag r e e men t  be tw e e n th e  To wn  an d pr o pe r ty  o wn e r s ,  R ah u l  G o v i n d an  

an d D i v y a  Su sh ma  N a i r ,  h us b an d an d  w i fe  r e gar d i n g Wa k e  C ou n t y ,  NC P I N# 072 3 - 7 0 -

03 06 ,  2 67 8  Tu n s t a l l  Gr o ve  D r i ve ,  a s  r ec or de d i n  B ook  of  Ma ps  2 01 8 ,  P a ge  015 00 ,  

Wa k e  Cou nt y  Re g i s te r  o f  De e d s  

CN10 E r i c  Neu ma n n  

Ap p r o va l  an d  au th or i zat i on  fo r  the  To w n Man a ge r  t o  ex e c u te  an  Enc r o ac h me n t  

Ag r e e me n t  be t we e n  t he  Tow n  o f  Ap ex  a n d  To wn  o f  Car y  t o  r e l oc at e  an  u n de r g r ou n d 

pr i mar y  e l e c t r i c  l i n e  i n  a  To wn  o f  C ar y  r i gh t - o f - wa y  on  We s th i gh  S t r e e t  

CN11 Sh aw n  P u r v i s ,  As s i s tan t  T o wn  M an ager  

L e as e  a gr e e men t  be t we e n  th e  Tow n  an d th e  Ap e x  C h a mbe r  o f  C o mme r c e  fo r  u se  o f  

sp ac e  i n  Th e  Ap e x  De po t  

CN12 Je s s i ca  B o l i n ,  En v i r on me n t a l  En g i ne e r i n g  M an ag e r  

- Page 26 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 158 

 

 

 

Ap p r o va l  an d  au th o r i za t i on  fo r  th e  T ow n M an ag e r  t o  e x ec u te  th e  s ame  fo r  a  M a s te r  

Se r v i c e s  Ag r e e me n t  be twe e n  th e  Tow n an d Aqu al i s  S to r mw a t e r  M an a ge me n t  f o r  

mon th l y  ma i n te n an ce  o f  a l l  To wn - ow n e d St o r mw a ter  C on t r o l  Me asu r e s  (S C M s )  fo r  a  

3 -ye ar  per i o d  (e n d i n g  06 /30 /2 02 3 )  w i th  t he  opt i on  to  a p pr o ve  tw o one - ye ar  c on t r ac t  

e x t e n s i on s  a f te r  th at  da te  

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l l e d f o r  a  mo t i on  to  ad op t  th e  Con se n t  Ag e n d a .   Cou nc i l  M e mbe r  

K i l l i n gs wor th  ma de  th e  mot i o n ;  C ou n c i l  M e mb e r  Gan t t  se c o n de d  th e  mo t i on .  

Th e  mo t i on  c a r r i ed  by  a  4 -0  v o te .  

 

R E G U L AR  M E E T I N G  A G E N D A  

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  M a h a f f e y  r e q u e s t e d  t h a t  N e w  B u s i n e s s  0 1  b e  p u l l e d  a s  m o r e  t i m e  w a s  

n e e d e d  t o  e v a l u a t e  t h e  O r d i n a n c e .  

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l l e d f o r  a  mo t i on  to  ad op t  th e  R e gu l a r  Ag e n da .   C ou n c i l  Me mbe r  

M ah af fe y  ma de  the  mo t i on  w i t h  the  a d j u s t me n t  as  s ta te d t o  Ne w Bu s i n e s s  01 ;   

Coun c i l  M e mbe r  S t a l l i n g s  se c on de d the  mo t i on .  

Th e  mo t i on  c a r r i ed  by  a  4 -0  v o te .  

 

 

P U B L I C  F O R U M  

An n i e  S c o t t  a d d r e s s e d  C o u n c i l  a b o u t  Ap e x  F r i e n d s h i p  H i g h  S c h o o l  s t u d e n t s  p a r k i n g  o n  

h e r  f i e l d .  S h e  s t a t e d  s h e  w a s  r e a c h e d  o u t  t o  b y  p a r e n t s  t o  a l l o w  t h i s  p a r k i n g .   E a c h  

y e a r  i t  g e t s  t o u g h e r  a n d  t o u g h e r  f o r  s t u d e n t s  t o  f i n d  p a r k i n g .   T h e r e  h a d  b e e n  

c o m p l a i n t s  s t e m m i n g  f r o m  p e o p l e  t a k i n g  s h o r t c u t s  a n d  d r o p p i n g  o f f  s t u d e n t s  b u t  n o t  

f r o m  p a r k i n g  o n  h e r  p r o p e r t y .   M s .  S c o t t  s t a t e d  s h e ’ d  s p o k e n  w i t h  t h e  p r i n c i p a l ,  a n d  h e  

t h o u g h t  p a r k i n g  o n  h e r  p r o p e r t y  a  g r e a t  i d e a .   M o s t  w h o  p a r k  i n  h e r  y a r d  a r e  t h o s e  n o t  

f o r t u n a t e  e n o u g h  t o  g e t  p a r k i n g  s p a c e s  o n  s c h o o l  p r o p e r t y .   S h e  a s k e d  t h a t  t h i s  p a r k i n g  

b e  a l l o w e d .  

 

M s .  S c o t t  s t a t e d  s h e  h a s  l i v e d  i n  t h e  c o m m u n i t y  6 5  y e a r s  a n d  h a s  a l w a y s  b e e n  a  

c o m m u n i t y  p e r s o n .   S h e  p r e s e n t e d  a  p e t i t i o n  s t a r t e d  b y  f a m i l y  m e m b e r s .   M s .  S c o t t  

s t a t e d  t h a t  T o w n  s t a f f  h a s  b u l l i e d  h e r  a b o u t  p a r k i n g  f o r  f o u r  y e a r s ,  a n d  s h e  f e l t  t h e  

s i t u a t i o n  g o t  p e r s o n a l  w h e n  s h e  p u s h e d  b a c k .   S h e  l i v e s  i n  t h e  c o u n t y  a n d  n o t  i n  t h e  

c i t y .  

 

- Page 27 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 159 

 

 

 

P U B L I C  H E AR I N G S  

PH1 Dianne Khin , Di rector  of  P lanning and Communi ty Development  

Annexat ion Ordinance – Char les and Annette Herndon and J Dal las  Herndon Hei rs  

(Tu l lamore) proper ty contain ing 10 .1869 acres  located at  1745 and 1805 Ho lt  Road,  

Annexat ion #686 into  the Town’s  corporate l imi ts  

Staf f  or iented Counci l  to the s i te ,  stat ing i t  recommended approval .  

 

Mayor  Gi lber t  declared the Publ ic  Hear ing open.  Wi th  no one wish ing to speak , Mayor  Gi lber t  

declared the Publ ic  Hear ing c losed. 

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l l e d f o r  a  mo t i on  to  ad op t  th e  Or d i n an ce .   C ou n c i l  M e mbe r  G an t t   

ma de  t h e  mo t i on ;  Co u n c i l  M e mber  M a haf f e y  se c on de d the  mo t i on .  

Th e  mo t i on  c a r r i ed  by  a  4 -0  v o te .  

 

PH2 Dianne Khin , Di rector  of  P lanning and Communi ty Development  

Annexat ion Ordinance – Fai thwi l l  Homes,  LLC (Ananda at Bel la Casa) proper ty  contain ing 

2 .0058 acres located at  2708 B laz ing Trai l  Dr ive, Annexat ion #691 into the Town’s  

corporate  l i mi ts  

Staf f  or iented Counci l  to the s i te ,  stat ing i t  recommended approval .  

 

Mayor  Gi lber t  declared the Publ ic  Hear ing open.  Wi th  no one wish ing to speak , Mayor  Gi lber t  

declared the Publ ic  Hear ing c losed. 

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l l e d f o r  a  mo t i on  to  ad op t  th e  Or d i n an ce .   C ou n c i l  M e mbe r   

K i l l i n gs wor th  ma de  th e  mot i o n ;  C ou n c i l  M e mb e r  S t a l l i n g s  se c on d ed th e  mo t i on .  

Th e  mo t i on  c a r r i ed  by  a  4 -0  v o te .  

 

PH3 Di an n e  Kh i n ,  D i r e ct or  o f  P l ann i n g  an d Co m mun i t y  De ve l op me n t  

An n e xa t i on  Or d i n an c e  -  Con s t r u c t i on  M a s te r s ,  L L C (H u mi e  O l i ve  P l ac e )  p r o pe r ty  

c ont a i n i n g  2  ac r e s  l oc a te d a t  7 90 4  Hu mi e  O l i ve  R o a d ,  An n e x at i o n  #6 94  i n t o  t h e  

To wn ’s  c o r p or a te  l i mi t s  

Staf f  or iented Counci l  to the s i te ,  stat ing i t  recommended approval .  

 

Mayor  Gi lber t  declared the Publ ic  Hear ing open.  Wi th  no one wish ing to speak , Mayor  Gi lber t  

declared the Publ ic  Hear ing c losed. 

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l l e d f o r  a  mo t i on  to  ad op t  th e  Or d i n an ce .   C ou n c i l  M e mbe r   

S ta l l i n gs  ma d e  th e  m ot i on ;  C ou nc i l  Me mb e r  Mah af fe y  s e c on de d th e  mo t i o n .  

Th e  mo t i on  c a r r i ed  by  a  4 -0  v o te .  

- Page 28 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 160 

 

 

 

M ayor  G i lbe r t  c a l l e d  f o r  the  r e tu r n  t o  Pu b l i c  Fo r u m to  he ar  a  r e c or de d c o m me n t  f r o m Al e x i a  

K l i n e .   M s .  K l i n e  s ta te d  sh e  w as  an  a mbas sa d or  fo r  t he  B o r g e n P r o j e c t  w h i c h  se e k s  t o  e n g a ge  

loc a l  c i t i ze n s  fo r  s t r on ge r  U .S .  l e a de r sh i p  an d to  i mpr o v e  l i v i n g  c o n d i t i on s  a r ou n d the  w or l d .    

M s .  K l i n e  ou t l i ne d th e  i mp or t an c e  o f  r e c o gn i z i n g  t he r e  i s  a  g lo b a l  n o t  j u s t  a  l oc a l  s t r u g g le  

du r i n g  th e  p an de mi c .   Sh e  s po k e  ab ou t  h ow  t h e  pan de mi c  w i l l  n e ga t i ve l y  a f f e ct  the  

e c on o my  ar oun d th e  wor l d .   S h e  w i s h e d f o r  Cou n c i l  to  pa y  mor e  a t t e n t i on  to  th i s  i s s u e  by  

c a l l i n g  on  ou r  l e g i s l a t o r s  t o  su pp or t  i n t e r n a t i on a l  de ve lo p me n t  p r ogr a ms .    

O L D  B U S I N E S S  

OB1 To m C o l we l l ,  Ch a i r ma n,  Pu b l i c  Ar t  C o mmi t t e e  

Pu b l i c  a r t  mu r a l  t o  b e  l oc ate d on  a  wa l l  o f  th e  pu b l i c  w or k s  war e h ou se  b u i l d i n g  

fac i n g NC 55  an d u p da te  on  o the r  pu b l i c  a r t  i n i t i a t i ve s  be i n g u n de r t ak e n  by  th e  

Ap e x  Pu b l i c  Ar t  Co m mi t te e  

M r .  C o l we l l  p r o v i de d an  u p date  on  on g o i n g pu b l i c  a r t  p r o j ec t s .   Th e  r a i se d ma nh ol e s  h a ve  

r e c e i ve d po s i t i ve  f e e db ack ,  a nd  the se  w i l l  c on t i n u e  t o  be  p a i n t e d .   Th e  ar t  w a lk  sc u l ptu r e  

sh o w wi l l  h ave s e ve r a l  sc u l p tu r e s  on  l o an ;  an d i f  su c ce s s fu l ,  we  can  d o th i s  o n  an  an n ua l  

ba s i s .   Th e  sc u l p tu r e s  wou l d  sh o w  up  i n  a  s h o r t  pe r i o d t i me  a n d be  wa lk a b le  fo r  pe op le  to  

e n joy .   The  i n s ta l l a t i on  w ou l d  be te mp or ar y ,  an d  a  c a l l  w ou l d  go  ou t  fo r  a r t i s t s  th i s  f a l l .  

 

Th e  mu r a l  fo r  th e  Pu b l i c  Wor k s  bu i l d i n g  w as  pu t  ou t  f o r  p ub l i c  co mme n t .   Al l  c o m me n ts  

r e c e i ve d w er e  we l l  th ou gh t  ou t .   Mr .  Co l w e l l  wa s  h a pp y  to  se e  t he  mu r a l  co mi n g t o  Ap ex .   

Th e  a r t i s t  ma de  t w e a k s  b as e d on  pu b l i c  c o mmen t s ,  an d Mr .  C o l we l l  p r e se n te d  th e  f i n a l  

r e n d i t i on .   I f  app r o ve d by  Cou n c i l ,  th e  mu r a l  w ou l d  be  c o mpl e t e d  by  t h e  e n d o f  Se pt e mb e r .  

 

Coun c i l  s t at e d  th e  ma nh o le  c o v e r s  l ook  go o d .   He  th ou gh t  a bou t  t h e  c o v e r s  i n  th e  r o adw ay s  

an d no t  j u s t  on  th e  g r e e nw a ys .   Mr .  C o l we l l  sa i d  th e  o n e s  i n  th e  g r e e n w ay s  w e r e  a  te s t  t o  

se e  i f  th e  ar t wor k  w as  l i k e d an d i f  th e y  w ou l d  h o l d  up .   P o te n t i a l l y ,  the s e  c an  b e  e x p an de d .    

 

R e sp on di n g t o  C ou n c i l ,  M r .  Co l we l l  c la r i f i ed  the  a r t  w or k  f o r  t he  a r t  w a lk .   I t  wa s  ho pe d to  

h a ve  6  an d 8  p i e c e s  o f  a r t  w or k  f o r  th e  wa lk .    

 

Coun c i l  s t a te d s h e  l i k e d th e  “ pe op le / pe r s on h o le s” .   C ou nc i l  s t a t e d  h e  fe l t  a r t  he lp s  t o  

i mpr o ve  th e  qu a l i t y  o f  l i f e  i n  Ap ex .   Ma y or  G i lbe r t  th an k e d M r .  C o l we l l  fo r  ge t t i n g  th i s  don e .  

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l l e d f o r  a  mo t i on .   Cou nc i l  M e mbe r  K i l l i n gs w or th  ma de  t h e  mo t i on  

to  a ppr o ve  th e  mu r a l ;  Coun c i l  Me mbe r  Gan t t  s e c on de d th e  mo t i on .  

Th e  mo t i on  c a r r i ed  by  a  4 -0  v o te .  

 

- Page 29 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 161 

 

 

 

U N F I N I S H E D  B U S I N E S S  

T h e r e  w e r e  n o  U n f i n i s h e d  B u s i n e s s  i t e m s  f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n .  

 

N E W  B U S I N E S S  

NB1 Th i s  i te m w as  pu l l e d f r o m th e  Ag e n da  a s  r e que s te d by  C ou nc i l  

Te r r y  Mah af fe y ,  Cou n c i l  M e mbe r  

D i sc u s s i on  an d p os s i b le  mo t i on  to  a me n d S e c t i on  14 -3 3  o f  th e  Ap e x  C od e o f  

Or d i n an c e s  r e l a te d to  p r oh i b i te d n o i se s  

 

C L O S E D  S E S S I O N  

CS1 L aur i e  H oh e ,  To wn  At t o r n e y  

C lo se d S e s s i on  pu r su an t  t o  N .C .G .S .  §14 3 -3 18 .11 (a) (3 )  t o  p r e s e r ve  a t t o r n e y- c l i e n t  

p r i v i l e ge ;  pu r su an t  to  N .C . G. S .  §1 43 -3 18 .1 1 (a ) (3 )  r e l a te d to  th e  mat te r  o f  AB  G o o dr i c h  

C on t r ac t i n g ,  L L C  v .  Town  o f  Ap ex  an d S te war t  Co op e r  Ne w el l ,  Ar c h i te c t s ,  P . A. ;  an d  

pu r su an t  to  N .C .G .S .  §14 3 -3 18 .11 (a) (1 )  t o  p r e ve n t  the  d i sc lo su r e  of  i n fo r ma t i o n  th a t  

i s  p r i v i l e ge d o r  c o n f i d en t i a l  pu r su an t  to  N .C . G. S .  §14 3 -31 8 .10 (e )  

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l l e d f o r  a  mo t i on  to  go  i n to  C l ose d  Se s s i on .   C ou nc i l  Me mb e r   

Ga n t t  ma d e  th e  mo t i on ;  C ou n c i l  M e mbe r  S ta l l i n gs  se c on de d th e  mo t i on .  

Th e  mo t i on  c a r r i ed  by  a  4 -0  v o te .  

 

M ayor  G i l be r t  c a l l e d f o r  a  r e tu r n  to  O pe n  S e s s i on  w i th  n o  o b je c t i on s  f r o m C ou n c i l .  

 

W O R K  S E S S I O N  

T h e r e  w e r e  n o  Wo r k  S e s s i o n  i t e m s  f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n .  

AD J O U R N M E N T  

Wi t h  th e r e  be i n g n o  fu r the r  bu s i n e s s  an d w i th ou t  o b j e c t i on  f r o m C ou n c i l ,  M ay or  G i l b e r t  

ad j ou r n e d th e  M ee t i n g .  

 

 

 

- Page 30 -



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 162 

 

 

 

 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _  

Don n a B .  H os c h ,  M M C ,  N C CM C  

To wn  C le r k  

AT TE S T :  

 
 

 

 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __ _  

Jac q ue s  K .  G i lbe r t ,  M ay or  

 

- Page 31 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for  cons iderat ion by the Apex Town Counci l  

 

 I tem Type:  CONSENT AGEND A 

 Meeting Date:  August 18 , 2020 

Item Details  

Presenter :  Dianne Khin , Di rector  of  P lanning and Communi ty Development  

Depar tment:  P lanning and Communi ty Development  

Requested Motion  

Motion to adopt a Resolut ion Di rect ing the Town Clerk  to Invest igate Pet i t ion  Received, to accept the 

Cert i f icate of  Suf f ic iency by the Town Clerk , and to adopt a Resolut ion Sett ing Date of  Publ ic Hear ing 

for  September 1 , 2020 on the Quest ion of  Annexation –  Apex Town Counci l ’s  in tent to annex Hector  

Cuales (Per ry Hi l l s  Phase 6)  proper ty contain ing 1.66 acres located at 0  and 1105 T ingen Road, 

Annexation #695 into the Town’s corporate l imi ts .  

Approval  Recommended? 

Yes , by the P lanning and Communi ty Development Depar tment.  

I tem Detai l s  

The Town Clerk cert i f ies to the invest igat ion of  said annexation.  Adoption of  the Resolut ion 

author i zes the Town Clerk to advert i se said publ ic hear ing by e lectronic means and on the Town 

of Apex’s websi te .  

Attachments  

  Annexation Pet i t ion  

  Legal  Descr ipt ion  

  Vicin i ty Map 

  Resolut ion Di rect ing the Town Clerk to Invest igate Pet i t ion  

  Cert i f icate of  Suf f ic iency by the Town Clerk  

  Resolut ion Sett ing Date of  Publ ic Hear ing  

 

 

- Page 32 -



    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 
TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 
Annexation Petition #695 

1105 Tingen Road 
 
 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160-A 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 
be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 
take place; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation; 
 
   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of her 
investigation. 
 
This the 18th day of August 2020. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
  

- Page 33 -



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 
 

Annexation Petition #695 
1105 Tingen Road 

 
 
 

 
To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 
 
    I,  Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 
annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 
is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 
accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 
 
    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Town of Apex, North Carolina this 18th day of August 2020. 
 
 
 
 

                                                                      
________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

                                                           Town Clerk 
      

    
 
 
 
         (Seal) 

 
 

 
 

- Page 34 -



- Page 35 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
695

bbrock
Typewritten Text
200

bbrock
Typewritten Text
6/15/2020

bbrock
Typewritten Text
6158

bbrock
Text Box



- Page 36 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
695

bbrock
Typewritten Text
6/15/2020



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
Application #: Submittal Date: 

Insert legal description below. 

Property 1: 1105 Tingen Road: PIN 0741-36-1302
BEGINNING at a point at the eastern right of way of Apex  - termination of Kissena Lane 
thence N 75°26'28" W a distance of 38.91' to a point;
thence N 09°51'25" E a distance of 200.21' to a point;
thence S 86°36'05" E a distance of 115.53' to a point; 
thence S 87°05'54" E a distance of 35.51' to a point; 
thence S 87°05'54" E a distance of 156.09' to a point;
thence S 41°21'29" W a distance of 291.97' to a point;
thence N 75°26'28" W a distance of 114.03' to the original Point of Beginning. 
 
The above described area containing an area of 1.16 acres (50,554 sf).  Which is defined by 
the below referenced property.  DB 17673; PG 1611
 
Property 2: 0 Tingen Road: PIN 0741-26-8380
BEGINNING at a point 4.07' west of the western right of way of Apex - termination of Kissena 
Lane
thence N 86°17'20" W a distance of 109.93' to a point;
thence N 09°45'45" E a distance of 199.89' to a point;
thence S 86°25'05" E a distance of 41.98' to a point; 
thence S 86°25'05" E a distance of 68.31' to a point; 
thence S 09°51'25" W a distance of 200.18' to the original Point of Beginning

The above described area containing an area of 0.50 acres (21,898 sf).  Which is defined by 
the below referenced propery.  DB 17272; PG 548

The total area described above contains an area of 1.66 acres (72,452 sf).  

- Page 37 -



- Page 38 -



8/13/2020 Account Summary - 0059739

services.wakegov.com/realestate/Account.asp?id=0059739&map=0741&sheet=&block=36&lot=1302&stype=pin&spg=1 1/1

Home Wake County Real Estate Data iMaps
Account Summary Tax Bills

Real Estate ID 0059739 PIN #  0741361302
  
Location Address Property Description
1105 TINGEN RD BEASLEY LAND

Pin/Parcel History  Search Results  New Search 
Account | Buildings | Land | Deeds | Notes | Sales | Photos | Tax Bill | Map

Account
Search

Property Owner
CUALES, HECTOR
(Use the Deeds link to view any additional owners)

Owner's Mailing Address
3308 WHITTINGHAM DR
NEW HILL NC 27562-8985

Property Location Address
1105 TINGEN RD
APEX NC 27502-7794
 

Administrative Data
Old Map # 010-00000-0047
Map/Scale 0741 10
VCS 20AP900
City
Fire District 23
Township WHITE OAK
Land Class R-<10-HS
ETJ AP
Spec Dist(s)
Zoning RA
History ID 1
History ID 2
Acreage 1.17
Permit Date 12/16/2002
Permit # 0000006597

Transfer Information
 
Deed Date 12/5/2019
Book & Page 17673  1611
Revenue Stamps 114.00
Pkg Sale Date 12/5/2019
Pkg Sale Price $57,000
Land Sale Date
Land Sale Price
  
Improvement Summary
 
Total Units 1
Recycle Units 1
Apt/SC Sqft
Heated Area 572

Assessed Value
 
Land Value Assessed $115,475
Bldg. Value Assessed $30,429
  
  
Tax Relief
  
Land Use Value
Use Value Deferment
Historic Deferment
Total Deferred Value

 
 

Use/Hist/Tax Relief
Assessed

 

Total Value Assessed* $145,904

*Wake County assessed building and land values reflect the market value as of January 1, 2020, which is the date of the last
county-wide revaluation. Any inflation, deflation or other economic changes occurring after this date does not affect the
assessed value of the property and cannot be lawfully considered when reviewing the value for adjustment.

The January 1, 2020 values will remain in effect until the next county-wide revaluation. Until that time, any real estate
accounts created or new construction built is assessed according to the 2020 Schedule of Values.

For questions regarding the information displayed on this site, please contact the Department of Tax Administration
at Taxhelp@wakegov.com or call 919-856-5400.

- Page 39 -

http://www.wakegov.com/
http://www.wakegov.com/tax/
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/pinhistory/default.aspx?reid=0059739
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/DoSearch.asp?id=0059739&map=0741&sheet=&block=36&lot=1302&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/search.asp?id=0059739&map=0741&sheet=&block=36&lot=1302&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Building.asp?id=0059739&map=0741&sheet=&block=36&lot=1302&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1105++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LAND&pin=0741361302
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Land.asp?id=0059739&map=0741&sheet=&block=36&lot=1302&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1105++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LAND&pin=0741361302
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Deeds.asp?id=0059739&map=0741&sheet=&block=36&lot=1302&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1105++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LAND&pin=0741361302
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Notes.asp?id=0059739&map=0741&sheet=&block=36&lot=1302&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1105++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LAND&pin=0741361302
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/ImpSales.asp?id=0059739&map=0741&sheet=&block=36&lot=1302&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1105++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LAND&pin=0741361302
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Photo.asp?id=0059739&map=0741&sheet=&block=36&lot=1302&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1105++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LAND&pin=0741361302
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing/acctsummary.aspx?search=re&yrs=2&prev=re&id=0059739
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/?pin=0741361302
mailto:Taxhelp@wakegov.com


8/13/2020 Account Summary - 0052620

services.wakegov.com/realestate/Account.asp?id=0052620&map=0741&sheet=&block=26&lot=8380&stype=pin&spg=1 1/1

Home Wake County Real Estate Data iMaps
Account Summary Tax Bills

Real Estate ID 0052620 PIN #  0741268380
  
Location Address Property Description
0 TINGEN RD BEASLEY LD

Pin/Parcel History  Search Results  New Search 
Account | Buildings | Land | Deeds | Notes | Sales | Photos | Tax Bill | Map

Account
Search

Property Owner
CUALES, HECTOR
(Use the Deeds link to view any additional owners)

Owner's Mailing Address
3308 WHITTINGHAM DR
NEW HILL NC 27562-8985

Property Location Address
0 TINGEN RD
APEX NC 27502-7794
 

Administrative Data
Old Map # 010-00000-041A
Map/Scale 0741 10
VCS 20AP900
City
Fire District 23
Township WHITE OAK
Land Class VACANT
ETJ AP
Spec Dist(s)
Zoning RA
History ID 1
History ID 2
Acreage .50
Permit Date
Permit #

Transfer Information
 
Deed Date 10/22/2018
Book & Page 17272  0548
Revenue Stamps 156.00
Pkg Sale Date
Pkg Sale Price
Land Sale Date 10/22/2018
Land Sale Price $75,058
  
Improvement Summary
 
Total Units 0
Recycle Units 0
Apt/SC Sqft
Heated Area

Assessed Value
 
Land Value Assessed $81,900
Bldg. Value Assessed
  
  
Tax Relief
  
Land Use Value
Use Value Deferment
Historic Deferment
Total Deferred Value

 
 

Use/Hist/Tax Relief
Assessed

 

Total Value Assessed* $81,900

*Wake County assessed building and land values reflect the market value as of January 1, 2020, which is the date of the last
county-wide revaluation. Any inflation, deflation or other economic changes occurring after this date does not affect the
assessed value of the property and cannot be lawfully considered when reviewing the value for adjustment.

The January 1, 2020 values will remain in effect until the next county-wide revaluation. Until that time, any real estate
accounts created or new construction built is assessed according to the 2020 Schedule of Values.

For questions regarding the information displayed on this site, please contact the Department of Tax Administration
at Taxhelp@wakegov.com or call 919-856-5400.

- Page 40 -

http://www.wakegov.com/
http://www.wakegov.com/tax/
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/pinhistory/default.aspx?reid=0052620
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/DoSearch.asp?id=0052620&map=0741&sheet=&block=26&lot=8380&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/search.asp?id=0052620&map=0741&sheet=&block=26&lot=8380&stype=pin&spg=1
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Building.asp?id=0052620&map=0741&sheet=&block=26&lot=8380&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=0++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LD&pin=0741268380
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Land.asp?id=0052620&map=0741&sheet=&block=26&lot=8380&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=0++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LD&pin=0741268380
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Deeds.asp?id=0052620&map=0741&sheet=&block=26&lot=8380&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=0++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LD&pin=0741268380
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Notes.asp?id=0052620&map=0741&sheet=&block=26&lot=8380&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=0++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LD&pin=0741268380
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/ImpSales.asp?id=0052620&map=0741&sheet=&block=26&lot=8380&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=0++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LD&pin=0741268380
http://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Photo.asp?id=0052620&map=0741&sheet=&block=26&lot=8380&stype=pin&spg=1&cd=01&loc=0++TINGEN+RD&des=BEASLEY+LD&pin=0741268380
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing/acctsummary.aspx?search=re&yrs=2&prev=re&id=0052620
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/?pin=0741268380
mailto:Taxhelp@wakegov.com


 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 
Annexation Petition #695 

1105 Tingen Road 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 
been received; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 
directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 
 
         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 
has been made; 
 
      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 
North Carolina that: 
 
     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 
described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6 o’clock p.m. on the 1st day of 
September 2020. 
 
      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 
 
      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 
Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 
of said public hearing. 
 
     This the 18th day of August 2020. 
 

 
                ________________________________________ 
              Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:                        
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 

  

- Page 41 -



- Page 42 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
0741-26-8380



- Page 43 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
695

bbrock
Typewritten Text
6/15/2020



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
Application #: Submittal Date: 

Insert legal description below. 

Property 1: 1105 Tingen Road: PIN 0741-36-1302
BEGINNING at a point at the eastern right of way of Apex  - termination of Kissena Lane 
thence N 75°26'28" W a distance of 38.91' to a point;
thence N 09°51'25" E a distance of 200.21' to a point;
thence S 86°36'05" E a distance of 115.53' to a point; 
thence S 87°05'54" E a distance of 35.51' to a point; 
thence S 87°05'54" E a distance of 156.09' to a point;
thence S 41°21'29" W a distance of 291.97' to a point;
thence N 75°26'28" W a distance of 114.03' to the original Point of Beginning. 
 
The above described area containing an area of 1.16 acres (50,554 sf).  Which is defined by 
the below referenced property.  DB 17673; PG 1611
 
Property 2: 0 Tingen Road: PIN 0741-26-8380
BEGINNING at a point 4.07' west of the western right of way of Apex - termination of Kissena 
Lane
thence N 86°17'20" W a distance of 109.93' to a point;
thence N 09°45'45" E a distance of 199.89' to a point;
thence S 86°25'05" E a distance of 41.98' to a point; 
thence S 86°25'05" E a distance of 68.31' to a point; 
thence S 09°51'25" W a distance of 200.18' to the original Point of Beginning

The above described area containing an area of 0.50 acres (21,898 sf).  Which is defined by 
the below referenced propery.  DB 17272; PG 548

The total area described above contains an area of 1.66 acres (72,452 sf).  

- Page 44 -



- Page 45 -



- Page 46 -



- Page 47 -



- Page 48 -



LEGAL DESCRIPTION ANNEXATION #695 
 
Property 1: 1105 Tingen Road: PIN 0741-36-1302 
BEGINNING at a point at the eastern right of way of Apex  - termination of Kissena Lane  
thence N 75°26'28" W a distance of 38.91' to a point; 
thence N 09°51'25" E a distance of 200.21' to a point; 
thence S 86°36'05" E a distance of 115.53' to a point;  
thence S 87°05'54" E a distance of 35.51' to a point;  
thence S 87°05'54" E a distance of 156.09' to a point; 
thence S 41°21'29" W a distance of 291.97' to a point; 
thence N 75°26'28" W a distance of 114.03' to the original Point of Beginning.  
  
The above described area containing an area of 1.16 acres (50,554 sf).  Which is defined by the 
below referenced property.  DB 17673; PG 1611 
 
Property 2: 0 Tingen Road: PIN 0741-26-8380 
BEGINNING at a point 4.07' west of the western right of way of Apex - termination of Kissena 
Lane 
thence N 86°17'20" W a distance of 109.93' to a point; 
thence N 09°45'45" E a distance of 199.89' to a point; 
thence S 86°25'05" E a distance of 41.98' to a point;  
thence S 86°25'05" E a distance of 68.31' to a point;  
thence S 09°51'25" W a distance of 200.18' to the original Point of Beginning 
 
  
The above described area containing an area of 0.50 acres (21,898 sf).  Which is defined by the 
below referenced property.  DB 17272; PG 548 

                                                                                                                                           
The total area described above contains an area of 1.66 acres (72,452 sf).   

 

- Page 49 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2 0 2 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  M i c hae l  Dea t on ,  Wa t e r  R eso u rc es  D i rec to r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Wa t e r  R e sou rc es  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  a p pro ve  a nd au th or i ze  t he  To w n Man a ger  t o  exec u t e  the  s a me fo r  an  En c roac h men t  

Ag r ee men t  be tw een t he  To wn an d C o l on i a l  P i pe l i ne  Co mp an y (CP C )  re gar d i n g an  ex i s t i ng  CP C 

eas e me nt  l oc a te d a d j ac ent  to  the  i n te r sec t i on  o f  S .  S a le m S t ree t  an d Su gar la nd  D r i ve  i n  Ap ex ,  

NC .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

 

I tem De ta i l s  

 

Ap p r o ve  Enc ro ac h me nt  Ag ree men t  be t wee n th e  Town  (G ran te e )  an d C PC  fo r  the  p r op er t y  

desc r i b ed  a s  a  Pe t ro l eu m Ut i l i t y  E ase me nt ,  (C P C Loc .  806 ,  T r ac t  No .  283 .1 ,  Ma p 08060 36S ,  L i ne  

No .  22 ,  23  &  24 ,  S ta t i o n  N o .  3735+ 35 ,  3727+ 5 0  &  3734+ 15 )  Ap e x ,  N C .   Gra nt ee  des i re s  to  

enc roac h  th rou gh  i n s t a l la t i on  o f  a  pu b l i c  s i de wa lk  an d wa te r  ma i n  wh i c h  w i l l  enc ro ac h  

perpe ndi c u l a r  u pon  t he  P e t r o leu m  U t i l i t y  E ase men t  an d run  p ar a l le l  t o  S .  Sa le m S t ree t  a s  p ar t  o f  

the  To wn ’s  U - 5928  Ap ex  Peak w ay  S ou th wes t  C onnec t o r  p r o j ec t .  

 

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Enc ro ac h men t  Ag ree men t  

 

 

- Page 50 -



ROW-F02 
Colonial Pipeline Company 

Encroachment Agreement 
 

 

Rev. 02.27.15 

Colonial Pipeline Company 
411 Gallimore Dairy Rd. Bldg. A 
Greensboro, NC 27409 
336-931-6039 
 
Encroachment No.: WTW-806-283.1-20-007 
Date:  06/10/2020 
Encroaching Party: 
 
Town of Apex  
Attn:  Russell H. Dalton, PE 
Public Works & Transportation 
73 Hunter Street 
P.O. Box 250  
Apex, NC 27502 
919-249-3358 
Russell.dalton@apexnc.org  
   
Re:  Encroachment Agreement – CPC Loc. 806, Tract No. 283.1, Map 0806036S, Line No. 22, 23 & 
24, Station No. 3735+35, 3727+50 & 3734+15 Wake County, State of North Carolina. 
 
Colonial Pipeline Company has completed its review of your water line plans and has no objection to 
your proposed 20” DIP Water line with 2 layers, sixty feet (60’) of Polyethylene Encasement (Double 
Polywrap) encroaching upon Colonial’s 16”, 8” & 8” petroleum products pipelines as depicted in 
“Exhibits A” and approved by Colonial’s field representative, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Notify State utilities protection center (SC811), in accordance with local, State and Federal 
laws.  Colonial will not inspect or approve any work, until a locate notice (Dial 811) has been 
issued. Notify Steve Anderson by cell phone at 919-227-6805 at least three (3) working days 
prior to any construction, subsequent maintenance, or repair, so that Colonial may provide a 
representative on the site.  If he cannot be reached, then notify Tom West at phone 336-931-
6039. 

 
2. No excavation or construction is permitted over Colonial’s pipeline(s) or within its right of way 

without a Colonial representative being present.  The location of the pipeline(s) shall be 
identified prior to the beginning of any mechanical excavation work.  If the location of the 
pipeline(s) is not known, only hand excavation will be allowed.  Based on circumstances at the 
encroachment site, Colonial’s representative has the authority to determine the extent of hand 
excavation required.  However, absent special permission from Colonial’s Representative, no 
mechanized ditching or excavation shall be allowed within five (5) feet of the extremities of the 
pipelines.  IN ANY EVENT, ALL EXCAVATION WITHIN TWO (2) FEET OF THE 
PIPELINE(S) MUST BE ACCOMPLISHED BY HAND.  Where hand excavation is 
required, the encroaching party must provide adequate manpower to perform that work.  

- Page 51 -

mailto:Russell.dalton@apexnc.org


 - 2 – 
Rev. 02.27.15 Colonial Pipeline Company ROW-F02  

Subgrading, grading, and placement of fill over Colonial’s pipeline(s) will require the approval 
of Colonial’s field representative as to method and extent. 

 
3. Full access must be maintained to the pipeline(s) at all times.  Stockpiling of fill, including 

spoil, or topsoil over the pipeline(s), is not permitted, unless approved by the Colonial 
representative. 

 
4. Underground utilities (i.e. storm drains, water lines, telephone, electric, etc.) may cross the 

easement, providing they maintain a minimum vertical clearance of twenty four (24) inches,  
except where horizontal directional drilling methods are used, then sixty (60) inches will 
be required over or under Colonial’s pipeline(s), and cross at as near a perpendicular angle as 
practical.    Septic drain fields and or sewage drains used for percolation are not permissible 
inside the pipeline easement.  All utility crossings of Colonial’s pipeline(s) and respective 
easements must be constructed of galvanized steel, ductile iron double wrapped with poly wrap, 
reinforced concrete, or schedule 80 PVC for the entire width of the right of way being crossed. 

 
5. Blasting within the immediate vicinity of Colonial’s right of way shall be conditionally allowed.  

The contractor, planning blasting within 200 feet (6l m) of a pipeline or when scaled distance 
values at the pipeline are less than 50, must give advance notification of proposed blasting and 
submit a completed blasting plan (Form 3005), to be approved by Colonial, prior to the 
commencement of any blasting operations. A Colonial inspector is required to be on site to 
observe all drilling, loading, and blasting operations.  The contractor shall provide in-progress 
seismic readings and blasting reports as required in Colonial Standard ES-13-108.  All blasting 
operations must meet the requirements of this standard as well as Occupational Health and 
Safety regulations contained in CFR Title 29, Part 1926, Subpart U – Blasting and Use of 
Explosives. 

 
6. Any erosion control measures required for your development including temporary diversion 

dikes, sediment traps, silt fences, gravel outlets, and emergency spillways that may influence or 
contribute to the degradation of Colonial’s right of way will require the approval of Colonial’s 
field representative as to equipment and method. Under no circumstances shall water be 
impounded on the pipeline(s) right of way. 

 
7. Upon request of the encroaching party, landowner or their agents, Colonial will determine the 

approximate location of its pipeline(s) and right of way limits; however, in doing so, Colonial 
makes no warranty as to the accuracy of the locations and measurements given.  Colonial also 
cannot provide assurance that its permanent line markers are positioned directly over its 
pipeline(s). 

 
8. Original vegetation on Colonial’s right of way shall not be disturbed except in areas of approved 

construction and approved equipment crossings.  Highly visible plastic fence or other approved 
temporary barricade will be required at contractor’s expense along Colonial’s easement 
boundaries if Colonial’s field representative deems it necessary; to ensure that contractor traffic 
does not travel over the pipeline(s). 

 
9. Permanent structures are not permitted on the right of way.  Manholes, junction boxes, valve 

boxes, fire hydrants, service meters, storm drain inlets, and utility poles are considered 

- Page 52 -



 - 3 – 
Rev. 02.27.15 Colonial Pipeline Company ROW-F02  

permanent structures.  No fences or temporary structures shall be allowed in the right of way 
without the express approval of Colonial’s representative.  Temporary structures include such 
items as signs, trailers, temporary power poles, etc. 

 
10. Heavy equipment shall not be permitted to operate over the pipeline(s) unless earth padding has 

been provided to protect the pipeline from vibrating.  Temporary equipment crossings over the 
pipeline(s) are permitted with six (6) vertical feet of cover over the pipeline(s) at selected 
locations as approved by Colonial’s field representative.  Depth of pipe as determined by test 
holes will determine amount of temporary fill required.  Colored sheets of plastic shall be 
placed under the temporary fill at original grade so that original grade will not be disturbed 
when temporary fill is removed. No equipment or vehicles may be parked on the right of way.   
No material may be stored on the right of way. 

 
11. The encroaching party acknowledges that Colonial’s pipelines utilize impressed electrical 

current (“cathodic protection”) for the protection of the steel.  Only Colonial personnel will 
correct any loss of this protection caused by the encroaching party.  The cost to correct this 
damage will be paid by the encroaching party. Further, encroaching party recognizes there may 
be some risk of damage to your facilities because they are in close proximity to said cathodic 
protection system and, therefore, any damages to encroaching party’s  facilities resulting from 
Colonial’s impressed electric current shall be encroaching party’s responsibility. 

 
12. Only low growing ornamental type shrubbery with a maximum expected height of four (4) feet 

shall be allowed within the right of way.  In addition, no pipeline marker shall be obscured from 
public view. 

 
13. Relocation or removal of Colonial’s pipeline markers shall not be permitted without the 

approval of a Colonial representative.  Pipeline markers made unusable or damaged shall be 
repaired or replaced at the encroaching party’s expense. 

 
14. Parallel occupancy of the pipeline’s easement with road right of way, or utilities is not 

permitted.  Crossing shall be as near as a perpendicular angle to the easement as practical. 
 

15. All proposed roadways, driveways and parking areas should maintain a minimum of four feet 
(4’) from top of pipe to top road surface and three (3) feet minimum vertical cover in open 
drainage or road ditches.  Colonial’s Engineering may increase these minimum requirements as 
determined by a stress analysis of the pipe, and other variable conditions and factors.  Colonial 
may consider concrete protection slabs, per Colonial’s specifications as an option, to be 
installed to protect the pipeline(s). 

 
16. Any and all pipeline(s) within the proposed road, parking, or railway area, will be excavated 

and visually inspected, with the possible reapplication of pipeline coatings applied, by a 
Colonial contractor, at the full expense of the encroaching party.  Colonial requires that the 
pipeline coating system be evaluated for suitability of service in relation to the proposed 
encroachment.  Should Colonial deem that the coating system is insufficient due to increased 
soil stresses or other factors, Colonial will, at the developer’s expense, upgrade the pipeline 
coating to accommodate the proposed encroachment.  Colonial will backfill the inspected area 
to its standard, and will not be held responsible for compaction.  (NOTE: A Pipeline 

- Page 53 -



 - 4 – 
Rev. 02.27.15 Colonial Pipeline Company ROW-F02  

Accommodation Agreement for reimbursement to Colonial shall be executed between Colonial 
and the encroaching party prior to such adjustment.) 

 
17. Cover above the pipeline(s) shall be a minimum of four (4) feet, and in general a maximum of 

six (6) feet, unless approved by the Right of Way Coordinator. 
 

18. The burning of trash, debris, etc. shall not be permitted within Colonial’s right of way. 
 

19. Should any damage occur to the herein permitted encroachment, as a result of Colonial 
exercising any of its rights at any time, Colonial will not be responsible for said damage; and 
any expense or monetary cost involved in the repair of said damages will be borne by owners of 
said damaged encroachment. 

 
20. Encroaching party agrees to defend and hold Colonial Pipeline Company harmless from all loss, 

cost, or other expense, including personal property and bodily injuries, whether occurring to it 
or to Colonial, or the respective employees, agents and servants of either, or to third parties, 
which are proximately caused by or arise from the installation, maintenance, or repair of the 
herein permitted works, with the exception of claims due to the sole negligence of Colonial 
Pipeline Company. 

 
21. This approval is granted only to the extent of and with no actual or implied diminishment of 

Colonial’s rights and interests and without either express or implied warranty. 
 

22. Fences shall be constructed with gates sufficiently large enough to allow Colonial’s personnel 
and equipment the right of ingress and egress.  Fence posts shall be installed at least five (5) feet 
to the side of any pipeline, with the approval of the field representative. 

 
23. If the approximate location of the pipeline(s) is required, steel prod bars, shovels, and electrical 

sending devices may be used by Colonial’s field personnel only.  It should be noted that these 
methods are only approximate and can be misleading.  The exact location of the pipeline(s) can 
best be found with test pitting. 

 
24. If test pitting is required to determine the exact location, and elevation, of the pipeline(s), the 

Encroaching party agrees to notify the undersigned at least two (2) working days in advance, so 
that he may provide a Colonial field representative to be at the site.  This representative must be 
present during the test pitting for the protection of the pipeline(s), and for the common 
verification of its location.  All costs for this test pitting, and for the Colonial representative, 
will be borne by the encroaching party.  Any engineering based on Colonial or other design 
criteria stemming from the amount or location of this test pit data is the responsibility of the 
encroaching party. 

 
25. Colonial reserves the right to open, cut, excavate and dig across the proposed road, railway, 

sidewalks, avenues, utility lines, or any other encroachment herein granted by this agreement, 
and in any such event, Colonial shall not be liable for the restoration of same, or the payment of 
any damages to the encroaching party. 

 

- Page 54 -



 - 5 – 
Rev. 02.27.15 Colonial Pipeline Company ROW-F02  

26. Excavation or grading which might result in erosion or which could render the right of way 
inaccessible shall not be permitted unless the encroaching party agrees to restore the area and 
provide protection to Colonial’s pipeline(s).  Any erosion control measures within the right of 
way including diversion dikes, sediment traps, silt fences, gravel outlets, and emergency 
spillways will require approval of the Colonial representative, as to equipment and method. 

 
27. If construction on the aforementioned project is not initiated within one calendar year of the 

date of this letter of agreement, then Colonial Pipeline shall have the right to reconsider the 
conditions and privileges herein granted, and have full right to alter same, dependant upon 
current protocol. 

 
28. The encroaching party agrees that all work on Colonial’s right of way shall be performed in a 

Workmanlike manner and in compliance with all applicable government and industry standards 
and codes. 

 
29. Upon failure of the encroaching party, owner or his agents to comply with any of the Terms of 

this Agreement, Colonial will provide Encroaching Party with advance written notice of any 
intent to revoke this Agreement in its entirety, prevent same from continuing any activity in 
violation of the terms of this Agreement or its rights under its easements and prior agreements 
and make any necessary repairs or adjustments to its pipeline(s) or right of way with its own or 
contract forces at the expense of the party requesting the encroachment. 

 
30. Colonial Pipeline Company will have the option of installing video surveillance camera(s) to 

provide continuous monitoring of its facilities. 
 

31. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Encroaching Party is not allowed 
to perform the encroaching activities contemplated hereunder without first paying Colonial for 
any Accommodation Work necessary to be performed by Colonial to protect its pipeline(s) and 
rights of way from those encroaching activities. Additionally, if such Accommodation Work is 
required, the encroaching activities will not be initiated until said Accommodation Work is 
completed. Said Accommodation Work and estimate therefore should have been outlined in 
detail in previous correspondence to Encroaching Party. If such previous correspondence has 
not been received, Encroaching Party is required to request same.  

 
32. Should your project be ongoing in close proximity to Colonial’s pipeline(s) for an extended 

period of time, it will be necessary for a Colonial representative to be on-site for a significant 
duration.  Accordingly, since such extended inspection time is outside the scope of Colonial’s 
normal operations, you will be billed for that representative’s time. Colonial’s policy is to bill 
for any inspection time in excess of a total of 10 hours (cumulative for that project) and for any 
evening, weekend or holiday time. 

 
33. This agreement approves only the work specified above all utility encroachments will need to 

be approved by the local inspector for Colonial Pipeline Company. 
 
34. The following special conditions shall apply, and be required for this project. 

- Page 55 -



 - 6 – 
Rev. 02.27.15 Colonial Pipeline Company ROW-F02  

a. Should it be necessary to work over the pipelines with less than 72” inches of cover the 
equipment used will be restricted to that authorized or approved by Colonial Pipeline 
Company’s representatives.  

b. Only remote or hand operated compaction equipment may be used at any time.  
c. If the crossing involves Horizontal Directional Drilling (HDD), a walk over method and/or 

wire grid method will be used to track the progress of the drilling head.  
d. As stipulated in paragraph 4 Directional Drilling must maintain a minimum vertical 

separation of sixty (60) inches under Colonial’s pipeline and requires approval from 
management. 

e. Where the proposed pipeline will be crossing Colonial’s existing pipelines using Horizontal 
Directional Drilling (HDD), the encroaching party will be required to excavate an inspection 
pit five feet (5’) from the leading edge of said pipelines, eight feet parallel to and three feet 
below the bottom of the existing pipelines or as directed by Colonial’s Representative. 

f. The contractor performing the encroachment may be required to vacuum excavate 
inspection pot holes atop the petroleum pipelines by Colonial’s field representative 
immediately prior to beginning the Auger Bore. 

 
Please signify acceptance of the above conditions by a proper official in the space provided below, and 
return to the Right of Way Coordinator’s office.  Colonial Pipeline will notify you to proceed with your 
project upon receipt of the signed original. 
 
       Sincerely, 
 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Colonial Pipeline Representative 
 
Encroachment No.: WTW-806-283.1-20-007 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO THIS ___________ DAY OF _________________________ 2020. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________________ 
                                    (signature) 
 
       _______________________________________ 
                                    (company) 
 
 
       BY:  ___________________________________ 
                        (name, typed or printed) 
 
 
       TITLE:  ________________________________ 
                   (typed or printed) 
 
Original:  Right of Way Department 

- Page 56 -



20''

20''

20''

W
M

25+00

30+00

5
+

0
0

20" GV

-L-  STA: 21+88.21

OFF: -40.5'L

20"X16" MJ CROSS

-L- STA: 21+70.15

OFF: -40.5'L

20"X6" TEE (FH)

-L- STA: 23+36.02

OFF: -37.6'L

8" GV &

CONNECT TO

EX. 8" WATERMAIN

-L- STA: 29+27.80

OFF: -37.8'L

20"X6" TEE (FH)

-L-  STA: 27+85.25

OFF: -30.8'L

20"X8" TEE

-L-  STA: 29+28.03

OFF: -29.8'L

FH

-L-  STA: 23+35.76

OFF: -62.0'L

FH

-L-  STA: 27+85.46

OFF: -48.5'L

CONNECT TO

EX. 12" WATERMAIN

W/ 12" 90° BEND

-L- STA: 32+84.92

OFF: -22.5'L

20''

20''

20''

20''
16" GV

-L- STA: 21+70.08

OFF: -33.7'L

16"X12" REDUCER

-W- STA: 6+68.22

OFF: 0.0'

-Y- STA: 21+97.12

OFF: -143.0'L

20" BO ASSEMBLY

-L-  STA: 33+12.32

OFF: -25.6'L

20"GV, 20"x12" MJ TEE,

20" SHORT SLEEVE, 20" GV

-L-  STA: 32+84.92

OFF: -25.7'L

CONNECT EX.

WATER SERVICE

-L-  STA: 31+38.04

OFF: -26.4'L

C2

C3

E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o

n
s

420

430

440

450

460

470

480

23+00 24+00 25+00 26+00 27+00 28+00 29+00 30+00 31+00 32+00 33+00 33+50

18"RCP

20" DIP

WATER LINE

2
'

20"X6" TEE

(FH LEAD)

20"X6" TEE

(FH LEAD)

20" DIP

WATER LINE

20' RJDIP

60' RJDIP

50' COLONIAL

PIPELINE

EASEMENT

24" STEEL CASING

TOP ELEV 459.1'

10" STEEL CASING

TOP ELEV 458.9'

10" STEEL CASING

TOP ELEV 457.5'

2
.
8
'

3
'

4
.
1
'

3
'

C
O

V
E
R

20" GV

20" BLOWOFF

ASSEMBLY

20"x12"

MJ TEE

RECONNECT

EX. WATER

SERVICE

20" GV

CONNECT TO EX. 8"

WATERMAIN W/

20" x 8" MJ TEE &

THRUST COLLAR

40' RJDIP

20'

RJDIP

20" RJDIP

WATER LINE

E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o

n
s

420

430

440

450

460

470

480

10+00

20''

12''

20" BLOWOFF

ASSEMBLY

20" GV CON TO

20"x12" MJTEE

CON TO 20"

SHORT SLEEVE

12" 90° MJ

BEND W/

THRUST BLOCK

CON TO EX. 12"

WATERMAIN

20LF - 20" RJDIP

WATERMAIN

20" GV

20" WATERMAN CONNECTION DETAIL

12" RJDIP

WATERMAIN

DOCUMENT NOT CONSIDERED FINAL

UNLESS ALL SIGNATURES COMPLETED

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

940 Main Campus Drive

Suite 500

Raleigh, NC 27606

919.829.0328

Corp. # C-3705

Vert.

Horiz. Feet100500 25

Feet20100 5

S
e
e
 
S
h

e
e
t

M
a
t
c
h

 
L
i
n

e

U
C

-
3

S
e
e
 
S
h

e
e
t

M
a
t
c
h

 
L
i
n

e

U
C

-
3

1

3

LEGEND

5

Town of Apex Notes:

1. ALL WATER LINES SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A MINIMUM OF 3 FEET OF COVER.

2. MAINTAIN 18” MINIMUM VERTICAL SEPARATION BETWEEN UTILITIES.

3. VERIFY ALL ILLUSTRATED UTILITY CROSSINGS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND

NOTIFY THE ENGINEER IF CONFLICTS ARE ENCOUNTERED.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE UTILITY RELOCATION OR ABANDONMENT

WITH LOCAL UTILITY COMPANIES AS REQUIRED.

5. WATER SHALL BE AT LEAST 10 FEET LATERALLY FROM EXISTING OR PROPOSED

SEWERS. WHERE LOCAL CONDITIONS PREVENT A SEPARATION OF 10 FEET, THE

WATER MAIN MAY BE LAID CLOSER, PROVIDED THAT THE ELEVATION OF THE

BOTTOM OF THE WATER MAIN IS AT LEAST 18 INCHES ABOVE THE TOP OF THE

SEWER WITH A HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF AT LEAST 3 FEET.

6. ALL NEW PUBLIC WATER  LINES WILL REQUIRE A WATER DISTRIBUTION EXTENSION

PERMIT  PRIOR TO THE RELEASE OF CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS. ALL WATER

DISTRIBUTION EXTENSION PERMIT APPLICATIONS SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY A

SEALED ENGINEER’S REPORT PER THE TOWN OF APEX SPEC BOOK. CONTACT THE

ENGINEERING DIVISION AT 249-3394 TO OBTAIN THESE PERMIT APPLICATIONS.

7. ALL GATE VALVES SHALL BE MUELLER OR APPROVED EQUAL. BUTTERFLY VALVES

ARE NOT APPROVED FOR USE.

Notes

1

2

4

CONNECT TO EX. 12" WATERLINE. INSTALL THRUST COLLAR ON 12" WATERLINE

PRIOR TO CONNECTION.

REMOVE EX. FIRE HYDRANT.

INSTALL FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY.

EXTEND EXISTING 8" WATERLINE AND CONNECT WITH 12" X 8" TEE. RESTRAIN

VALVE WITH THRUST COLLAR AND RODS PRIOR TO NEW CONNECTION.

~60 LF  20" RJDIP WATER LINE OPEN CUT INSTALLATION. WATERLINE TO BE

WRAPPED IN TWO LAYERS OF 6 MIL POLYETHYLENE FILM WRAP FOR THE

LENGTH OF THE EASEMENT. MAINTAIN MINIMUM 18" VERTICAL SEPARATION

FROM COLONIAL PIPELINE CASING MATERIALS.  NO WORK TO OCCUR WITHIN

COLONIAL PIPELINE EASEMENT UNTIL EXISTING CASING HAS BEEN EXTENDED

PAST PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY. ALL COLONIAL PIPELINE REQUIREMENTS ARE

TO BE MET WITH THIS INSTALLATION.

REFER TO 20" WATERMAIN CONNECTION DETAIL THIS SHEET.

3

NOTES KEYED TO PLAN

2

2

3

5

4

EX. WATERLINE

PROPOSED DIP WATERLINE

PROPOSED RJDIP WATERLINE

TRENCHLESS INSTALLATION (JACK AND BORE)

DRY UTILITY  BANK DUCT

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

6

7

S Salem St (SR 1011)

S
u

a
g

r
l
a

n
d

 
D

r

5

- Page 57 -

twest
Typewritten Text

twest
Typewritten Text

twest
Typewritten Text

twest
Typewritten Text

twest
Typewritten Text

twest
Typewritten Text
"Exhibit A"WTW-806-283.1-20-007

twest
Typewritten Text

twest
Typewritten Text

twest
Typewritten Text



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2 0 2 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  An g e la  R e i nc ke ,  P ark s  an d Green w ay s  P l an ner  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Par k s ,  R ec rea t i on ,  an d Cu l tu ra l  R e sou rc e s  

 

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  e nc roac h men t  a gre e ment  w i th  N CDO T  re la t i ve  t o  th e  Ap ex  We s t -  Ame r i c an  

Tob ac c o T r a i l  g reen w ay c onnec t i on  an d au th or i ze  To wn  M ana ger  t o  s i gn  a l l  nec e ss ary  doc u men t s  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

 
Th i s  enc ro ac h men t  a gree men t  i s  f o r  the  f o r  the  Ap e x  We s t -  Ame r i c an  To bac c o T r a i l  g r eenw a y 

c onnec t i on ,  wh i c h  i s  700  l i near  fee t  o f  t r a i l  th a t  i s  l oc at ed  j u s t  s ou t h  o f  O l i ve  Cha pe l  R oa d an d 

ad j ac en t  to  S a d dle br ook .   The  t r a i l  w i l l  c on nec t  s i de  p at h  ac r os s  fu tu re  Wa k e  C oun ty  T ra i lhea d 

pro per ty  t o  the  Ame r i c an  Tob ac c o  T r a i l .  Th i s  c on nec t i o n  i s  s ho wn  on  the  B i c yc le  an d P ede s t r i an  

Sy s te ms  P lan  an d P ark s ,  R ec re a t i on ,  Green wa y s ,  an d O pen S pac e Ma s te r  P l an  Ma p .   T h i s  

c onnec t i on  shou l d  re duc e pe des t r i an  u se  o f  the  O l i ve  Ch a pe l  R oa d shou l de r  to  ac c e ss  the  

Am e r i c an  To bac c o T r a i l .    

 

Ea r l i e r  th i s  ye ar ,  s ta f f  ap p l i e d fo r  fu nd i n g f r o m Wa ke  C oun t y  fo r  a  p or t i on  o f  c on s t ruc t i on  c os t s .   

Wa ke  Cou nt y  h a s  pu t  aw ar d i ng  th i s  b on d fu nd i ng  on  ho ld  du e  to  CO VI D -19 .     

 

 

 

 
 

At t ac h men t s  

  Enc ro ac h men t  Ag ree men t   

  Loc a t i on  Ma ps  

 

- Page 58 -



 

 

NORTH CAROLINA  
WAKE COUNTY  
 
 

DATE: JUNE 23, 2020 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT  
OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

 LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR RAILROAD RIGHT 
OF WAY ENCROACHMENT 

          AND  
 D&SC RAIL CORRIDOR, Milepost DD 16.00 

 
TOWN OF APEX  
  

 
 

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT is made and entered on the last date executed below, by and 
between the NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, an agency of the State of North 
Carolina, hereinafter referred to as the “Department and/or Licensor,” and the TOWN OF APEX, a local 
government entity, hereinafter referred to as the “Municipality and/or Licensee,” and individually 
hereinafter referred to as “Party,” and collectively, as “Parties.”   

 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
THAT WHEREAS, the Licensor is the owner of the Rail Corridor right-of-way as described on the 

Exhibit A (“Premises”) in Wake County as attached hereto and incorporated by reference; and, 
known as the D&SC Rail Corridor; and, 
 

THAT WHEREAS, the Licensee desires to encroach on the Premises located in Wake County, 
North Carolina with the construction, maintenance, and use of a trail connector to the American 
Tobacco Trail (ATT) the D&SC Railroad Corridor, as shown on Exhibit A. The trail will consist of a 10-foot 
wide asphalt greenway connecting at a 90-degree angle to the ATT. Removable bollards at 39-inch 
maximum spacing shall also be installed at the ATT connection. Attached is a site plan showing the 
greenway connection to the American Tobacco Trail.  
 

THAT WHEREAS, the Licensor is willing to grant the Licensee the privilege of making such 
encroachment upon the Premises subject to and in accordance with this Agreement (such privilege, the 
“License”); 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED that Licensor hereby grants to Licensee the privilege to make 
this encroachment as shown on the attached plan sheet(s), specifications, and special provisions which 
are incorporated by reference upon the following conditions: 

- Page 59 -



 

 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: 
This Agreement is for the construction, maintenance, and use of a trail connector to the 

American Tobacco Trail (ATT) the D&SC Railroad Corridor, as shown on Exhibit A. The trail will 
consist of a 10-foot wide asphalt greenway connecting at a 90-degree angle to the ATT. 
Removable bollards at 39-inch maximum spacing shall also be installed at the ATT connection. 
Attached is a site plan showing the greenway connection to the American Tobacco Trail. 
 

Prior to beginning work Licensee is to contact Andy Miller with NCDOT Rail Division (E-
mail: samiller@ncdot.gov) 

 
2. FEES/BILLING 

In consideration of Licensor’s granting of this privilege to encroach upon Licensor’s 
Premises, Licensee agrees to pay Licensor a make payment in the amount of $0.00 to Licensor. 
The Licensee shall submit said payment to the Licensor upon execution and submittal of this 
License Agreement to the Licensor. 

 
3. LICENSE LIMITATIONS 

The License is granted solely and exclusively for the improvement, maintenance, and use of 
the encroachment for the purposes expressly set forth herein.  This grant shall not be construed 
to convey to or otherwise vest in the Licensee any other greater interest to, right to enter upon, 
or estate in the Premises. 

 
4. TRANSFER OF RESPONSIBILITIES 

It is agreed between Licensor and Licensee that this license is personal to Licensee and shall 
not inure to the successors or assigns of Licensee, except that Licensee may, with the written 
consent of the Licensor and Licensee which shall not be unreasonably withheld, assign its rights 
and obligations hereunder to any successor developer of the real property benefitted by the 
encroachment upon written notice to Licensor and Licensee and as expressly provided herein.  
The parties understand and agree that any right or claim of Licensor created by this License 
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, any successor or assignee of 
Licensor. 

 
5. CONDITION OF PREMISES 

Licensor makes no warranties or representations regarding the condition of the Premises, 
and this Agreement shall not be construed to make or imply any warranty.  The Licensee accepts 
the use of the Premises “AS IS” and expressly waives any and all claims against Licensor relating 
to or arising from the condition of the Premises and the property surrounding the Premises, 
including, without limitation, any claims and costs related to environmental contamination (such 
as, without limitation, those claims which might arise under CERCLA, RCRA, and the North 
Carolina Oil Pollution and Hazardous Substances Act). 

 
6. COMPLIANCE WITH STANDARDS 

The installation, operation, and maintenance of the encroachment will comply with the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation’s latest RAIL CORRIDOR PRESERVATION POLICY, 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR ACCOMMODATING UTILITIES ON HIGHWAY RIGHTS-OF-WAY 
and THE AMERICAN RAILWAY ENGINEERING AND MAINTENANCE OF WAY ASSOCIATION 

- Page 60 -



 

 

MANUAL, and such revisions and amendments thereto as may be in effect at the date of this 
agreement, all of which are hereby incorporated as terms and conditions of this agreement and 
may not be waived except by written agreement of all parties.  Information as to these policies 
and procedures may be obtained from the North Carolina Department of Transportation. 

 
7. SIGNAGE 

The Licensee agrees to provide during construction and any subsequent maintenance 
proper signs, signal lights, flagmen, and other warning devices for the protection of traffic in 
conformance with the latest Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and 
Highways and amendments or supplements thereto. 

 
8. IMPROVEMENT/MAINTENANCE COSTS 

The Licensee shall improve and/or maintain the encroachment at Licensee’s own cost and 
expense.  The Licensor shall be exempt from any costs, charges, or assessments of any kind or 
character on account of or incident to the location and improvement of the encroachment 
within the limits of the right of way, or on account of any action or omission by the Licensee in 
connection therewith. 

 
9. MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES 

The Licensee agrees to install and/or maintain the encroaching facilities in such safe and 
proper condition that they will not interfere with or endanger existing or future uses by the 
Licensor of said right of way for railroad, trail, or other transportation purposes, nor obstruct 
nor interfere with the proper operation and maintenance of said right of way or any tracks, 
structures, or appurtenances thereon.   

 
10. REIMBURSEMENT BY LICENSEE 

The Licensee will reimburse the Licensor for any costs incurred including, but not limited to 
costs for repairs or maintenance to the Licensor’s corridor, roadways, and structures resulting 
from the installation and existence of Licensee’s encroachment. 

 
11. DRAINAGE 

The Licensee agrees to install and maintain the encroachment in such a manner as not to 
interfere with the proper drainage of the roadbed and right of way.  The Licensee will not allow 
or permit the diversion of any additional drainage into existing drainage facilities or upon the 
right of way, and, moreover, the Licensee will arrange its drainage system so as to prevent the 
ponding of water upon the right of way.   

 
12. PROPERTY OBSTRUCTIONS 

In the event Licensee deems it necessary to remove and relocate any structures or property 
of third persons or corporations, including, but not limited to, wire lines and poles or other 
supports, now located and constructed upon or near Licensor’s right of way, the Licensee will 
remove and relocate or arrange for the removal or relocation of same without cost or expense 
to the Licensor, and in all respects in accordance with the requirements of the Licensor.  Any 
utility changes must conform to specifications promulgated by the American Railroad 
Engineering and Maintenance of Way Association and the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation. 

- Page 61 -



 

 

13. INDEMNIFICATION 
To the extent authorized by law, each Party shall be responsible for its respective actions 

under the terms of this Agreement and indemnify and save harmless the other Party(s) for any 
claims for payment, damages, and/or liabilities arising as a result of such action.  Except that 
indemnification shall be only in the manner and to the extent allowed by North Carolina law, 
including the Tort Claims Act, N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 143-291 et seq., and without waiver of its 
sovereign immunity the Department shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless other parties for 
any claims for payment, damages, and or liability arising as a result of such action. 

 
14. CONDITION OF PROPERTY 

The Licensee agrees to restore all areas disturbed during installation or maintenance of the 
encroachment to the Licensor’s reasonable satisfaction.  The Licensee agrees to exercise every 
reasonable precaution during construction or maintenance to prevent eroding of soil; silting or 
pollution of rivers, streams, lakes, reservoirs, other water impoundments, ground surfaces, or 
other property; or pollution of the air.  When any installation or maintenance operation disturbs 
the ground surface and existing ground cover, Licensee agrees to remove and replace the sod or 
otherwise reestablish the grass cover to the reasonable satisfaction of the Licensor. 

 
15. ENVIROMENTAL REGULATIONS  

Licensee shall comply with applicable rules and regulations of the North Carolina 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources, and ordinances and regulations of various 
counties, municipalities, and other official agencies relating to pollution prevention and control. 
 Licensee agrees to comply with all federal, state and local environmental laws, rules, and 
regulations while subject to the terms of this agreement.  None of the terms of this paragraph, 
or of this agreement elsewhere shall be construed as a waiver of any environmental regulations. 
If hazardous or any other unauthorized material is discovered, and it is determined that such 
material is present as a result of action by Licensee, Licensee shall be solely responsible and hold 
the Department harmless for all costs associated with the removal of the material and any 
damages caused by the existence of said material. 

 
16. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE/TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

It is agreed by all parties that this agreement shall become void if actual construction of the 
work contemplated herein is not begun within one (1) year from the date of authorization by 
the Licensor, unless written waiver is secured from the Licensor. 

 
17. NOTICES 

All notices, requests, or other communications permitted or required to be given by one 
Party to the other and all questions about the contract from one Party to the other shall be 
addressed and delivered to the other Party’s Contract Administrator.  The name, post office 
address, street address, telephone number, fax number, and email address of the Parties’ 
respective initial Contract Administrators are set out below.  Either Party may change the name, 
post office address, street address, telephone number, fax number, or email address of its 
Contract Administrator by giving timely written notice to the other Party. 

- Page 62 -



 

 

For the Department/Licensor: 
 

If Delivered by US Postal Service: If Delivered by Any Other Means: 

Andy Miller 
Operations & Facilities Branch 
NCDOT Rail Division 
1553 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC  27699-1553 
 
Telephone:  919-707-4721 
Fax:  919-715-6580 
Email:  samiller@ncdot.gov  

Andy Miller 
Operations & Facilities Branch 
NCDOT Rail Division 
1 S Wilmington Street, Room 549 
Raleigh, NC  276601 
 

 
For/Licensee: 
 

If Delivered by US Postal Service: If Delivered by Any Other Means: 

Town of Apex 
Angela Reincke 
PO Box 250 
Apex, NC 27502    
 
Telephone: 919-372-7468  
Email: angela.reincke@apexnc.org 

Town of Apex    
Angela Reincke 
PO Box 250 
Apex, NC 27502    
 

 
18. NONCOMPLIANCE 

In the case of noncompliance with any of the terms of this agreement by Licensee, Licensor 
will give Licensee written notice of such noncompliance.  If Licensee fails to comply to the 
reasonable satisfaction of the Licensor within sixty (60) days after receiving such written notice, 
unless written waiver is secured from the Licensor, the Licensor reserves the right to discontinue 
the use of the encroachment until it has been brought into compliance; or, alternatively, at no 
cost to the Licensor, Licensor may remove the encroachment from the right of way and require 
the Licensee to reimburse the Licensor for all expenses for said removal, or the Licensor, in its 
sole discretion, may require the Licensee to remove the encroachment within ninety (90) days 
of written notice from the Licensor, to the Licensor’s satisfaction. 

 
19. NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

The Licensee agrees to give written notice to the Licensor within thirty (30) days of 
completion of all work contained herein. 

 
20. CHANGES TO ENCROACHMENT 

The Licensee shall make all necessary changes to the reasonable satisfaction of the Licensor, 
at Licensee’s own cost and expense, within sixty (60) days after written notice from the Licensor, 
to address the safety concerns of the Licensor or to accommodate the Licensor’s use of the right 
of way for railroad, trail, or other transportation purposes, unless written waiver is secured from  

- Page 63 -

mailto:samiller@ncdot.gov


 

 

the Licensor.  Such changes include, but are not limited to, the construction of a grade-
separated facility for railroad, trail, or other transportation purposes; the installation, 
maintenance, and upgrading of any safety devices, signs, or other facilities necessary for the 
Licensor’s use of the corridor; and any changes of location, height, depth, or design of the 
encroachment, or consolidation of at-grade crossings. 

 
21. REMOVAL OF THE ENCROCHMENT FROM LICENSOR PROPERTY  

In the event the Licensor requires the removal of the encroachment from the right of way, 
then the Licensor shall have the right to demand such removal, and the Licensee, at its own cost 
and expense, within sixty (60) days after written notice from the Licensor, unless written waiver 
is secured from Licensor, shall discontinue the use of the same, remove the encroachment from 
the right of way, and restore the same to the condition existing prior to the location of the 
encroachment upon the right of way. 

 
22. UTILITY ENCROACHMENT 

In the case of a utility encroachment, Licensee agrees to periodically monitor and verify the 
depth or height of the utility in relation to the Licensor’s tracks and facilities, and to relocate the 
utility at Licensee’s own cost and expense should such relocation or change be necessary to 
comply with the minimum clearance requirements of this agreement or any public authority.   

 
23. ENCROACHMENT INTERFERENCE 

If the operation, existence, or maintenance of the encroachment causes interference, 
physical, magnetic, or otherwise, with train control systems or facilities, or interference in any 
manner with the operation, maintenance, or use of the right of way, tracks, structures, pole 
lines, devices, other property, or any appurtenances thereto for railroad, trail, or other 
purposes, then in either event, Licensee, within sixty (60) days after written notice from the 
Licensor, at Licensee’s own cost and expense, shall promptly make such changes in its 
encroachment as may be required in the reasonable judgment of the Licensor to eliminate all 
such interference, unless written waiver is secured from the Licensor.  

 
24. CHANGE ORDERS 

If the Licensee undertakes to revise, renew, relocate, or change in any manner whatsoever 
all or any part of the encroachment plans, such plans shall be submitted to the Licensor for 
approval before any such change is made. After approval, the terms and conditions of this 
agreement shall apply thereto. 

 
25. EXHIBIT 

See drawings attached as Exhibit A (Profile Drawing) incorporated herein as reference. 
 

26. GOVERNING LAWS 
This Agreement shall at all times be governed by the provisions of the law of North Carolina.  

 
27. RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN PARTIES 

This Agreement shall not be construed to create any relationship of agency or employment 
between the parties hereto. 

 

- Page 64 -



 

 

28. ETHICS PROVISION 
N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State 

employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to 
do business with the State. By signing this Agreement, the Licensee attests that the Licensee is 
not aware that any gift in violation of N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 has been 
offered, accepted, or promised by the Licensee (including the Licensee’s employees, agents, and 
representatives). 

 
29. E-VERIFY 

E-Verify is the federal program operated by the United States Department of Homeland 
Security and other Federal agencies, or any successor or equivalent program, used to verify the 
work authorization of newly hired employees pursuant to federal law.  The Parties warrant that 
they and any subcontractor performing work under this Agreement:  (i) uses E-Verify if required 
to do so by North Carolina law; and (ii) otherwise complies with the requirements of Article 2 of 
Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes.  A breach of this warranty by any Party will 
be considered a breach of this Agreement, which entitles the other Parties to terminate this 
Agreement, without penalty, upon notice to the breaching Party. 

 

- Page 65 -



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this License Agreement has been executed the day and year heretofore 
set out below, on the part of the Department and the Municipality by authority duly given. 
 
N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of 
any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the 
State.  By execution of any response in this Agreement, you attest, for your entire organization and its 
employees or agents, that you are not aware that any gift in violation of N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive 
Order 24 has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization. 
 
 
WITNESS TOWN OF APEX 

 
BY:  BY:  

  
NAME:  NAME:    

  
TITLE:  TITLE:  

  
DATE:  DATE:  

  
 Approved by the Town of Apex governing board 

as attested to by the signature of 
MUNICIPAL SEAL  

Clerk of the Town Council  

                                                  (Date) 
 

  
 This instrument has been pre-audited in the 

manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 

Municipal Finance Officer 
 

 FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 
  
  

 Town of Apex 
  
 MAILING ADDRESS 
 Town of Apex 
 PO Box 250 

Apex, NC 27502 
  
 Attn:  Angela Reincke 

Angela.reincke@apexnc.org 

- Page 66 -



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this License Agreement has been executed the last day and year set out 
below, on the part of the Department and the Municipality by authority duly given. 
 
 
N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of 
any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the 
State.  By execution of any response in this Agreement, you attest, for your entire organization and its 
employees or agents, that you are not aware that any gift in violation of N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive 
Order 24 has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization. 

 
 

ATTEST NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 
 

BY:  BY:  

  
NAME:                    Elizabeth Smith NAME:                     Julie White 

  
TITLE:  

                 Processing Agent 
TITLE: Deputy Secretary of Multi Modal 

Transportation  

  
DATE:  DATE:  

  
  
 MAILING ADDRESS 
  
 North Carolina Department of Transportation 
 Rail Division, Operations & Facilities Branch  
 1553 Mail Service Center 
 Raleigh, NC  27699-1556 
 ATTN: Andy Miller 

samiller@ncdot.gov 

  
 

- Page 67 -

mailto:samiller@ncdot.gov


 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
  

 
 

- Page 68 -



SITE

PROJECT

W
A

K
E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y

C
H

A
T

H
A

M
 C

O
U

N
T

Y

64

REED
Y 

BRAN
CH

540

S
R

1
1
6
3
 K

E
L

L
Y
 R

D
.

SR1160 OLIVE CHAPEL RD.

S
R
1
1
4
5
 R

I
C

H
A

R
D

S
O

N
 R

D
.

BEAVER C
REEK

BEAVER CREEK

.
D

R 
L

E
P

A
H

C 
E

VI
L

O 
- 

L
L
I

H 
W

E
N 

1
4

1
1

R
S

.DR EUCEBRAB XEPA 2
6

1
1

R
S

L
I

A
R

T 
O

C
C

A
B

OT 
NACI

R
E

M
A

VICINITY MAP

150

OLIVE CHAPEL RD.

CONC

EXISTING 30' POWER EASEMENT

EXISTING 30' POWER EASEMENT

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
4
0
' 

T
O

W
N
 

O
F
 

C
A

R
Y
 

U
T
IL
IT

Y
 

&
 

P
IP

E
L
IN

E
 

E
A
S

E
M

E
N

T

(INSIDE R/W)

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING TOWN OF APEX 

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING TOWN OF APEX 

MULTI
-U

SE 
EASEMENT

EXI
STI

NG 
20
' T

OWN 
OF 

APEX 

MON

CONC

EIP

EIP

EIP

R/W MON
R/W MON

MON

CONC

SOIL

G
R

A
V
E

L

WOODS

WOODS

WOODS

SIDEWALK EASEMENT

EXISTING R/W

EXISTING R/W

EXISTING R/W

A
M

E
R
IC

A
N
 

T
O

B
A

C
C

O
 
T

R
A
IL

APPROXIMATE EXISTING R/W (CALCULATED)

APPROXIMATE EXISTING R/W (CALCULATED)

R/W MON

W
ID

T
H
 

V
A

R
IE

S

2
0
.0

0
'

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING 20' TOWN OF APEX

20.00'

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING 20' TOWN OF APEX

(FROM APEX GIS INFO)

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

15+00

F
T

10
0
2

0
2

F
T1
0

F
T

10
0
2

INDEX OF SHEETS

PROJECT DATA

-L- STA. 11+70.00
BEGIN BOARDWALK

-L- STA. 12+80.00
END BOARDWALK

-L- STA. 15+74.00
BEGIN BOARDWALK

-L- STA. 16+44.00
END BOARDWALK

TOBACCO TRAIL
TIE TO AMERICAN
-L- STA. 10+08.00
BEGIN PROJECT

MULTI-USE PATH
TIE TO EXISTING
-L- STA. 17+00.00
END PROJECT

REVISIONS:

NO. DATE

WEI PROJECT NO.:

20326.01

PLANS PREPARED BY:

ENGINEERING
ETHERILL

DESCRIPTION

UNLESS ALL SIGNATURES COMPLETED

DOCUMENT NOT CONSIDERED FINAL 

ENGINEER

ROADWAY

ENGINEER

HYDRAULICS

Bus:   919 851 8077 Fax:   919 851 8107

License No. F-0377

1223 Jones Franklin Rd. Raleigh, N.C. 27606

PLANS PREPARED FOR:

INCOMPLETE PLANS
DO NOT USE FOR R/W ACQUISITION

APEX WEST GREENWAY

TO AMERICAN TOBACCO TRAIL

OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD

CONNECTION FROM

919.372.7468

APEX, NC 27502

PO BOX 250

PARKS AND GREENWAY PLANNER

ANGELA REINCKE

PROJECT CONTACT:

DATE: MARCH 4, 2020

Apex, NC 27502

73 Hunter Street

TOWN OF APEX 1

NORTH CAROLINA

TOWN OF APEX

APEX WEST GREENWAY

COVER SHEET

GRADING, PAVING, STRUCTURE, DRAINAGE, & EROSION CONTROL

TYPE OF WORK:

FROM OLIVE CHAPEL RD. TO AMERICAN TOBACCO TRAIL

LOCATION:

CONSTRUCTION PLANS FOR:

CROSS SECTIONSX-3

CROSS SECTIONSX-2

CROSS SECTIONSX-1

EROSION CONTROL FINALEC-6

EROSION CONTROL CLEARING AND GRUBBINGEC-5

EROSION CONTROL DETAILSEC-4

EROSION CONTROL NOTESEC-3

NCG01 SELF-INSPECTIONEC-2

NCG01 GROUND STABILIZATIONEC-1

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS7

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS6

PLAN, PROFILE, AND TYPICAL SECTIONS5

EXISTING CONDITIONS4

NOTES3

SYMBOLOGY SHEET2

COVER SHEET1

PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE TABLE

NEW STREETS

SIDEWALK

GREENWAY

STORM DRAIN

CURB & GUTTEER

SEWER LINES

WATER LINES

0 LF

0 LF

692 LF

0 LF

0 LF

0 LF

0 LF

@ $1.35/LF  = $934.20

NC GRID

NAD 83 NA 2011

- Page 69 -



REVISIONS:

NO. DATE

WEI PROJECT NO.:

20326.01

PLANS PREPARED BY:

ENGINEERING
ETHERILL

DESCRIPTION

UNLESS ALL SIGNATURES COMPLETED

DOCUMENT NOT CONSIDERED FINAL 

ENGINEER

ROADWAY

ENGINEER

HYDRAULICS

Bus:   919 851 8077 Fax:   919 851 8107

License No. F-0377

1223 Jones Franklin Rd. Raleigh, N.C. 27606

PLANS PREPARED FOR:

INCOMPLETE PLANS
DO NOT USE FOR R/W ACQUISITION

APEX WEST GREENWAY

TO AMERICAN TOBACCO TRAIL

OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD

CONNECTION FROM

919.372.7468

APEX, NC 27502

PO BOX 250

PARKS AND GREENWAY PLANNER

ANGELA REINCKE

PROJECT CONTACT:

DATE: MARCH 4, 2020

Apex, NC 27502

73 Hunter Street

TOWN OF APEX

the certifications signed on the cover sheet of these construction plans.

The signatures affixed below certify that this sheet has been reviewed and approved solely per 

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Building Inspections

WR - Utility Engineering

PW - Transportation

Electric

WR - S&E

WR - Stormwater

Planning

Planning - Transportation

Fire

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Res.

2

Existing Edge of Pavement

Existing Curb

Proposed Slope Stakes Cut

Proposed Slope Stakes Fill

Existing Metal Guardrail

Existing Cable Guiderail

Proposed Guardrail

Equality Symbol

Pavement Removal

Existing Right of Way Marker

Existing Right of Way Line

h

Existing Control of Access

C

F

Existing Easement Line

HYDROLOGY:

Stream or Body of Water

Hydro, Pool or Reservoir

Flow Arrow

Disappearing Stream

Spring

;

z

v

W

K
Proposed Lateral, Tail, Head Ditch

False Sump

Proposed Cable Guiderail

MAJOR:

Bridge, Tunnel or Box Culvert

Bridge Wing Wall, Head Wall and End Wall

MINOR:

Head and End Wall

Pipe Culvert

Footbridge

Paved Ditch Gutter

UTILITIES:

ROADS AND RELATED FEATURES:

Existing Power Pole

Proposed Power Pole

P

U/G Power Cable Hand Hole

Power Manhole

Power Line Tower

Power Transformer

Existing Joint Use Pole

Proposed Joint Use Pole

Existing Telephone Pole

Proposed Telephone Pole

Telephone Manhole

Telephone Pedestal

U/G Telephone Cable Hand Hole

R

}
T

p

Q

l

]

/

b

H-Frame Pole O O

POWER:

TELEPHONE:

Telephone Cell Tower

WATER:

Water Manhole

Water Meter

Water Valve

Water Hydrant

4

I

H

a

TV:

TV Pedestal

TV Tower

U/G TV Cable Hand Hole

|

I
]

GAS:

Gas Valve

Gas Meter n

c

SANITARY SEWER:

Sanitary Sewer Manhole

Sanitary Sewer Cleanout

U/G Sanitary Sewer Line

d

o

A/G Water

Above Ground Gas Line
A/G Gas

Above Ground Water Line

Above Ground Sanitary Sewer
A/G Sanitary Sewer

MISCELLANEOUS:

Utility Pole O
F

S
3

Utility Pole with Base

Utility Located Object

Utility Traffic Signal Box

?

CONC

CONC WW

v

v

Drainage Box: Catch Basin, DI or JB

Storm Sewer

Storm Sewer Manhole m

U/G Tank; Water, Gas, Oil

A/G Tank; Water, Gas, Oil

BOUNDARIES AND PROPERTY:

State Line

County Line

Township Line

City Line

Reservation Line

Property Line

Existing Iron Pin

Property Monument

Existing Fence Line

Proposed Woven Wire Fence

Proposed Chain Link Fence

Proposed Barbed Wire Fence

g

F

123

Existing Wetland Boundary

Proposed Wetland Boundary

Existing Endangered Animal Boundary

Existing Endangered Plant Boundary

BUILDINGS AND OTHER CULTURE:

Area Outline

Gas Pump Vent or U/G Tank Cap

Church

School

Dam

Sign

Small Mine

Well

V

M

W
W

S

x

Foundation

S

Building

y

y

VEGETATION:

Single Tree X

Y

Vineyard

Single Shrub

Hedge

Woods Line

Orchard

Vineyard

RAILROADS:

Standard Gauge

RR Signal Milepost

Switch

RR Abandoned

RR Dismantled

S

FLOW

*S.U.E. = Subsurface Utility Engineering

WLB

EIP

B

ECM

CONC HW

CB

CSX TRANSPORTATION

MILEPOST 35

SWITCH

Cemetery

EXISTING STRUCTURES:

Parcel / Sequence Number

E

AATUR

End of Information E.O.I.

Abandoned According to Utility Records

WLB

EAB

EPB

R
W

R
W

R
W

C
A

E

TDE

PDE

PUE

S

P

P

T

T

TC

TC

T FO

T FO

W

W

TV

TV

TV FO

TV FO

G

G

SS

FSS

FSS

?UTL

Jurisdictional Stream JS

Buffer Zone 1

Buffer Zone 2

BZ 1

BZ 2

Wetland

TUE

DUE

AUE

CRProposed Curb Ramp

CONVENTIONAL  PLAN SHEET SYMBOLS

Underground Storage Tank, Approx. Loc.

Geoenvironmental Boring

C
A

HPBExisting Historic Property Boundary

U/G Power Line LOS B (S.U.E.*)

U/G Power Line LOS C (S.U.E.*)

U/G Power Line LOS D (S.U.E.*)

P

U/G Telephone Cable LOS B (S.U.E.*)

U/G Telephone Cable LOS C (S.U.E.*)

U/G Telephone Cable LOS D (S.U.E.*)

T

U/G Telephone Conduit LOS B (S.U.E.*)

U/G Telephone Conduit LOS C (S.U.E.*)

U/G Telephone Conduit LOS D (S.U.E.*)

TC

U/G Fiber Optics Cable LOS B (S.U.E.*)

U/G Fiber Optics Cable LOS C (S.U.E.*)

U/G Fiber Optics Cable LOS D (S.U.E.*)

T FO

U/G Water Line LOS B (S.U.E*)

U/G Water Line LOS C (S.U.E*)

U/G Water Line LOS D (S.U.E*)

W

U/G TV Cable LOS B (S.U.E.*)

U/G TV Cable LOS C (S.U.E.*)

U/G TV Cable LOS D (S.U.E.*)

TV

U/G Fiber Optic Cable LOS B (S.U.E.*)

U/G Fiber Optic Cable LOS C (S.U.E.*)

U/G Fiber Optic Cable LOS D (S.U.E.*)

TV FO

U/G Gas Line LOS B (S.U.E.*)

U/G Gas Line LOS C (S.U.E.*)

U/G Gas Line LOS D (S.U.E.*)

G

SS Forced Main Line LOS B (S.U.E.*)

SS Forced Main Line LOS C (S.U.E.*)

SS Forced Main Line LOS D (S.U.E.*)

FSS

Utility Unknown U/G Line LOS B (S.U.E.*)

U/G Test Hole LOS A (S.U.E.*)

Note: Not to Scale

UST

Contaminated Site: Known or Potential

Known Contamination Area: Soil

Potential Contamination Area: Soil

Known Contamination Area: Water

Potential Contamination Area: Water

Primary Horiz Control Point

Primary Horiz and Vert Control Point

Secondary Horiz and Vert Control Point

Exist Permanent Easment Pin and Cap

New Permanent Easement Pin and Cap

Vertical Benchmark

New Right of Way Line

  Concrete or Granite R/W Marker

New Right of Way Line with

  Concrete C/A Marker

New Control of Access Line with

New Control of Access

New Temporary Construction Easement

New Temporary Drainage Easement

New Permanent Drainage Easement

New Permanent Drainage /  Utility Easement

New Permanent Utility Easement

New Temporary Utility Easement

New Aerial Utility Easement

Computed Property Corner
RIGHT OF WAY & PROJECT CONTROL:

New Right of Way Line with Pin and Cap

CONVENTIONAL SYMBOLS

- Page 70 -



REVISIONS:

NO. DATE

WEI PROJECT NO.:

20326.01

PLANS PREPARED BY:

ENGINEERING
ETHERILL

DESCRIPTION

UNLESS ALL SIGNATURES COMPLETED

DOCUMENT NOT CONSIDERED FINAL 

ENGINEER

ROADWAY

ENGINEER

HYDRAULICS

Bus:   919 851 8077 Fax:   919 851 8107

License No. F-0377

1223 Jones Franklin Rd. Raleigh, N.C. 27606

PLANS PREPARED FOR:

INCOMPLETE PLANS
DO NOT USE FOR R/W ACQUISITION

APEX WEST GREENWAY

TO AMERICAN TOBACCO TRAIL

OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD

CONNECTION FROM

919.372.7468

APEX, NC 27502

PO BOX 250

PARKS AND GREENWAY PLANNER

ANGELA REINCKE

PROJECT CONTACT:

DATE: MARCH 4, 2020

Apex, NC 27502

73 Hunter Street

TOWN OF APEX

the certifications signed on the cover sheet of these construction plans.

The signatures affixed below certify that this sheet has been reviewed and approved solely per 

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Building Inspections

WR - Utility Engineering

PW - Transportation

Electric

WR - S&E

WR - Stormwater

Planning

Planning - Transportation

Fire

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Res.

3

Resources Department.

and S&E measures and a Certificate of Compliance has been issued by the Water 

Inspections Division after the installation and approval of tree protection fencing 

A Grading Permit, when applicable, may only be issued by the Building 12)

veneer that is a medium or dark brown or rust color. 

stained a medium or dark brown or rust color or be covered with a masonry 

retaining walls and other retention structures must be integrally tinted or 

criteria will require a separate building permit prior to the start of work. All 

aspects with the NC Building Code Sec. 1610. Retaining systems meeting these 

responsible charge of a registered professional engineer and comply in all 

mechanically stabilized earth walls, shall be designed and constructed under the 

height within a horizontal distance of 50 feet or less, including retaining walls or 

Retaining systems providing a cumulative vertical relief greater than five feet in 11)

Master Sign Plan for approval.

use lots, non-residential subdivisions and multiple tenant lots must submit a 

separate sign permit must be obtained prior to installation of the sign. Multiple 

Individual signs are not approved as part of the site plan approval process. A 10)

& site stabilization, and parking and pavement marking) must be completed. 

mulching, screening for dumpsters, mechanical equipment, HVAC, etc., seeding 

Prior to scheduling a final site inspection, all site items (e.g. lighting, landscaping, 9)

phase.

before a final Certificate of Occupancy may be issued for any building within that 

All required site elements shown within a particular phase must be installed 8)

appearance. 

other plants must be planted outside the enclosure to visually soften the 

of masonry material with opaque gates. Where practicable, shrubs or 

feet tall or the height of the dumpster, whichever is greater, and be built 

Dumpster enclosures must meet the above requirements plus be eight (8) e.

(6) feet tall or higher must be fenced and landscaped.

Any ground-mounted HVAC or other mechanical or utility equipment six d.

streets, and a totally opaque screen is achieved.

Screened items are out of view from adjacent properties and public c.

color.

materials of the building or landscape, and are similar in materials and 

Screening materials are not different from or inferior to the principal b.

landscape.

It is incorporated into the overall design theme of the building and a.

screening must be done so that:

ground, or building shall meet the requirements of UDO Sec. 8.2.8. Specifically, 

storage, mechanical and HVAC equipment, and similar facilities on the roof, 

The screening of loading docks, roll-out trash containers, dumpsters, outdoor 7)

requirements of the Town of Apex Parks and Recreation Department.

found in the Town of Apex Standard Specifications and Standard Details and the 

(benches, trash containers, signs, etc.) must meet any applicable standards 

limited to, play fields, greenway trails and items typically associated with them 

Site elements required to satisfy recreational requirements such as, but not 6)

contained entirely on site.

root zones of trees, public utility easements and rights-of-way), and shall be 

not encroach into any required buffer or protected area (e.g. RCA, the critical 

All grading and support structures associated with any retaining structure shall 5)

demolition permit which must be obtained prior to start of the demolition.

accredited asbestos inspector must accompany the application for the 

NC Health Hazard Control Unit and an asbestos inspection report from a NC 

If buildings are to be demolished, a copy of the Demolition Notification from the 4)

near public areas (sidewalks, etc.).

officer; such areas may include, but are not limited to, common property lines or 

construction activity where it is deemed necessary by the zoning enforcement 

Additional tree protection fencing may be required in other locations close to 3)

limited to, historic buildings and structures, wetlands, and ponds.

At least 10 feet away from any other designated RCA such as, but not c.

any riparian buffer, and

Along the outside line of the 100-year floodplain and the outside edge of b.

height,

One foot away from any saved tree for each inch of diameter at breast a.

Tree protection fencing must be placed:2)

http://www.apexnc.org/215/Applications- Schedules.

Installation Permit may be obtained at the Planning Department or online at 

protection fencing has been installed and inspected. A Tree Protection Fencing 

installation of S&E measures, or grading shall occur until required tree 

No site development activity including, but not limited to, testing, clearing, 1)

Required Site Plan Notes: 

proposed changes must be submitted to the Planning Department for approval. 

Architectural construction plans must adhere to the approved site plans. Any 36)

standards, the approved plans, and any applicable conditions. 

lighting manufacturer verifying that all site lighting is installed according to Town 

the Town with a final letter of certification from the lighting engineer and/or 

Before certificates of occupancy are released, the owner/builder must supply 35)

internally lit. 

Awnings and canopies used for accents over doors and windows shall not be 34)

plan. 

through the development review process and reflected on the approved site 

Floodlights or other types of lighting are prohibited unless approval is given 33)

wattage must not exceed 100 watts. 

concealed lamp/light source. The lighting must be directed downward and the 

Wall pack light fixtures must be fully shielded, true cutoff type fixtures with a 32)

Lamps for non-cutoff light fixtures shall not exceed 100 watts. 31)

streetscape buffer and tree save area. 

or right-of-way line, and at least two feet away from any required perimeter or 

All outdoor light fixtures shall be located a minimum of 10 feet from a property 30)

groundcover, not with turf grass. 

Slopes steeper than 3:1 but less than 2:1 shall be stabilized with permanent 29)

suitable combination of plantings and retention devices. 

All slopes equal to 2:1 shall be stabilized with permanent slope retention or a 28)

form is impaired. 

their mature size. Plants shall not be cut or severely pruned so that their natural 

All plant material shall be allowed to reach their mature size and maintained at 27)

or missing shall be replaced in conformance with Town standards. 

Any vegetation that is dead, substandard, unhealthy, of poor structural quality, 26)

particular type of buffer as described in UDO Sec. 8.2.6. 

Required buffers must meet the minimum opacity requirements for the 25)

Sec. 8.2.2.E. 

exceptions may be granted by the Planning Director in accordance with UDO 

received, to ensure installation of the required landscaping. Additional 

150% of the cost of materials and installation, based on the highest estimate 

through September 1, then the applicant shall provide a cash bond equal to 

If the applicant chooses to delay the installation of landscaping from April 1 

the project, or in the case of phased development, for the phase of the project. 

All landscaping is required to be installed prior to a Certificate of Occupancy for 24)

for buffers, RCA, or required landscape areas. 

No private utility easements shall be allowed to be counted in the calculations 23)

plans.

all existing and proposed utilities and to clearly identify them on the approved 

It is the responsibility of the owner or his representative(s) to locate and identify 22)

a third-party inspection agency.

Inspections Director at 919-249-3381 for information including the utilization of 

approved by the plumbing inspector prior to covering. Contact the Building 

Right-of-Way or a Public Utility Easement. These systems shall be inspected and 

plumbing systems, including storm drainage systems, installed outside the Public 

A plumbing permit issued by the Building Inspection Division is required for all 21)

Engineering Division at 919-249-3394 to obtain these permit applications.

Sealed Engineer’s Report per the Town of Apex Spec Book. Please contact the 

Water Distribution Extension Permit Applications shall be accompanied by a 

Gravity Sewer Extension Permit to the release of construction drawings. All 

Utility Easement will require a Water Distribution Extension Permit and/or a 

All new public water and sewer lines contained within a Town of Apex Public 20)

separation of at least three (3) feet.

water main is at least 18 inches above the top of the sewer with a horizontal 

water main may be laid closer, provided that the elevation of the bottom of the 

sewers. Where local conditions prevent a separation of at least 10 feet, the 

Water and sewer shall be at least 10 feet laterally from existing or proposed 19)

backflow prevention assembly installed. 

All metered connections to Town potable water shall have a Town-approved 18)

companies as required. 

Contractor shall coordinate utility relocation or abandonment with local utility 17)

if conflicts are encountered. 

Verify all illustrated utility crossings prior to construction and notify the engineer 16)

Maintain a minimum of 18 inches of vertical separation between utilities. 15)

cover. 

All water and sewer lines shall be installed with a minimum of three (3) feet of 14)

the appropriate phase of construction. 

as part of a temporary erosion control measure, the inspection will occur during 

portions of UDO Sec. 6.1.12 Engineered Stormwater Controls. If the SCM is used 

required structure is in place, is operational, and complies with all relevant 

the Environmental Programs Manager at 919-249-3413 to demonstrate that the 

development where a Stormwater Control Measure (SCM) is required, contact 

Prior to approval of a Final Plat or issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for any 13)

NOTES

Town of Apex Construction Sequence

maintenance of the site.

The Property Owner/Home Owners Association will be responsible for permanent erosion control 23. 

of Termination (e-NOT) to end coverage under the NCG01 permit.

issuance of the Certificate of Completion. Visit the State website listed above and submit an electronic Notice 

and to request a Certificate of Completion. The S&E performance guarantee will be released with the 

When vegetation has been established, call Water Resources staff at (919) 362-8166 for a final site inspection 22. 

resulting bare areas. All permanent erosion control devices should be installed at this point.

Remove all temporary diversions, silt fencing, sediment basins, etc. and provide adequate cover or pave any 21. 

Construction Plan set.

devices. Follow the SCM Construction Sequence found on the Grading and/or SCM Detail sheet on the 

Flush and clean all stormwater system pipes. Clean and remove sediment from temporary sediment holding 20. 

contained within the plat.

erosion control measures must be installed, be functioning properly and be maintained for the entire area 

Prior to plat approval, all disturbed areas both public and private, must be properly stabilized. All temporary 19. 

Stabilize site as areas are brought up to finished grade with vegetation or paving.18. 

slopes that are 3:1 or flatter must establish groundcover within 14 calendar days.

establish groundcover on swales and ditches and graded slopes steeper than 3:1 within 7 calendar days; 

After completion of any phase of grading or when land-disturbing activities have temporarily ceased, 17. 

other approved measures as shown on plans. Maintain S&E measures as needed.

Install storm sewer, if applicable, and protect inlets with inlet protection devices, sediment devices, and/or 16. 

Stockpile a sufficient amount of topsoil to cover 3 inches over landscaped areas at the end of the project.15. 

Begin clearing, grubbing, and rough grade of the site in accordance with the approved grading plan.14. 

Post Grading Permit prominently on site at all times.13. 

separate from any other pre-construction meetings required in the Construction Sequence.

a pre-construction meeting with Rudy Baker at 249-3381 prior to any grading activities. This meeting is 

Once a Grading Permit is reviewed and issued by the Building Inspections & Permitting Department, arrange 12. 

Complete a Grading Permit Application, if required, from the Building Inspections & Permitting Department.11.

Department.

Certificate of Compliance. Water Resources will also forward a copy to the Building Inspections & Permitting 

When completed, call Water Resources staff at (919) 362-8166 for an on-site inspection and to request a 10. 

and/or other measures as shown on the approved plans. Clear only as necessary to install these devices.

Install gravel construction entrance, temporary diversions, silt fencing, sediment basins, bypass channels, 9. 

The COC must be submitted to the Town prior to the commencement of any land disturbing activity.

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/energy-mineral-land-resources/energy-mineral-landpermits/stormwater-permits/construction-sw 

Coverage (COC) under the NCG01 Construction Stormwater General Permit. Visit the following website: 

Complete and submit an electronic Notice of Intent (e-NOI) form with NCDEMLR requesting a Certificate of 8. 

staff at (919) 362-8166.

Request a Letter of Plan Approval for sedimentation and erosion control measures from Water Resources 7. 

control Letter of Plan Approval will not be issued until the guarantee has been submitted.

Development Services. An invoice can be requested from Water Resources at (919) 362-8166. The erosion 

Submit the applicable S&E performance guarantee to the Development Services Supervisor at 249-3394 in 6. 

Water Resources, Erosion Control field staff.

Call Planning at 249-3426 for a final inspection of protection measures. Planning will forward approval to 

Install approved tree protection fencing, signs, and/or any other protection measures that may be required. 5. 

tree protection fencing locations.

Contact an Apex Planning Department Zoning Compliance Officer at (919)249-3426 to request approval for 4. 

Have a surveyor flag property lines, easements, buffers, tree protection areas, and flag the protection limits.3. 

Fill out Tree/Protection Fencing Installation Permit Application (obtain from Planning Department).2. 

with inspectors and other Town staff.

Through the Infrastructure Inspections Manager at (919) 249-3386, schedule a pre-construction meeting 1. 

The following begins only after Construction Plans are approved, signed by Town staff and copies are received.

- Page 71 -



WETLANDS

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

100 YR. FLOOD FRINGE

500 YR. FLOOD FRINGE

REVISIONS:

NO. DATE

WEI PROJECT NO.:

20326.01

PLANS PREPARED BY:

ENGINEERING
ETHERILL

DESCRIPTION

UNLESS ALL SIGNATURES COMPLETED

DOCUMENT NOT CONSIDERED FINAL 

ENGINEER

ROADWAY

ENGINEER

HYDRAULICS

Bus:   919 851 8077 Fax:   919 851 8107

License No. F-0377

1223 Jones Franklin Rd. Raleigh, N.C. 27606

PLANS PREPARED FOR:

INCOMPLETE PLANS
DO NOT USE FOR R/W ACQUISITION

APEX WEST GREENWAY

TO AMERICAN TOBACCO TRAIL

OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD

CONNECTION FROM

919.372.7468

APEX, NC 27502

PO BOX 250

PARKS AND GREENWAY PLANNER

ANGELA REINCKE

PROJECT CONTACT:

DATE: MARCH 4, 2020

Apex, NC 27502

73 Hunter Street

TOWN OF APEX

the certifications signed on the cover sheet of these construction plans.

The signatures affixed below certify that this sheet has been reviewed and approved solely per 

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Building Inspections

WR - Utility Engineering

PW - Transportation

Electric

WR - S&E

WR - Stormwater

Planning

Planning - Transportation

Fire

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Res.

150

24" RCP 15" HDPE

N
 
18
°0

3
'2

3
" 

E
2
7
1.
0
3
'

N 
60

°3
4'
46

" E

39
0.

29
'

N
 
2
0
°0

1'
0
7
" 

E
9
4
.3

0
'

N 89°32'22" E

364.47'

N 89°32'22" E

115.10'

S
 
12
°0

9
'0

4
" 

W
2
6
4
.9

0
'

OLIVE CHAPEL RD.

CONC

N
 
0
2
°4

4
'3

3
" 

E

2
16
.3

8
'

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

TOP=262.35'

TOP=250.26'

TOP=246.77'

EXISTING 30' POWER EASEMENT

EXISTING 30' POWER EASEMENT

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
4
0
' 

T
O

W
N
 

O
F
 

C
A

R
Y
 

U
T
IL
IT

Y
 

&
 

P
IP

E
L
IN

E
 

E
A
S

E
M

E
N

T

(INSIDE R/W)

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING TOWN OF APEX 

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING TOWN OF APEX 

MULTI
-U

SE 
EASEMENT

EXI
STI

NG 
20
' T

OWN 
OF 

APEX 

MON

CONC

EIP

EIP

EIP

R/W MON
R/W MON

MON

CONC

36" WOOD SPLIT RAIL

SOIL

G
R

A
V
E

L

WOODS

WOODS

WOODS

GPS-1

GPS-2

Point North East Elevation
719877.715 2021171.367 273.147

720152.390 2020704.323 248.160

GPS-1

GPS-2

SIDEWALK EASEMENT

EXISTING R/W

EXISTING R/W

EXISTING R/W

JV OWNER, LLC

RREF II-SH RICHARDSON

BM 2016 PG 1850-1853

DB 16296 PG 2213

JV OWNER, LLC

RREF II-SH RICHARDSON

BM 2016 PG 1850-1853

DB 16296 PG 2213

WAKE COUNTY

RACHEL B. PRICE &

DB 9276 PG 1339

WAKE COUNTY

DB 9276 PG 1339

OF AMERICA

UNITED STATES

DB 1932 PG 120

A
M

E
R
IC

A
N
 

T
O

B
A

C
C

O
 
T

R
A
IL

SB

WC-01

WC-02

WC-03

WC-04

WC-101

WC-102

WC-103

WC-104

WC-105

WB-03

WB-02

SA

WB-01

SA

WA-10

WA-09
WA-06

WA-07

WA-08

WA-02

WA-03

WA-04
WA-11

WA-12

WA-13

WA-01

WA-14

WA-15

144

252.19

138

248.36

1

273.15

WA-05

APPROXIMATE EXISTING R/W (CALCULATED)

APPROXIMATE EXISTING R/W (CALCULATED)

R/W MON

SADDLEBROOK SUBDIVISION

W
ID

T
H
 

V
A

R
IE

S

2
0
.0

0
'

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING 20' TOWN OF APEX

20.00'

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING 20' TOWN OF APEX

(FROM APEX GIS INFO)

2
4
5

245

2
5
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

2
5
5

255

2
5
5

260

EXISTING MULTI-USE PATH

END OF EXISTING MULTI-USE PATH

0

1"=30'

1530 30 60

5. TREE SURVEY NOT COMPLETED. ALL TREES WITHIN THE EASEMENT AREA WILL BE CLEARED IN ORDER TO ACCOMMODATE THE MULTI-USE PATH.

4. SITE IS WITHIN THE PRIMARY WATERSHED OVERLAY DISTRICT.

3. WETLANDS AND STREAMS HAVE NOT BEEN VERIFIED BY THE US ARMY CORPS  OF ENGINEERS.

2. WETLANDS EXIST WITHIN THE GREENWAY CORRIDOR.

1. FIELD SURVEY COMPLETED BY WETHERILL ENGINEERING IN JANUARY 2020.

NOTES:

NC GRID

NAD 83 NA 2011

EXISTING CONDITIONS

4
- Page 72 -



WETLANDS

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

100 YR. FLOOD FRINGE

500 YR. FLOOD FRINGE

150

24" RCP 15" HDPE

N
 
18
°0

3
'2

3
" 

E
2
7
1.
0
3
'

N 
60

°3
4'
46

" E

39
0.

29
'

N
 
2
0
°0

1'
0
7
" 

E
9
4
.3

0
'

N 89°32'22" E

364.47'

N 89°32'22" E

115.10'

S
 
12
°0

9
'0

4
" 

W
2
6
4
.9

0
'

OLIVE CHAPEL RD.

CONC

N
 
0
2
°4

4
'3

3
" 

E

2
16
.3

8
'

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

TOP=262.35'

TOP=250.26'

TOP=246.77'

EXISTING 30' POWER EASEMENT

EXISTING 30' POWER EASEMENT

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
4
0
' 

T
O

W
N
 

O
F
 

C
A

R
Y
 

U
T
IL
IT

Y
 

&
 

P
IP

E
L
IN

E
 

E
A
S

E
M

E
N

T

(INSIDE R/W)

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING TOWN OF APEX 

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING TOWN OF APEX 

MULTI
-U

SE 
EASEMENT

EXI
STI

NG 
20
' T

OWN 
OF 

APEX 

MON

CONC

EIP

EIP

EIP

R/W MON
R/W MON

MON

CONC

36" WOOD SPLIT RAIL

SOIL

G
R

A
V
E

L

NC GRID

NAD 83 NA 2011

WOODS

WOODS

WOODS

GPS-1

GPS-2

Point North East Elevation
719877.715 2021171.367 273.147

720152.390 2020704.323 248.160

GPS-1

GPS-2

SIDEWALK EASEMENT

EXISTING R/W

EXISTING R/W

EXISTING R/W

JV OWNER, LLC

RREF II-SH RICHARDSON

BM 2016 PG 1850-1853

DB 16296 PG 2213

JV OWNER, LLC

RREF II-SH RICHARDSON

BM 2016 PG 1850-1853

DB 16296 PG 2213

WAKE COUNTY

RACHEL B. PRICE &

DB 9276 PG 1339

WAKE COUNTY

DB 9276 PG 1339

OF AMERICA

UNITED STATES

DB 1932 PG 120

A
M

E
R
IC

A
N
 

T
O

B
A

C
C

O
 
T

R
A
IL

SB

WC-01

WC-02

WC-03

WC-04

WC-101

WC-102

WC-103

WC-104

WC-105

WB-03

WB-02

SA

WB-01

SA

WA-10

WA-09
WA-06

WA-07

WA-08

WA-02

WA-03

WA-04
WA-11

WA-12

WA-13

WA-01

WA-14

WA-15

144

252.19

138

248.36

1

273.15

WA-05

APPROXIMATE EXISTING R/W (CALCULATED)

APPROXIMATE EXISTING R/W (CALCULATED)

R/W MON

SADDLEBROOK SUBDIVISION

W
ID

T
H
 

V
A

R
IE

S

2
0
.0

0
'

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING 20' TOWN OF APEX

20.00'

MULTI-USE EASEMENT

EXISTING 20' TOWN OF APEX

(FROM APEX GIS INFO)

20'

30'

30'

20'

SEE DETAIL B

SEE DETAIL A

Slope

Ditch

Front

GROUND

NATURAL

SLOPE

FILL

CL I RIP RAP

SEE DETAIL D

SEE DETAIL C

Geotextile

CL B RIP RAP

CL B RIP RAP

RETAIN

REMOVE

SEE DETAIL D

 AT OUTLET
 FLARED END SECTION

15" RCP-IV WITH

SECTIONS
FLARED END
30" RCP-III WITH

END SECTIONS
WITH FLARED

18" RCP-III

SLOPE STAKE

SLOPE STAKE

SLOPE STAKE

SLOPE STAKE

TIE TO EXIST TRAIL
-L- STA. 10+08.00
BEGIN PROJECT

TIE TO EXISTING DITCH
-D- STA. 10+00.00
BEGIN CONTRUCTION

TIE TO EXISTING DITCH
-D- STA. 12+00.00

END CONTRUCTION

TIE TO EXIST TRAIL
-L- STA. 17+00.00
END PROJECT

-L- STA. 15+74.00
BEGIN BOARDWALK

-L- STA. 16+44.00
END BOARDWALK

-L- STA. 12+80.00
END BOARDWALK

-L- STA. 11+70.00
BEGIN BOARDWALK

EL. = 249.89

-D- STA. 10+00.00

TIE TO EXISTING DITCH

BEGIN DITCH

EL. = 244.80

-D- STA. 12+00.00

TIE TO EXISTING DITCH

END DITCH

EL. = 256.25

-L- STA. 17+00.00

TIE TO EXISTING TRAIL

END GRADE

EL. = 248.32

-L- STA. 10+08.00

TIE TO EXISTING TRAIL

BEGIN GRADE

EL. = 255.25

-L- STA. 16+34

EL. = 255.15

-L- STA. 16+24

EL. = 254.95

-L- STA. 16+14

EL. = 254.65

-L- STA. 16+04

EL. = 254.25

-L- STA. 15+94

EL. = 251.62

-L- STA. 12+30

EL. = 251.42

-L- STA. 12+40

EL. = 251.12

-L- STA. 12+50

EL. = 250.72

-L- STA. 12+60

EL. = 251.72

-L- STA. 12+20

EL. = 251.72

-L- STA. 12+10

EL. = 251.62

-L- STA. 12+00

EL. 250.72

-L- STA. 11+70.00

BEGIN BOARDWALK

EL. 249.72

-L- STA. 12+80.00

END BOARDWALK

EL. 255.25

-L- STA. 16+44.00

END BOARDWALK

EL. 253.25

-L- STA. 15+74.00

BEGIN BOARDWALK
EL. = 251.42

-L- STA. 11+90

EL. = 251.12

-L- STA. 11+80

30" RCP

EL. 249.00 

-L- STA. 15+00 RT

BEGIN DITCH

EL. 249.30

-L- STA. 15+25

END DITCH
18" RCP

15" RCP

GRADE TO THIS LINE

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

6" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE

WOVEN GEOTEXTILE FABRIC

2" GRANITE SCREENINGS

2" GRANITE SCREENINGS

PATH

MULTI-USE

EXISTING

S9.58B

 SURFACE COURSE

2" ASPHALT CONCRETE

EXISTING SLOPES TO CREATE AN EVEN TRANSITION.

CUT AND FILL SLOPES SHALL TIE INTO

UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED ON PLANS.

SIDE SLOPES SHALL BE LESS THAN 3:1 (TYP.)

( Not to Scale)

STANDARD BASE DITCH

DETAIL A

B= 2.0 Ft.

Max. d= 2.0 Ft.

Min. D= 2.0 Ft.

*When B is < 6.0'

( Not to Scale)

STANDARD BASE DITCH

DETAIL B

B= 2.0 Ft.

Min. D= 1.0 Ft.

FROM STA 10+00. TO STA. 10+85 -D-

FROM STA. 11+08 TO STA. 12+00 -D-

Fla
tte
r4:

1 o
r

D

( Not to Scale)

SPECIAL CUT DITCH

FROM STA. 15+00 TO STA.  15+25 -L- RT

DETAIL C

Min. D= 0.5 Ft.

Ground

Natural

( Not to Scale)

TOE PROTECTION

d

FL
ATT

ER2:
1 

O
R

DETAIL D

b

b= 5.0 Ft.
d= 1.0 Ft.

Type of Liner= COIR FIBER MATTING

B

2:
12:1 D

Ground

Natural

Ground

Natural

2:
12:1

D

B

d

Ground

Natural

Ground

Natural

Type of Liner= CLASS I Rip-Rap

Liner=GRASS
n=0.04
s= 6.8%
d= 0.33 ft
V=2.8 fps 
Q= 0.9 cfs
Sta.= 15+00 TO 15+25 -L- RT

Liner=CL I RIP RAP
n=0.061
s= 5.5%
d= 1.22 ft
V= 4.6 fps
Q= 25 cfs
FROM STA 10+05 TO STA. 10+85 -D- RT

Liner=GRASS
n=0.04
s= 0.58%
d= 1.7 ft
V= 2.74 fps
Q= 25 cfs
Sta.= 11+08 TO 12+00 -D- RT

100 YR. FLOOD FRINGE

500 YR. FLOOD FRINGE

DI

Flatter

4:1 or

FROM STA. 15+25  TO STA. 15+50 -L- RT
FROM STA. 11+50  TO STA. 11+75 -L- RT

FES

15+00

-L- PC Sta.10+28.48

-L- PT Sta.10+72.00

-D- POT Sta.12+00.57

-D- PT Sta.11+80.47

-D- PC Sta.11+38.21

-D- PRC Sta.11+56.84

-D- PT Sta.10+81.18

-D- PRC Sta.10+56.94

-D- PC Sta.10+00.00

-L- PC Sta.14+34.13 -L- PT Sta.14+78.90

-L- POT Sta.17+27.80

-L- POT Sta.10+00.00

PI Sta 10+51.73

D

L = 43.52'

T = 23.25'

R = 50.00'

PI Sta 14+58.14

D

L = 44.77'

T = 24.01'

R = 50.00'

∆ ∆

-L- CURVE DATA-D- CURVE DATA

PI Sta 10+28.48

D

L

T

R = 800.00'

= 28.48'

= 56.94'

PI Sta 10+69.08

D

L = 24.23'

T = 12.13'

R = 200.00'

PI Sta 11+47.55

D

L = 18.63'

T = 9.34'

R = 100.00'

PI Sta 11+68.71

D

L = 23.63'

T = 11.87'

R = 100.00'

∆ ∆ ∆ ∆

F
T

10
0
2

0
2

F
T1
0

F
T

10
0
2

REVISIONS:

NO. DATE

WEI PROJECT NO.:

20326.01

PLANS PREPARED BY:

ENGINEERING
ETHERILL

DESCRIPTION

UNLESS ALL SIGNATURES COMPLETED

DOCUMENT NOT CONSIDERED FINAL 

ENGINEER

ROADWAY

ENGINEER

HYDRAULICS

Bus:   919 851 8077 Fax:   919 851 8107

License No. F-0377

1223 Jones Franklin Rd. Raleigh, N.C. 27606

PLANS PREPARED FOR:

INCOMPLETE PLANS
DO NOT USE FOR R/W ACQUISITION

APEX WEST GREENWAY

TO AMERICAN TOBACCO TRAIL

OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD

CONNECTION FROM

919.372.7468

APEX, NC 27502

PO BOX 250

PARKS AND GREENWAY PLANNER

ANGELA REINCKE

PROJECT CONTACT:

DATE: MARCH 4, 2020

Apex, NC 27502

73 Hunter Street

TOWN OF APEX

PROFILES

the certifications signed on the cover sheet of these construction plans.

The signatures affixed below certify that this sheet has been reviewed and approved solely per 

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Building Inspections

WR - Utility Engineering

PW - Transportation

Electric

WR - S&E

WR - Stormwater

Planning

Planning - Transportation

Fire

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Res.

VC =

EL =

PI =

10.00

245.49

10+80.00

(-)5.50%
(-)0.58%

-D-

0

0

0

PLANS - 1"=50'

0

00

50

50 50

50 100

100

25

25

510 10 20

PROFILE (HORIZONTAL) - 1"=50'

PROFILE (VERTICAL) - 1"=50'

CL

5' 5'

BOARDWALK TYPICAL SECTION

10'

BEGIN STATION END STATIONCHAINBOARDWALK NO.

1

2

CHAIN BEGIN STATION END STATION

-L-

SHLD

2'

5'5'

10'

SHLD

2'

ASPHALT TRAIL TYPICAL SECTION

{ -L-

2% MAX. 2% MAX. 4% MAX.

4% MAX.

3:
1 

M
A

X
.

3:
1 

M
A

X
.

SEE APEX STD. 200.03 ON SHEET 6

SEE BOARDWALK PLANS

(TIE TO AMERICAN TOBACCO TRAIL) 10+08.00 11+70.00 (BEGIN BOARDWALK)

(END BOARDWALK) 12+80.00 15+74.00 (BEGIN BOARDWALK)

(END BOARDWALK) 16+44.00 17+00.00

-L-

-L- (TIE TO EXISTING TRAIL)

-L-

-L-

11+70.00 12+80.00

15+74.00 16+44.00

PLAN & PROFILE SHEET

5

10+00

230

240

250

260

240

250

260

270 270

260

250

230

240

240

250

260

11+00 12+00 13+00 14+00 15+00 16+00 17+00

VC =

EL =

PI =

44.00

248.47

10+33.00

VC =

EL =

PI =

30.00

251.57

10+95.00

VC =

EL =

PI =

20.00

249.12

14+65.00

VC =

EL =

PI =

20.00

249.45

14+98.00

VC =

EL =

PI =

40.00

254.95

16+74.00

VC =

EL =

PI =

80.00

247.35

14+15.00

VC =

EL =

PI =

40.00

247.97

13+15.00

VC =

EL =

PI =

20.00

249.92

11+50.00

1.2%

(+)0.60%

(+)5
.00%

(-)3.00%

(+)4.
00%

(+
)3
.0

0
%

(+
)2
.0

0
%

(+
)1
.0

0
%

(+
)0
.0

0
%

(-
)1
.0

0
%

(-
)2
.0

0
%

(-
)3
.0

0
%

(-
)4
.0

0
%

(-)5.00% (-)0.62% (+)3.5
4%

(+)1.00% (+)5
.00%

(+
)4
.0

0
%

(+
)3
.0

0
%

(+
)2
.0

0
%

(+
)1
.0

0
%

(+
)0
.0

0
%

(+)5
.00%

(-)1.00%

-L-
OVERTOPPING ELEVATION =

OVERTOPPING FREQUENCY =

OVERTOPPING DISCHARGE =

BASE HW ELEVATION =

BASE FREQUENCY =

BASE DISCHARGE =

DESIGN HW ELEVATION =

DESIGN FREQUENCY =

DESIGN DISCHARGE =

248.3

500+

NA

245.7

100

230

245.6

10

1.8

248.6

500

NA

248.4

100

31

248.0

10

25.0

FT

YRS

CFS

FT

YRS

CFS

FT

YRS

CFS

249.5

500+

NA

248.3

100

1.1

248.2

10

0.9

PIPE HYDRAULIC DATA

10+21
-L-

10+47
-L-

14+97
-L-

- Page 73 -



248.31

0.02 4:14:1

PGL EL. =248.32

246.38

0.02

PGL EL. =248.52

3:1
3:1

250.90

0.02

PGL EL. =249.33

3:1
3:1

251.01

PGE
EX PGE

EX

0.02 3:14:1

PGL EL. =250.57

250.85

PGE
EX PGE

EX

0.02 4:14:1
4:1

PGL EL. =251.29

250.33

PGE
EX PGE

EX

0.02 4:1
4:1

PGL EL. =250.67

249.60

PGE
EX

PGE
EX

0.02 4:14:1

PGL EL. =250.10

248.90

PGE
EX PGE

EX

PGL EL. =250.72

0.00

248.18

PGE
EX PGE

EX
0.00

247.86

PGE
EX PGE

EX0.00

247.70

PGE
EX PGE

EX
0.00

247.98

PGE
EX PGE

EX

0.00

PGE
EX PGE

EX

248.03

PGL EL. =249.72

0.00

248.01

PGE
EX PGE

EX

0.02 4:1
3:1

PGL EL. =248.73

REVISIONS:

NO. DATE

WEI PROJECT NO.:

20326.01

PLANS PREPARED BY:

ENGINEERING
ETHERILL

DESCRIPTION

UNLESS ALL SIGNATURES COMPLETED

DOCUMENT NOT CONSIDERED FINAL 

ENGINEER

ROADWAY

ENGINEER

HYDRAULICS

Bus:   919 851 8077 Fax:   919 851 8107

License No. F-0377

1223 Jones Franklin Rd. Raleigh, N.C. 27606

PLANS PREPARED FOR:

INCOMPLETE PLANS
DO NOT USE FOR R/W ACQUISITION

APEX WEST GREENWAY

TO AMERICAN TOBACCO TRAIL

OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD

CONNECTION FROM

73 Hunter Street, Apex, NC 27606

TOWN OF APEX

919.372.7468

APEX, NC 27502

PO BOX 250

PARKS AND GREENWAY PLANNER

ANGELA REINCKE

PROJECT CONTACT:

DATE: MARCH 4, 2020

CROSS SECTIONS

the certifications signed on the cover sheet of these construction plans.

The signatures affixed below certify that this sheet has been reviewed and approved solely per 

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Building Inspections

WR - Utility Engineering

PW - Transportation

Electric

WR - S&E

WR - Stormwater

Planning

Planning - Transportation

Fire

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Res.

00

00

55

55

1010

1010

1515

1515

2020

2020

245 245

250 250

10+08.00

245 245

250 250

10+25.00

245 245

250 250

10+50.00

245 245

250 250

255 255

10+75.00

245 245

250 250

255 255

11+00.00

00

00

55

55

1010

1010

1515

1515

2020

2020

245 245

250 250

255 255

11+25.00

245 245

250 250

11+50.00

245 245

250 250

255 255

11+70.00

245 245

250 250

255 255

12+00.00

00

00

55

55

10

1010

15

1515

20

2020

245 245

250 250

255 255

12+25.00

245 245

250 250

255 255

12+50.00

245 245

250 250

12+75.00

245 245

250 250

12+80.00

245 245

250 250

13+00.00

-L- -L- -L-

X-1
- Page 74 -



247.90

PGE
EX PGE

EX

0.02 3:13:14:1

PGL EL. =247.96

247.74

PGE
EX PGE

EX

0.02 3:14:1

PGL EL. =247.75

247.61

PGE
EX PGE

EX

0.02 3:14:1

PGL EL. =247.60

247.53

PGE
EX

PGE
EX

0.02 4:14:1
4:1

PGL EL. =247.61

247.76

PGE
EX PGE

EX

0.02 3:1
4:1

PGL EL. =247.94

248.49

PGE
EX

PGE
EX

0.02 4:1
4:1

PGL EL. =248.60

249.21

PGE
EX

PGE
EX

0.02 4:150:1

PGL EL. =249.22

R
W

249.00

PGE
EX

PGE
EX

0.02 4:1

PGL EL. =249.61

R
W

3:1
4:1

249.00

249.63

PGE
EX

PGE
EX

0.02 3:1

PGL EL. =250.80

R
W

3:1

250.87

PGE
EX

PGE
EX

0.02 3:1

PGL EL. =252.05

R
W

3:1

251.44

PGE
EX

PGE
EX

PGL EL. =253.25

R
W

0.00

252.14

PGE
EXR

W

0.00

253.01

PGE
EXR

W

0.00

253.63

PGE
EX

PGL EL. =255.25

R
W

0.00

253.82

PGE
EX

0.02

PGL EL. =255.19

R
W

3:1
3:1

REVISIONS:

NO. DATE

WEI PROJECT NO.:

20326.01

PLANS PREPARED BY:

ENGINEERING
ETHERILL

DESCRIPTION

UNLESS ALL SIGNATURES COMPLETED

DOCUMENT NOT CONSIDERED FINAL 

ENGINEER

ROADWAY

ENGINEER

HYDRAULICS

Bus:   919 851 8077 Fax:   919 851 8107

License No. F-0377

1223 Jones Franklin Rd. Raleigh, N.C. 27606

PLANS PREPARED FOR:

INCOMPLETE PLANS
DO NOT USE FOR R/W ACQUISITION

APEX WEST GREENWAY

TO AMERICAN TOBACCO TRAIL

OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD

CONNECTION FROM

73 Hunter Street, Apex, NC 27606

TOWN OF APEX

919.372.7468

APEX, NC 27502

PO BOX 250

PARKS AND GREENWAY PLANNER

ANGELA REINCKE

PROJECT CONTACT:

DATE: MARCH 4, 2020

CROSS SECTIONS

the certifications signed on the cover sheet of these construction plans.

The signatures affixed below certify that this sheet has been reviewed and approved solely per 

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Building Inspections

WR - Utility Engineering

PW - Transportation

Electric

WR - S&E

WR - Stormwater

Planning

Planning - Transportation

Fire

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Res.

00

00

55

55

1010

1010

1515

1515

2020

2020

245 245

250 250

13+25.00

245 245

250 250

13+50.00

245 245

250 250

13+75.00

245 245

250 250

14+00.00

245 245

250 250

14+25.00

00

00

55

55

1010

1010

1515

1515

2020

2020

245 245

250 250

14+50.00

245 245

250 250

14+75.00

245 245

250 250

15+00.00

245 245

250 250

255 255

15+25.00

245 245

250 250

255 255

15+50.00

00

00

55

55

10

1010

15

1515

20

2020

250 250

255 255

15+74.00

250 250

255 255

16+00.00

250 250

255 255

16+25.00

250 250

255 255

16+44.00

250 250

255 255

16+50.00

-L- -L- -L-

X-2
- Page 75 -



254.96

PGE
EX

0.02 3:13:1
3:1

PGL EL. =255.27

R
W

256.25

PGE
EX

0.02 3:1
4:1

PGL EL. =256.25

R
W

253.47

2:1 2:
1

249.89

250.66

2:1 2:
1

248.52

251.44

2:1
2:
1

247.14

251.35

2:1

2:
1

245.77

251.15

2:1
2:
1

245.46

250.51

2:1
2:
1

245.33

249.92

2:1
2:
1

245.23

248.86

2:1
2:
1

245.09

247.66
2:1 2:

1

244.94

246.64
2:1 2:

1

244.80

REVISIONS:

NO. DATE

WEI PROJECT NO.:

20326.01

PLANS PREPARED BY:

ENGINEERING
ETHERILL

DESCRIPTION

UNLESS ALL SIGNATURES COMPLETED

DOCUMENT NOT CONSIDERED FINAL 

ENGINEER

ROADWAY

ENGINEER

HYDRAULICS

Bus:   919 851 8077 Fax:   919 851 8107

License No. F-0377

1223 Jones Franklin Rd. Raleigh, N.C. 27606

PLANS PREPARED FOR:

INCOMPLETE PLANS
DO NOT USE FOR R/W ACQUISITION

APEX WEST GREENWAY

TO AMERICAN TOBACCO TRAIL

OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD

CONNECTION FROM

73 Hunter Street, Apex, NC 27606

TOWN OF APEX

919.372.7468

APEX, NC 27502

PO BOX 250

PARKS AND GREENWAY PLANNER

ANGELA REINCKE

PROJECT CONTACT:

DATE: MARCH 4, 2020

CROSS SECTIONS

the certifications signed on the cover sheet of these construction plans.

The signatures affixed below certify that this sheet has been reviewed and approved solely per 

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Building Inspections

WR - Utility Engineering

PW - Transportation

Electric

WR - S&E

WR - Stormwater

Planning

Planning - Transportation

Fire

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Res.

00

00

55

55

1010

1010

1515

1515

2020

2020

250 250

255 255

16+75.00

255 255

260 260

17+00.00

-L-

00

00

55

55

1010

1010

1515

1515

2020

2020

250 250

255 255

10+00.00

250 250

255 255

10+25.00

245 245

250 250

255 255

10+50.00

245 245

250 250

255 255

10+75.00

245 245

250 250

10+85.00

00

00

55

55

10

1010

15

1515

20

2020

245 245

250 250

11+08.00

245 245

250 250

11+25.00

245 245

250 250

11+50.00

245 245

250 250

11+75.00

245 245

12+00.00

-D- -D-

X-3
- Page 76 -



            PIPE  DATA  SHEET
Date: 2/25/2020 Revised: By: WHE I.D. No.: Apex Greenway Sheet 1 of 3

Project Desc. Apex Greenway Olive Chapel Road County: Wake Designed By: WHE   Checked By:

 GRADE PT. EL.: 248.40 ft OT Elev.= 248.30 ft. Plan Summary Data
Shoulder Drainage Area: 0.43 Ac

Elev.: 248.30 ft Design Freq.: 10 yr

Station: Design Disch.: 1.8 cfs

Skew: Stream Bed Design H.W. Elev.: 245.58 ft

Size/Type Pipe: El @ inlet H Stream Bed Q100 Discharge: 2.2 cfs

Type Entrance: H.W. El @ outlet Q100 Elev.: 245.66 ft

Direction of Flow: LSo T.W Overtopping Freq.: 500 yr+ yr +

Hydrological Method: Inlet    So= 1.67%  Overtopping Disch.: 15 cfs

H.W. Control Elevation:  Invert Elev.: 244.90 ft      L= 24.0 ft Outlet Inv. Elev. 244.50 ft Overtopping Elev.: 248.30 ft

PIPE CULVERT ANALYSIS (English) rcp= .012, cmp=0.024 Outlet channel: Slope: 0.003 Lt. Side Slope 3

n= 0.012 Base= 0 n= 0.04 Rt. Side Slope 3

Size & Type TW Q Nat. Allow.       Inlet Control                                                Outlet Control      HW

SIZE # pipes FREQ ft ft^3/s H.W. H.W. HW/D HW (ft) Ke dc (dc+D)/2 ho H L*SO HW ELEV. HW/D

18 1 10 0.8 1.80  0.45 0.68 0.2 0.49 1.00 1.00 0.025 0.40 0.62 245.58 0.45 INLET CONTROL

18 1 25 0.8 2.00 0.48 0.72 0.2 0.52 1.01 1.01 0.031 0.40 0.64 245.62 0.48 INLET CONTROL

18 1 50 0.8 2.10 0.49 0.74 0.2 0.53 1.02 1.02 0.034 0.40 0.65 245.64 0.49 INLET CONTROL

18 1 100 0.8 2.20 0.51 0.76 0.2 0.54 1.02 1.02 0.038 0.40 0.66 245.66 0.51 INLET CONTROL

18 1 Overtopping 15.0 2.27 3.40 0.2 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.756 0.40 2.86 248.30 2.27 INLET CONTROL

18 1 200 0.8 2.30 0.52 0.78 0.2 0.56 1.03 1.03 0.041 0.40 0.67 245.68 0.52 INLET CONTROL

18 1 500 0.8 2.40 0.53 0.80 0.2 0.57 1.03 1.03 0.045 0.40 0.68 245.70 0.53 INLET CONTROL

Notes:

HW/D=1.2  ft.      = 246.7 ft.

Elev.   =   248.30 ft. which is elevation of the American Tobacco Trailcenterline

Recommendation: Use 18" RCP HW Control = 1.2*1.5=1.8'+244.9=246.7

V(10) partial= 5.7 fps T©=10 min I(10)= 5.9 "/hr C=0.7

HW Control is 

Overtopping occurs at Sta. 10+00 -L- existing

Rt to Lt

Rational

246.7

Remarks

PROPOSED

10+21 -L-

90

18" RCP

Groove End Projecting

3

- Page 77 -



            PIPE  DATA  SHEET
Date: 2/25/2020 Revised: WHE By: I.D. No.: Apex Greenway Sheet 2 of 3

Project Desc. Apex Greenway Olive Chapel Road County: Wake Designed By: WHE   Checked By:

 GRADE PT. EL.: 249.20 ft OT Elev.= 248.60 ft. Plan Summary Data
Shoulder Drainage Area: 10 Ac

Elev.: 249.30 ft Design Freq.: 10 yr

Station: Design Disch.: 25 cfs

Skew: Stream Bed Design H.W. Elev.: 248.02 ft

Size/Type Pipe: El @ inlet H Stream Bed Q100 Discharge: 31 cfs

Type Entrance: H.W. El @ outlet Q100 Elev.: 248.42 ft

Direction of Flow: LSo T.W Overtopping Freq.: 500 yr yr +

Hydrological Method: Inlet    So= 0.58%  Overtopping Disch.: 33 cfs

H.W. Control Elevation:  Invert Elev.: 245.46 ft      L= 24.0 ft Outlet Inv. Elev. 245.32 ft Overtopping Elev.: 248.60 ft

PIPE CULVERT ANALYSIS (English) rcp= .012, cmp=0.024 Outlet channel: Slope: Lt. Side Slope

n= 0.012 Base= n= Rt. Side Slope

Size & Type TW Q Nat. Allow.       Inlet Control                                                Outlet Control      HW

SIZE # pipes FREQ ft ft^3/s H.W. H.W. HW/D HW (ft) Ke dc (dc+D)/2 ho H L*SO HW ELEV. HW/D

30 1 10 1.7 25.00  1.02 2.56 0.2 1.72 2.11 2.11 0.559 0.14 2.53 248.02 1.02 INLET CONTROL

30 1 25 1.8 27.00 1.08 2.70 0.2 1.80 2.15 2.15 0.652 0.14 2.66 248.16 1.08 INLET CONTROL

30 1 50 1.9 29.00 1.14 2.84 0.2 1.87 2.19 2.19 0.752 0.14 2.80 248.30 1.14 INLET CONTROL

30 1 100 1.9 31.00 1.18 2.96 0.2 1.95 2.23 2.23 0.859 0.14 2.94 248.42 1.18 INLET CONTROL

30 1 Overtopping 2.0 33.0 1.25 3.13 0.2 2.02 2.26 2.26 0.974 0.14 3.10 248.59 1.25 INLET CONTROL

30 1 200 1.9 32.00 1.22 3.05 0.2 1.99 2.24 2.24 0.915 0.14 3.02 248.51 1.22 INLET CONTROL

30 1 500 2.0 33.00 1.25 3.13 0.2 2.02 2.26 2.26 0.974 0.14 3.10 248.59 1.25 INLET CONTROL

Notes:

HW/D=1.2  ft.       = 248.5 ft.

Elev.   =   248.60 ft. which is elevation of -L- centerline

Recommendation: Use 30" pipe.  HW Control is HW/D=1.2*2.5=3'   245.46+3=248.46

V(10) partial=7.5 fps T© = 15 I=4.9 in/hr C=0.5

PROPOSED

10+47 -L-

90

30"

Groove End Projecting

Rt to Lt

Rational

248.5

Remarks

HW Control is 

Overtopping occurs at Sta. 10+30-L- proposed3

- Page 78 -



CREATE DATE: INLET COMPUTATION SHEET

REV. DATE:  

I.D. NO.: PROJ. NO.: COUNTY: DESIGNED BY: WHE

DESCRIPTION: REVD BY:

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E

A
R

E
A

 (
a

c
re

s
)

R
U

N
O

F
F

C
O

E
F

F
.

T
IM

E
 O

F

C
O

N
C

. 
(m

in
)

R
A

IN
F

A
L
L
 

IN
T

. 
(i

n
/h

r)

D
IS

C
H

A
R

G
E

F
R

O
M

 D
.A

. 
(c

fs
)

D
IS

C
H

A
R

G
E

C
A

R
R

Y
O

V
R

 (
c
fs

)

T
O

T
A

L

D
IS

C
H

A
R

G
E

(c
fs

)

IN
T

E
R

C
E

P
T

(M
A

X
) 

 (
c
fs

)

B
Y

P
A

S
S

(c
fs

)

REMARKS

D.A. C TC I QD.A. QC

QT=

QD.A.+QC

QI(mx) QB

403 0402 L 15+00 10 Rt DI 249.00 SAG 0.250 0.30 0.50 5.0 4.0 0.6 0.0 0.6 1.1 N/A N/A

3/30/2020

ROADWAY RUNOFF

Wake

Olive Chapel Road Apex Greenway

INLETLOCATION

 E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
(f

t)

G
R

A
D

E
(f

t/
ft

)

C
R

O
S

S
 S

L
O

P
E

(f
t/

ft
)

  
  

  
  

  
S

P
R

E
A

D

  
  

  
  

  
(f

t)S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

N
U

M
B

E
R

A
L
IG

N
M

E
N

T

S
T

A
T

IO
N

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

O
F

F
S

E
T

  
  

  
  

  
B

Y
P

A
S

S
 T

O

  
  

  
  

  
IN

L
E

T

Page 1 of 1 Printed 3/30/2020
- Page 79 -



CREATE DATE: STORM DRAIN DESIGN COMPUTATIONS

REV. DATE:

I.D. NO.: PROJ. NO.: COUNTY: DESIGNED BY: WHE

DESCRIPTION: REVD BY:

S
U

M

(C
 x

 A
)

IN
T

E
N

S
IT

Y
(i
n

/h
r)

D
IS

C
H

G
.

(c
fs

) IN
L
E

T

E
L
E

V
. 

(f
t)

O
U

T
L
E

T

E
L
E

V
. 

(f
t)

CA

IN
L
E

T

F
L
O

W

D
E

S

I Q
TOP,

INV

TOP,

INV

403 402 0.30 0.15 29 5 5 10 5.9 0.9
249.00

246.75

0.00

245.50
0.041 15 C 9.0 6.3 2.25 247.25

L
E

S
S

E
R

 o
f 
IN

L
E

T

v
s
 P

IP
E

 C
A

P
. 

(c
fs

)

C
U

M
. 
D

.A
.

(a
c
re

s
)

P
IP

E
 L

E
N

G
T

H
 (

ft
)

V
E

L
. 

(f
t/

s
)

Wake

U
P

S
T

R
E

A
M

B
O

X
 D

E
P

T
H

 (
ft

)

TIME OF

CONCENTRATION

(min)

H
G

L
 E

L
E

V
. 

(f
t)

S
L
O

P
E

 (
ft

/f
t)

S
Y

S
T

E
M

LOCATION

FROM TO

STRUCTURE

NUMBER

L
IN

K

REMARKS

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 /
 A

L
T

M
IN

IM
U

M
 R

E
Q

'D

S
L
O

P
E

 (
ft
/f
t)

0402 0403

3/30/2020

Olive Chapel Road Apex Greenway

F
R

E
E

B
O

A
R

D

RUNOFF PIPE DESIGN

D
IA

. 
(i
n

)

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L

Page 1 of 1 Printed 3/30/2020
- Page 80 -



Owner‘s (or Company’s) Name: ________________________________________________________________________________

Mailing address: _______________________________________________________________________________________________

City: ______________________________________________________ State: _________________________ Zip: _______________

Phone: ______________________ Fax:__________________________ e-mail: ____________________________________________

Contact Name (e.g.-Engineer in charge, if different from above):_______________________________________________________

Company Name:_______________________________________________________________________________________________

Mailing address: ______________________________________________________________________________________________

City: ______________________________________________________ State: _________________________ Zip: _______________

Phone: ______________________ Fax:__________________________ e-mail: ____________________________________________

Specific Information needed for Application:

County: _________________________Rail Corridor: ____________ Nearest Railroad Milepost (if known): ________________

Location description (attach map /sketch): ______________________________________________________________________

Permanent or Temporary installation?  (check one)  Permanent  Temporary

Type of encroachment: 

a) Driveway, Drain Pipe, etc.: ___________________________________________________________________________________

b) If underground–Type: (fiber optic, electric, water, gas, etc.)_____________________________________________________

Dimension(s)/Size(s): ________________________________________________________________________________________

c) If aerial–Type: (overhead utility, conveyor belt, etc) ____________________________________________________________

Clearance above track: ______________________________________________________________________________________

d)Other: ___________________________________________________ Dimensions: _____________________________________

Note:  From information furnished on application, NCDOT will complete a more detailed specification sheet which will specify how
the installation is to be made. AREMA and NCDOT Standard Specifications will be part of the encroachment agreement, and
NCDOT will require signature of applicant, agreeing to the terms set forth in the specifications.

Other Information:

1. An applicable annual fee may be included in the encroachment agreement executed with NCDOT.
2. Where appropriate, additional engineered plans (or other information) may be required of applicant.

Railroad Encroachment Application Form
Operations & Facilities Branch, 1553 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1553

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION – RAIL DIVISION

Rev. June 2016

Instructions: Complete all applicable information below and return this form with two sets of preliminary plans, sketches, 
specifications, calculations, etc. to NCDOT, Rail Division, Operations & Facilities Branch, 1553 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1553. Sketches and drawings should include north arrow, scale, vicinity map, landmarks and 
reference points. If you need additional information, please contact Andy Miller, Facilities & Properties Manager, by 
phone at (919) 707-4721 or by email at samiller@ncdot.gov.

Town of Apex
PO Box 250

Apex NC 27502
919.372.7468 919.249.3368 angela.reincke@apexnc.org

Jonathan Hefner
Wetherill Engineering
1223 Jones Franklin Rd.

Raleigh NC 27606
984.242.0576 919.851.8107 jhefner@wetherilleng.com

Wake D&SC(ATT) DD16.00 +/-

See plans

10' wide asphalt multi-use path connection to American Tobacco Trail.

- Page 81 -

PAL58254
Typewritten Text

PAL58254
Typewritten Text

PAL58254
Typewritten Text

PAL58254
Typewritten Text

PAL58254
Typewritten Text

PAL58254
Typewritten Text

PAL58254
Typewritten Text

PAL58254
Typewritten Text

PAL58254
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT

PARKS,RECREATION, GREENWAY ANDS OPEN SPACE 
MASTER PLAN

BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN SYSTEM PLAN MAP

BIKE, PEDESTRIAN AND TRANSPORTATION 

- Page 82 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Mar y  Be th  M an v i l le ,  H u ma n R es ou rc e s  D i rec to r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Hu man R es ou rc es  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  a n  a men d men t  to  th e  To wn ’s  E mp lo yee  As s i s t anc e  P r o gra m c o nt r ac t  w i th  

Beha v i o r a l  He a l t h  Se r v i c es  (B H S ) ,  ex ten d i n g the  c on t r ac t  te r m t o  S ep te mb er  18 ,  2023 .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

The  Tow n’ s  E mp lo yee  As s i s ta nc e  Pro gr a m i s  a d mi n i s te re d by  Beh a v i o ra l  Hea l th  Se r v i c es  (B H S ) .   

The  Tow n’ s  o r i g i na l  s e rv i c e  a gre e me nt  w i th  BH S  w as  ma d e e f fec t i ve  Se p te mber  25 ,  201 7 .   The  

To wn wou l d  l i ke  to  a men d the  se r v i c es  a g ree men t  t o  e x t en d th e  c on t rac t  te r m t o  Se pt e mber  18 ,  

2023 .   The  pe r  e mp l oy ee  per  mo n th  r a te  o f  $2 .30  w i l l  re mai n  the  s a me .  

At t ac h men t s  

  BH S_ Tow n of  Ap e x  Am end men t  2020  

  BH S_ Tow n of  Ap e x  Se r v i c e  Ag r ee men t  2017  

 

- Page 83 -



- Page 84 -



- Page 85 -



- Page 86 -



- Page 87 -



- Page 88 -



- Page 89 -



- Page 90 -



- Page 91 -



- Page 92 -



 

 
Town of Apex Service Agreement Extension Addendum 

7/6/20, MM _______ (initials) 

1 

 
 

TOWN OF APEX 
ADDENDUM TO SERVICE AGREEMENT  
 

 

The Service Agreement effective September 25, 2017 and the Addendum effective September 19, 2018, 
by and between Janus Associates, Inc. dba BHS (“BHS”) and Town of Apex, (hereafter known as 
“Customer”), is hereby amended by both Parties. This Addendum is effective as of September 19, 2020. 
 
1. Purpose of the Addendum 
 
Whereas, Customer seeks to extend the current contract term until September 18, 2023, and;  
 
Whereas, BHS shall provide Customer with the requested term extension, 
 
Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual benefits and obligations set forth in this Addendum, the 
parties hereby agree as follows:  
 
BHS shall provide the following services to covered Customer: 
 
Continued contracted services through the extended contract term. 
 
2. Program Cost and Payment for Services 
 
BHS shall provide the above term extension and continue to invoice Customer $2.30 per employee per 
month for a minimum of 493 employees.  
 
 
In all other respects and except as modified by this Addendum, the terms of the current Service Agreement 
dated September 25, 2017 and the addendum effective September 19, 2018, shall remain in full force and 
effect.  By signing in the space provided below, BHS and Customer have caused this Addendum to be 
executed by their authorized representatives.   
 
 
 

___________________________      _______________________ 
Leah Maddox           Customer Authorized Agent 
Chief Operating Officer 
BHS 
 
 
___________________________     ________________________  
Date                 Date         

- Page 93 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Da v i d  D i l lo n ,  De pu ty  F i re  M ar sh a l l  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  F i re  De par t men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  a p pro ve  an  Or d i nanc e a men di ng  Sec t i on  20 -164  w i th  t he  a d di t i on  o f  sub sec t i on  (38 )  t o  

en fo rc e  a  N o P ark i ng  re s t r i c t i on  a lon g  b o t h  s i d es  o f  Sun ny  Cre ek  La ne  an d Wi n d y  C reek  L ane ,  

no r th  and  s ou th  o f  E ven i ng S ta r  D r i ve .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

F i re  De par t men t  h as  r ev i ew ed  b o th  the  Sun ny  Cr eek  L ane  an d Wi nd y  Cree k  La ne  l oo p s  nor th  

an d s ou th  o f  E ven i ng S ta r  D r i ve  i n  the  Cree ks i de  sub d i v i s i on  a nd  de te r mi ne d th a t  a  f i re  t ruc k  

wou l d  be  una b l e  to  c i rc u la te  a rou nd  t ho se  loo p s  w i th  veh i c le s  p arke d a lo n g the  s t r ee t .   Bo th  

s t r ee t s  were  de s i gn ed  as  one -w a y l oo p s  a r o und a  l a r ge  la nd sc a p ed me di an ,  p r o v i d i ng  le s s  

pa ve men t  w i d th  t han  a  ty p i c a l  re s i d en t i a l  s t ree t .   To wnh o mes  f ro n t i ng  a lon g  t ho se  s t re et s  a r e  

se r ve d b y  a l le y - l oa de d g ara ge s ,  so  th e  p r o po se d re s t r i c t i o n  i s  an t i c i pa te d to  d i s p l ac e  so me 

ex i s t i n g  on - s t r ee t  p ar k i ng i f  re s i de nt s  o r  v i s i to r s  a re  un ab le  o r  un wi l l i n g  to  u se  de s i gn a te d 

park i n g w i th i n  the  a l l eys .    Ne arb y  gue s t  s p ac es  a re  no t  a va i l a b l e ,  s o  ex i s t i n g  o n - s t re e t  park i n g 

ac t i v i t y  o n  t he  lo op s  i s  mo s t  l i ke l y  to  mo ve  to  E ven i n g S ta r  D r i ve  i f  the y  c h oo se  n o t  to  u se  the  

a l ley s .   I n  o rd e r  fo r  Apex  P o l i c e  to  en fo rc e  the  reque s te d o r d i n a nc e,  Pu b l i c  Wo rk s  &  

T r an sp or ta t i on  s ta f f  re c o mmen d the  p os t i n g  o f  s i gns  a s  s ho wn i n  t he  a t tac he d ma p .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Ord i n anc e 20 -164 (38 )  

  Ma p of  p r op ose d “ N o  P ark i ng Bo th  S i des  o f  S t ree t ”  

 

 

- Page 94 -



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-0818-24 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 20-164 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE TOWN OF APEX 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as 

follows: 

Section 1. Section 20-164 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Apex is hereby 

amended to add subsection (38) as follows: 

Sec. 20-164. - No parking zones. 

(38)  Along both sides of Sunny Creek Lane and Windy Creek Lane, north and 

south of Evening Star Drive. 

 

Section 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed.  If any part of this ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, such 

adjudication shall apply only to such part so adjudged and the remainder of the 

ordinance shall be deemed valid and effective. 

Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective on the 18th day of August 2020. 

 

Introduced by Council Member _______________________________________ 

Seconded by Council Member ________________________________________ 

 

Attest:          TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

____________________________      __________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC      Jacques K. Gilbert        

Town Clerk         Mayor 

 

Approved As To Form: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Laurie L. Hohe 

Town Attorney 

 

- Page 95 -



Town of Apex Ord 20-164 (38) Proposed: 

Creekside Subdivision “No Parking” for Sunny Creek Lane & Windy Creek Lane 

one-way loops 

August 2020 (1 of 2) 

 

 

  

- Page 96 -



Town of Apex Ord 20-164 (38) Proposed: 

Creekside Subdivision “No Parking” for Sunny Creek Lane & Windy Creek Lane 

one-way loops 

August 2020 (2 of 2) 

 

 

- Page 97 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,202 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  D rew H a vens ,  Tow n M ana g er  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ad mi n i s t r a t i on  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pr o ve  a men d men ts  to  the  To wn ’s  S pec i a l  E ven t  P o l i c y  to  pu t  i n t o  wr i t i n g  t he  e x i s t i ng  

po s i t i on  tha t  u se  o f  t own pro per ty  f o r  a  s p ec i a l  e ven t  a t  no  c os t  i s  c ons i de re d c o - sp ons or sh i p  o f  

th at  e ven t  un der  ou r  po l i c y  an d to  s t a te  m ore  c l ear l y  tha t  th e  T own  w i l l  no t  c o - sp ons or  po l i t i c a l  

even t s .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

R ec ent  mo re  i n t ense  s c ru t i ny  o f  ou r  S pec i a l  E ven ts  p o l i c y  lea d s  s t a f f  to  rec o mme n d to  Counc i l  

a men di ng the  p o l i c y  to  be  c le are r  re g ard i ng i n -k i n d u s e  o f  t ow n  pro per ty  a mo un t i ng t o  c o -

sp ons or s h i p ,  an d re ga rd i ng th e  c u r ren t  s t an c e  th a t  doe s  n o t  p e r mi t  sp ec i a l  e ve nt s  o f  a  p o l i t i c a l  

na tu re  to  be  c o - sp on s ored .   

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Sp ec i a l  E ven ts  P o l i c y  

 

- Page 98 -



 P a g e 1 |   

 

Town of Apex  

Special Events Guide  

Special Events are very important to the quality of life for the residents of Apex. 

These events bring a special excitement and vitality to the community. Special 

Events can produce endless benefits such as personal, social and economic growth 

and development, as well social and environmental awareness.    

When determining the appropriateness of holding a special event in conjunction 

with the Town of Apex or located on Town Property or Public Rights-of-Way the 

overall context of whether Town resources are being managed appropriately needs 

to be evaluated.  Approval of a Special Event will be determined once a completed 

application has been received, reviewed and evaluated by the appropriate Town 

staff and it has been decided that use of public space and allocation of public 

resources are appropriate. 

Please review the attached Special Events Guide for the Town of Apex, which 

includes the Special Events Policy, Application and other information that will be 

necessary to plan, coordinate and receive approval for your event. Questions 

should be directed to the Halle Cultural Arts Center (919) 249-1120.  

All applications and support documents should be directed to:  

Apex Parks Recreation & Cultural Resources Department  

Halle Cultural Arts Center  

Attn:  Special Events Permit  

237 N. Salem Street Apex, 

NC 27502 

Approved by the Apex Town Council September 19, 2017  
  

- Page 99 -



P a g e 2 | 15  

 

 15 

Special Events Guide 

Table of Contents  

Introduction   ……………………………………………………………. 1  

Table of Contents   …………............................................. 2  

Welcome Letter   ……………………………………………….……… 3  

Special Events Permit Instructions     ………………………… 4  

Special Events Policy   ……………………………………………….. 5-12  

Town of Apex Sponsorship Agreement    …………………… 13  

Helpful Links   …………………………………………………………….. 14  

Department Contact List   …………………………………………. 15  

Flow Chart of Process/Timeline   ………………………………… 15  

  

- Page 100 -



P a g e 3 | 15  

 

 

January 1, 2016  

Special Events Organizer,  

The Town of Apex has established a Special Events Policy for individuals or organizations that 

plan to organize and hold a Special Event, Town of Apex Co-Sponsored Event, Parade, Festival, 

Race/Run or other Recreational, Cultural, Entertainment, Community or Social Awareness  

Event. In order to host one of these types of events with the intent that they will be sponsored  

/ co-sponsored by the Town of Apex, utilize Town staff or resources, or be held on Town of  

Apex property or public rights-of-way within Town limits, the guidelines established in the  

Special Event Policy must be followed. Special Events sponsored / co-sponsored by the Town of 

Apex and all special events requiring the closing of public facilities or rights-of-way must be 

approved by the Apex Town Council.  

It is the intent of the Town that Special Event Permit applications will follow the schedule set 

out in the Special Events Policy. Special Event Permit Applications must be completed with all 

associated documentation included at the time the request is submitted, unless otherwise 

noted. When additional documents are requested by staff, the applicant should provide 

requested material by the deadline provided.  

All Special Event Organizers (including other Town Departments) should contact the Apex Parks, 

Recreation, and Cultural Resources Department for assistance. Contact the Special Events 

Permit Coordinator at (919) 249-1120 for more information.  

Sincerely,  

John Brown, Director  

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Department  

- Page 101 -



P a g e 4 | 15  

Instructions to Apply for a Special Event Permit  

1. Read the Special Event Permit Guide thoroughly. 

2. Complete the Town of Apex Special Events Permit Application. 

3. Provide a site map showing streets to be closed, tent placement, parade/run routes or 

other similar events or activities.  Include your site map with your permit application. 

4. If your Special Event requires other permits or approvals as indicated in the Special 

Event Permit guide, complete the necessary forms/ actions and include them with any 

applicable fees along with the Special Events Application. 

5. Return the application with a $25 non-refundable processing fee to: 

Halle Cultural Arts Center 

Attn: Special Events Permit 

237 North Salem Street 

Apex, NC 27502 

6. All applications and related forms must be submitted to the Town of Apex no less than 

60 days prior to the start of the event. 

7. Special Event Organizers applying for co-sponsorship consideration by the Town of Apex 

must have their event approved by the Apex Town Council. Co-sponsorship requests 

must be submitted by December 1 of the calendar year. The application will be 

reviewed by staff and presented to the Town Council for consideration. 

8. Once a Special Event Permit Application has been received, the application will be 

distributed to all associated departments for review.  Based on these reviews the permit 

will be:  1) approved, 2) approved with conditions or 3) denied. The final determination 

will be provided in writing to the point of contact indicated on the application. The 

payment of all fee(s), with the exception of hourly staffing costs, is required prior to 

issue of the final Special Event Permit. The processing fee is non-refundable. Examples of 

additional fees could include but are not limited to tent permitting/inspection, or 

charges to cover the cost of road closure, Town staff support, sanitary station or waste 

container set up and removal. 

All questions should be directed to the Special Events Coordinator at the Halle Cultural Arts  

Center at (919) 249-2210 or by emailing david.wood@apexnc.org with Special Events in the 

subject line.  

  

- Page 102 -



P a g e 5 | 15  

 

TOWN OF APEX SPECIAL EVENT POLICY  

1. GENERAL 

 

A) For purposes of this Policy, “Special Event” is defined as an event or festival or other 

Recreational, Cultural, Entertainment, Community or Social Awareness activity held to engage 

the community and promote tourism, showcase local talent, expose artists and performers to 

new audiences, invigorate community spirit, provide economic, health and wellness, or social 

benefits to a community or organization. Special Events may or may not be sponsored or 

cosponsored by the Town of Apex. Events such as Fairs, Carnivals, Circuses, Tent Revivals, or 

other gatherings held on private property require a Temporary Use Permit (issued by the 
Planning Department) and are not covered under the Special Event Permit requirements. 

B) All Special Events are required to submit an application for their event each year. Previously 

held Special Events and Special Events which have received Town Sponsorship must reapply 

each year that the event is held and request sponsorship from the Town if desired as there is 

not an automatic renewal. 

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS 

 
The general regulations of this subsection shall apply to all allowed special events unless otherwise 

expressly stated.  

A) Signs.  All special event signage must meet the requirements of Town of Apex Sign Ordinance 

as administered by the Planning Department.  (See Helpful Links) 

B) Conditions of Approval.  Special Events shall not violate or deviate from any applicable laws, 

rules, regulations, Town Ordinances, conditions of approval for the site or conditions noted in 

the Special Event Permit approval. 

C) Obtain all other applicable permits and approvals.  The Event Organizer must obtain all other 

required permits and approvals prior to the event. This may include but is not limited to tent 

permits, ABC permits, authorization for road closures, use of public property and/or rights-
ofway. (See Helpful Links) 

D) Evaluation Criteria.  The Town of Apex utilizes the following criteria when evaluating and 
scheduling Special Events: 

1. The nature of the event and how it can serve the Town of Apex and its residents. 

2. The dates and times during which the proposed event will occur including setup and 
breakdown time. 

3. The location(s) of the Special Event and whether the location(s) inhibit the safe flow of 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic in the Town. 

4. Whether the activities are in compliance with other applicable laws and Town ordinances. 

5. Whether the event is to benefit non-profit community service organizations. 

6. The general health, safety and welfare of the participants in/or attending the event and 
the citizens of Apex. 

7. The impact and /or cost of the event on Town support services. 

8. The frequency of the event or similar event(s). 

9. If alcohol will be served. 

- Page 103 -



P a g e 6 | 15  

3. TYPES OF SPECIAL EVENTS – PERMITS REQUIRED 

 

A) Major Special Events shall be allowed as follows: 

1. A Special Event Permit is required for any event with over 250 visitors which is held on 
Town Property or any event to be held on Public Rights-of-Way. 

2. Any event planned for Town Property where regular use by residents is impacted or 

restricted due to the event exclusive of private shelter and amphitheater rentals under 250 
visitors. 

3. Commercial events or festivals that generate profit for the private sector shall be 

permitted only if the applicant submits evidence to the Town Manager or her/his designee 

that the festival constitutes a community service. 

B) Parades / Runs / Walks shall be allowed as follows: 

1. A Special Event permit is required for any parade, run or walk. The Event Organizer is 

responsible for the cost of all Town services incurred in connection with the parade/ run/ 

or walk. The Town of Apex Police Department and EMS may require the organizer to 

provide for one or more off-duty personnel as deemed necessary. The Apex Police 

Department will determine final safety plan. If officers and/or cars and EMS services are 

deemed necessary by the Apex Police Department the Event Organizer is responsible for 

the costs incurred. 

4. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

A) Fire Safety. In compliance with the Town of Apex and North Carolina State Fire Prevention 

Code, the Apex Fire Department may require the applicant to develop a plan for provision of 

safety service, both for the participants of the event and for person(s) directly or indirectly 

affected by the event. This plan must be reviewed and approved by the Apex Fire Department 
before a permit can be issued. 

1. Emergency Action Plan.  In compliance with the North Carolina State Fire Prevention 

Code, the Apex Fire Department may require an event to develop an Emergency Action 

Plan for provision of safety services, both for the participants of the event and for persons 

directly or indirectly affected by the event. An Emergency Action Plan, or EAP, defines the 

coordination of necessary actions by the Host Organization and the responsible municipal, 

county, and State officials to provide for timely notification, warning, and evacuation in the 

event of an emergency. The EAP must be tailored to site-specific conditions as required by 

the Apex Fire Department before a permit can be issued. The deadline for submission of 

an EAP is no later than 90 days in advance of the event. The EAP outline should adhere to 

the following standard rules of order: a. General Summary Paragraph 

b. Purpose of Emergency Action Plan 

c. Assumptions of Emergency Action Plan 

d. Basic Plan 

1. Event Director Contact: Name & Number 

2. Emergency Notification Procedure 

3. Severe Weather. Every EAP must include a reference to the “30/30 Rule for 
Lightning.” 

4. Fire. A fire protection plan if the event includes activities that may present a fire 
risk. 

- Page 104 -



P a g e 7 | 15  

5. Medical Emergencies. An EMS ‘first responder’ and/or ambulance service coverage 
plan. 

6. Law Enforcement 

7. Emergency Vehicle Access. An emergency vehicle access Map into and out of the 

event area. 

8. Egress/Evacuation/Location map. A map showing the routes for egress and 

evacuation which are integral to the production of the event, a parking plan and a 
concession placement map. 

e. Event Emergency Contact Information (Primary, Secondary, Police, Fire and Rescue). 

f. Based on your event plan and components, Town of Apex Fire Department may 
require an inspection of your event site before and/or during the event. 

B) Sanitation and Recycling. The Event Organizer is responsible for making arrangements for 

litter and debris cleanup of the special event site both during and after the event. The Event 

Organizer is responsible for all costs should the Town be required to clean up following the 

event. 

1. The Town of Apex encourages recycling at all events. 

2. The Event Organizer should understand the following: 

a. The Event Organizer is responsible for arranging for the proper disposal of grease and 
other similar waste with a private service or agency in advance of the event. 

b. The Event Organizer will post an additional refundable clean-up deposit if the event is 

approved. 

c. Improper disposal or spills may be classified as a hazardous waste and result in fines in 

accordance with Chapter 2703.3 of the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code. 

C) Insurance & Liability. Event Organizers shall assume all risks incident to or in connection with 

the permitted activity and shall be solely responsible for damage or injury, of whatever kind or 

nature, to person or property, directly or indirectly arising out of or in connection with the 

permitted activity or the conduct of the Organizer’s operation. The Event Organizer shall 

indemnify, defend and save the Town harmless from any penalties for violation of law, 

ordinance, or regulation affecting its activity and from any and all claims or suits for damages 

or losses (including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and other litigation expenses) for 

personal injury and for property damage directly or indirectly arising out of or in connection 

with the permitted activity or conduct of its operation or resulting from the negligence or 

intentional acts or omissions of the Event Organizer or its officers, agents, volunteers and 
employees. 

1) The Event Organizer should understand the following: 

a. If required by the Town’s Safety and Risk Manager, the Event Organizer must furnish a 

fully paid liability damage insurance policy procured from a company licensed to do 

business in North Carolina. All event organizers with co-sponsored status must 

provide for this requirement. This policy must protect the Town of Apex, its officers, 

officials, employees and agents from any and all claims for damages to property 

and/or bodily injury which may result from or in connection with any of the operations 
carried on by the organizer of the Special Event. 

b. The Town of Apex must also be named as an additional insured. The Town of Apex 

must receive a copy of insurance policy included with the Event application. Insurance 

requirements are as follows: A minimum of $1,000,000 for personal injury per person, 

$1,000,000 for personal injury for aggregate liability and $1,000,000 for property 

- Page 105 -



P a g e 8 | 15  

damage each occurrence, or certificates of insurance acceptable to the Town’s Safety 

and Risk Manager is/are required.  

D) Electricity. Any and all electrical requirements beyond those that already exist at the proposed 

event location must be provided for by a licensed electrician contracted by the Event 

Organizer. Any and all additional electrical work installed at the proposed event location must 

be permitted, inspected and approved by the Town of Apex. Specific requirements for the use 

of electricity must be submitted and approved at the time of the application for a special event 

permit. Power provided by extension cords from a building shall not pass through doorways or 

windows but shall be supplied by an exterior outlet, which is protected by a Ground Fault 

Circuit Interrupter (GFCI). Extension cords shall be grounded and shall not be placed over 

walking surfaces. 

E) Toilets. The Event Organizer is responsible to provide adequate on-site toilets to facilitate the 
specific needs of their event. 

1) Events with co-sponsorship agreements with Town of Apex are not exempt from this 

requirement and are responsible for the costs incurred. 

2) The number of toilets is determined by the type and size of event in consultation with the 
Town of Apex. 

3) Handicapped accessible toilets are required for all special events requiring portable toilets. 

4) All portable toilets must be maintained daily if contracted for a multiple day event. 

5) The planned use of Town of Apex restroom facilities as sole or primary restrooms for the 

event may require a fee for use. 

F) Noise. Permission to include music or amplified sound, including megaphones, as part of a 

special event may be given, provided that compliance with the Town’s noise ordinance is 

assured. Event Organizers should be sensitive to local businesses and residences when 

preparing sound equipment for special events. (see Appendix A) 

1) The Town reserves the right to limit the sound amplification equipment so that it will not 
unreasonably disturb non-participating persons around the event. 

2) Complaints of loud, disturbing, or unnecessary noise in violation of the Noise Ordinance 

can result in the immediate revocation of the permit by the Town of Apex Police 

Department. 

G) Food Sales. The Event Organizer is responsible for arranging for all food permits and approvals 

a minimum of (4) four weeks prior to the event, from the Wake County Health Department. 

1) The Event Organizer should understand the following: 

a. All rules and regulations regarding any food preparation and service as established by 
the Wake County Environmental Health Department must be followed. 

b. A fee may be required per booth per event. 

c. A Fire Inspection is required to make sure all fire safety equipment is in place. 

d. Inspectors have the right to close booths operating outside of health regulations. 

e. All permits must be clearly displayed. 

f. No glass bottles are allowed on Town property. 

g. All clean-up including grease removal is the responsibility of the Event Organizer. 

H) Vending. The Event Organizer is responsible for procuring vendors for the event. Vendors 

approved by the organizer for the special event shall be required to secure applicable Town of 

Apex Licenses for the time period of the event.  If vendors are part of the Town Council 

- Page 106 -



P a g e 9 | 15  

approved “special event”, the event coordinator is responsible for any permits required by 
vendors and Town of Apex Licenses would not be required in those cases. 

I) Alcohol. Alcoholic beverages are prohibited on Town property without special permission from 

the Apex Town Council or their designee. Such use may be authorized only when the Town of 

Apex determines that such use will not materially endanger the public safety and will not 

unreasonably disrupt surrounding property owners and when the Chief of Police or the Chief’s 

designee has reviewed and approved the application and permit, and when the applicant 
establishes to the Town: 

1) It is a not-for-profit entity 

2) Any license for the sale or distribution required by the Alcoholic Beverage Commission has 

been obtained and; 

3) The outdoor special event is within the Central Business District. 

4) The permit will specify whether malt beverages or wine are permitted at an outdoor 

special event and, if so, what conditions are required. 

J) Tents, Stages, Accessories, etc.  Temporary structures, containers or storage tanks required for 

the event may require a safety inspection by the Apex Fire Marshal. The Town of Apex defines 

and classifies any structure, enclosure, or shelter constructed of canvas or pliable material 

supported in any manner as a tent. Temporary structures such as decks, platforms, stages and 

kiosks will in most cases require a permit. 

1) Tents are limited to 120 square feet. 

2) All tents are required to have flame retardant certification and this must be verified by the 
Town. The Event Organizer must provide the following: 

a. A copy of flame retardant certification (This should be attached to the tent, and 
inspector will check and approve in the field) 

b. A site plan showing the location of the tents 

c. A description of the activity(s) to be conducted under the tent(s) 

d. A method of providing adequate anchorage against collapse from winds or other loads. 

e. No tents may be staked into asphalt. 

f. All tents must be secured or weighted down at all corners. 

g. No tent may be erected in front of a building used as a place of public assembly, within 

fifteen (15) feet of a fire hydrant, or in any way obstructing any building exit or 
doorway. 

h. Tents may not block streets such that Pubic Safety deems the layout / location 
dangerous or in appropriate for public safety. 

i. All tents may be inspected and approved before occupancy or use by the public 

j. No enclosing side walls are present, 

k. At least one UL rate 2A: 10BC extinguisher shall be provided for all tents where there is 

cooking. Additional extinguishers may be required after the inspection. 

3) LP Gas use shall be restricted to cylinders no larger than 60 gallons water capacity. 

Cylinders shall be adequately secured to prevent over turning. Cylinders may not be 

- Page 107 -



P a g e 10 | 15  

secured to items such as fire hydrants, temporary electric poles or barricades. Cylinders 

may be secured to the grill, a tent post, a signpost or permanent electric pole.  

K) Town of Apex Use Fees.  Special Event Use Fees may be charged for the use of Town Parks, 
Streets, Lanes, Sidewalks, Greenways, Multi-Use Paths, Personnel or other Town facilities. 

1) Town Parks. Because of heavy use and demand the Town does not rent or close entire 

parks for special events. In rare cases, approved by the Director of Parks, Recreation, and 

Cultural Resources, the Town may close a portion or specific area within a park provided it 

does not disrupt the day to day operation or use by Apex citizens.  A rental fee may be 

charged to cover costs associated with the use of Town facilities.  The rental fee(s) for use 

of Town park facilities shall be based on residency and/or the home location of the 

organization which is holding the event. Preference will always be given to organizations 

which are based in Apex, consideration as to whether the host organization is a 501(c) 3 

not-for-profit, and whether or not the event is will impact the day to day operation of the 
park and programs offered by the Town of Apex. 

2) Town of Apex Vehicle and Pedestrian Rights-of-Way. Blocking of all or a portion of a 

Rightof-Way will require a traffic control plan by the Apex Police Department. The Event 

Organizer must provide a high quality 8.5” X 11” map of the area of the festival and 

proposed street closings The Event Organizer is responsible for all charges and rental fees 

incurred by the use of traffic control devices used for street/sidewalk closings.  Cones, 

barricades, etc may be rented by area companies that carry such equipment and must be 

approved by Apex Police Department. For emergency purposes barricades shall not be 

blocked in any manner. Vehicles obstructing barricades or fire lanes will be cited for a 

violation of the fire or parking code and may be towed and stored at the owner’s expense. 
a. Procedures for Street Closure 

1. Complete the temporary street closure section of the special events application 
which must contain a description, length, purpose, date and time of the closure. 

2. Submit a high quality 8.5” x 11” map of the proposed closure and identify if any of 

the streets requested for closure are NCDOT maintained roads. Indicated number 

and location of proposed barricades.  Include directions for vendor set-up/ drop off 
and timeframes where limited vehicular access will be allowed. 

3. The Apex Police Department reviews and/or develops a traffic control plan for the 
closure. 

4. The Apex Police Department will approve or disapprove the street closure and 

notify all other applicable departments as to the decision. In some cases, meetings 
will be held among these parties prior to the permit approval. 

5. Events such as Festivals, Walks, Runs, Races and any similar activities held on Town-

owned property or on public rights-of-way within the Town require a traffic control 
plan, in coordination with Apex Police Department. 

6. Closings require the use of traffic control devices as set forth in the MANUAL ON 
UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES. 

b. Sidewalks, Greenways and Multi-Use Paths.  Sidewalks, Greenways and Multi-Use 

paths are to be used for public refuge and pedestrian traffic only and must remain 

clear and unobstructed in case of emergency (unless the closure permit specifically 
states that the sidewalk, greenway or multi-use path is to be closed.) 

- Page 108 -



P a g e 11 | 15  

c. NCDOT Roadways.  Any North Carolina Department of Transportation State Highway 
or road must receive permission to be closed by NCDOT. 

3) Personnel.  Special Events which requires manpower to either be pulled away from Town 

of Apex daily job tasks or for additional staff to be scheduled to cover workloads will be 
charged by Departments which determine that staff needs to allocated. 

4) Town Facilities.  Special events where public buildings or facilities are designated to 

accommodate all or a majority of needed restroom or other staging or event activities 

must have approval from the Director of the appropriate department.  A fee may be 

charged based on the impact to the facilities programs and resources. 

L) Public Notification. Event Organizer must provide public notification to all adjacent businesses 

and residents of the date and time of the event with a description of the roads to be closed a 

minimum thirty (30) days before the event. A copy of the notification must be submitted to the 

Town of Apex. 

1) Event Organizers planning events to be held in Downtown Apex need to have approval by 
the Apex Downtown Business Association prior to submitting an application. 

2) Event Organizers planning events to be held in Town Parks or on Public Greenways need 

approval by the Director or his designee prior to submitting the application for use of Town 

Park Facilities. 

5. CO-SPONSORED EVENTS 

 

The Town of Apex has acted as a co-sponsor for various Special Events such as Peak Fest and Christmas 

Parade. Much time and planning in addition to financial resources, goes into these events. Through co-

sponsorship, the Town may provide: staff support, logistical support, equipment usage, technical 

assistance and other in-kind support. For the purposes of this policy, the use of Town property without 

compensation is co-sponsorship. While recognizing that these events add to the quality of life in the 

community, help to bring the community together, and foster economic growth the Town also must be 

very careful in which events it chooses to co-sponsor. Because of the number of requests and demands 

placed on Town Departments during these events, it is impossible to co-sponsor every event where a 

request is made. Staff time, availability of equipment, the nature of the event, and several other factors 

are taken into account on deciding whether or not to co-sponsor an event.  

As much as possible, the Town tries to plan for events on an annual basis. Therefore, if you desire for 

your event to be co-sponsored with the Town of Apex your application must be received by December 

1st, following the criteria set forth in the festivals and special events policy. These co-sponsored events 

are submitted for approval each year.  

A) Criteria for Co-Sponsorship.  The following criteria are used when determining co-sponsored 

Events: 

1) The requesting applicant must represent a non-profit organization as defined by state or 
federal tax law. 

2) Priority will be given to Apex based groups / chapters / organizations. 

3) The proposed event is community focused and / or recreational in nature. 

4) The proposed event is not political in nature. 

- Page 109 -



P a g e 12 | 15  

5) The proposed event is open to the general public. 

6) The proposed event has been planned to facilitate a positive impact to the community. 

7) Eligibility for co-sponsorship status is based on successful completion and submittal of 

application, agreements, and letters of petition and/or contracts by December 1st of the 

calendar year prior to that the event is scheduled. 

B) Conditions of Co-Sponsorship.  The Event Organizer should understand and agree to the 
following if requested: 

1) All requests for sponsorship or co-sponsorship must be approved by the Apex Town 

Council. Requests for co-sponsorship must be received by December 1st of the calendar 
year prior to that the event is scheduled. 

2) Applicant will provide to the Town a clear and detailed record of the event’s requested 
needs from the Town at the time of application for co-sponsorship status. 

3) Where applicable, the applicant shall provide at no cost, one booth space (or the 

equivalent thereof), at a mutually agreeable location at the event for the use by the Town 
of Apex as determined by the Town. 

4) Group or organization must include in all publicity, including print, video, television and 

radio, that the event is co-sponsored by the Town of Apex. Any expense associated with 

this recognition shall be borne by the applicant and approved at least 30 day in advance by 

the Town. 

5) The Town of Apex will be given name, logo and banner representation in tandem with the 

co-sponsors name, logo and banner representation. Any expense associated with that 
representation shall be borne by the applicant. 

6) Applicant will provide clear spoken recognition of the Town of Apex and its contribution at 

any events or functions utilizing live entertainment or speakers. Any expense associated 

with that representation shall be borne by the applicant. 

7) Applicant will provide for the Town of Apex, a wrap up package consisting of copies of all 

media coverage including, radio, print and television ads and feature stories that relate to 

the event. Any expense associated with that representation shall be borne by the 
applicant. 

  

- Page 110 -



P a g e 13 | 15  

SPECIAL EVENTS SPONSOR/ CO-SPONSOR AGREEMENT  

We, _________________________________________________ do hereby agree to the following conditions in 

order to be considered for sponsorship or co-sponsorship by the Town of Apex.    

1. Group or organization must be recreational in nature or principle, or provide tangible benefit to the 

community. 
2. Group or organization must be a non-profit group as defined by N.C. State Law and be accountable for all 

income and expenditures to the Town of Apex. Provide a detailed financial statement to the Town annually or 

after completion of the event. Any or all financial records are subject to audit by Town of Apex. 
3. Group or organization must submit by December 1st of the calendar year prior to your event is scheduled an 

event application, which includes the following: a written plan for the event together including a narrative 

description;  a budget; a marketing plan; a logistics plan. 
4. Group or organization’s activities must be open to the general public. 
5. Group or organization must include in ALL PUBLICITY, including print, video, television and radio, that the 

activity is co-sponsored by the Town of Apex with the Town receiving significant name, logo and banner 

representation in tandem with the co-sponsors name, logo and banner representation. 
6. No activities/events may be held at a facility, which – would result in monetary gain for an individual. 
7. NO ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES will be allowed at any outdoor event, without prior approval and all necessary 

permits. 
8. Partisan Political events or activities will not be permitted during a town sponsored or co-sponsored event. If 

political figures are invited to participate, it must be clearly understood that it is because of the office they now 

hold and not because of the office for which they are seeking election or re-election. 
9. Group or organization must provide a $1,000,000 certificate of insurance which specifically lists the Town of 

Apex as an additional insured. 
10. Group or organization hereby assumes all risks incident to or in connection with the permitted activity and shall 

be solely responsible for damage or injury, of whatever kind or nature, to person or property, directly or 

indirectly arising out of or in connection with the permitted activity or the conduct of the Permittee’s 

operation. Event Organizer hereby expressly agrees to indemnify, defend and save the Town harmless from any 

penalties for violation of law, ordinance, or regulation affecting its activity and from any and all claims or suits 

for damages or losses (including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and other litigation expenses) for personal 

injury and for property damage directly or indirectly arising out of or in connection with the permitted activity 

or conduct of its operation or resulting from the negligence or intentional acts or omissions of Permittee or its 

officers, agents and employees. 
11. Group or organization must provide information and/or perform such other duties as may be required by the 

Town of Apex 
12. The Event Organizer will provide a booth space (or equivalent thereof), at a mutually agreeable location at the 

event, for the use of Town of Apex free of cost. Any cost associated with this shall be borne by the applicant. 
13. Applicant will provide clear spoken recognition of the Town of Apex and its contribution at any events or 

functions utilizing live entertainment or speakers. Any cost associated with this shall be borne by the applicant. 
14. The Event Organizer will provide for The Town of Apex a wrap up package of copies of all media coverage 

including, radio, print and television ads and feature stories that relate to the event. Any cost associated with 

this shall be borne by the applicant.  
_________________________________________________________  

Special Event Organizer  
Date___________________________  

__________________________________________________________  Date___________________________  
President of Group/Organization   

Address________________________________________ City___________________  State________     Zip_____________  

Primary Phone__________________________  Email Address___________________________________________________  

- Page 111 -



P a g e 14 | 15  

ACCEPTED: __________________________________________________ Date ___________________________ Town of 

Apex  

HELPFUL LINKS  

 

Apex Sign Ordinance   http://www.apexnc.org/documentcenter/view/567   

Wake County Permits http://www.wakegov.com/food/festivals/Pages/tfe.aspx   

Apex Code of Ordinances  https://library.municode.com/nc/apex/codes/code_of_ordinances  

INTERNAL CONTACT LIST  

 

Please use the following contact list to communicate questions, verify needs for submission 

when the applicant is in a pre-application status or during the review process for specific 

questions related to the Special Event Permit Process and requirements for set department.   

Parks Recreation and Cultural Resources:   David Wood, Halle Cultural Arts Center Mgr. (919) 

249-1120 

Police Department:  

Fire Department:  

Captain Ann Stephens 
(919) 249-3456  

Keith McGee, Fire Chief  

(919) 362-4001 

- Page 112 -

http://www.apexnc.org/documentcenter/view/567
http://www.apexnc.org/documentcenter/view/567
http://www.wakegov.com/food/festivals/Pages/tfe.aspx
http://www.wakegov.com/food/festivals/Pages/tfe.aspx
https://library.municode.com/nc/apex/codes/code_of_ordinances
https://library.municode.com/nc/apex/codes/code_of_ordinances


 P a g e    
 1 5  | 1 5 

Requesting Sponsorship  
or Co-Sponsorship by  
the Town of Apex?   YES  
Request must be  
submitted by December  
1 st  prior to calendar  
year of event   

Non Co - Sponsored  
Applications must be  

received a minimum of    60 
days prior  to the event.   

APPROVED   DENIED   

DENIED   

  
  

    

Submit Request for Review   

Process Ends / Resubmit as  
non-sponsored event   

Staff reviews request,  
holds project meeting, and  

provides comments   

Staff Coordinator compiles  
comments.  Special Event  

Sub-Committee makes  
recommendation   

Applicant is notified in  
writing of concerns which  

must be addressed    

Applicant is notified in  
writing (estimated fees,  

conditions and/or  
comments are provided)   

Applicant has 2 weeks to  
address concerns &  

resubmit application   

Official approval is sent to  
applicant   

Staff review is  
completed. (All fees  

owed or refunds due are  
paid within 2 weeks of  

event date)    

Event is held as approved   

Applicant has 2 weeks to  
address comments, sign  
agreement, and remit  

payment    

Submit  Request  for Review   

Staff reviews proposal,  
holds project meeting, and  

provides comments   

Staff Coordinator compiles  
comments    

SPECIAL EVENTS APPLICATION   is submitted by  

the organizer per the appropriate deadlines.   

Non-refundable application fee is paid.   

Staff presents request to  
Town Council    

- Page 113 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Jo se  M ar t i nez ,  P W& T  D i rec to r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Pub l i c  Work s  an d T r an sp or t a t i on  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  ap pr o ve  a  Coo per a t i ve  Pu rc h as i ng Ag re e men t  be t we en th e  To wn an d Wa ke  Coun t y  

c onc ern i ng  D i s as te r  Debr i s  Mon i to r i n g Se r v i c es  an d  t o  a ppr o ve  re l a ted  C oo per a t i ve  Pu rc h a s i ng 

Ag r ee men t  w i th  HDR  En g i neer i n g ,  I nc .  o f  t he  Car o l i na s  an d  au thor i ze  t he  To wn  Man a ger  t o 

exec u te  b o th  a gree m ent s .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

We a the r  e ven ts  suc h  as  t o rn ad oe s ,  hu r r i c a nes ,  an d i c e  s t o r ms  c an  gener a te  a  s i gn i f i c an t  

a moun t  o f  debr i s .  I f  an  even t  i s  l a r ge  e nou gh ,  th e  Fe dera l  E mer genc y  M an a ge men t  Ag e nc y  

(“ F E M A” )  w i l l  i s sue  a  f eder a l  d i s as te r  dec la r at i o n  wh i c h  make s  l o c a l  g o vern men ts  i n  th e  

af fec ted  are a e l i g i b l e  fo r  fe der a l  a s s i s t an c e .   I n  an  e f fo r t  to  en su re  th at  t ax p ayer  fu nds  a re  

spen t  a ppr opr i a te ly  d u r i ng d ebr i s  c le anup even t s ,  F EM A n ow  req u i re s  th a t  an  i nd epen den t  par t y  

mon i to r  th e  ac t i v i t i e s  o f  the  de br i s  c o l lec t i on  c o nt r ac to r s .    The  c os t s  a s s oc i a te d w i th  the  

mon i to r i n g s e r v i c es  a r e  e l i g i b le  f o r  fe dera l  r e i mbur s e men t .  

 

The  c o mp e t i t i ve  n atu r e  o f  the  b i d d i ng  p r oc ess  f o r  mo n i to r i n g se r v i c es  i s  one  f ac to r  t h at  F EM A 

c ons i d e r s  when  d ec i d i ng w he the r  to  re i mbu r se  ap p l i c an t s  fo r  d i s as te r - r e l a te d ex pen se s .   I n  ear l y  

2015 ,  Ap ex  an d o the r  loc a l  g o vern men ts  ex pres se d i n t e res t  i n  wo rk i ng w i th  Wa ke  Co un ty  t o  ge t  

p rep os i t i one d c o nt r a c ts  i n  p l ac e  f o r  debr i s  mo n i to r i n g se r v i c es .   I n  re sponse ,  the  C oun ty  i s sue d 

a  R e ques t  f o r  Qua l i f i c at i o ns  (“R F Q ” )  fo r  d i s as te r  de br i s  mon i to r i n g se r v i c es  i n  2015 .   Th e  R F Q 

na me d a l l  t w e l ve  i nc orp ora te d mun i c i pa l i t i e s  loc a te d i n  Wa ke  C oun ty  an d ma d e pr o v i s i ons  fo r  

the m to  u t i l i ze  th e  re s u l t i n g  c o nt r ac ts  t h rou gh  par t i c i pa t i on  i n  a  Coo per a t i ve  Pu rc h a s i ng 

Ag r ee men t  (“ C P A” ) .  

 

Th ree  ven d or s  sub mi t t ed p ro po s a l s  fo r  c on s i de r at i o n  b y  an  e va lu at i o n  c o m mi t tee  ( i nc l ud i ng 

Ap e x  s ta f f )  wh i c h  sc o red the m on  f ac to r s  s uc h  as  fa mi l i a r i t y  w i th  F EM A re gu la t i on s ,  e x per i enc ed  

s t a f f ,  mo n i t o r i ng e xp e r i enc e ,  h ou r l y  r a tes ,  e tc .   Af t e r  e va lua t i n g t he  p r op os a l s ,  the  c o m mi t tee  

se lec te d HDR  En g i nee r i ng ,  I nc .  o f  th e  C a ro l i nas  as  the  p r i mar y  p r o v i de r  an d Te t r a  Tec h ,  a s  the  

sec on d ary  p r o v i de r .   

 

- Page 114 -



At  th i s  t i me  the  Town i s  seek i ng to  ex tend the  c u r ren t  CP As  w i th  Wake  County  and HDR .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Coo per a t i ve  Pu rc h a s i ng Ag ree men t  be t we en To wn o f  Ap ex  an d Wa ke  Cou nt y  

  Coo per a t i ve  Pu rc h a s i ng Ag ree men t  be t we en To wn o f  Ap ex  an d HDR   

 

- Page 115 -



COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 

The Town of Apex, North Carolina Agrees to  

Accept Wake County’s Contract Term & Agreements Regarding  

 

Disaster Debris Monitoring Services 
 

 

The Town of Apex, NC (“Town”) hereby agrees to retain HDR Engineering, Inc. of the Carolinas (HDR), 

to perform disaster debris monitoring services and related services on behalf of the Town based on the 

executed and agreed upon contractual arrangements, terms, and conditions that exist between HDR 

Engineering, Inc. of the Carolinas (HDR), and Wake County, NC for Disaster Debris Monitoring Services 

dated July 13, 2020 (Contract No. 12624). 

 

Any contract modifications including but not limited to change of scope, price schedule, or term without 

the written acceptance and execution of a Contract Amendment by Wake County and HDR, will be cause 

to nullify this Agreement. 

 

An executed copy of this Agreement shall be either sent via email to john.roberson@wakegov.com or sent 

via USPS mail to: 

 

Wake County Solid Waste Management Division 

Attn:  John Roberson, Director 

P.O. Box 550 – Room 747 

Raleigh, NC  27602-0550 

 

 

 

Acknowledge the Town’s acceptance of Wake County contract terms and conditions by having an 

authorized representative of the Town sign below. 

 

 

APPROVED BY THE TOWN OF  

APEX, NORTH CAROLINA: 
APPROVED BY WAKE COUNTY: 

 

 
Signature:  ____________________________ 

 

 
Signature: ___________________________ 
                  

 
Name:       ____________________________ 

 
Name:      

 
Title:       ____________________________ 

 
Title:      

 
Date:       ____________________________ 

 
Date:       

 

ATTACHMENT:  Exhibit A: Wake County Contract No. 12624 for Disaster Debris Monitoring Services 

- Page 116 -

mailto:john.roberson@wakegov.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 

Disaster Debris Monitoring Services 

WAKE COUNTY CONTRACT No. 12624 

 

EXHIBIT A 

- Page 117 -



- Page 118 -

sgarehan
Typewritten Text
2020 COOPERATIVE PURCHASE AGREEMENT DISASTER DEBRIS MONITORING - EXHIBIT A



- Page 119 -



- Page 120 -



- Page 121 -



\ 

WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

Request for Qualifications 
For 

Disaster Debris Monitoring Services 

.........--.... 
WAKE 
COUNTY 
NORTH CAROL! NA 

PROPOSAL NUMBER# 15-039 

Proposal Deadline May 20, 2015 

Before 2:00 pm ET 

- Page 122 -



I. Introduction 

DATE: Aprill6, 2015 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
FOR 

DISASTER DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES 

The County's Solid Waste Management Division intends to enter into an agreement with a 
qualified firm to provide consulting services in preparation for natural disasters or other debris 
generating events. These services include, at no additional cost to the COUNTY, participation in 
annual workshops or planning meetings with COUNTY Representatives to establish or review 
applicable policies and procedures associated with disaster debris management and monitoring 
and provide the COUNTY with a half day training session on the most current FEMA 325 Public 
Assistance Debris Management Guide, FEMA 327, Public Assistance Debris Monitoring Guide, 
resent FEMA Fact Sheets , policy guides and FHW A Emergency Relief Program changes. 

Wake County is located in the central region of North Carolina. The population of Wake County 
is approximately 1 ,000,000. The County consists of 857 square miles of area with 300,000 
parcels of land. 

There are twelve ( 12) incorporated municipalities within Wake County. They include: Apex. 
Cary. Fuquay-Varina. Gamer. Holly Springs, Knightdale. Morrisville. Raleigh. Rolesville, \\'ake 
Forest. Wendell. and Zebulon. Any or all of the incorporated municipalities may participate in 
the tcrn1s and conditions of the established contract. 

It is the intent of Wake County to allow local governments and other governmental agencies 
within its jurisdictional boundaries to utilize this contract by entering into a Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement. The Cooperative Purchasing Agreement stipulates that any modifications 
or changes to this document and resulting contract(s) including but not limited to Consultant 
requirements, scope, or price be submitted to Wake County in writing for acceptance and 
approval as originator of the contract. 

The resulting contract term will be for five (5) years with the option to extend the contract for 
one (1) six (6) month period upon mutual agreement of both parties. All work set forth in the 
Scope of Work must be approved by personnel authorized by the County Manager to act as the 
"County Debris Manager" or the County Debris Manager's authorized representative. 

Copies of the RFQ forms may be obtained by contacting Wake County Procurement Services, 
919-856-6120 or on the Wake County Government website at www.wakegov.com. Click on 
Purchasing, and then click on New RFP's and Bids. 

When responding to this RFQ, please follow all instructions carefully. Please submit proposal 
contents according to the outline specified and submit documents according to the instructions in 
Section II, C, and Proposal Submittal Requirements. Failure to follow these instructions may be 

- Page 123 -



considered a non-responsive proposal and may result in immediate elimination from further 
consideration. 

The County reserves the right to request additional infonnation from the proposers and to reject any and 
all proposals. The County reserves the right to judgmentally select the successful bidder and agreement 
that best meets the needs of the County. 

The County reserves the right to reject any or all proposals if it determines that select proposals are not 
responsive to the RFQ. The County reserves the right to reconsider any proposal submitted at any 
phase of the procurement. It also reserves the right to meet with select Proposers at any time to gather 
additional information. 

The County will receive proposals at the time and place noted in this document. At that point, the 
County will close the receipt of proposals and begin the evaluation process. The only information that 
will be released will be the names of the respondent(s). No other information will be disclosed, except 
as required by the evaluation process, until a contract is awarded. 

Any interlineations, alterations or erasures must be initialized by the signer of the proposal. 

Negligence or error on the part of any Consultant in preparing its proposal confers no right of 
withdrawal or modification of their response after time has been called. Sureties and principals 
are advised that the COUNTY cannot give consideration to any "plea of error" in preparation of 
the bid, except in accordance with N .C.G.S. 143-129. 

II. General Requirements 

A. Proposal Contact 

This RFQ and any subsequent action taken as a result there of, are issued by Wake County 
Procurement Services on behalf of the County. Proposal responses should be directed 
specifically, as outlined herein. In regards to this RFQ and subsequent procurement process, 
vendors shall make NO CONTACTS, either written or verbal, with any Wake County 
employee, staff member, or Board of Commissioner members during the period beginning 
with the issuance of this document through approval of award unless authorized by the 
proposal contact. Any attempt by a Proposer to contact or influence a member or members of 
the aforemelltioned may result in the immediate disqualification of tlze Proposer from award 
for items or services 011 tlzis RFQ. 

B. Proposal Format 

Proposers are required to prepare their proposals in accordance with the instructions outlined 
in this part and elsewhere in this RFQ. Each Proposer is required to submit its proposal in a 
sealed package. with Proposer's name. RFO number. and proposal closing time/date marked 
clearlv on the proposal submission. 

Provide one ( 1) original and eight (8) copies of complete proposal packages and one digital 
version on CD in a commonly accepted computer format such as Portable Document Format 
(.pdf). The proposal packages shall be arranged and presented as stipulated in Section II, C. 
Proposal packages are to be delivered to: 

- Page 124 -



Wake County Finance/Procurement Services 
Wake County Justice Center, 2nd Floor, Room 2900 
301 S. McDowell Street 
Raleigh, NC, 27601 
Attn: Tom Wester 

The County must receive proposals BEFORE 2:00pm, May 20,2015. The time of receipt 
shall be determined by the time clock in the Wake County Procurement Services office. The 
County will not be held responsible for the failure of any mail or delivery service to deliver a 
proposal response prior to the stated proposal due date and time. It is solely the Proposer's 
responsibility to: (1) Ascertain that they have all required and necessary information, 
documents and addenda, prior to submitting a response; (2) ensure that the response is 
received at the correct location and time. Late responses, regardless of delivery means, will 
not be accepted. No fax or cmailed responses will be accepted or considered. 

C. Proposal Submission Requirements 

Submittals shall be made on 8 l/2" x II" paper, side bound with Table of Contents and 
reference tabs for key sections. The package submitted shall not exceed twenty-five (25) 
sheets (50 pages double-sided). Front/back covers, Table of Contents and Tab pages are 
excluded from these totals. The proposal must be divided into twelve tabbed sections with 
references to all parts of this Request for Qualifications (RFQ) done on a section 
number/paragraph number/letter basis. The ten sections shall be named: 

Complete responses to each of the following categories are required. All submittals must 
contain the following information: 

1. Introduction- Executive Summary and Company Information 

a. Executive Summary 

The purpose of the Introduction is to provide information about the proposing 
Consultant, as well as the Consultant's approach to this type of contract. 
Specifically, the executive summary should be written in non-technical language 
that can be clearly understood by non-technical County officials. The section 
should be concise and should present only information that is relevant to this 
contract. 

Each respondent shall provide the following company information: 

b. Consultant's name and business address, including telephone and fax number, 
email address, website address. 

c. The type of Consultant (individual, partnership, corporation, etc.) and list the 
names of all partners, principals, etc. 

d. Year established. Include former Consultant name(s) and year(s) established, 
if applicable. 

- Page 125 -



e. The name, title, address and telephone number of the Consultant's primary 
contact for this contract. The person identified must be empowered to make 
binding commitments for the Consultant and its subcontractors. 

f. A copy of the most recently audited financial statement. 

2. Technical Approach 

Provide a general discussion of the proposmg Consultant's technical project 
approach to include startup procedures/requirements, debris estimate 
methodology, analysis of debris recovery operations and management of the 
debris recovery contractors, billing/invoices reporting procedures to FEMA, 
FHW A under MAP 21 legislation, and the County. 

3. Training and Safety: 

Provide a copy of Consultant's internal training program. Provide under separate 
cover the Consultant's Debris Removal and DMS Monitors' training manual and 
Operations Plan to include Project Health and Safety Plans for all operations. 

4. Qualifications of Consultant 

a. Provide evidence of satisfactory completion of disaster debris monitoring in 
the past ten (I 0) years at similar jurisdictions by providing the: 

( 1) Type of disaster: hurricane, tropical stonn, tornado, flood, etc .. . . 

(2) Type of jurisdiction: city, county, district, or combination Collection and 
OMS debris monitoring assignments- numbers of monitors deployed 

(3) Scope, project budget, and operational duration 

(4) FEMAIFHWA reimbursements actions and issue resolution 

(5) Sub-consultant(s)fsubcontractors that are proposed for this project 

5. Claims 

Ten ( 1 0) year claims/litigation history, claims resolution, and status of the claims. 

6. References 

Provide at least five (5) references for which the Consultant has perfonned 
services within the past ten ( 1 0) years that are similar to the requirements in the 
Scope of Services. Three of the references shall be from government entities for 
debris monitoring experience involving a minimum of 1,000,000 cubic years of 
debris. Provide the reference contact name, address, email address, telephone 
number along with date and amount of the contract. 

- Page 126 -



7. Qualifications of Staff 

Key project staff (management staff including, but not limited to: Debris Removal 
Operations project manager, collection and disposal operations field supervisors, 
clerical/data supervisor etc.) must be full-time employees of the proposing 
Consultant and have the following: 

a. Experience demonstrating current capacity and current expertise in debris 
removal, solid waste and hazardous waste management and disposal. Each 
proposed key project staff person must demonstrate experience managing 
debris monitoring for at least three (3) government entities involving a 
minimum of I ,000,000 cubic yards of debris for each client. 

b. Documented knowledge and experience of Federal, State and Local 
emergency agencies, state and federal programs, funding sources and 
reimbursement processes. 

c. Experience with special disaster recovery program management services 
including private property/right-of-entry (ROE) work, hauler invoice 
reconciliation, NRCS Emergency Watershed Protection Program. 

8. Other Requirements 

a. Provide a time line detailing the pre-event planning (based on hours/days after 
a\vard). 

b. Provide a conceptual Operations Plan and Budget responding to a Task Order 
issued after a disaster declaration with an estimated I ,000,000 cubic yards of 
debris in Wake County. Assume the Task Order(s) would specify the 
following: 

1. Emergency debris clearance monitoring of fifteen ( 15) contractor debris 
clearing crews for seven (7) ten (I 0) hour days followed by; 

n. Debris removal monitoring of forty ( 40) contractor debris removal crews 
based on an average load of 38 CY s /load and 10 loads /day 

m. OMS monitoring at four (4) sites, 

IV. Monitoring of 5,000 hazardous trees 

v. Monitoring of 15,000 hazardous limbs one (I) per tree 

vi. Monitoring of 800 hazardous stumps 

vii. Clerical staff to support data entry of emergency clearance time and 
equipment tickets, loading site tickets, final disposal load tickets, 

- Page 127 -



assimilation of monitors' daily documents and summary reports, and 
contractor invoice reconciliation 

viii. GIS support to provide debris removal contractors' physical progress on 
the project, physical location (origin) of hazardous tree, limb, and stumps 
geocoded 

ix. List any resources and budget required to provide monitoring services to 
complete the project. 

9. Exceptions 

List any exceptions/deviations to the RFQ specifications on a separate page. 

I 0. Project Management 

Consultants must provide a proposed organizational chart for serv1ces to be 
provided to the County. This must include: 

(a) Resumes of key professional staff anticipated to work on Wake 
County projects. 

(b) Description of the type of involvement by individuals within the firm 
with the County contract. 

(c) Information regarding the current workload for the key staff to address 
the applicants' ability to supply adequate staffing for the contract. 

{d) Detailed information on the staffs experience demonstrating current 
capacity and current expertise in debris removal management and 
disposal. 

11. Existing Contracts 

List all existing contracts the Consultant has in North Carolina, South Carolina, 
and Virginia. 

12. Hourly Rates and Fees 

Submit an hourly billing rate schedule for all RFQ required staff that will be 
assigned to work on this contract. 

D. General Comments 

I. Any cost incurred by respondents in preparing or submitting a proposal for the 
Project shall be the respondents' sole responsibility. 

2. All responses, inquiries or correspondence relating to this RFQ will become the 
property of Wake County when received. 

- Page 128 -



3. Respondents are requested to refrain from contact with the Selection Committee 
members. 

E. Acceptance of Wake County Service Agreement 

All applicants must be able to comply with the requirements of the standard Wake County 
Service Agreement and agree to the terms contained in the agreement. A copy of the 
agreement is attached to the RFQ. See "Attachment A". 

F. Schedule: 

Task/ Activity Completion Date 

Proposals Due from Consultants May 20, 2015 

Selection Committee Review Complete 

Interviews (if needed) 

Selection Approval by Wake County Board of Commissioners 

G. Selection Process 

The Wake County Board of Commissioners has established a policy to be followed in 
selecting consultants. This policy is for the purpose of ensuring that consultants are selected 
in a fair and uniform manner, that those selected for work are qualified and experienced in the 
professional services desired and to ensure that every qualified consultant has the opportunity 
to be considered for providing professional services for the Project. The process for the 
Project will involve two stages: 

I. Stage One: Qualifications 

The initial phase has commenced with the establishment of a Selection 
Committee with members having been appointed by the County Manager. A 
Request for Qualifications Package is being sent to Consultants identified by the 
Division who have previously expressed interest in being considered for 
providing disaster debris monitoring services and consulting services for this type 
of project. The RFQ will be put on the Wake County website and the RFQ will 
be sent to others upon request. Upon receipt of the packages from respondents, 
Selection Committee members will review and select the Consultant that appear 
to be most favorable to provide services for the Project. 

Promptly following the selection, the committee will forward their written recommendation to 
the County Manager for approval. 

- Page 129 -



2. Stage Two: Final Selection 

Following the County Manager's approval to begin negotiations with a specific Consultant, 
the Wake County Solid Waste Management Division will begin those negotiations. After 
successful negotiations of specific contract terms, conditions, fees, etc., with the selected 
Consultant, the proposed contract will be forwarded to the Wake County Board of 
Commissioners for approval. 

I. Evaluation Criteria 

The following criteria will be the basis on which consultants will be selected for further 
consideration: 

I. Specialized or appropriate expertise of the key professional staff with this particular type 
of project 

2. Adequate depth of experienced staff and proposed team for the project 

3. Demonstrated understanding of and current experience with FEMA 325, FEMA 
327 and FHW A ER program monitoring and documentation requirements 

4. References 

5. Consultant's proposed hourly rates for services 

6. Previous experience of the Consultant with disaster debris monitoring, 
management and training 

7. Other factors that may be relevant to the proposal. The above listing does not indicate 
the order of importance. The selection committee shall establish a priority ranking for the 
final list of criteria for the project. 

J. Proposer Expenses 

The County will not be responsible for any expenses incurred by any Proposer in the 
development of a response to this Request for Qualification or any other activities associated 
with this procurement including but not limited to any onsite (or otherwise) interviews and/or 
presentations, and/or supplemental information provided, submitted, or given to Wake County 
and/or its representatives. Further, the County shall reserve the right to cancel the work 
described herein prior to issuance and acceptance of any contractual agreement/purchase 
order by the recommended Proposer even if the Board of Commissioners has formally 
accepted a recommendation. 

K. Interpretations, Discrepancies, and Omissions 

Submit written questions about this RFQ to Tom Wester, twester@wakegov.com, 
by 5:00p.m., April28, 2015. 

No questions or requests for clarifications will be accepted after this time. 

- Page 130 -



Responses to questions will be posted at http:l/www.wakegov.com. Hover on Departments 
& Division. click on RFP 's & Bids, click 011 New RFP 's & Bids. Any addenda and 
clarifications will be issued by April xx, 2015. 

The issuance of such written responses is the only official method by which interpretation, 
clarification or additional information will be given by the County. Only requests answered 
by formal written responses will be binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarification will 
be without legal effect. 

L. Award 

Wake County reserves the right to award a contract, based on initial offers received from 
Proposers, without discussion and without conducting further negotiations. Under such 
circumstance, the acceptance of a proposal by the County shall be deemed to be an acceptance 
of an offer and that such acceptance will be binding upon both parties. The County may also, 
at its sole discretion, have discussions with those Proposers that it deems to fall within a 
competitive range. The County may enter into negotiations separately with such Proposers. 
Negotiations may continue with a Proposer that the County has tentatively selected to award a 
contract to. The County shall not be deemed to have finally selected a Proposer until a 
contract has been successfully negotiated and signed by both parties. 

M. Non-disclosure of County Information 

The Proposer and its agents shall treat all data and information gathered by the Proposer and 
its agents, including this RFQ and all reports, recommendations, specifications, and data as 
confidential. The Proposer and its agents shall not disclose or communicate the aforesaid 
matters to a third party or use them in advertising, propaganda, and/or in another job or jobs, 
unless written consent is obtained from the County. 

N. Retention of Proposer Material 

Any and all information submitted in conjunction with this RFQ and the evaluation process 
will not be retum~d to the respondent. 

- Page 131 -



III. Contracting Information 

A. Certification 

The Proposer hereby certifies that it has carefully examined this Request for Qualifications 1 
and the Proposer certifies that it understands the scope of the work to be done and that the 
Proposer has knowledge and expertise to provide the scope of the work. By signature on the 
response to the RFQ, the Proposer certifies that its proposal is made without prior 
understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, finn or person submitting a 
proposal for the same materials, supplies, or equipment, and is in aJI respects fair and without 
collusion or fraud, so that all proposals for the purchase wiJI result from free, open and 
competitive proposing among aJI vendors. Further, the Proposer certifies that it understands 
that collusive bidding/proposing is a violation of Federal law and can result in fines, prison 
sentences, and civil damage awards. 

B. Conflict of Interest 

By submission of a response, the Proposer agrees that at the time of submittal, it: ( l) has no 
interest (including financial benefit, commission, finder's fee, or any other remuneration) and 
shall not acquire any interest, either direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or 
degree with the performance of Proposer's services, or (2) will not benefit from an award 
resulting in a "Conflict of Interest." A "Conflict of Interest" shall include holding or retaining 
membership, or employment, on a board, elected office, department, division or bureau, or 
committee sanctioned by and/or governed by Wake County. Proposers shall identify any 
interests, and the individuals involved, on separate paper with the response and shall 
understand that the County, in consultation with legal counsel, may reject their proposal. 

C. Assignment 

No assignment of the Proposer's obligations or the Proposer's right to receive payment 
hereunder shall be permitted without prior consent of the County. The Proposer may not sell, 
assign, transfer or convey the contract resulting from this RFQ, in whole or in part, without 
the prior written approval from the County. 

D. Indemnification 

The Consultant will indemnifY and hold the County hannless from any and all liability, expense, 
judgment, suit, or cause of action for personal injury, death, or direct damage to tangible property 
which may accrue against the County to the extent it is caused by the negligence of Consultant, its 
Sub-Consultants, or their employees or agents, while performing duties under this Agreement, 
provided that the County gives the Consultant prompt, written notice of any such claim or suit. The 
County shall cooperate with Consultant in its defense or settlement of such claim or suit. This 
section sets forth the full extent of the Consultanfs general indemnification of the County from 
liabilities that are in any way related to Consultant's perfonnance under this Agreement. 

E. Independent Consultant 

It is understood that in the performance of any services herein provided, the Proposer shaH be, 
and is, an independent Consultant, and is not an agent or employee of the County and shall 
furnish such services in its own manner and method, except as required by the contract. 
Further, the Proposer has, and shall retain the right to exercise full control over the 

- Page 132 -



employment, direction, compensation, and discharge of all persons employed by the Proposer 
in the performance of the services hereunder. The Proposer shall be solely responsible for, and 
shall indemnify, defend, and save the County harmless, from all matters relating to the 
payment of its employees, including compliance with Social Security, withholding, and all 
other wages, salaries, benefits, taxes, exactions, and regulations of any nature whatsoever. 

F. Governing Law 

This RFQ and any resulting contract shall be governed by and construed according to the laws 
of the State of North Carolina. Should any portion of any contract be in conflict with the laws 
of the State ofNorth Carolina, the State laws shall invalidate only that portion. The remaining 
portion of the contract(s) shall remain in effect. 

G. Confidential Information/Public Records Law 

The County assumes no responsibility for confidentiality of information offered in a proposal. The 
RFQ does not intend to elicit proprietary information. However, if proprietary information is 
submitted as part of the proposal, the information is to be labeled as such. Proposals are not subject 
to public inspection until after the contract award. Wake County reserves the right to share any 
information submitted in response to this RFQ or process with any person(s) or fmn(s) involved in 
the review and evaluation process. Proprietary or confidential information must be clearly 
labeled as such at the time of initial submission and to the extent provided by N.C.G.S. 
Chapter 132, will not be made available for public inspection. In the event that a request for 
inspection is made under public records law, the Proposer will be notified of the request and 
may participate in any subsequent civil action to compel disclosure of confidential 
information. 

H. Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

Proposer must comply with all applicable State and Federal Laws. In the event any 
Governmental restrictions may be imposed which would necessitate alteration of the material, 
quality, workmanship or performance of the items offered on this proposal prior to their 
delivery, it shall be the responsibility of the successful Proposer to notify Wake County at 
once, indicating in their letter the specific regulation which required such alterations. The 
County reserves the right to accept any such alterations, including any price adjustments 
occasioned thereby, or to cancel the contract. 

I. Acceptance 

Submission of any proposal indicates a Proposer's acceptance of the conditions contained in 
this RFQ unless clearly and specifically noted otherwise in the proposal. 

Furthermore, the County is not bound to accept a proposal on the basis oflowest price, and further, 
the County has the sole discretion and reserves the right to cancel this RFQ, and to reject any and 
all proposals, to waive any and all informalities and/or irregularities, or to re-advertise with either 
the identical or revised specifications, if it is deemed to be in the County's best interests to do so. 
The County reserves the right to accept or reject any or all of the items in the proposal, and to 
award the contract in whole or in part and/or negotiate any or all items with individual Proposers if 
it is deemed in the County's best interest. Moreover, the County reserves the right to make no 

- Page 133 -



selection if proposals are deemed to be outside the fiscal constraint or not in the best interest of the 
County. 

J. New Services 

From time to time during the period of work outlined in the RFQ and afterward, the County 
may elect to have the Proposer perfonn services that are not specifically described in the 
Statement of Work but are related to the contracted services (the "New Services"), in which 
event the Proposer shall perfonn such New Services on a time-and-materials basis, and at an 
hourly rate that does not exceed the hourly rate negotiated in the contract for each of the 
Proposer Personnel assigned to perfonn such New Services. This will be accomplished 
through an amendment to the contract and subsequent issuance of a Task Order. 

IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
The Provider shall obtain, at its sole expense, all insurance required in the following paragraphs 
and shall not commence work until such insurance is in effect and certification thereof has been 
received by Wake County's Finance Department. 

Commercial General Liability - with limits no less than S I ,000,000 per occurrence and 
$2,000,000 aggregate, including contractual liability. 

Commercial Automobile Liability, with limits no less than S I ,000,000 per occurrence for 
bodily injury and property damage for any vehicle used during perfonnance of contract services, 
including owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles. 

Workers' Compensation, with limits for Coverage A Statutory- for State of North 
Carolina and Coverage B - Employers Liability $500,000 each accident, disease policy limit, and 
disease each employee. 

Professional Liability, applicable to any professional services provided under this 
Contract with limits no less than S I ,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 aggregate. 

If any coverage is on a claims-made basis, Provider agrees to maintain a retroactive date prior to 
or equal to the effective date of this Agreement and to purchase and maintain Supplemental 
Extended Reporting Period or 'tail coverage' with a minimum reporting period of not less than 
three (3) years if the policy expires or is cancelled or non-renewed. If coverage is replaced, the 
new policy must include full prior acts coverage or a retroactive date to cover the effective dates 
of this Agreement. Provider shall provide a Certificate of Insurance annually to Wake County 
indicating any claims made coverage and respective retroactive date. The duty to provide 
extended coverage as set forth herein survives the effective dates of this Agreement. 

All insurance companies must be authorized to do business in North Carolina and have an AM 
Best rating of''A-NII" or better; or have reasonable equivalent financial strength to the 
satisfaction of the County's Finance Department. Proof of rating shall be provided to the county 
upon request. 

= 

- Page 134 -



Insurance with limits no less than those specified above shall be evidenced by a Certificate of 
Insurance issued by a duly authorized representative of the insurer. In the case of self-insurance, 
a letter of explanation must be provided to and approved by Wake County Risk Management. 

The Provider shall be responsible for providing immediate notice of policy cancellation or non
renewal during the term of this Agreement to the Wake County Finance Department and for 
three years subsequent for any claims made coverage. 

If Provider does not meet the insurance requirements specified above, alternate insurance 
coverage satisfactory to Wake County may be considered. 

Wake County Finance Office 
P.O. Box 550 

Raleigh, NC 27602 

If the Consultant does not meet the insurance requirements of the specifications, alternate 
insurance coverage satisfactory to Wake County may be considered. Nothing in this section is 
intended to affect or abrogate the County's sovereign immunity defenses. 

V. Safetv 

The Consultant shall be solely responsible to assure the safety of their personnel in all 
activities that they and their Sub-Consultants perfonn. The Consultant shall also provide and 
take measures to protect the public and county personnel during their activities. Actions may 
include but are not limited to removal of unsafe equipment and unsafe personnel. Consultant 
will also be solely responsible to ensure that all Consultants' personnel are compliant with 
OSHA workplace requirements and are familiar with and adheres to the Debris Removal 
Contractors' Safety Plan at the debris loading site and DMS(s). The OMS Field Supervisor or 
his designated OMS site monitor shall accompany the Debris Removal Contractors' Project 
Safety Officer on the daily OMS Site Hazard Analysis Inspection. 

VI. Termination Bv the County for Cause 

The COUNTY may terminate the pursuant contract if the Consultant: 
l. Persistently or repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled personnel; 

2. Fails to make payment to Sub-Consultants for materials or labor in accordance with 
the respective Contracts between the Consultant and Sub-Consultants; 

3. Disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of a public authority having 
jurisdiction; or 

4. Otherwise is guilty of breach of a provision of the contract documents. 

- Page 135 -



When any of the above reasons exist, the County may without any other rights or remedies of the 
County and after giving the Consultant written notice, terminate employment of the Consultant 
and finish the work by whatever reasonable method the County may deem expedient. 

When the County terminates the contract for one of the reasons stated above, the Consultant shall 
not be entitled to receive further payment, if any, until the work is finished. 

If the unpaid balance of the contract sum exceeds additional costs incurred while finishing the 
work, including compensation for the County's services and expenses made necessary thereby, 
such excess shall be paid to the Consultant. If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, the 
Consultant shall pay the difference to the County. This obligation for payment shall survive 
termination of the contract. 

The County may terminate the contract without cause by written notice. 

VII. Non- \Vaiver of Rights 

It is agreed that the County's failure to insist upon the strict performance of any provision of the 
pursuant contract, or to exercise any right based upon a breach thereof, or the acceptance of any 
perfonnance during such breach, shall not constitute a waiver of any rights under the contract. 

VIII. Findings Confidential 

All of the information, reports, cost estimates, plans, specifications and documents prepared or 
assembled by the Consultant under the pursuant contract are the property of the County. The 
Contractor agrees that any such documents shall not be made available to any individual or 
organization other than the appropriate County officials without prior written approval of the 
County. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed to prevent the Consultant from 
making information, reports and documents available to those individuals or firms directly 
concerned with the project involved with prior written consent of the County. 

IX. Binding Effect 

The pursuant contract shall be binding upon the heirs, successors, assigns, agents, officials, 
employees, independent Consultant and Sub-Consultant of the parties. 

X. Continuing Obligation 

The parties will make and execute all further instruments and documents required to carry out 
the purposes and intent of the pursuant contract. 

XI. References 

Use of the masculine includes feminine, singular includes plural; and captions and headings are 
inserted for convenience of reference and do not define, describe, extend or limit the scope of 
intent of the contract. 

- Page 136 -



XII. Records Retention and Review 

The CONTRACTOR shall retain all records pertaining to the services and the contract for these 
services and make them available to the COUNTY for a period of three (3) years following 
notification by the COUNTY in writing that a Federal Emergency Management Agency, Public 
Assistance final status report (project close-out report) has been issued by North Carolina 
Department of Emergency Management ... 

XIII. Written Task Orders 

The County shall issue an official written Task Order for the services referenced in the contract. 
The Task Order shall be sent via facsimile followed by regular mail. Under no circumstances 
shall the County be liable for any services rendered unless the written Task Order has been sent 
and received by the Consultant. Contractor must acknowledge receipt of the written Task Order. 

XIV. Location of \Vork 

The designated area for monitoring Contractor or County forces debris removal ("COUNTY 
ROW") is bounded by the County's jurisdictional boundaries and includes public property and 
Right-of-Ways ("ROWs"), easements, County parks, and County debris staging areas within the 
unincorporated areas of the County and may include private and orphan road segments within the 
jurisdictional boundaries of the County. Any debris removal performed on municipal roadways 
will be performed as identified and directed by the County Debris Manager or his authorized 
representative. The County Debris Manager or his authorized representative may also authorize 
the Consultant to monitor Contractor performing debris removal on Non-County roadways or 
other areas as directed in writing by the County Debris Manager or his authorized representative. 

The Consultant may be tasked with monitoring debris removal, reduction/management and 
disposal of eligible storm debris on designated non-FHW A routes on the North Carolina State 
System Roads within the jurisdictional boundaries of Wake County. A separate Task Order will 
be issued for this work. All Consultants' associated cost to manage, monitor and document the 
work, including load tickets, debris management, reduction and final disposal, manifest and 
weight tickets, shall be tracked and invoiced separate from all other work. 

NC Department of Transportation crews or their designated contractors will remove debris from 
FHWA eligible routes. The Consultants' monitoring personnel should not allow the County 
Debris Contractor to enter these routes and perform debris removal. A listing of secondary 
roads, Secondmy Routes Eligible for FHJVA Reimbursement and Exempt from Release to tlze 
County, not eligible for debris removal by the Contractor and a map, FEDERAL AID ROADS, 
showing the location of the routes are provided in Appendix X. 

The Consultants' monitoring personnel should not allow the Contractor to remove debris from 
the ROW on lnterstate routes, US-designated routes, NC-designated routes or secondary routes 
listed as eligible for FHW A reimbursement. 

- Page 137 -



XV. Project Summarv 

Provide Disaster Debris Monitoring Services on an as-needed basis. Wake County will contract 
with qualified Consultant(s) to assist in the monitoring of disaster debris collection and disposal 
operations within its jurisdictional boundaries ensuring compliance with Federal (FEMA and 
FHW A) requirements and County debris management plans as related to Debris Removal 
Consultant(s) oversight, truck certification, load ticket preparation and issuing, report 
precreation, and project administration. 

XVI. Scope of Work Overview 

The County is seeking the services of qualified Consultants or individuals with extensive 
knowledge and background in providing disaster debris management and monitoring services to 
include all management , supervision, labor, transportation, and equipment necessary to initiate 
load tickets at debris loading sites, estimate the volume of debris being delivered to the DMS(s) 
and disposal site(s), and support the operations of the field supervisor(s), debris loading and 
observation tower monitors and clerical staff. Management and monitoring services may include 
eligible debris generated from the public rights-of-way, private property, drainage structures, 
public usc areas, parks, County and other eligible local government public facilities. These 
Disaster Debris Monitoring Services include but arc not limited to: 

• Coordinating daily briefings, work progress, staffing, and other key items with 
the County Debris Manager or his authorized representative, County, and 
Debris Removal Contractor. 

• Scheduling work with all team members and contractors on a daily basis. 
• Hiring, scheduling, and managing field staff. 
• Monitoring debris removal contractor operations and making/implementing 

recommendations to improve debris removal and monitoring efficiency to 
expedite recovery work. 

• Assisting the County with responding to public concerns and comments. 
• Certifying contractor hauling units for debris removal and final disposal using 

methodology and documentation practices as provided in the most current 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Public Assistance Debris 
Monitoring Guide. 

• Entering load tickets into a monitoring Consultant provided database 
application. 

• Digitization of source documentation (such as load tickets). 
• Developing daily operational reports to keep the County informed of work 

progress. Refer to Section D for reports and documentation requirements. 
• Development of maps, GIS applications, etc. as necessary. 
• Comprehensive review, reconciliation, and validation of debris removal 

contractor(s) invoices prior to submission to the County for processing. 
• Assimilation of County's copies (original and loading site monitor) of load 

tickets, Daily Debris Loading Site Monitor Log and Daily report, DMS 
Monitoring Log, debris removal Contractor Truck Certification, Daily Debris 

- Page 138 -



Collection Summary Spreadsheet and any other documents in support of 
Debris Removal and Debris Monitoring Project Worksheets . 

The Debris Monitoring Consultant may also be requested to provide the following services if 
tasked by the County: 

• Procurement assistance for debris removal contractors and other services as 
requested. 

• Selection and permitting of Debris Management Sites (DMS(s) locations and 
any other permitting/regulatory issues as necessary, 

• Technical support and assistance in developing public information. 
• Other training and assistance as requested by the County. 
• Other reports and data as may be required by the County. 
• Other debris management/consulting services identified/required and tasked 

by the County. 

If requested, the debris monitoring Consultant may be tasked to assist with post-disaster damage 
assessment services for support of the Preliminary Damage Assessment (PDA). 

XVII. Scope of Services for Debris Monitoring 

Provide debris monitors and debris monitoring services to assist Wake County with monitoring 
Contractors' debris removal, management and reduction activities, and disposal operations. The 
services are debris removal contract compliance, documentation of contractors' field and Debris 
Management Site(s) (OMS) activities, coordination and inspection. All debris monitoring 
activities are to be in compliance with FEMA 321, FEMA 322, FEMA 325, FEMA327, FEMA 
Recovery Policy 9500 series, event issued Disaster Specific Guidance, FHWA Emergency Relief 
Program, NRCS Emergency Watershed grant requirements, and local, state and federal 
guidelines. 

XVIII. Pre-Event Requirements 

Consultant will provide assistance in preparation for disasters through participation in meetings 
and workshops and the establishment of data management and other integrated systems. 
Consultant will provide at no cost to the County a half-day debris management training session 
that meets at a minimum the requirements for debris monitors as outlined in the most current 
FEMA 327Public Assistance Debris Monitoring Guide. 

XIX. Post - Event Requirements 

Consultant will assist with load inspections of eligible disaster debris removal being performed 
by one or more debris hauling and disposal contractors or County agencies. 

- Page 139 -



Consultant shall supply sufficient numbers of trained monitors and field supervisors to 
accommodate the volume of debris to be removed at loading sites, DMS(s) and final disposal 
sites. 

The Consultants' resources and cost should be proportional to the eligible debris required to be 
removed. 

Consultant shall provide one field supervisor to oversee no more than ten ( 1 0) loading, OMS, or 
final disposal site(s) monitors. The COUNTY DEBRIS MANAGER or his authorized 
representative will approve the numbers of specific personnel assigned to the project by issuance 
of a Task Order. 

Consultant shall remove and replace employees immediately upon written notice from the 
County, County Debris Manager or his authorized representative for conduct or actions not in 
keeping with this contract. Consultant's personnel are expected to be safe, courteous, and 
professional in the manner by which they interact with the debris removal contractors' personnel, 
general public and County' s personnel. 

XX. Personnel Requirements and Responsibilities 

A. Debris Monitoring Field Supervisor 

Consultant will provide one (I) debris monitoring field supervisor for no more than ten ( l 0) 
loading site monitors. Services included, but not limited to: 

I. Overseeing and supervising loading site and disposal site debris 
monitoring activities 

2. Scheduling debris monitoring resources and deployment times 

3. Coordinating daily activities and future planning 

4. Communicating and coordinating with County and County Debris Manager 

5. Providing suggestions and implementing improvement measures to expedite 
project completion 

6. Identifying, addressing, and troubleshooting any questions or problems that could 
affect work area safety and eligibility 

7. Supervising the accurate measurement of loading units' compartments and 
accurately computing volume capacity in cubic yards, accurately completing and 
assimilating all Truck Certification forms and digital photo documentation into a 
master logbook 

8. Compiling, reconciling, and documenting daily, in electronic format, all eligible 
debris, by category, hauled by the debris removal contractor 

- Page 140 -



B. Debris Loading Site Monitors 

Consultant shall provide on-site street level debris monitoring at all debris removal contractor 
loading sites to verify eligibility based on monitoring contract's requirements and initiate 
debris removal documentation using load tickets. 
Services shall include, but not limited to: 

I. Providing trained debris monitoring personnel at designated loading sites to check 
and verify information on debris removal operations 

2. Constant observation of the collection activities of contractors crews and 
equipment 

3. Issuing load tickets 

4. Checking the area for safety considerations such as power lines, utilities, citizen 
on-lookers, and maintenance of traffic as prescribed in the Manual of Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) 

5. Ensuring that the debris removal contractor crews are not comingling debris 
categories as trucks are loaded 

6. Perform a pre-loading inspection of the area to identify potential loading issues 
created by utilities, document existing damage to utilities, and document damages 
by contractor to utilities and homeowner personal property within the ROW 

7. Properly monitor and record performance and productivity of debris removal 
crews 

8. Ensure that loads are contained properly before allowing debris loaded trucks 
leave the site 

9. Ensure only eligible debris is loaded by the debris removal crews 

l 0. Ensure crews remove all eligible debris from the loading site area before allowing 
them to move to another loading site. 

C. DMSITower Monitors 

Consultant shall provide debris tower and Debris Management Site (OMS) monitors to verify 
estimated quantities of eligible debris hauled by the debris removal contractor(s) and 
documented on load tickets. Services include, but not limited to: 

l. Provide trained debris monitoring personnel to perform and complete required 
Truck Certifications forms by accurately measuring load hauling units• 
compartments and accurately computing volume capacity in cubic yard for all 

- Page 141 -



contractor hauling units prior to the start of debris removal operations by the debris 
removal contractor and conducting random Re-Certification of contractors' trucks 
during the life of the project. 

2. Completing record of contract haulers' cubic yardage and other record keeping as 
required by the contract or county debris project manager 

3. Signing each load ticket of eligible debris presented at the OMS entrance 
observation tower before allowing the truck to proceed to the appropriate off
loading area within the OMS 

4. Remain in regular contact with the Field Monitoring Supervisor and the OMS 
Field Supervisor tower field supervisor. 

5. Assist the OMS Field Supervisor as needed to conduct OMS daily hazard analysis 
inspections with the debris removal contractor. 

D. Clerical/Data Entry Supervisor 

Consultant shall provide a clerical/data entry supervisor to coordinate data entry and 
infonnation management systems. Services include but are not limited to: 

1. Supervising the preparation of detailed estimates and submitting them to the 
County Debris Manager or his authorized representative. 

2. Implementing and maintaining a disaster debris management system linking the 
load ticket and debris management site information, including reconciliation and 
photographic documentation processes 

3. Providing daily, weekly, or other periodic reports for the County Debris Manager 
or his authorized representative noting work progress and efficiency, 
current/revised estimates, project completion, and other schedule forecast/updates 

E. Clerical Staff/Data Entry Clerk 

Consultant shall provide clerical staff/data entry clerk(s) as required to accurately enter load 
ticket information into the consultant's information management systems and to respond to 
specific directions from data entry supervisor. 

F. GIS Technician 

Consultant shall provide GIS mapping services in support .of data entry and documenting the 
debris removal contractors' progress in completing the project, location origin of hazardous 
trees, limbs and stumps, and document off-loading locations of debris by category within 
DMS(s), and other mapping and geocoding as may be requested by the County Debris 
Manager or his authorized representative. 

- Page 142 -



XXI. Required Documentation and Reports 

The Consultant shall provide all documentation as required to support the progress of the debris 
removal contractor, monitors, and the general progress of the project. The following is a list of 
reports; who is responsible for providing infonnation in support of the reports and the accuracy 
of the reports: 

A. Project Manager's Daily Report 

The project manager must document time in accordance with Disaster Assistance Policy 
(DAP) 9525.6, Project Supervision and Management and Supervision cost differ from eligible 
debris monitoring cost and shall be accounted for with a level of documentation sufficient to 
meet reasonableness of effort and cost requirements. The Project Manager will be expected to 
participate in the Daily Debris Operations meetings with the debris removal Contractor's 
project manager, County Debris Manager or his authorized representative. Daily meeting 
topics will include, but not limited to: 

• Volumes of each debris category collected 
• Number of each debris category monitor confirmed to have worked the 

previous day, presently working in the project area and their location 
• Geographic areas where debris has been removed and the "pass" associated 

with work 
• CONSULTANT'S overall progress in completing all Task Orders and 

estimated completion date 
• Any CONSULTANT'S coordination issues relating to the CONTRACTOR or 

COUNTY Representatives 
• Debris collection and DMS(s) Site Hazard Analysis/Inspection Report issues 

and concerns 
• Damage Claims Report and confinnation of CONTRACTOR'S progress in 

closing out claims 

A written Daily Report shall be submitted to the County Debris Manager or his authorized 
representative each morning prior to the meeting. Frequency of meetings may be adjusted by 
the COUNTY DEBRIS MANAGER. CONSULTANT's Project Manager must be available 
twenty-four (24) hours-day, or as required by the County Debris Manager or his authorized 
representative. 

The Project Manager is responsible for providing a written summary report each morning 
prior to the required Daily Debris Operations Meeting. The report shall include but not limited 
to the items listed above and a copy of the following documents and reports; 

B. Loadine Monitors Field Supervisor Daily Report 

Loading Monitors' Supervisor's daily report shall be filled out each day of work by the 
loading site field supervisor. The report shall include but is not limited to: work time with the 
start, lunch time taken and ending time indicated, debris removal category monitoring, names 
of each monitor under your direct supervision, areas worked, and issues encountered. 

- Page 143 -



C. Load Tickets 

Each loading site monitor shall have adequate load tickets to support his loading crew(s) for 
the entire work day. Load tickets will be initiated at the loading site by the loading site 
monitor, given to the debris hauler transporting the debris to the OMS or County approved 
final disposal site, transferred to the OMS tower monitor or final disposal facility monitor for 
completion. The tower/facility monitor is responsible for QNQC of the ticket an ensuring the 
ticket is transferred to the OMS Field Supervisor or data entry personnel. Time and expense 
of correcting incomplete and inaccurate load tickets initiated by the Consultants monitors is 
the responsibility of the Consultant. 

D. Truck Certification Forms 

Truck Certification Forms shall be calculated and completed by the Consultant's Project 
Manager, Field Supervisors or other qualified Consultant representative in conjunction with 
the Debris Removal Contractors representative(s). Debris Removal Contractors shall not 
certify trucks, but may assist the Consultant's representative. 

E. Load Site Monitor's Daily Report/ Ticket Log 

The loading site monitor's daily report shall be filled out each day of work by each loading 
site monitor. The report shall include but is not limited to: work time with the start, lunch time 
taken and ending time indicated, debris removal category monitoring, name of supervisor 
monitor reports to, areas worked, and issues encountered. The report shall also list each 
unique ticket number and debris category on all load tickets initiated including voided tickets. 

F. OMS Monitor's Reportfficket Log 

OMS Monitor's Daily Report shall be completed each day of work by each OMS monitor. 
The report shall include but is not limited to~ work time with start, lunch time taken and 
ending time indicated, debris category monitoring, and issues encountered. A Daily Debris 
Tower/Site Monitoring Log similar to the one listed in FEMA 327, Appendix B; Figure B-4 
that captures the same information in addition to listing the loading site monitor that initiated 
the load ticket may be used. 

G. DMS(s) Field Supervisors Report 

DMS(s) Monitors' Supervisors Daily Report shall be completed each day of work by the 
loading site supervisor. The report shall include but is not limited to : work time with start, 
lunch time taken and ending time indicated, names of each monitor under your direct 
supervision, DMS(s)lfinal Disposal Facility under your direct supervision worked, and issues 
encountered. Note any OMS Site Hazard Analysis issues noted for that day's inspection of the 
OMS. 

H. Data Entry Staff Daily Report 

The Data Entry Daily Staff Report shall be completed each work day by the Data 
Entry/Clerical Supervisor. The report shall include but is not limited to~ work time with start, 
lunch time taken and ending time indicated for each data entry staff person working on this 
project, the number of tickets entered, and number of un-reconciled tickets. The total number 

- Page 144 -



of reconciled tickets shall be listed by debris category. Denote any issues regarding monitors 
inability to correctly initiate and complete a load ticket, missing tickets and corrected tickets 

I. Debris Collection Summary Sheet 

The Debris Collection Summary Sheet shall be completed each day of work by the Data Entry 
Supervisor and confirmed accurate by the Consultant's Project Manager. 

J. GIS Daily Report 

The GIS Daily Report shall be completed each work day by the supervising GIS technician 
each day of work. The report shall include but is not limited to,;_ work time with start, lunch 
time taken and ending time indicated for each GIS staff person working on this project, the 
total number of hazardous trees, limbs, and stumps geocoded during the work day and a 
listing of maps produced for the project, any issues encounter regarding information 
submitted from field staff and measures taken to correct any data. 

- Page 145 -



Attachment A 

SAMPLE AGREEMENT 

- Page 146 -



NORTH CAROLINA 

WAKE COUNTY 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 
OVER $50,000 

THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into this _ day of , 20_ by 
and between Wake County, North Carolina (the "County") party of the first part; and 
________ (the "Provider"), party of the second part; 

W IT N E S S E T H: 

For the purpose and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the County 
hereby contracts for the services of the Provider, and the Provider agrees to provide the services 
to the County in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

I. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
The services to be perfonned by the Provider shall be as follows : 

Enter Services provided or add attachment. 

Provider shall not sub-contract all or any part of the services provided for in this 
Agreement without written approval of the County. 

II. TERM 
The services of the Provider shall begin on ____ , 20_ , and shall be provided until 

___ ,20_ . 

III. MAXIMUM AMOUNT PAY ABLE: 
($ ) 

IV. PAYMENT 
Provider shall submit an invoice for services provided. The invoice shall contain 

Provider's name and federal tax identification number and shall be signed and dated by an 
officer of Provider. It shall detail all services provided in payment requests. The County will 
make payments to Provider upon receipt of and approval of the invoice by the contracting 
department. 

V. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

Provider is an independent contractor of the County. Provider represents that it has or 
will secure, at its own expense, all personnel required in performing the services under this 
Agreement. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with 
the County. All personnel engaged in work under this Agreement shall be fully qualified and 
shall be authorized or pennitted under state and local law to perform such services. It is further 
agreed that the Provider will obey all State and Federal statutes, rules and regulations that are 
applicable to provisions of the services called herein. Neither Provider nor any employee of the 
Provider shall be deemed an officer, employee or agent of the County. 

- Page 147 -



VI. CANCELLATION 
This Agreement may be canceled by Provider upon thirty (30) days' written notice to the 

County, and the County may terminate this agreement upon thirty (30) days' written notice to 
Provider. 

VII. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
The Provider shall obtain, at its sole expense, all insurance required in the following 

paragraphs and shall not commence work until such insurance is in effect and certification 
thereof has been received by Wake County's Finance Office. 

Workers' Compensation Insurance, with limits for Coverage A Statutory- for State of North 
Carolina and Coverage B - Employers Liability $500,000 each accident/disease each 
employee/disease policy limit. 

Commercial General Liability- with limits no less than $1 ,000,000 per occurrence and 
S2,000,000 aggregate, including contractual liability. 

Commercial Automobile Liability, with limits no less than S 1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily 
injury and property damage for any vehicle used during performance of contract services, 
including coverage for owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles. Evidence of commercial 
automobile coverage is only necessary if vehicles are used in the provision of services under this 
Agreement. 

Professional Liability Insurance, applicable to any professional services provided under this 
Contract with limits of no less than S I ,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 aggregate. 

If any coverage is on a claims-made basis, Provider agrees to maintain a retroactive date prior to 
or equal to the effective date of this Agreement and to purchase and maintain Supplemental 
Extended Reporting Period or 'tail coverage' with a minimum reporting period of not less than 
three (3) years if the policy expires or is cancelled or non-renewed. If coverage is replaced, the 
new policy must include full prior acts coverage or a retroactive date to cover the effective dates 
of this Agreement. Provider shall provide a Certificate of Insurance annually to Wake County 
indicating any claims made coverage and respective retroactive date. The duty to provide 
extended coverage as set forth herein survives the effective dates of this Agreement. 
All insurance companies must be authorized to do business in North Carolina and have an AM 
Best rating of "A-Nil'' or better; or have reasonable equivalent financial strength to the 
satisfaction of the County's Finance Office. Proof of rating shall be provided to the county upon 
request. 

Insurance with limits no less than those specified above shall be evidenced by a Certificate of 
Insurance issued by a duly authorized representative of the insurer. In the case of self-insurance, 
a letter of explanation must be provided to and approved by Wake County Risk Management. 

- Page 148 -



The Provider shall be responsible for providing immediate notice of policy cancellation or non
renewal during the term of this Agreement to the Wake County Finance Office and for three 
years subsequent for any claims made coverage. 

If Provider does not meet the insurance requirements specified above, alternate insurance 
coverage satisfactory to Wake County may be considered. 

VIII. INDEMNIFICATION 
Provider agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the County, for all loss, liability, 

claims or expense (including reasonable attorney's fees) arising from bodily injury, including 
death or property damage, to any person or persons caused in whole or in part by the negligence 
or misconduct of the Provider, except to the extent same are caused by the negligence or willful 
misconduct of the County. It is the intent of this section to require Provider to indemnify Wake 
County to the extent permitted under North Carolina law. 

IX. NO WAIVER OF SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 
Wake County and the Provider agree that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to 

mandate purchase of insurance by Wake County pursuant to N.C.G.S. 153A-435; or to be 
inconsistent with Wake County's '"Resolution Regarding Limited Waiver of Sovereign 
Immunity" enacted October 6, 2003; or to in any other way waive Wake County's defense of 
sovereign or governmental immunity from any cause of action alleged or brought against Wake 
County for any reason if otherwise available as a matter of law. 

X. NON-ASSIGNMENT 
Provider shall not assign all or any portion of this Agreement, including rights to 

payments, to any other party without the prior written consent of the County. 

XI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
The parties have read this Agreement and agree to be bound by all of its tenns, and 

further agree that it constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of the Agreement between 
the parties unless and until modified in writing and signed by the parties. Modifications may be 
evidenced by telefacsimile signatures. 

XII. NON-APPROPRIATION 
Provider recognized that Wake County is a governmental entity, and the contract validity 

is based upon the availability of public funding under the authority of its statutory mandate. 
In the event that public funds are not available and not appropriated to purchase the 

services specified in this Agreement, then this Agreement shall automatically expire without 
penalty to Wake County and without the thirty (30) day notice requirement set forth in Section 
VI. 

In the event of a legal change in Wake County's statutory authority, mandate, and 
mandated functions which adversely affects Wake County's authority to continue its obligations 
under this Agreement, then this Agreement shall automatically expire without penalty to Wake 
County and without the thirty (30) day notice requirement set forth in Section VI. 

XIII. GOVERNING LAW 

- Page 149 -



Both parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State ofNorth 
Carolina. 

XIV. E-VERIFY REQUIREMENTS 
To ensure compliance with theE-Verify requirements of the General Statutes of North 

Carolina, all contractors, including any subcontractors employed by the contract(s), by 
submitting a bid, proposal or any other response, or by providing any material, equipment, 
supplies, services, etc, attest and affirm that they are aware and in full compliance with Article 2 
of Chapter 64, (NCGS 64-26(a)) relating to theE-Verify requirements. 

WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA PROVIDER 

By: By: ----------
Wake County Department Head 

Date: ----------------------
By: _________________ __ 

Wake County Manager or Designee 

Date: --------------------

Date: --------------------

Mailing Address 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 

FINANCE DIRECTOR 

The person responsible for monitoring the contract performance requirements is 

---------- Department Head 
Initials 

- Page 150 -



Appendix X 
NOX-FEDERAL AID ROUTES 1\IAP 

NON-fEDERAL AID 
ROUTES 

~~0 IC\rn U"I'V"1 
sun -t4N:I IQUIU 

1ti4J All hlca.t f'OI .LLUI 

.. 

r , 

• 

:r~. --.fi: .;e 

w•"£ cou~rr 
.. ,...uo••-.. ---·---·---· 

The web link to the NCDOT NON-FEDERAL AID ROtJTES 1113p abo\-e is· 

http ' dotw·xfm>l dot state..nc.us imgdot DODlonF~alAid.\lap~ '\\'Jke_Non_FEDAID.pdf 

- Page 151 -



PROPOSER'S BID CERTIFICATION FORM 

To Whom It May Concern: 

I have carefully examined the Request for Proposal and any other documents accompanying or make a 
part of this Request for Proposal. 

I hereby propose to perform the following prices as specified in this Request for Proposal No. 15-xxx at 
the rates described on SCHEDULE I - HOURLY EQUIPMENT AND LABOR PRICE 
SCHEDULE and SCHEDULE I - UNIT RATE PRICE SCHEDULE. 

I certify that all information contained in this proposal is truthful to the best of my knowledge and belief. 
I further certify that I am duly authorized to submit this proposal on behalf of the firm as its act and deed 
and that the firm is ready, willing and able to perform if awarded the contract. 

I further certify, under oath, that this proposal is made without prior understanding, agreement, 
connection, discussion, or collusion with any other person, firm or corporation submitting a proposal for 
the same product or service; no officer employee or agent of the County of Wake or any other proposer is 
interested in said proposal; and that the undersigned executed this Proposer's Certification with full 
knowledge and understanding of the matters therein contained and was duly authorized to do so. 

h is distinctly understood that the Board of County Commissioners reserves the right to reject any or all 
proposals. 

Federal Tax ID: --------------------
:-:A:\IE OF FIR~! 

Phone: --------------------------

AUTHORIZED SIGSATURE 
Fax: _________________________ __ 

Email: -------------------------

K~\IE & TITLE. TYI'ED OR I'Rii\TED 

Subscnh.:d and S\Wm to before: me: th1s 
~IAIU~G ADDRESS day of . 20xx 

:-:otary l'ubhc ___________________ _ 
CITY. STATE. ZIP CODE 

M> Comm1ssion cxpin:s· ------------

(SEAL) 

- Page 152 -



Statement of Qualifications 

Disaster Debris 
Monitoring Services 
RFQ #15-039 

Wake County, North Carolina 

1-)~ 

May 20, 

2015 
- Page 153 -



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
n 

I 
I 
11 

II 
II 
11 

hdrinc.com 

May 20 2015 

1Nake CoJnty F1nance/Procureme;1t Services 

Wake County Just•ce Ce~·er. 2nd F:oor, Room 2900 
301 S McDoi'Jel Stree: 

Ra e1gh l'lC 27601 
.A.tten'•on To-n Wester 

SUBJECT: Statement of Qualifications for Disaster Debris Monitoring Services 

Dear Me-noers of tre Selection Committee: 

HDR Eng neertng of the Carol1nas (HDR), along\'/ th our strategtc team1ng partners Thompson Co"lsult ng Ser•Jices 

(TCS) and T•dal Bas•n Go•1ernment Services (rdal Basin), are pleased ;o prov de the enclosed Statement of 

Qua f cat ons (50Q) to pro•1ide disaster debris mon1tori'1g ser•/ces to Wake County and o·her goJer-mental 

agenc.es We ha Je asse;'\"':>led our project team to provice v\'a~e c, Jnty w •th best inc as~ d1saster debr s monitonng 

serv•ces and lcad •ng experts l'l the Federcl E;'\"'ergency Management Agency (FEI'v1A) 325 a01d FEMA 327 
po .cy mp ementatto;"' 

We fee that the HDR team shou'd be strongly cons1dered for :h·s wo·k for the folloN•ng reasons 

• A Local, Trusted Advisor that is Vested in Wake County: HDR has beer ser•1ing go•Jernment a gene es ,., r.Jorth 

Carolinas nee 19<15 Our Raleigh office includes more than 75 engmeers scie01tists and other professiona s. 

\ Ve I': ave deep re at1ons'1ips wi<h the mun1cipalit1es and critical agencies (North Carol1na Department of 

Transportation ('lCDOT), North Carolina Department of Environn-ent and Natural Resources (NCDH.R), 

Duke PO".·,er e·c ) that may be heavily integrated in a recovery effort Our Project Drrector Jeff Murra1 PE. is a 

solid waste management e.<pert w1th a strong understanding of local solid waste managemen· infrastructure. 

permitting requirements, a1d d1sposa and recycling markets 

• Experience of Key Project Team Allows for Maximum Reimbursement: Our key project team represents 

several of the foremost e~perts rn dtsaster debr s mon1toring and FEMA policy and re ·mbursement Our Pro;ect 

rvlanager, Chuck Mclendon. r.as served as Prnc.pa. n Charge and/or Project Manager for man/ of t1e largest 

d'sasters in U.S history and· as werseen more than 52 b ll1on n FEivl.A. reimb~rsement Jon H,.. J e and Nathan 

Counsell of TCS are VJidely v e~·Jed as leadrng debns management expe·ts havmg recently managed a rr.assive 

ice storM recovery effort for the South Ca·o Ina Department o' TransportatiOn (SCDO n. Our team also rncludes 
former senior FEI\1A and Sta•e emergency management r ff crals (Dan Craig- Former Dlfe~t . r of Reco•Jert for 

FE1\tlA Headcuarters and Ste Je Glenn - Former Deputy Chef o' Operat ions for the North Care na Emergency 

Managemen< Agency) that could be nstrumentalm obtarnr"lg fa•Jarable policy ·ev•ews for the County. 

• Depth of Local Resources Ensures Service Deltvery: The collectPJe f;rms on our team nclude rearly 10.000 
infrastruc~ure ~elated emp oyees HDR emp 01s more than 250 emplo•1ees 1n North Care na alone. Our 

project management team has sourced, trained, and managed thousands of local debr~s mon1tor~ng staff. 

We are confident in our abrltty to serve \"'ake County w1th a strong base of resources as wei as leadi:'lg 

techntcal expertise. 

We sincerel'l appreciate the strong cons1derat1on of the Count:~. municipalities, and other government agencies or 
1Nake County to ser•1e as the commun·ty's debrts momtonng firm If you ha 1e quest1ons regarding our submittal. 

please feel free to contact Jet' Murray Project Dlfector, at (919) 232·5632 or Chuck Mclendon, Project Manager, at 

(407) 353·0342. 

Sincerely, 

HDR Engineenng, Inc. of the Carolinas 

~.~,:-t 
Project 0Jrectcr 

Kevm Mosteller 

Area fhnager 

- Page 154 -



Contents 
01 Introduction 01 

E xecut. ve Sur1rr ary 

Company Information 83 

02 Technical Approach OS 

03 Training+ Safety 11 

04 Qualifications of Consultant 13 

OS Claims 19 

06 References 21 

07 Qualifications of Staff 23 

08 Other Requirements 25 

09 Exceptions 31 

10 Project Management 33 

11 Existing Contracts 37 

12 Hourly Rates+ Fees 39 

- Page 155 -



At HDR, we 
do things 
right to make 
great things 
possible. 

\'lake Cllunty ~ Introduction 
Ex~cutl'te Sunmar , 

1-)~ 

Executive Summary 
YourChalfenge 
As a County government, Wake County has an ob gat on 

to 1ts constituents to be prepared to respond to and recover 

from natural and man-made d·sasters Part of th sob 1gat on 

relates to fielding the appr _priate teams o' qua f•ed per;onnel 

and contractors to quickly and efk1ent y remo 1e debns from 

publ1c rights of way and other areas that may be deem eel a 

threat to public health and safety. Wake County has ssued this 

solicitation to reta·n a qua ified firm w th suffc ent resovces 

to provide debris mon·toring and conslJit ng serv ces to he 

County. In add1tion to ser•1ing the County the con t ra : ! vehicle 

tha' resul ts from th1s procuremenr effort w11l be made a•. a lab e 

to other local go'J ernmental agenc: es tn the County (v a 3 

Cooperative Purchas·ng Agreement) that may be m need of 

debns mon"tonng o; related cons1 t"ng ser•J ces 

A s part of FEMA's Pub c Ass1stance (PA) Progran FE \tlA 

re imburses local governments for the federa cost share oi 

el1g1ble debris removal activities follow ing a Pres dent1a ly-

dec ared disaster FEM A however requires that ehgible 

appl1ca1t5 1mplement a debr s mon"tonng program that p· opedy 

documents the qua"1t1 t1es a1d e 1g1b1h~ ; of debr1s rem oved fro m 

area:; where the local go ternment has a legal respons bdi~y 

Our Team 
HDR, and our team·ng partners TCS and Tida l Bas n, is pleased 

to S..Jbm t th1s proposal to Wake Coun'J and the County's 

•welv~ mun cipalt es to pro•11de d1sa ;·er deor s mon.tonng 

and consultmg se" 11ces HDR is a local prov der and has a long 

h•story of provid"ng full serv1ce engineering and infrastructure 

related serv1ces to Wake County TCS IS one of the lead ng 

transportal"' e· g neer r g and debns n on"tor ng f"•m ; "' th ~> 

Sou theastern U.S . ha 1 ng managed a ma1or 2014 1ce storm 

recove·y effort for SCOOT T dal Bas n prov des expert1se in 

FEMA poli'y and PA Program ·etmb·Jrsement T1dal Basm IS led 

by the former Director of Recovery for FEMA Headquarters 

Dan Craig, and the former Deputy Chief of Operations for the 

f'lor th Care tna Emergency Management Agency (NCEMA), 

Steve G enn Steve is based m Rale1gh HDR, TCS. and Tidal 

Basm have an establ.shed work1rg re'at onsh1p on many fronts 

(mcludmg general engmeenng and emergency management 

related serv ces) and are conf1dent n our ab1hty to ass1st 

Wake County m preparng for debns generatmg e 1ents and 

rna)( m1z.ng re1mbursement m the r aftermath 

Our tearr w il l be led by' Jeff Murray, PE as ProJeCt D~rector and 

Chuck Mclendon as ProJect Manager Jeff works in our Raleigh 

office and is an experienced solid waste management engmeer 

H1s knowledge of Wa<e County's sol d waste management 

system . local knowledge of the Ra e1gh area. and e)(penence 

w•th NCDENR and loca' d1sposal and recychng markets will be a 

- Page 156 -



tremendous asset 10 the debr s management effort Jeft s also 

familiar to nany o' the so11d waste depar'ment managers lr.-n 
the \Nake County m~.nlrlpalitles throug"l h1s nteract on.,., tn the 

South INake Technical Adv1sory Comm1ttee. The HDR Ra eigh 

office has also provided engineer"ng ser•1ices to a number of the 

communities in Wake County ·ncluding recent projects for the 

City oi Rale.gh Sord Waste. Storrr.water, and Utilities Di 1isions 

and the Town of Car'/ Depart'Tie:1t .;i Public Works. 

Chuck is an experienced program manager and debris 

management e~pert w;th more than 24 years of e1perience n 

the solid '1/aste and emergency management sector. Pnor to 

JOming HDR, he was a partner with R.W. Beck, where he led 

the sohd waste management practice in the Southeastern U S. 

Chu::k later served as President and COO of Beck Disaster 

Recovery (BDR) - the largest debris monitoring firm in the 

U.S until :heir acquisition by Science Application lnternatior.al 

Corporation in 2009 He has been mtimately in•1olved in 

program management efforts for some of the largest disasters 

1n U.S history includmg Hurricane Katrina (New Orleans LA), 

Hur,;cane Ivan (Pensacola. FU. Hurricane Ike (Galveston, T X). 

and the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill (for several Gulf Coast 

communities). 

Our sen or protect team w I be supported b1 several of the 

leadmg debns manageme:1t (Jon H:l'/le and Nathan Couns 

TCS) and FEMA/1'-ICEMA re nbursement experts (Dan Cr 

and Steve Glenn of T1dal Basm) 1n the nat on Our team ha~ 

an established working relationship, having ser•1ed togethe 

as part of the senior management team and/or Board of 

D rectors at BDR. Our senior project team are experienced 

credentialed program management professionals with a h1 

degree of e~pertise in FEMA poliC'f, solid waste managem1 

program management, contract management budgeting/ 

S'"heduling/cost controls, and other functions cnt1cal to a c 

momtoring operation. Our expertise and professtonal1sm ' 

result in a well organizec. efficient. transparent and Finane 

responsible debris remo•1af process for Wake County and • 

local government agencies. We feel strongly that the dept 

o' our senior project team will provide strong bench stren~ 

to service not only the Count'/ but any of the mumcipaht1e 

that elect to cooperatively purchase from the County's del 

monttoring contract. 

We ook forward to serving the County and mun c patities 

way that we can following an emergency e•1ent We sincer 

hope that '/OU will find our proposal responsi•1e and of stro 

•1alue to the Wake County community. 

- Page 157 -



Company Information 
HDR Eng:neer"ng Inc of the Caroltnas 

3733 Nationa Dnve, SUite 207 
Rale•gh, NC 27612·4845 
Phone· (919) 232·6600 j Fax (919) 785·1137 
Je 1frey.Murrat.:-'hdrmc cam l UQL.:J...: co.,., 

Type of Consultant 
HDR Eng'neer'ng Inc of the Carolinas is a corporation. Our 

s gnator:es are l1sted 1n the table below. 

. . .... . ~ -
NAM£ "IC ( R lOCATION BUSINESS TITlE 

[ 

G !n E 'rr.e· 

EJ·:. nlu!:r~ I ~'· V ce P e; d~nt 

p ger \. CC~) Sr v (~ P·e; cent 

•:.rs ~.~:~:!~~- -~-;Vrc~ P;e;td•nt 

' r ce Grer. be 1 •i ·~·e' ert . 
J" at'lar H~,. Jer5~n ~ ·~ -e Fr2i:~~:"'t 

Year Established 

R~gior.al D re::or 

ChJrlct<e. ~~C ~IJtl BLs On H1cro/i.le~t ~lg 
--!---··- - --

ChJrlot!e. ~rC ' Tr anspa 5cs Gr~ ~hr.age· 
---~--·-- .. 

CI!Jrlotte. NC I Area .\lanager - --; ---
(narlotte. NC SF R~gro • al 'hr age 

Ralergh. N~ -'l_;.,~.n;etr< Punt p1 

HDR Ire was estabhshed .n Omaha. Nebraska in 1917 
The i'Jorth Carol'na off ce was establishea in 19,18 Former 

names mclude H DR Engrneerrng. Inc. of North Caral.na HDR 

ln:ras~ructure. Inc of No·th Caro rna. Henningsof'l Durham & 

Rrchardson, Inc ol North Caro ·na; and B.O. Vann::>rt Engmeers 

Inc 

\'lake County SeCilcr. o· Introduction 

(ol'1par.; ·nfor.,at<or: 

Primary Contact 
Jeff Murray. Project D1rector 

3733 t\at•onal Dr;ve SUite 207 
Raleigh NC 27612-4845 
(919) 232·5600 I Jeffrey Murray (l hdnnc com 

Financial Stability 

1-)~ 

As an employee-owned i1rm. our assets are managed and 

in Jested with except1onal care We have establ'shed strong 

risk controls and are comm1tted to managmg our company 

.,.,;than eye toward lorg·term frnanc'al health and stability 

Th.s commitment has enabled us to thnve for nearly 100 years 

in ever 1 economic en mon"Tlent and allows us to be a reliable 

partner for our clients 

Our fmancial statements are prepared and aud ted annually by 
Ernst & Yaung LtC me ud1ng a Federal AcqUJsrtJon Regulat1on 

audrt We are fmancrally sound w th gross re1enues rn excess of 

more than Sl 89 i:Jillron (2014) and a strang balance sheet with 

stockholders' equity m excess of 31 24 b'll1on (2014) 

Due to proposa· page restr ct•ons we are not abe to s:.~bm 1 t the 

full financra statem ·nts Fur reports are a1a lab e upon r que:;· 

~,-

I 

... 

;.1 
• 

~ 

- Page 158 -



- Page 159 -



• 

vVakc County 5ec or 02 I Technical Approach r J < 

• .. 
' .-Our team lives here and • • • •• • • 

• • • • • 
Our North Carolina area offices. 

Project Understanding 
Wake County is located in central North Carolina and includes 

a population of appro~imately 1 million residents. The County 

cor.sists of 857 SQUilre miles of area and 3u 0,000 parcels of 

land. Wake Count~· ir.rludcs the mun1cipalit es of Ape.<. Car;, 

f.J:l:Ja;-Varina. Garner. Holl'l Springs Knir~tdale Morris·Jille 

Raleigh. Roles•Jille. Wake Forest. Wendell. and Zebu on. 

Wake County has issued a Reque5t for Qua 1f1cat 0:1s (RFQ) 

to retain a f1rr.1 with e.<pertise in disaster debns monitoring in 

order to fulfill requirements of FE.'viA folio·:~ ng a Presidentially

declared disaster e•Jent. It i5 tl'>e County's in ten: to make this 

cor-tract a•1ailable to t:1e twei·Je incorporated mun cipalities and 

other Cou~ty go•Jernmental agencies \'lithin Wake County for 

cooperative purchasing should they so des~re 

We understand that, first and foremost. Wake County a:1d its 

municipalities need a f:rm to protect the'r fenanc1al interests 

by implementing a deb•is monitoring program that will 
document the qua11tities and eligibiiltJ of debris removed 

from Wake Count :I rignt-of·way (ROW) and other assigned 

areas. In addition, Wake County and •ts mun1c;pahties need 

a f1rm tr:at can assist them in preparing for and responding 

to a cisaster debris recovery effort in an orderly and efficient 

manner. We also understand that coordination amongst 

the local jurisdictions and with NCDOT and NCDENR will 

be an important element of this project. Our team is 1n a 
s:rong position to seamlessly assist with multi-jurisdictional 

coordination efforts given our strong local p·e:;ence and 

working relationships with both NCDOT and NCDENR. 

Professionals from tne HDR Raleigh office have also completed 

works here. We recognize the 

importance of adding value to 

our local community by solving 

tough challenges and inspiring 

positive change. We have been 

providing services in North 

Carolina since 1948 and have built 

solid working relationships vvith 

the majority of state agencies. 

numerous h1ghNay cmprovement protects. bndge and ra1' hne 

mspecllons and des gns and stud1es for NCDOT and ha'le a 

;;olid rapport with the state and local department leaders Our 

solid waste management teams in Raleigh and Charlot'e have 

wo~ked success:ully w1th NCDHlR officials for the pcrm•tting 

and compliance of various S"' d wa5te fac•l1ties across the state 
for more than 40 years. 

We feel strong!; that our locat•on in \Nake County and veteran 

leadership team can provide Wake County and its mumc•palit es 

·nith the service and responSI'Jeness you are lookmg for We 

ha·Je a vested interest 1n !:Jeing a part of Vla'<e Cou-:ty s d saste· 
recovery· effort; 

Time-Based Technical Approach 
Our approach to debris momt:mng IS a mul t1 step p-ocess 

that has been refmed through our staffs many years of freld 

e.<perience. Our ob ect1ve 1s s1mple - to maximize the non· 

local (federal and state) cos~ share to Wake County and 

it's municipaht'es for d•saster debris management recovery 

expenses We thoroughly understand the re mbursement 

process and the detailed audit process that the County will 

ultimately be subjected to. The sect .ons tra• 1o ow prov1de 

details on the spec1fic reco•1ery phases and tasks that we will 

dep oy in order to achieve an eff'c1ent and cos~ effect ve debris 

management prograM for Wake County 

The time• ne on the following page 'dent1fies severa. cnt•ca 

stages of the preparedness response recovery and close

out process and spec1fic activt!les tnat w1ll take place during 

each stage. 

RFQ :r15·0391 D·sastc· Dcbr s Montor ng Seu ces OS 

- Page 160 -



t ' 

Normalcy 
Preparedness 

72 Hours Prior 

48 Hours Prior 24 Hours Prior 

Impact 

Response 

0-24 Hours After 

24-48 Hours After 

·--- 48-72 Hours After 

72-96 Hours After 

Recovery 
1 Week After 

2+ Weeks After 

• I 

Close·Out 

Debris Hauling 

:::"' ;r .... . - ... ' , .. ... 
;·y· ::'/"'.·--·l .... s 

~ 1"r =-t:.::);; : '··: :-· ·a:-! \...~ ....... 

- Page 161 -



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Annual Training and Preparedness 
Efforts 
On an annual basis, our team will provide a half day tram ng 

workshop to County and municipal staff The traening \\ II focus 

on 1) refre5htng staff on FEMA debris eligibility r!!quirements 

and orocec re.;, and 2) pro·:iding updates or. any new FEMA 

po c•es or gu1dance. We v:i1! a so reviev. the County's disaster 

debr1s manage-nent plan and pre··~vent contract.; to •dent fy 

def ~ie;1c:es •'llos: importa;1tl;, our train•ng \'Jill focu 01 

real-1 fe best practices and mi5takes (th•ngs to a Joid) made ::> 1 

t1e Jurisd ct•on5. 

As specif'ed m tre RFQ, we are prepared to assist the Count11 

·:l'th v.ork to procure one or more qualified debris management 

CJnt•a:t ''s Our Project 'v1anager has assisted dozens of 

communities with their debris contractor procurement efforts 

Public Information Reporting and 
Awareness 
HDR e.:ce sat \'Jork1ng \'1 th local govemments to ed:..:~ate ·he•· 

elected off c a 5 and c•tizenry111 prepar ng for or resportdmg to a 

d•525ter e.ent We \•.ill \'!Ork "' :h tne Count·; to prepare OL.bl•c 
educatio- notices a;1d prepare press releases O;'l pro;:>er set· out 

procedures for debns. We w also produce daily reports tha· 

can be ·•td'zed to clearly commurucate progress 1n the reco•Jery 

effort t" elected or: cials and the general publ•c 

Debris Monitor Recruitment and Training 
Our team understar>ds ~he importance of utiliz ng t"le local 

Wa'<e Count'/ workforce as pa•t of the rec~very ef;ort W e 

•• ,; lr.ake every effort to h;re d •bri5 monitor sta'i from 1/·/a~e 

County \Ne ·:~i'l utilize a var ety of sources inc ud•ng prmt, 

radio. and inter1et (soc.al med•a) SOI.Jrces to recruit local s:aff 

We aiso an:icipate tha: gi 1en our large staff prese-ce in 1,'/a'.<.e 

County, we Viill be able to source quality staff :hrough our o•:,n 
m·ernal con:ae's (this IS b; far the best method to ~ec:ruiting to 

ensure Quahty ~taff) Prospecti·Je cancidates w•ll be asked to 

report to an HDR office or ano:her spec•fied location to apply for 

debris nonito•ing pos1t•ons 

Once ir.di·iduals hate pro•tided the necessary employment 

documentation and they ha Je been deemed qualif•ed to ser·te 

as a debris 'i'IOnitor. they wi receive training on the roles and 
responsibilities of a debris mon1tor. Specific e ements of our 

training program will include: 

• FEMA eligibility gUJdel1nes for disaster debris (FEMA 325 
and FEMA 327) 

• Authorized roacways (non Federal Highway Administra~ion 

(FHWA)) for County debris operations 

• Safety consicerat1ons for debris monitoring operat'ons. 

RFQ =15 039 D ;aster Deb s Mon1tor ng ScrJices 0'1 - Page 162 -



Health and Safety 
HDR takes the heath ard safe•y o' our personnel very senously as e /dent by our industry leadmg 

be ow a•terage Enterpnse Rrsk Management score. We ·.vd provrde appropr;ate safe:y vests 

(that must be worn a: all trmes) and rec;urremen!s for the proper attrre and identificarion t:1at our 

emp o~·ees wi:l wear rn order to protect them and present an appropriate image in the corr:munity 

\Ve wi:l advise our employees on poss•ble threats to their hea th and safety (trafiic hazards. 

dehydratron, insect bites. trrp and fall . etc ) a1d best practrces to prevent or minimize those nazards 

We will also conduct per odrc safe·/ tar gate talf(s regardrng safe· 1 •ss•,es of particular concern 

Emergency Push Operations 
\ Ve are prepared to ass st Wake County wrth emergenc:t road,•.a; clearar te actrt1t.e , in the 

immed ate aftermath of the e·Jent 1 hrs actrvrty will include help ng the CoJnty to rdentify blocked 

roads as \'/e as maintaimng 'rme and mater a logs for push equrpme1t (e g., loade•s. cha n saw 

workers etc) Particularly rf contractor crews a~e used for debris cleara1ce actrvrtres it rs crrtrcal 

that push equ p..,ent rs certrfred and ogs are i<ept of labor and equrpment t1me rn servrce and 

locallon urilrzed 

Damage Assessment/Debris Estimate Methodology 
Utdrzmg our e~pe"ienced drsaster recovery personnel anci our strong local presence of engmeers 

HOR rs uniqueiJ' prepared t( assrst Wa<e County with the damage assessment process Our 

methodolog 1 lor estrmatrng f r the quant t es of debr·s generated b; ad saster rs bur ton two 

pr.mary methods 1) utrrz,ng debrrs est ma·rng modes created b; t'1e U.S Arm/ Corps of Engineers 

(USACf.) and 2) most rmportantl•j d••ve b/ v•c;ual surveys of our exper enced personnel to 

determ ne the approxrmate geographrc scope of the d1saster and ;here allte damage on a per 

property le tel Qurte srmply. there IS no better method of debris estrmat•on other than drrve·by 

surveys b/' e~perie'lced per5onnel and cotlaboratron amongst those nd1vidua s to agree on an 

approxrmate range of damage (tJ'ptca If n cub·c yards) 

Truck Certification 
Our team wrtl ass st Wake Count;and ts debfs ccntractor(s) in rden·.tying an approprrately sized 

stag ng area for debris contractor trucks to gather for the truck certrircation process to begin. As part 

of the truck certri cation process. the cub c 1ardage capacity of the storage area of a truck or trailer rs 

meas ... red Th1s calculat•on establishes the baseline b'f whrch load ca l's (percentage full) are made b/ 

tower mon•tors to derermme the quanrt1 of debris that a particular debris creN wilt be paid for each 

load that they col ect In add•t.on to truck measurements photographs are taken of the truck/tra1ler 

exter cr the 1nsrde of the truclc: or trarler ca•dy and of the drrver Eacn haulrng unit recerves a placard 

wrth a .m que denlifrcat on nLmber as well as the capacrty of the hau ng unit 

We understand the cntrca rmportance of the truck certrfication process and as such, w1l make 

certarn that volume calculat•ons are checked for accuracy 

Debris Management Site Identification and Permitting 
HDR understands that debr s management srtes (OMS) are often t mes challengmg to rdent ify ·n 

metropo tan areas We are prepared to ass•st Wake County and/or rts contrac ted debrs 1aulers to 

rdent rfy potential .mde•1eloped parce s vra G1S analysis. We can estabrsh cn tena for OM S parcels and 

shorthst potential publ1c or prrvate propert•es S1te inspectrons can then be performed to determine rf 

srtes can be permrtted and the•r SUi tabili ty for debris management operat ons 
- Page 163 -



HDR also has a strong relatronsh1p w1th the NCDENR and can 

ass st the County or debr s haul r n perm1•tm~ debris sites 

and "Tla,ntain'ng the docurre.,ta on requ•red to fulfill the 

perm t ·equ rene 115 

Right-of-Way Monitoring 
Ai·er rnonotors have been tramed, trucks have been certif1ed. 

ard debr s ma"Jagement Sites ha·1e been dentdied and jjrepared 

to rcce 1C debns HDR \'II \'/Ork with the Cou,ty and debris 

hau er • comrnen:c r<OW de!::ris remo~a operations. C'ebris 

rro:" ta·s ml sign nand s1gn ou· ea:::r. day at an HDR specified 

I ·ca' 0" (e ~her an o'f1ce o· te'11po~ar 1 c:onst·uction trailer). 

Debr,s mo'1 :ors •:Jill be ass gned to a crew (a crew typical y 

mclude; anywhere from· to 3 trucks that a·e \'JOrking together 

1n a def1ncd geographiC area that a monttor ran functionally 

ob;erve) F1eld supe";isors ~·, II also be dep eyed at roughly a 

110 ratm of f1eld mon•tors m o·der to coord nate acti•Jtties of the 

debns man tor. main;a1n our cul,ure o: safety. and resolve any 

1ssues that may occur in the f1eld. 

Tailgate safet1lalks will b' performed on a pcrodic basis •o 

reMtnd rnoni'ors of safe~y :ssues of particu a• con ern. 'v'le 

·1·end to ma.ntam commun1catio11 wi~h mJrtt rs by e1ther radio 

or cnll co·.e·age when a'lai'able 

If debr s volumes wa·rant. we •::ill u~iltze a Lo t m~ted debris 

'7la'1ager.ent S'ls·cm (A0.\15) technology to record deoris 

RO\V and hazardous tree collection locat1on<. t•uc< and monitor 

'lumber' date a"ld time of collect on. and otner crit'cal data. 

;\ 1oderr AD/\ 15 5'/Stems have been pro·1en to increase the 

efftc•enc1 of debris moni:()nng by reducing data entry efforts. 

HDR w 1t also develop and maintam GIS based maps that report 

en first pass second pass. incident sites and other critical 

gel spa• at data 

Daily Briefings and Reporting 
Dunng t1r.es of criss commun•cat1on o'te'l brea<s down It 1s 

cnt1ca that t1e debris management tea-n ser 11ng Wa'<e County 

and ts munic•palities communicate effectively and clearly on 

avera I mrss on. da1l1 mtss1on. progress be ng made. areas for 

1mproverrer.t and any areas of particular concern The County 

has spec fred a number of daily reports m 'ts RFQ and HDR is 

preoared to meet those requirements. 

For the kst week of deb6s re-noval operat'ons, we recommend 

tw•ce das y (morning and evening) brief1ngs between the 

local government agency (County/City), debr s contractor(s). 

and debns momtor personnel. It is often benefic1al to mclude 

State. FEMA USACE. and/or other regulatory agency staff as 

necessary. At the Cr:unty s request. HDR w produce a daily 

agenda and record minu~es and action items from the meeting. 

The Projec• :'vlanage~ is prepared to factlitate the meet1ng on 

a daily basis as necessary. As the recovery effort rots on and 

operations become normalized. meettngs are ·1p ca. y cut to 

once per day. 

leaner, Hanger, Stump (LHS) Monitoring 
Hazardous tree programs ca-; be compte~ and are often 

the most ike > element of a debns managenent effort to 

re:::ei•;e deobl igat'ons from FE v1A. This is because exte'lsive 

do::umenta:ion ·s required t:: document ha;:ard us tree 

programs (including multiple photographs per cut wh1ch 

create data storage challenges). FEMA hils specrf1ed t1ght 

eligibility guidel;nes for eaners hangers, and stunps and most 

LHS programs result ·n subsequent fie d aud ·s b•{ State and 

FEMA staff. 

Improvements ha·Je been made to LHS m.m ~onng programs 

as a result of ADMS tech~otogy Us;ng ADMS handhe ds. HDR 

v1ill collect necessary hazardous tree freld documentat1on in 

real time. From the field data colle:t.on effort. a database wrfl 

be created that allow,; for rapid co; tractor imo ce reconcihallor: 

and auditing as necessary. 

Debris Management Site Monitoring 
Our team is prepared tr- assist the County and 1ts contractor(sJ 

in assessing (identifying and permott ng add,'ional &ites 1f 

necessary), and operating selected OMS local ons Th1s Will 

include making sc;re that s1tes are ;::~roperly estab shed '/lith 

approp~iate t~uck queuing capac1ty towers ght ng. restrooms. 

etc. We will also photo·document the s1te period .:-ally dunng 

the course of the project 

Staffing: Typically. two OMS monitors per tower are adequa'e 

Sites that ha·;e par ticularly high volume (near the begonn ng o' 

the job) and/or lo·.'l volume (near the end oi the ob .vhen few 

truc~s are r~,;nning) may require more or less tower mon1tors 

Permitting and Regulatory: HOR has a long h story of 

permitting soltd waste management sites in North Care 1na. We 

will assist the debris contractor and the County in providing the 

proper documentation to NCDENR to rapidly permit temporary 

debris si:es. if necessary 

Documentation: Since it IS our mtent to ut1lize an ADMS 

system, paper documentation will be minimal. Load calls will be 

documented 111 our electronic ADMS system. We w tt maintain 

RFQ ~15-039 'D1saster Debns Mon·tor ng Ser·1ices 09 
- Page 164 -



I '1! rr , ' , ' , , ' , ' I r 
(I f I I I 

' ' ' ' , i , 
f f I I 

' I 
I I ... , ,,,,, , 

' ' .- ' f ' , f I 

i ' 

a d S;:Josal monitor log a: the tower that l""lainta ns a wntten 

rl - " rd of each load that passes by tne tov1er ( ncluding date 
\lme truck number. capacity, load calf, etc) Paper logs reman 

mporta:-:t ir. the rare e•;ent of an e ectron•c da·a loss 

Residential Drop~Off Site Support 
Res1dential drop-off s•tes are often good alternat•ves for those 

res dents that have self-haul :::apab lity and want t ' hand'e 

debris hauling on the1r own Drop·o'f sites are often located 

on smaller parcels (compared to contractor managed D,'v15 

locat•ons) and may mclude a smal loader to keep debr 5 pushed 

up after unloading by resrdents There are several1mportart 

elements to residential drop-off 5 tes mc1L dtng traff1c contra 

and documenting that only resident al customers are bnng ng 

matenal to the :s te Our team is prepared to pro11de the 

necessary staff.ng and support to Wake County to manage an; 

res.dential drop oif s1tes that the ( ounty or its mJmc palitles 

cnoose to o;:>en 

Specialty Operations 
In extreme cases debns removal programs beyon d the standard 

ROW ma; be requ ired We are prepared to assist Wake 

County .n mak,ng the legal argument for the i11portance of 

these :Jrograms and obtair.ing FEMA authorization for these 

spec a tJ programs. 

Private Property Debris Removal (PPOR): In the interest of 

public health and safety 1t may be 1n the County's interest to 

tmplement private property debfiS removal programs We 

car. assts t the Co-.~ntJtn mak1ng the legal argument as well as 

ga·her ng the necessary legal documental on (right of entry 

agreements. etc ) to support these prog·ams 

Demolition: A m ore extreme vers1on of PPDR. HDR can ass•st 

Wake County 1n mplementing demohtion programs including 

the necessary legal, enwonmental and ut;l,ty work invol•1ed 

1n adm1n1stenng tnese programs We can ass•st the County 

With asoestos and/ or hazardous mater;a. teshng as well as 

coordmat ng w1th local ut'" ties for uttl1ty d•sconnects. 

Waterway Debris Removal: D1sasters can often result n 

underwater hazards to nav·gat1on and/or clogged dramage 

ways We can ass1st Wake Coumy and its munic1pa 1ties 1n 

work"ng with aopropnate funding agencies (Nat1onal Resources 

Conservat1on Serv1ces ( .\JRCS) FEMA etc) to determ ne 

programmafc ehg1bihty and adm1n1ster these programs 

Data Management and Contractor 
Invoice Reconciliation 
Debns mon1:or•ng operations generate large vo1..,mes oi data 

that s necessary to support s·ate and federa re r1b~rsernent 

From Day 1 foflowmg ad sasler, a program must be establ shed 

and mamta1ned to record, comp•le, d g t ze and store rr t ica 

da·a (pe·m ts. contracts ema"l comm un·cat on from Stat€ and 

FEMA sta'f e~c ) 

Perhaps the most important part of a debris momtonng 

operation ·s contractor invo1ce reconciliation We will provide 

the County's debris contractor w1th a spec1f'ed format for each 

mvoice ftle (tha' are typica 'ly large data set files document'ng 

each load hau ed d ... ring a speCi fied period of dates). The 

cortracton ir.vo•ce will then be compared aga1nst our 

ADMS records to either approve or re1ect eac" load (due to 

d1sr repancies that w 11 not pass aud1t) Any d"screpancies that 

are 1dent1f1ed w be pro•11ded to the contractor for correction 

and re·submittat Once all d screpanc1es have been cleared 

the contractor subm"ts an in •1oice w1th associated back-up that 

IS rev.ewed aga nand approved by HDR. HDR w·ll then issue a 

pajment recommendat"on fetter to the County 

Close~Out and Appeals Support 
The conclusion of debris hauling operations and f1nal approval 

oi invoices is by no means the end of a debris removal mission 

It often takes FEMA se•Jeral years to close-out a disaster event 

and that often requires a significant amount of communication 

between state anci FEMA auditors to provide them with 

necessar:t documentation. respond to inquiries, etc. 

In some cases, FEMA may deny reimbursement under which 

case an appeal may be warranted. Our team- including Dan 

Craig and Steve Glenn of Tidal Basin- is prepared to assist the 

County with any appeals for reimbu rsement that may occur. 

-

- Page 165 -



As an employee-owned company, nothing is more trrportant tc 

us than health and safety of our employees and partners Thrs 

1s reflected in how we live and work in offices and on proJects 

across the globe Safety is an embedded part o' our culture and 

a cons1sten' e;rphas·s on ever; project. Our goal s atwa{S that 

eve·yone asso ated wtth our pro,e::ts goes home safe 

We support and gro•:: our sa'ety culture throwgh a 

c mprehensiJe hea ·hand safety program that has rece Jed 

nat onal·ecog1non for excellence This program 1ncludes 

ex tens •1e ma~datory safe:·; tra•ning io~ all emplo;ees ard 

s suppor:ed by a tea.., of ce~tified safety professtona s. Our 

s~'et} profess ona she p project teams r:a•:igate the sor1et mes 

::o1'1p:e~ web of toea and national hea!th and safet1 reg Ia· ons 

.Ve u;dersta"1d tnat r.o project 15 tne same and develop 

custom·f1t safety p1ans to aodress each project's un1aue needs. 

Our sale'/ approach focuses on ctie;-;t requirements a·10 ds 

ace dents that coLid result in unplanned dela~·s. and reduces 

chent s o·Jerall proJeC ·isk. 

Safety Matters 
We care about our people and were dedicated to keeptng them 

sate Our low safety rates and cerltf1ca~ion b; third·part·; revrew 

programs sho.v we're senous about safetJ 

2014 0.73 
EMR 

1.00 

201 d 0.08 
DART 

0 3 

2014 0.53 
TCIR 

0.8 

Our nterna Debns Monrtonng Health and Sa'ety Plan and our 

nterna Debr·s Momtoting Training Program are rncluded under 

separate cover wrth this subntssion. 

Wake County ~e t Training +Safety 

- Page 166 -



l 

- Page 167 -



Wake Coun•, S · Qualifrcations of Consultant 

The strength of our team s 1n the expenence a;'ld expertrse of our senior prorect team members The sectron bela~·. pro1rdes a 

sJmmary tab e hrghlightrng oJr team's experience wrth sor.1e of the largest debns remova' m ss ons in U S h1story fofrowed by 

detatled pro ect descrrpt,ons for severa of our mo·e hrgh profile projects Our collectrve staif ex;:Jenence ref e ~ ted below has bee., 

garned wh'le worlt·ng a: HDR as wei as other lead ng rndJstry firms .. 

\Ve ha;e bee · rnt ma~ely imolved rn he prng state a'1d local go·1ernment ager1cres recover f•om ca~astroph c natura d sasters for 

-na:1y decades ho.ve•Jer our teams experrence n the las: te, years leads the rndustry Our team has been rout ne y hired by ground 

zero commun ,toes because the; reqUire the expertrse of the leadrng staf• n the ndustry 

,~DR TEAM EXPERIENCE , 

, "' ., 
. I -- - -- --

cc,.,sacol,,. Fl 2 000 " " S3'.A • f R M Lel"'don Hotle, c~ 'lSCii =\oj 
-----·-

Qq'nosl Coun· -:. 2 0 "' .. s )( i'v'O HDR Pc.,~a-·o a Oiirc~ 
-· ·~ --··-- I 

F orrca Dc;:Jt. f .: 0 00 " ., ., ~ .... , YR IV\ . cndon Hoyle. Co~ s ! !I 

'v\ ar.1o Da:le Count/. FL .. , 
" 1 YR Counse McLend '" 

\A a"'lo, FL 300 000 " 
, ., $750< 6 '1110 rlOR vl am Oii e ----- --- - I --·---· 

P antatior., FL 425 000 ., J " 
;!M i 6MO •VIc end n --·- -

Ft Laude,dale, FL .!00 000 ., ., 
" $1 25'11\ 6MO Mclendon -----

6 MO I Mc_endon Ho l;wooc. FL 355 000 ~ "' 
., S800K 

-· ··--·--

1 -Cooper Crty, fL 80 000 ., ., ., $200 '< ~ MO \Ac_en:lon 
I 

New Orle3!"S, !..A iSO 000 " " 
., SSM 5 YR McLendon H yle Counseil -------

Gulfport, MS 2 500 000 ~ .., 

l~ 
SSM 1 YR McLendon H yle, Counsell 

Hamson Count/. MS 1 750 000 ... , S4M 1 YR Mclendon Hoyle. Counsell - ·-----.-.-
- Page 168 -



" 

HOR TEAM EXPER I ENCE 

Fan· a· O"l !! .; "' ., 51 7·:N 6 '.tiO •'~~' crd ., 

H .. "' "' " - , A I 0\1 \ rd 

c opc·C,:, - " .. " :'25- < 6\10 v erd 
' 

a :le <ld e F -0000 ., "' ., 0 \i10 ~: _end , 

Fer'lor ~c P111c 92'> 000 "' ., ., cn:l ., 

- Page 169 -



I 

W~~e County Sec<•or. 04 Qualifications of Consultant r J ~ 

Project Experience 

1. Wake County Projects 
HDR has ass stec the Wake County Salta Waste rv\anagemen· D /s1on on a •~tmety of prOJerts for more than ten years The work has 

m::luded ieas·bi'll'/ studies for waste to energy ana organ•cs dtvers on andftll airspace and sotl managel'"1ent analys s des•gn re\tew 

owner's representat•ve for Iandi 'I con5tructton env•ronmenta comp tance mon,toring, and perm tt·ng and des gn for the East Wake 

Iandi• I capping system repa.r, de·Je op,..,en· of conceptual mprovements to a conve11ence center and erosior'l and sed 1'"1en· contra 

perrntttlng vnth NCDEN~ Je:f M•Jrraf has served as the C e~t Vanager and P•o1ect Manager for many of these as5 gned tasks nee 

JOin,ng HDR in 2013 

2. City of Galveston, Texas I Hurricane Ike 
0 Septer.:Jer 13 2008. the City of Gal•1eston was struc~ \'ltth the h gh v. nds and catastrophic storm surge of Hurricane Ike Desp·te 

t1 Ctys '7 foot <allsea.vatl that faces the Gulf of Mex'co storm surge and waves echpsed the top of the ~·1all. Because Ga veston ts a 
relati'Je;y tn ., barrier ISland, r:;uch of the tsland was f coded b't gu i or oa ;-s·de storm surge. 

Pro ect ~.la-:age· Chuck Mcle;;don, served as !he Pronc1pa n Charge a-d Project t\t1anager for the debris management re• very 

effort Chuck ass•sted w1th a nurr:>er of cnltcal funct ens tncludtng 

• Cert f, r.g ctocument'ng, and program manag ng an erre·gency push opera'ton that included :he rerno·tal of large quant t es of 

beach sand 

• Cor1d ctmg ar1 1sland·wide damage assessment and ca culat ng costs pro1ect'ons 

•· lmplementtng a RO'W collection program fore g1ble debns that collected o•Jer 3 million cubic yards 

• Overseetng a hazardous tree remo·tal ad collect.on program 

• Fa::tli:at ng da11; meettngs with FEMA, State of Texas. and other rele•Jan· part1es on the recovery effort 

• Implementing c household hazardoJS waste ard wl;ite goods collectiOn program 

• Mont loring an abandoned •tehicfe removal program With the Galveston Poltce Jepartment resultmg from hundreds of veh,cles eft 

b'/ crUtse sh1p passengers at the Port of Galvesto1 cru1se ship termir"al 

• A~•,st•ng th" Cit 1 and debris con:ra .. tors to secure lease agreements for two debm management s tes on tne sland 

0., t-e bass of economic reco·tery, Chuck ~t1cler'lct~n \'Jas also able t..~ ass st t1e Ct!y in prepanng a legal arg ment to allow the C1' 1 

to prov1de ROW col ect on to small commerCia bus ne• ses 11 the downto•:,n area of Ga teston. Debrs rem J ta irom comme•coa 

bus r.esses IS t;p•call1 no• ehg:ble for FEMA fund ng 

Chuc'< furt'ler ass•sted w1th the long t •r,.., re mbursem! nt pror•·~• r respondmg to data ca. sand questtons from FEtv1A and 

S!ate representatPtes 

3. Municipalities of Broward County, Florida I Hurricane Wilma 
Broward County Flo·•da sa large metropol tan county located m SoJtheast Flonda The County popu'atton mcludes more tha1 1 7 
m •ll on people- near 'I a I of whtch reside n ncorporated Ctt'es On Oc- tober 24, 2005 Broward County was str.Jck b'/ the high w nds 

of H.Jrrtcane W lma. Rather than a tradittonal east to west approach. H ,..rr cane Wtlma struck the County irom ·re west (across the 

Pentnsula of Flo,da) There was discussion that the storm actua ly gained stre1gtn as •t raced across ·he F orida E·Jerg•ades- str ktng 

Dade, Broward and Pa rn Beach counties 

Wh e Pres de1t and COO o; BDR. Chuck served as the Pnnc pal in Charge for the debns management effort fore gnt of Sroward 

County s largest cit1es includ ng Ft Lauderda e Hollywood, Pembroke P•nes Miramar, Plantat1on. Cooper City, Tamarac a.,d 

Lauderda e Lakes as well as the City of Boca Raton tn Palm Beach County He dep eyed debns mon1toring teams to each o' the cit1es 

and provtded genera overs ght of all BDR ope rat ons 1n Broward County Debns momtormg operat tons Included ROW collectiOn, 

debns managements te overs1ght. hazardous tree remova ar.d waterways debr s remo•Ja Chuck's Broward County team oversaw 

nearly 4 mtl on cubic yards of debris rem ova process ng and dlsposa'/recycl ,ng 

R"Q =15·039 , 0 sastcr Deb· s Mon tJrtng Sert ccs 1S 

- Page 170 -



As a res1o1lt of BDR's strong periormance for the municipalities of Browa·d County BDR was subsequent.y a.varded the pre-posttion 

debr s nonitoring contract with Brow3rd County (the scope of which would ·nclud ng ROW co•lect1on for the untncorporated County 

and DMS site monitonng for se·1era County-operated debris management Sites) 

4. Santa Rosa County, Florida I Hurricane Dennis 
Hurr cane Denn s made a d1rect h t n Santa Rosa County be;weer'l Pe,sac<.la Beach and Na1arre Bead- on Jul;lO 2005 It was a; 

eady season sto~m and caused w despread •:/nd related damages lucl< y the County d1d not suffer the coastallloodmg of hones 

fran storm surge as it d d w1th Hurrica;e !Jan. 

Ha·/ng grown -P •n Sar:ta Rosa County, P•oject Manager Chuc'< 'kle;do~ offered ass•stance to the County to prov de d•saster deb·1s 

r.omto· ~g ser•/ces r:..e Co.mty had re· ent•y recovered from Hurnca •e IJa:; (2004J onl 1 to be h1t aga n approxtmatel; one year 

later The Cou:1ty used •nterna sta'· tom n·t r the 2004 debris rem ova effort ana had some concerns about performmg the crit1ca 

fun::t1on aga1:- io~ Hur· ca;e De-;n·s gi 1en 1~ .. ,. limited staiitng 

(hue< pr ·1ided asSIStance to the Coun'y in estabhshmg the necessary debros momtor•ng program management mfrastructure He 

he ped to ra;:: dly beg.n tO,e perr. tt ;g process for debns managements tes and qu ck y bu t a team to beg n true< cer!lf cat10ns 

I\ lore than 100 local stal' were h1red to conot.:ct the deoris monitonng process m the County 

Based o" feedbac< from Coun· 1 staii, tre cf'o•ts Jed by Chuck resulted n 100 percent re mbursement w1th very fe:; quest10ns rased 

d.Jr'ng the audt! and c ose ·ou· pcrod He has continued to provide emergency management and env ronmental related serv1ces to 

Santa Rosa since th s event 

Jon Hoy e and ·'.athan Counsell of TCS were pa·t of Chucks pro1ect management team m support•ng Santa Rosa County on th1s 

debns remova mission 

5. Escambia County, City of Pensacola, and FOOT District 3 I Hurricanes Ivan and Dennis 
Hurri1ane l·ta1 r.a.:le a;dfal as a Category 3 humcane JUSt west of Pensacola Flonda m August 200~ Ivan produced a catastrophiC 

s-orm surge tna• '"Oded and destroyed hundreds of homes a1d created more than ten mi lion cub1c yards of debris across the Flor~da 

Panha~die and S.J .. th Ala:>ama Appro~ .,a·ely one year later. Hurncane Denms made Jandfal ·n the Flor da Panhandle - prior to the 

comple:ion of Hurrcane I•Jan recovery efforts 

A nati te of the Pe sa co a. ~ area Chuck 'vlclendon served as Pnnc pa m Charge and ProJect Manager for Escambta County the C ty 

of Pensacola and Flor.da Do~ Distr ct 3 for t"~e Hurr.cane l·tan and Denn s recovery efforts He a1d h s sur.~port team were on the 

grou1d ai'ld wori<..ng \'/th eac" of these c en·s w·th n hours of the event pass ng 

The debris reno 1a m ss:or. f~r Hurricane l.an n part cu ar wa~ mass1•te- w th the County a one us ng as many as:;, debn~ removal 

cortractors (ass gned to specific zones) ar.d more than f 1e ma,or debr s .,anagement s1tes As nany as 600 debns mon tors were 

deployed 0:1 a da•ly basis for County o;Jerat ons 

One of the more challeng'ng elements o' ·he ·.·1ork for Escamb a County was clearmg the beaches of Pensacola Beach and Perdido 

Key. Chuck he ped to organize and adm1r ster a pmate property rogrt of entry program that removed excess sand from within beac:n 

front homes and prope~~•es and placed tne sand back on the beach for screen•ng Rough y 20 m1 es of beach on Pensaco•a Beach and 

Peroido Key were s1fted, screened. and shaped .n order to ensure that the beaches - the economtc I feblood of the F onda Panhandle 

- could be safe y reopened. 

Chuck also o•1ersaw the establishment and ope·at•ons of a pnvate property r ght of entry prog•am for hazardous trees on pnvate 

property as well as a waterways debris remo'lal program Jon Hoy!e and Nathan Counsell of TCS worked with Chuck dunng the 

Hurrcane Ivan recovery effort and were ·nstrumenta fn the recovery effort - Page 171 -



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Wa~c Count' • --· c ' Qualifications of Consultant 1-)~ 

6. Dare County, North Carolina (and municipalities) I Hurricane Irene 
Pro·ect Manager Chuck Mclendon served as Princtp21 1n Charge and Project Manager for debns momtonng ef;orts on beha f of Dare 

'-ounty. No·th Caro1 ,..am response to Hurricane Irene Chuck oversa.v debris mon·tonng efforts for the County as we las severa 

)"TlmUn't es In thl c ount;mr ud ng Kttty Ha :Ji< K l De I Ht s Southern Shores Duck and Ma.,teo As gntftca"· po·· :);1 of the 

jebm tra• \'J3S generated ., the County resu ted from ba; s de storm surge 

7. Jefferson Parish, Louisiana I Hurricane Isaac 
Hurr cane saac made landfa1 JUSt we>t of the o'vltss•ssipp Rver ·n Jefferson Parish lou sana on August 12 2012 as a Category· 

hu~r cane. Chuck 1vklencon ser•Jed as Project .vlanager for debn> mo1itoring efforts for Jefferson Par sh Debris momtoring efforts 

tncluded truck certif cation. r g1t of wa1 collect10n "TlOnttormg hazardous tree collection monitonng and d sposal s·te moritonng J-le 

also assis'ed the Pa•tsh in estab sh ng_a.,d opera• ng t'.·.o htg~. to ume residert al drop-off s"tes 

I 8. Escambia County, Pensacola, Florida I Emergency Flood Response Support 

I 
In ate April, 2014, the Flor da Panhandle was pelted \',oth near!',' 20 ·nches o' ram o•Jer a 24-hour pertod Escambta County, Flor da 

(Pensacola) experienced w1despread flooding and ma1or asses to road. bridge. and dra nage mfrastructure 

HDR was retained by the Co nt 1 to ser•;e as ·he County's General Con sultan• for the reco1ery effort We assisted tne County n 

organizing its damage assessnent efforts tn'o d1screte pro ects and provtd:ng supporter assegneng prc,e~ts to e1ther the County Road 

Depar~ment or th rd party cons:ructton contractor(s) viJe also conducted prelimtnary eng neer ng assessments on a number of s tes 

V11tn potential structural damage 

HDR stafi prov ded p·orurement su;Jport J .n ude wnton?. scopes .~r ,.,ark for emergency procurenen· efforts 'Ne ha 1e a so 

pro·tided as~ st'lnc:e to the County n procJr"ng a debrts contractor remo•;e flood debr s from the r ght of •:;aJ 

HDR 1s pro·11ding re mb rsement support as the County apphes for reimbursement w th FHJIA sPA Program as •:tell as the Federal 

Htgh:;ay Adm n stra·10n s Emergent:/ Relief (FH'NA·ER) program. In total, 24 homes were des•royed. more than 1,000 homes 

\'Jere flooded, two dam or; were los~. and more than 700 sites of Count~ mfrastructure were d3maged Un nsured losses to County 

nfrastructure are pre 1m naniJ estinated at roughly $100 r-t1llion. 

9. Okaloosa County, Florida I Hurricane Ivan Debris Management 
:'1mediatel'/ after Hum cane !·Jan de 1astated the Fiend a Panhandle on September b· 

16, 2004. HDK responded to a req oest to assist tn debris remo•Jal for Okaloosa Count 1 

·one of HDR s pranc•pal c ents 1n Northwest Fonda. HDR \•Jas a.varded a Sl S m hen 

contract for Debr s Removal Management a-d a 520 000 contract for Structura 

"I am ecstatic with the 

Analysis from Okatoosa Cou-;t 1 

Debris Removal Management I HDR immed"ate y fT'ob zed a debr;s men taring team 

to ti-e Co..:nty a'ter the storm Wtth•n a few days HDR ll:red, tratned, and mobthzed 

debr s non tors to oversee rtght of way collectiOn act11it es HDR also supported 

the C\.unty by provid~ng tower monitonng and load calls at the County s debris 

managements tes HDR ass1sted the County and et s debns removal con·racto·s'" 

collecting approximately 600,000 cubtc yards of debns {vegetattve and C&D) Th"s 

ncluded nearly 1.100 loads of debns per day of operat on. HDR s documentation 

ensured that Okaloosa County obta•ned max1mum FEMA re T"'lbursement for the 

County s debr~s remo•;al act"v t•es 

performance of HDR 

and once aga in, I can 

simply make the cal 

and HDR is there. " 

Oan.e le s•aterpryce 

Oka'oosa County Public Works Director 

- Page 172 -



Struc:tural Analysis I The day after Humcane l1an h•t :he Flonda panhandle ofi•c•a s from Okaloosa County requested HDR to 

assemble a team of four st·uctural engmeers to evaluate structures on the coastline and throughout the County that ma1 ha•Je 

susta1ned damage from the s·orm W1th n two days HDR had a team of t:,•ee structural eng;neers and o:'le arch•tect to beg1n 

the assessments 

i\la:1y of the bu tongs on the beach had e~per enced s•gn f can· dan-age espec•a lyon the f.rst floors , w th complete wash OJ! of 

o·ea<en1a1 structues 3"1d o1er 9·feet of sand depos ts HOR comp•eted the s(ructurat eva uat ons o: a of the buildings over t·.~o 

s·ones w ·h 1 one wee~ and a so ass sted the County s bu ld :1g department v. t-: r de·out nspect1 ns of the balance of the affected 

S'ructures ·::•th n the County 

10. South Carolina Department of Transportation 
;; Februar 1 2014 w·nter Storm Pa, a po,•;erful•ce storm. coated an 18 County a·ea 1n Sou~h Ca~olina 

'.'1 th up ·a 1 5 of ICe a.,d generated •:/despread Jegetat1ve detlr's SCOOT a:•11ated 1ts pre-event 

cortra~t .,., 'h TCS ··.,., •nitor as x coJr.t•; area'" the eastern part of the state •nc udrng Harry 

George'o;.n W amsbL.rg F orence 0•1 on. and Ma·•on Countres. res mon1tored documen·ed. and 

substant•ated re mburse'"1ent for the re1nova oi ;,200.000 cub1c yards of debfls ard the removal of 

hazardous I rr3s f·om 175 000 hazardous •rees b; three Prrmary Debns Remo·1a contractors TCS 

cor-tmues to support the SCOOT b 1 provid•ng FEMA Pub· c Assistance Categor; A and 8 cor,;ulti~g 

ser•ttces res ,s overseetng the p•eparat on of more than 11"' large ProJect Worksheets on behalf of 

SCOOT and reco1er'ng n-ore thafl $155,000 000 in funding 

11. Aiken County, South Carolina 
In Februa:'f, 2014 Wtnter Storm Pa , a powerful tee storm coated an 18 County area n South Carol'na 

•:,ith up to 1.5" of rce and generated 'lltdespread 1egetat1ve debr s A ken County actuated a contract 

'.'.rih TCS follow•rg a1 emergency procurement to mont tor debns reno tal from ..=ount1 maintatned 

roads anc park5 TCS mon.:ored. docume1ted and substant a ted retmbursement for the remo·:al oi 

1,500,000 cubtc yards ol debrrs and tne removal of hazardous mbs from bS 000 hazardous trees 

12. United States Army Corps of Engineers, Vicksburg District 
T S pnt ded 2<:0 debr~s monitonng inspectors to support the Hurncane Katrtna reco1ery effort i:1 multiple count;es i1 southern 

Miss1ss•ppi TCS mobilized 100 Inspectors 1n 3 days and reached the US ACE staffng goat of 250 within the trme·frame established 

by the m1ss1on managers TCS debrrs remotal n-on•tor·ng responsro•l t1es mcluded dat y quality assurance •nspection,load trcke~ 

preoarat;on. da'ly reports. by County and p·oject record keep'ng TCS •nspectors mon tored the collectron of over 7 million cubtc 

yards of debns thought out the misston. TCS also ser•Jed as a ha•son between the USACE. state agencies and county representattves 

to report debr s remova progress and resolve issues n ·he! e'd There were no FEMA re·mbursement 1ssues on this project 

- Page 173 -



In today s legal envtronment, cla'ms and ht galion are a 
reahty for any large company m the indus•ry regard less of 

performa;1ce or merit. 1Nhen claims do occur. we are proactt •Je 

and coopera: vein reaching a reso lttion that tS fa;r ao;c 
reaso.,able ~o all. We value the onfider:ces of our cherts c:s well 

as our contractua cor."'mitments to con' dent'alit~· and do '10t 

d scuss v:ith thord parties tne c:rcumstances tmolv ng ong Jtng 

projects. 'We \'lodd take the same position \'lith tnforr.atttn 

regard·ng our .~ark on this project. 

li necessary, \'Je would be willing to meet tn person wtth you to 

dtscuss the merits or bac~ground of past claims There are no 

clatms or litigation that could impede our abtlity to perforrr t t.. s 

project. a.,d we !'>ave maintained profess onalliab lot 1 nsurance 

i:1 force continually since 1958 for tbe pr· te:::~ion f us and 

our chents. 

Wa~e County I ~ ,! o Claems 

\ 

\ 
\ 

- Page 174 -



20 hdrinc.cotn 
- Page 175 -



--

Wake Coun:y St>ct:o. 06 I References 

Our teal'1" tal(eS great pr de 1n the serv1ce that we prov•de to our cl er.ts 1 here is no better testament to the quahty of our work 

tr.an persona• testaments from these cl•ents that we serve We are co"lfident that the clients referenced below can assert as to the 

responsl'ter.ess quality and profess1onaltsm of our team 

. . ~ -. . - " - - . . .. . . . -
REFEREN rf IN rD RMATION 

J m Ho.ves. Soha \'/aste Ooerat1o~s \1a.,a;;er 
E~ arrbra Co•Jn!y. Fl~n:!: 
'3 )09 Be<.Jiah P..Jad 
Ca~:o1·~en~. FL 3253~ 
(B5J> 937·2'60 
;,O','Je;.: co es:a~t> J 1 '•s 

t.. .•> '.',- ;faelo ?:..~ c \\'ork:. ::> re~·or 
So-::a ?osa Co-~"tl Fl 
:;.::;;:; Ca·oke 5:. 5, te ."·.' 
'.' t:;,r Fl32570 
<e::o: 3;3.9771 
31 s.•1 ~ sa;-Jta·osa.'l go, 

C.,ar e K2'l;·. Eme·_sen.; Mana~er.- ert Coord nator 
Ga'·1est~., Co•J:"I:·; C11m'1al Justo:e :.e~ter 
:SOl 54th St 
Ga es'J:'l, n: 77551 
(,!09) 765-371\) 
1<e 1 chaf. :1\J'ofgal/e:;:on org 

J m ·"''~:Jr. Solie 'Nas:e .'}a "lager 
3caJ;fo·' Co,nty, S:>uth Caro ra 
i.:!O Sl-a1~IJn Road 
:lea1.f:>r· SJt..th Caro'i"a 29J:J5 
<e~3> 2ss-2aoo 
1r:1 :1::;· ~ tcg;: 1 :-.et 

EJ ;r3rC: Con; w'. >'u~ll '.'IOtY Otto o· 
C•t 1 o: Pla'ltatJon. Flor oa 
750 ~lorth·:.e;t 91;t A,en Je 
F a;1:ation. fL 3332.! 
(95.t) 1!52·2535 
e:onsa·J : ::>'a'ltatJor.or" 

! :;r .: .. ···:.) 
.. • •• ·: , j.;t• -; ~. .• 

3, ~r. Wi los. Sanitat or D recto· 
I:Je"lii:e P3r1sh, I.e~ ~;'ana 
PO 3odag 
P.a::jue~ r.e.LA 70755·0389 
(225) 776·1;C9 

Dan e:ie 513ter;::.ryce Deputy Cat/ Manager 
C•ty oi 'Nest Pal~ :leach Flo,.ca 
401 c•~mat•s Street 
Wes: Pa r:; Eeach fl 33.!01 
(561) t.9<l·1089 

-, 

I 
j 

OS 2004- 07 2006 

a~ 2J:Js-os 2010 

07/200:;,- 09/20'' 

01 '2005·0:! 20J5 

OB/2008 - 12/2JO:! 

I 5251·.1 

I 
I 
f 

5325'·;: 

I . 
1 5:5~-' 

55 0K 

S'M 

o912oo..:- o112oos r ~; 5''' 

1

10 m1llicn wboc 
yards 

3 m•IIIO'l cube 
y~rds 

Debr s plarnmg 
procure-:1c:'t. 
and gercroJ 
ac•, sor 1 ser .aces 

HDR- Chuck ~.lclend::>n 
TCS • Jon Hoyle 
TCS -Nathan CoL:nse!l 

• t-•DR - ('lud Mclendo:o 

HDR Ch~ck Mcler.cor 

4- m han cu:J HDR Ch~ck •'-lclerd:m 

I 

'lards 
Count\·.': de 

350 000 cuboc 
y3rds 

600 000 :e~b c 
yards 

HDR- Cn~.ock i\lclendon 
TCS- Natrar CctJr.se!l 

HOR - Pensa:ola off ce 

- Page 176 -



--

,. • , fl (~ ( 

- Page 177 -



Wake Count\ ! cl Qualificat ons of Staff 

Ou· pro;ect team me .Jdes a deep and robust roster of errergency management. de::>r"s management and sc d waste manageme'lt 

professionals. We have cons .. ructed our pro1ect team to prov de VVake County and 1ts mun1c1pa 1t es w th a blend of pohcy and 

i eld operat1ons expert se We ha 1e many leve.s oi ex;:~ert se n al types of fu~ld ope rat ons reJmburseTient agency programs. and 

adn1n strat1ve protoco1s to re'p ·he INak'" Coun· 1 com11un t1 recover from any type of d1saster event (food. tornado 1ce storm, 

hurr cane etc) that maf111pa' • tre area 

i''le tab e be o.•, pro'Jides a br· .,., s• r1r12ry of expert1se foro r key project staff Sect1on 10 of our propose; prov1des a project 

organ.zatlonal chan ar.d a short ntroduct on to each of our •ey pro;ect staff 

c~ J"< \' ~ do 

'·b'har Cour>sclll Debr s Advi;or 

Dan C•a1g Re mbJrsemer>t Spe::•ahsts 

• :. ,, or :;J d ,. 15'c crg:nccr '"~-<DR ~a &h 
;>.;( o'··~c .·11''1 ever 13 years of c•;J"' cr .c 

• : '(ce·· , s:;, :1 .-,ast!! fa~ 'it'/ pe!"..-i·~,ns 
ce; .§'I a·d regw ator1 comp'ia •;:e 

• HD~ s C ~ent \'a:'lagcr ior V·;<:~k~ : • ..~nt/ 
5~ d ~'/astc Dcp~rtme:1~ 

v'!a<e Cov··, NC 

• C ty of Rae &'1 ;>-JC 

S_ 1tl-cJs'crr Pub SPrv :c Au·1 r '1 

, . r.,·erra· o'la Scc·etary fo· the So 'd Vlas•e 1 
A sm. a· on of ~>Jorth Arnenca 

l• 2-l ~eJ•s of :;o :l \'13S;e ~~d-d~~~~-:~r- ·- _ .. -- -- .--Lcam a Co rt~ FL 

reco.e y expert se , _aiJc;tun L< (lk~,;} 

I. ar) 

• O·Jcrsccn m•)rc than S2 b1ilt.m r. FE1\Io\ 
rcrmbur semen! 

• Recogn zed (!\~ert on debriS prog·am 
mana~ernent a~j retmburscme.,t 

I • AuthJrcc first FEo\IA Jrpromd dcbros 
m3n.:1g r.'Crt p a.,'-' de F~,,~;. F,", pilot 
pr Js'ar.-

• S:rong t.orde·s•J<ding oi re m!:>ur;emcr.t 
pol t1es ior FE'Il.l. p;., FH //A·ER. i·:RCS· 
E·/JP. e:c 

• Adr.- nis•crcc ~OW. Rrght ~f Entr1. 

l
i Haza•COIJ5 HCJ5~n• .i Wa;te. ·::<J:er·:t3/S 

cl:'l:i ncrr.crous ?'her dcbr~s rcrnovJI 
1 prograr.-::; 

• r !e·.·: Or ea:1s. L.; (K~tr.naJ 

Orlim:lo. tl (Charlc:~) 

I: Boca Raton. Fl (Francis) 

Dare Cour.ty, NC (lrcr:c} 
I 

~-. E•pe·t ,, r.-ob k r.g large rc;;po:'ISC tcJ~5--- -.--SC-00;-(I~·e 5:orm) 

fc~ drsaster e·Jcnt.; Santa Ro;a Countv. FL (Denn s 
• S:·ong 1.-nde•s:ar.:fng of FE\1A PA ar.d 

FH•NA ER re nr:>~rserert programs 

• ?rogranr \1anai(cr for SCOOT 20'': Icc 
Storm Recovc·y effort 

• Gulfport, MS (Ka:r:na} 

T-.. E•per: ,., m,1A-3-2S-;nd327-·· ---------,-.--Ne·.~o:lcan~LA <~~~,.-;;-~--

ProJec: Manager lor C1t/ of New Orleans • Escamb•a CoJJnt•,. fl (I•Jar.) 
Demo11t or. Prograrr (:C:atr·r.a) 

• Special cxpert•sc in~ ght of Emr; and 
specral1zed debris mon taring o;Jerat•ons 

• Former Drrector of =<.cco•ter'f - FEMA 
HeadqiJartcrs 

• Former Drrector- FE \!lA Reg ,on 1 

• Ct!J of Odando, FL (Cha~le/J 

• FEMA - HoiJsmg lnspect•on Servtces 

• C•ty of 6abylor.. NY 

• UnJ'/ersity oi .V.ia~•. i=L 
• Rccognrzed e~oert ;n FEMA P:.J!Jiic 

Assistance Progra"Tl 
~---

_L ______ _ 

- Page 178 -



-

QUAliFI C ATIO N\ m STAFF - 1 

'N ~·d Jon1son I Opt!ra·•on; 1\la• age·. 
Ha:Jr:.lo~; Trees 

IN' .a-.. Eu:lcr! O:Jerat.ons •\\a~a:~er. Deb 'IS 

Sne 

I. 

Former Dep:.~:; Ch;ei oi Operatoons br the 
N-Jrtr Carok•a Emergc1cy Management 
Ager>CJ 

Forme•l1ira;tru:tJ•e 3ranch Cl11ef f,, 
FE\1\t, Re~ 0" 1\' 

• 0'/crsa.-. •r~plemeC~:at·or> of the Pu"!l c 
A.;s•;·a-ce Program for e1gh: states totaling 
57 6 b.l:•on in federal disaster luna ng 

• 5e'"Jed as FE'v~ ~ Re:o.ery Ch1ef and 
D1saster ~e:o.ery ,\\anager ior the 20·~4 
Flom!a Hurric~.,e> a-,J ,·.elias H"·r .a e 
f:a::ma w thi1 tr.e 5:ate of •'-1•HI551tJP 

Rece1:IJ se:·:ed as orotrJ-:"1 r.Hnage· ;o• 
52·~ -J1 US!.CE •e:o:-;trcc~ 01 ;:~~og·a-:-: 

• Rc:u red coordirano., With o·:cr 50 
l(oJerrmc:-~: agcr.c cs a1J ma1ur d~- ... ·s 

I
, Proiect Mar..J~er for OJer 20 rna or ra· Jral 

d·sa;·ers 

I • Respon; b1c for cc:r:p:ex global d-sastc!r 
I response tea, r-:ot>iliz;;tion.log•st cs 

secur ty a,d ;a!cty 

• Recentl; scrv::d as :>ublic A.;sistance 
Deb11s LcJd for 5;...;th Ca·ol·na Ernergcrcy 
ManJgcr-lcPt Agercy 

• E•per; 1n FHA.; f eld :.Jhdat Ol" a;d••s 
~art1cu ar 1 a;; the{ rela:ed 11 LHS progra"l'>S 

• E,r;e·t a: trJ n1rg and OJ~rsccong RO·N 
colie:tion oo~·at.ons 

• 5c· Jed a> Pro,e~t f...la;>ager for rnc'e tl a~" 
dozen maJOr deb"s nor.itoron~ act lf3t ors 

• Spcc•ali=ed L 'rcrt•s!:! i:1 "i:l.l/o. 
rc.mbur:;emer.t programs 

• ~~~mere~~ deb·:; ma,ageme:-~t 3nc 
o1ers•ght ergageme'1tS 

• Strong background and understat1d1ng of 
field doCJ-nentatiO!'l ·eq•J•rec for FEMA 
re·mbur:;ement 

• Hignly org3rized. process o·.e,:ec tas< 
leader 

• StJte oi Alabam3 Dep:. of Emergcnc"J 
ldarugemcnt 

• Ora1ge Coun·y :L (Charley) 

• Sta:e c' ·\1'55155•!=>11 Oep:. o' C:me·ge1c, 
~-lJragec~en' (.;a:~ona) 

I • US Ar-n; Central Co.,.,-,a,.; 

I
. • Soutr (a,ohna De;:artme,t of Emcrgen;:;-

1·.\Jragcm!!n: 

• Te•as Dep: of Tra,spo··a~•on (lk~J 

• StJtc oi -'.h;:; HI PO• Dl!r< o' :IT'c·gc!'l 1 
Marage-:1cnt 

• S:DCT 

• Bayto·:,r TX 

• E:;ca....,il a Courty FL 

• 1Na<e Cctw , . NC 

• Te•a:; Dept of Tra.,spor:a::o, (l<e) 

• Esca~b a Co~o<r:ty F. ~·Jan) 

• Gulf;Jort .\,\5 {KatMa) 

- Page 179 -



Timeline for Pre-Event Planning 
W e understand the Importance of preparedness . If awarded 

th s contract HDR \'IOuld ltke to beg n work immed1ately in 

fam thanz .ng ourselves with Wake Cout1ty's dtsaster debrs 

ma,ager.ent p lan and co1cepts The table below outli-:es 

sc•1eral steps tha: we \';OL.Id tak "' r1med,ately follo·.v1ng 

cortract awa·d 

.... ESTIMATE-D DAYS . 
ACTION IT AFTER AWARD - ' . ~ ··~ · .. 
c; he::IJ "'-onfe•er.ce ca t ::1 s:1.ss Wake ,. da1 
Cou"lt'/;; cesire:! .:re·e'l;!~· pan 1& 

t a~tye s ~ 

['a• a ·e~uest·t ~- •.~~~;ke C J,; .. , t eCl;"' i l lng '1 2 d3} s 
• • ca1 ... a:a 

HDR co:rr.:e~ts on .ty jeJrt; 

~ :-nJal half da; del:lr' mar.d "'ent 
tra 1 r.g .ess on 

~ :he· lec";rical ass , ta re" 

5 da~ s afte· •cc!! :;:~• ::l' 

trior-nat on ' ' -'m t l->e 
Cou1:1 

t-t Coo.~1t _. s Request 

Al CoJ'1ty s ReQtJest 

Conceptual Operations Plan and Task 
Order Budget 
The sect•on that follows represeontc; the our propoc;ed operat ng 

p 1an in responding to a debris generating event impe~c:ing Wake 

" n~v In the e'lent of an actua e·1ent. we will w rk rose 1 

\'1 th the County and municipal'ttes to ~"ustor.Jize our plans 

nc ud ng operat:ons plans. saf"ty plans. etc.) t ' tne specif1c 

d sas:e• e·1ent. 

PRE-DISASTER (DAYS 1-4 PRIOR TO EVENT) 

Objective: Monitor forecast and begin preparator 1 measures 

Key Staff Required: P·oject Manager. Project Director 

Critical Path Items 

• Discuss mobilization plan w th County 

• Prepare dr aft task order for executi ::: n 

• Verify ~ruck staging local' on wi:h County 

• Prepare ADMS for mob1liza· on 

• Prepare s:affing plan 

• ProJect manager mobilize to area 

• Review debris management pan 

• Review health anci safety plan 

• D1scuss emergency push strategy 

• Cert1fy push equipment 

DAY OF DISASTER 

Objective: Prepare for emergency push operations and 

subsequent phases 

Key Staff Required: Project t'.i\anager, Project Director. 

Operations Managers 

Other Requirements 1-)( 

Critical Path Items 

• F tna ze staffmg plan 

• Ensure staff are safe •:; th appropr ate r e ess t es 

• Verify emergency push strategy 

EMERGENCY ROADWAY CLEARANCE ' PUSH 

Objective: Document emcr6ency road•::ay c•earance ac t1V1ties 

Key Staff Required: P·o1ect M anager, Operat ons \tla'1agers. 

F eld Superv·sors 

Critical Path Items 

• Cert fy equ1pment 

• Stg , 1/aut labor and equ pm er.t 

• Do: ur1en• ;:>regress areas made 

MOBILIZATION STAGING AND LOGISTICS 

Objective: Pro•;1de suppo· t log st1cs i or broader debr s 

removal m ss on 

Key Staff Required: Pro1ect i\1anage-. LQg st co; f-,\anager 

Critical Path Items 

• Confirm staging locat1on 

• Determ1ne need l or construct1on tra " r et ~ 

• Implement staffing plan 

• Ensure lodging fo r key staff 

• Ensure necessary supp 1es (safety •1es:s. etc.) are •hd ~ brt.' 

DEBRIS MANAGEMENT SITE PREPARATION 

Objective: Identify, permi! and prepare D ~1lS to recei·1 debr s 

Key Staff Required: P·ojer t D1rector Project Manager 

Operations Manager 

Critical Path Items 

• Work with Co•J"'t 1 and hauler to tdentif•; an~ c nf~rm 

OMS location.> 

• Permit s11es through NCDENR tf not a read1 perm "ed 

(NCDENR perm ts e~pire after two ;ears ) 

• Photograph and docurr.e:1t s1te condtt ions (e g collect sotl 

samples tf required) 

• Prepare true'< rout,ng, to•uer location. et · 

TRUCK CERTIFICATION 

Objective: Certtfy trucks and trailers for ROW collect io r

Key Staff Required: Operat,ons Manager. Fie 'd Super,d:;o•s 

Critical Pat h Items 

• Assemble supplies for truck certification (ladders. tape 

measures. etc.) 

• Confirm QA/QC procedures 

• Con-~erse w •th hauler to ensu~e necessary truck cert frcation 

resources are in p lace 

MONITOR ON·BOARDING AND TRAINING 

Objective: Recruit and tram debris mon1tors 

Key Staff Required: Project Manager, HR Manager, 

Logistics Manager - Page 180 -



Critical Path Items 
• Co'lf1rm adequate laoor and equrpment resource; to 

on-board staff 
• Schedule ard ho·d mu tcp e tramtng/safety sess1ons 

• Ass.gn mon'tors to S.Jper•J so·s 

INITIATION OF ROW COllECTION 
Objective: Comme,ce RO'v'l debns remova ope·at ons 

Key Staff Required: ?·ote t v\anager Operat·ons i'Vlanager 

" eld Superv sors 

Critical Path Items 

• Hold da I; br ef ng '.'l•'h County ard stakeholders 

• Ass gr.rr-on tc·s tw S·, peu sor; and rre:,s 
• ria d saiet; br ef ngs 

• QA/QC m ~n tor docu:nenta• ~ ., ( f x errors on Da; 1) 

• Upaate da y b· ef ng 

• Update G S maps 

INITIATION OF HAZA.RDOUS TREE PROGRAM 

Objective: Commence razardous tree remo·1a ::lrogram 

Key StaH Required: P·otect Manager. Operat1ons 'Aanager, 

f efd Super 1 s:>rs 

Critical Path Items 

• Assign mo,1to·s to s-per•Jisor5 and crews 

Hold safet·. br.efcngs 

• QA/QC mor11tor docl'mer.• t , (f ' error:; o Da1 11 

• Update da , b•ief ng 

• Update GIS map· 

CL OS E·OUT OF ROW OPERATIONS/PUNCH U::. T 

Objective: Conclude ROW debris removal operatcons 

Key Staff Required: Ope rat en Ma;-~ag~r. F1e d Superv,;ors 

Critica l Path Items 

• Iss e pres re ease O'l end of ROW operat•ons 

• Sup~'" s rs OeJe'op p-.~nch los· of str3ggler piles 

CLOSE· OUT OF HAZARDOUS TREE OPERATIONS/PUNCH 
LIST 

Objective: Conclude hazardous tree remova' operations 

Key Staff Required: Operat ;-~s Manager. F e'd Superv1sors 

Critical Path I tems 

• Superv·sors de·;e op punch 1st of stragg1er trees/pies 

SHUTTER OMS LOCATIONS 
Objective: Close and restore debfls management sites 

Key Staff Required: Environ Menta Spec a'•sts. Protect Director 

Operat.ons Manager 

Critical Path Items 

• Process and haul·out remaming reduced debfls piles 

• Restore s·te to pre·use condit1on 

• Not1fy NCDENR of site closure 

• Photograph s te fo lowing closure 

CONTRACTOR INVOICE RECONCiliATIOrJ 
Objective: Reconcile contractor i:'lvoices and issue 

pa;ment recommendations 

Key StaH Required: Data Manager. Billing/Invoice Analyst 

Critical Path Items 

• Reconcile in•Joices 

• Issue discrepanc'/ reports 

• F nal reconciliation 

• Issue payment recommendations to Counw 

EVENT CLOSE·OUT 
Objective: Conclude data ma;-~ageme;;t elements 

Key Staff Required: Project lvla;;ager Data •'vlanager. Billing 

lnvo ce Anai'/S!. FEMA Reimbursement Specia ists (as 
necessnry) 

Critical Path Items 

• Prepare retainage release documenta:iol" 

• Prov•de County wi!h digitized documentation 

• Respond to Requests for Aad:lionallnforrnation from Sta;:~ 

and FEMA as requested 

ESTIMATED TASK ORDER BUDGET 
Wake Count'/ has outlined a de~ris removal scenar~o rn its RF C 
that included the following unit quantit1es: 

• Emergency debris clearance monito~ing of fifteen contrac

debris clearing cre·:;s for seven ten-hour days follm·1ed bi 
• Debns removal monitoflng of 40 ::on tractor debns remo Jil 

crews based on an a•;erage lo3d of 35 cubic 1ards per oad 

andlOioadsnerday 

• Mon1toring at four OMS locations 

• Mor.itor:ng of 5.000 hazardous trees 

• Monitoring of 15.000 hazardous limbs (one per tree) 

• Monitoring of 800 h3zardous swmps 

• Clerical staff to supoort load ticket entry and m3nagement 

• GIS support to document the ph'Jsical progress of debns 

removal operations 

Basec on the scenario a=>ove. the our team developed a task 

order based budget estimate to provide the necessary level 

of resources to complete the defmed scope of work. Our 

total estimated task order budget totals just over 51.9 milhon 

dollars. Tables 8 1 through 8.4 on the iollowing pages provide 

supporting details on proposed staffing load by program 

element (e.g., Emergency push. ROW collection, hazardous 

tree remo•1al. etc.) We would like to point out that there are 

many variables that can impact the cost of debris monitoring 

operations however the costs presented herein are reasonable 

expectations of anticipated costs based on the assumptions 

provided by the County 

- Page 181 -



'fhke Cour.w 1 Scctt·:r 1)- Other Requirements 1-)~ 
I 
! 

I ; . ~ !! • -. -
l ) !I 

l _; !I 

5 ! 

- ! ! ! 

- ! 
~ ! 

• -
~ ! 

; l 

= ! -...... I -
I i 
! 
• ! !I 

~ !I .. r 

~ ~ ~ 

I • 
. 

~ 

I ~ 
! 
I 
! 

~ 

I ~ 
! -

~ 

. ~ -
~ -. 
' ! 

I . 5 
r 
i 

3 . ~ 

' s 
~ 

~ 

• 

I . . . 
~ 

' s ~ -~-- ,.-; -. 
~ . l ! : i > 

I f l ! -
I 

r -! -. ~ ' ~ i ·: 
§ - < ~ . 

1 -
I 

"> ! ~ ! . J 
~ 1 -~-!-.I f! -s~-.. . ! . ~ i 
ij~ -

~~~ 
!JJ j ! i ! I 

f 
~ 

l l ~ 

1 J I 1 1 

11 
i J . 1 j j, ' ..!!.;- i ' I ' I f I ' I !3:.!1 J !' t J j J ) 3 j ) 

- Page 182 -



Table 81- Emergency Push Monitoring 
Wake County, NC 
Cost Summary based on RFP Operational Scenario 

PROOUCTlON MOOEt 8 2.1 

[, ... , II 

0.,\ 

1\u!/llly t.l 

r-·1 ' r-· ..---·r-...,--
t I j t ~ 

~.,..·~ _ 
1
_, _ 91uu _OJ _ _ oJt __ ull __ u_l! _o1j __ OJ1 __ tl!r'---~~---1-·--u1 __ u __ ,41 ___ 14 I_!!.•!!.~ 

~""',...-- --+' _ 1'110 ~ .!!!_1 ~-o~ __ o_l\l __ O!L_u~>l_oJ?L_J ul __ J!! __ 9\_ t II\ 111_1-2:.!211\_ 

'"~la/s.t<ttMA.Ic<f t69~ _ 021 OJILOJI ~ _o.l)Lil~ .ol_.o! otl· _l)[ __ o L 11 1; 1 _ _!!!!1~ 
...!.~~>""~'!. __ s ~~~ _ 4 ~L ~:1_ ..:I __ T __ ~J __ ::! __ ~j--u ___ o __ o --~ __ 1_a __ no .L~~~ 
O.U/Mll.ll~ _t\~OQ 011 j]\ OJ\ 01\ 01\~1\ 021~ 0 U 0 C 

1 

Ill• Ill J \01/10 

~~ ..... ~""""'-~ - 1 49~- ::r u: -:~~f--o~~ Ol> o~ --OJ\ u•, -~~~ o,l o• --4~----: ·,-;:: 
.- .ac.:= -- - 4 - -- --- --- ----t ----~ ---

I"!!.~-'-'-''".!5.".!.......1-'-49~ --• --~1--•1 ___ 4 ___ 41 ___ 4 _____ 41· o __ ~,l~ ,, __ ol __ .. .s __ J~ ._.!!!lii•H.mxl. 

r~~~-' _ __ 1 __ 4~ \u _us _ U'1__!11 --~~~ __ ,_•11--•-JI, __ .!!5..---!' ~ --~'-_!1 . __ 1 __ 11 _2 ~~ 

==~j :: +-'~r~ _!!! - ~J-Y: u.:~-~--:f-~··+~--!·:--_!:~IU.!.~ 
~-=--· $ - -~- -0 - -0 - - -0 ... --0--J ·-J-0--0 ·-t--: --0--0,,-·---
- - - = - w.o o c -:

1-· 1', -j-o-J-·--~r--0 ---0 --or-:- ~~~t, ··--: · ol . o--:--:r-;-u ~~---r,,----~--l-c .. J -J, 
~..1"9 ~~1M..!_ ___ -- 99\ 0~~ 0\1 Olj lliJ $tllT) 

1M 1\tJ>(. cl\ I \l~l I'' I 1:' J !-l.l ; 

IIIC&nWllwt l'lldltosh J 00 

1:· 

- Page 183 -



Wa~e Co.nty 1 s~ · .,, Other Requirements 1-)~ 
,q ::·=r••·!~:. . : ! 
! I 

I I 
q : I 
! I ! 
!I ! 

I I ~1JI1.t 1 l!Jl q t "- • :I ~ I I S. I !i i" • 

" 
__ ..,.,. ___ ..,. .. ____ 

I 
. ! .. .r. • .; 

I i-.,-1 ! ~ :·! • ' ~ f: ~ 

I ! 
, t !, ... T !-r{7. [r 2 

I , i • -· ,_ • • • ... • •' a' 
lt .. - <ill , .. -: • f l s 

I . I i 
• . 

I 
• "'! .. ' i . . 

I . .. 
I '! l . 

I I . . . 

I 
! ~ 

,... .. 
" ! . 

I I I • v 

~ 

I • 3 
. 

I 8 • .. 
I . . I I 
I 

... i 3 
' . 

~ j ~ ' . .. 
• r . 

J~ 
! i 

q ' i ! . . 
~ 

I 

. ! . 
I 

" "S' •• • •T G 
! 

s,J I i 
n I 5 

s! J 
. ! 

I i 
. 5 

sll ... I ; ! 
' I I 1
1
1 

~~ ~ 
... . 

i I 
- I I n 

•Is . . - · I .I ·,, 
I. ; . .. ! . i 
sj s • T .. . .. 

j i .. . 
!J 

. . . I 5 
!IS 

-
• ~ :" li :!- . : ~ I . : I , 

I - ..... - .. 
~ :: q - ~ 

.. ~ 
H ~ -~ lj' . .. ' 

' .. : ~ =·: I ...... " ' . , ~ I !S . . . 
-8 

. 

j ! ! ~ : s ! I .l!=lt: : : · . ~ j 
-... ,-, . : -r! -~-n '!-r-•-... : ·:: I ] . - -

j ~-:"' : "'"'r: ~~ !' ,_, .. '! ......... '!"" r--
:-~ I 

r $ . l 
i I • . ,..., .. .J. .. ~· .-.;,-!' 

f'' :: l:fTfll i g ' 
,.,,.'t;:::;~o 

.. --- ... .. .. - ... 

~~1 -··- -
~ J I J 

~~~ i p! . ' ! J t . p 1 f 1 . . • ; l 
I pi~ ·t lj~ dt >tUi•l Jq!~, j 

!j ;§ .!i!~! P•• 1 ~sl !Jj!• t 1 •.t 
iJqjf~dq LP 1 J. n .! f J > } ! .!_: iJ ; ~ 

RFQ ;:15· 039 D saster Dcbr"s Man tor·ng 5eu ccs 29 

- Page 184 -



~ " ~. 

• 
• 
i 

" I 

e • 

f :r 

I • .• l ~ • 1 • 
I I 

I 
... ;.--"""'1: 
I r • 1 I 

I 'l •• l! 

t : ~ f : 

f 

----:---: 5 i '": 

-· .... • ... ): .... • D 

.. ;; '9 ' .. J ~ ') t ' 
' - - ' J 

• f 
. - - - ~ . - - ~ ~ ~ - ~ -f; ill f j ' • ~ 1 ' • 

- ! ::t 

I" . .. • u• J ' ,:.~ •. u-zr.··..-.~ .:.-•• f 

l
a ~ • 

. ~ 
. -:· . 

., J ~ ~·.. • "' n ""......, 

- - . - - . - - - - -- -. - - . .. 

i 

- Page 185 -



'.'lpke Cou'f!t~ E(C.iptiOI'IS 

.l-ID~ hai no E!\!C.;>\ions/Cev:a:~ons io ~he RFQ s;>e:: fiCOltronr. 

- Page 186 -



ll hdrinc.eom 
- Page 187 -



/ 

Wake County Sect1or. iO Project Management r-J < 

Together, 
we make 
great things 
possible. 
Our project management approach is built on trust, a clear 

defi-,ition of shared goals and the mutual understanding of 

the necessary steps to achieve rhose goals and e~ceed your 

expectatiOns We have assembled a team that is custom·! t 

to helping Wa'<.e Count·; and 1\s municipa'ities respond to and 

recover from il major debris generating e'Jent. Our tear.-: i:; 

bound together by a commitment to one another and to be a 
true partner to the Wake County communi!!' on this project 

and beyond. 

Project management is the strength of our team Our proposed 

Project Dire·tor (Jeff Murray) and Project Manager (Chuck 

1\lclendon) are both high y respected professionals in the sohd 

was:e and disaster recovery i1dustries. Jefi provides expert 

kno•:J!edge and can:acts regarding Nortb Carohna solid ~·1aste 

ISSues While Chuck is one of the leading cebris Management 

e.<perts ·n the na•1on Chuck also brings a more sophisticated 

program management-based approach to debris mon1toring 

operat1ons. Daily meetmgs wit\ be held, rr:1nutes 'Nil! be taken 

goa!s ..viii be set and progress to•:1ards ach·eving those goa s 

•mil be measured The debris ma1agement team ~·,ill be h~ d 

accouma!Jie for operational periormance (cub c yards collected 

per day) ilnd reimbursement objectives. 

Our Team 
Our greatest asset is cur people 

For yot.r pro ect we ha 1e cus:om·zed a tear1 of profess o.,al to 

prov1de cr~t cal expert se ·n debris mo~itonng operations and 

s•ate and federal agency re1mbursement along ··~ •th the ab.ltty 

to le1erage our local ofiice locat•on and f rm resources to serve 

the broader g~oup of munic1paiTes ,, Wake County' (•.'Jhe·e our 

s:aff live) 

We ha 1e 1ncluded an organization chart and a short introduction 

to each of our key team members on the following pages. Full 

resumes for our entrre team can be provided upon request 

Ri=Q ::15-039 I 0 saster Debr; Montor 1g Serv ccs 33 

- Page 188 -



.. .... , ... - .&.•·.·,. ...... 
WAKE COUN,TY, NC 

AND PARTICIPATING 

t . . ~!J~!.5_!l~'!.!,~~ND AGENCIE~ ; .• 

PROJECT DIRECTOR 
Jeffrey Murray, PE ----

PROJECT MANAGER 
Chuck Mclendon 

FEMA REIMBURSEMENT SPECIALIST 
Daniel Craig, MBA .. 

Steven Glenn• • 

Jon Hoyle• 

Nate Counsell' 

lOGISTICS MANAGER/EHS 
Matt Wigle 

OPERATIONS MANAGER 
HAZARDOUS TREES 

OPERATIONS MANAGER 
ROW 

OPERATIONS MANAGER 
OMS lOCATIONS 

Gary Brooks' 

JEFFREY MURRAY, PE 

Field Supervisors 

<e · t-cre;te·· 
TJ•-rn, 8 YSr:!. 

Data Manager 

Billing/Invoice Manager 

ProJeCt 0 rector !Industry Tenur~?: 18 year; 
Je:fre1 \t\urray has worked wrth Wake Count I' Sol'd Waste 

Department on a variety of projects since jotnrng HDR n 2013 

He IS the project manager ir- support of the county's contracTed 

operatrons of •ts 180 acre. 400,000 ton per year muntcopa , so1 d 

~·1as:e landilll. Jeff's work includes d isposal capac'ty evaluat ons 

so•l management planning. permit document reviews 

cor.stru ct on inspection, and odor evaluations He also managed 

a pro,e:t that evaluated the feasibility of •mplementlng a yard 
was·e and food waste diversion program for the County and 

the des gn of significant improvements to one of the County s 

so· d waste convenience s'tes. Jeff is currentl'/ managmg the 

de te opment of a Disaster Debris Management Plan for Chester 

County PennsJ''vania. 

Field Supervisors 

Debris Monitors 

Project Coordinator 

Data Entry Clerks 

'der.ute s Thom:;pon CoT' suiting Sen•ices. LLC oersonne! 
• • denotes T1dal Basrn p~rsonne 

CHUCK MCLENDON 
P~ored Man.1ger flndu:;try Tenura: 24 years 
Chuck M e endon frrst participated rn emergency r1anagement 

oro1ects after several of njs solid waste cltents in Florida were 

se>~erely mpacted by hurricane e•Jents 1r. 2004/2005 All told 

Chuck has worked on recovery efforts for Hurricanes Char ey 

(2004) Frances (2004). Jeanne (2004) Ivan (2004), Denn1s 

(2005) Wrlma (2005), Katrina (2005}. Gusta ·t (2008). Ike 

(2003) Irene (2010), 'saa ~ (2012) ard Sandy (2012). the 

Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill; and numerous ce storm ana 

tornado events He has overseen more than S2 b1ll ion ir. iedera• 

re mbursement assoc;ated with debrts management. Over the 

past 11 years alone, Chuck has fielded debrts monitoring teams 

totahng more than 5.000 staff (3,200 in the Houston area a• one 

following Hurncane Ike). He offers a umque expert1se in both 

- Page 189 -



major nfrastructure and debris management ir1 temes of cnteca 

need Hes plans and training programs are co1sidered endustry 

sta11dards He has trained hundreds of state, co .. mty and cety 

s:aff on debr s managemen· protocols and ":l st pra t ces 

DANIEl CRAIG, MBA 
FEMA Rcembur;crnent Sp~cialist llndu;try T~"urc: 2 i ye1r; 
Dan Crag served as Derector of the Reco·tery D v son for FE I\ \A 

part of the United States Department of Harpel and Secur :y He 

\'laS appoe1ted by Pres•dent Bush in 2003 .:nd ~·1as respons·b e 

fa· o'lerseeing the Federal go•Jerf'lment's re.:o1ery efiorts on 

a Pres de1t1al dc:lared e tents induding the S- · ShJtt e 

Columbea cra;h, the :tild'ires of 2003. and the hurncar.es of 

/004 and 2005. 

Before being the Director of the Reco·tery Divesion at FEMA. 

he was the Reg'onal Di~ector for the Nel'l England area 

(Region 1), v:here he was responseble for all FEMA m'tega••on 

pre;Jared1ess. response and recovery. and traineng actevittes n 

the s ~·Sti!te New England reg·on. Dan served on the Board of 

0 rectors of Beck Disaster Re.:o•;ery (BDR) and forrrerly served 

on the Board of Directors for the Charter Oak Chapter of t!-e 

Red Cross (Hi!rtford CT). and the Boston Federal Executive 

Board He \'/aS former!~ the Go•ternor's re;Jresentative to the 

.AMerican Red Cross' Board of Goternors and or. the Board 

o' Ad•tisors fo Bo5lor. Uf'liversity s emergency management 

certificate program 

STEVEN GLE~m 

FEMA Reimbursement Specialist jlndustry Tenure: 24 year' 
Steten Glenn ha5 24 ·;ears of experience managt:'lg large· 

scale d·saster planning and response recovery prograMs. 

He has trained local go•ternments and pri•tate agen6es in 

desaster olar.ning. response. recovery and miz:gat;on acti•titics: 

coordinated local emergency planning comm'ttee a ti tities: 

and traened. planned. conducted and evaluated large-scale 

d1sas:er exercises. 

As Infrastructure Branch Chief for FEMA Region IV, Steve 

oversaw the implemen:ation of !he Public Assistance Program 

for eight states totaling 57.6 biiFon in federal disas·er funding. 

He served as Recovery Chief a:1d Disaster Reco•tery Manager for 

the 2004 Florida Hurricanes as well as Hurricane Katnna within 

the State of M ssissippi As the Deputy Chtef of Operattons for 

NCEo\1\A, he managed S250 mi111on in FEMA grant programs 

and implemented the nation's first qualtty assurance program 

for the PA Program. 

ProJect Management 

JON HOYlE 

Debris Management Advisor !Industry Tenure: 12 yeaes 
Jon Hoy e has more than twelve years of experience prO·/ deng 

management and o•1ersight for disaster response and 

recove·y efforts and grant writtng administration/program 

management throughout the United States. He has managed 

65 projects under contracts that total o·Jer $1 5 b lton n 

grant adm·,,strateon and recovery efforts that required e 

mobd zatton of over 5.000 field and professionill personneo over 

the past 10 years Hts programmatic e.<perience 1ncludes FH~A· 

PA FHWA·ER. 1'\RCS·E\VP, HUD·CDBG, FEMA·HMGP a1d 

ot 1ers Jon has assisted clients throughout the lJ S tnc ud ng 

Hous'on. TX, Guliport, MS. iusca!oosa ALand V rgi;-;ia Bea~r 

VA 

NATE COUNSEll 

Dcbm Management Adviior llndushy Tenure: 12 ycJn 
I\ ate Counsell has managed more than 55 pro ects under 

cortracts that total o•ter 'iil billion in reco·tery effor~s and 

required the mobil zation of O'ler 5.000 professional and fed 

personnel. He has responded to a var~ety of otner disasters 

on behalf of local and sta~e government agenries tn louisiana, 

North Carolina, Virginia. New York. Florida, Alabama, 

tv\ississippi, Soutn Carolina. and Texas . 

MATT WIGLE 
Logistics Managcr/EHS llndus!ry Tenure: 25 ycJr; 
Matt v'l!gle brings significant disaster reco·;ery experiP 'C'e to 

the team having lead more than 20 major disaster rec ter; 
efforts throughout the US and US trust terri cries in the PactflC 

and Caribbean. He has rece1tly ser•Jed as a program manage' 

in vtar zones and austere locations, \'IOrking across all forms 

of infrastructure in complex politecal, logistic and funding 

environments. o\latt ,.,iii leverage this global e.<perience to 

anticipate and support tne project team's logistical needs :o 

enable delivery of great services to Wake County in a manner 

compliant with reimbursement funding gu:delines. 

WILLARD JOHNSON 
Operations Manager, Hazardous Trees I Industry Tenure: 25 years 
Willard Johnson's experience was gained on se·teral natural 

disaster management and prevention projects. He is an expert 

in the adminis:ration of engineering con~racts. grant and loan 

programs, development of RFP and RFQ documents and as 

a liaison between local governments and State and Federal 
funding agencies. He is a federally tra·ned disaster response 

officer invol•ted in project coordination and also a trained 

emergency management instructor. W1llard is an expenenced 

debris assessment consultant with strong employee 

management. training and team de•Jelopment skills. 

I 

- Page 190 -



GARY BROOKS 
Operations Manager, ROW I Industry Tenure 10 y~ars 
Gar)' Brooks is re'ired from the United States •'11ar nc Lorps and 

nas more than ten years o' debns management exper encl' n 

200~ follo~·m;g Hun-cane Ivai'\ rn Pensacola he managed tre 

1"10n t( •ing opera'rons at one of the largest debrs managenen· 

s tes Bronson rreld •11here over 5 rr· or cub c yard; 1f 

,egeta1;ve. constructron and de-nolr:ror debr s was r, duceo an 

processed Srnce then, Gary has served as the Project Manager 

o· Operatrons Manager on a number of proJects across the 

Country to low ng h·Jrm:anes. •Ce storms and tornadoes 

•\lost recentiJ, he ma1aged tv:o arge ;~a e tree trrmming and 

de:)~ s remo>al operations rn So tr :ar::: na for SCOOT anc 

WI amsburg Count; 

WilLIAM BUTLER 
Oper.1t·ons Manager DM.S locations I Industry Tenure: l1 y~~r; 
';'. r am Butler has murtrple FE.v1A EM cert f caoons a:1d 

e.<tens ve f eld superv sory/monrtor ng e.<oer.ence He tS an 

a ternative housing rnstallation spec•a' stand has NRCS EviJ? 
program e.<perience expertrse in botn wet and dry debris 

reno:a structure demoft·ion and OMS d conmrssroning 

'J\1 lit am has worked on reco·1ery effor•s for Hurrrcane Irene 

(2011), Hurncane Ike (2003) Hurrrcane Ka:rna (2005) 

H rr cane Char ey (200<!) and van us t.Jrnadoes stra•gh· hne 

,., n~ and flood ng e1ents 

.. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 

Capacity 
We understand the importance of delivering on our promises 

and comm tments. 

Due to the nature of emergency response anci unpredr::tabil tv 

of when d•sasters will occur. pr:~vrd'ng profess onal ser•J ces 1n 

the emergency managemen• a1d debns monitoring market 15 

chal enging At HOR ;•, e take on the challenge of being able to 

respond to our clients rn t'mes of crtical need b~ usrng a multi· 

trered approach includ1ng 

leverag ng the horsepo:;er of the 9,200 person na· on.-;ide 

net\'Jork of HOR p·o'ess·onals 

2 Reta nrng expert FTE emergency mar1agement sra'l \':ith 

reasonable ut;Jization g .a!s so that they are ro: o·1erly 

bogged do\'.':1 on proJeCt work when disasters stnke 

3 Strong partnering relat onsh1ps with firms that we ha ;e 

worked ;•; th (such as TCS and TrdaiBasin) and ·hat •:Je '<nO\'J 

that can de iver when ca led upon 

4 Usrng a cadre of retrred pub'ic works and emergency 

management professro-,als that u:1derstand the dcbr.s 

management business and are anxious to respond to 

e'Tlergency events 

Utilrzrng the methodology abo•1e we are certa n of ou· abrliti' to 

respond to Wake County and i:s munrcrpa! ur sdrctions .,., he1 

we are truly needed most 

.. ,., ~""" 
' 

• 

- Page 191 -



Wd~e County Existing Contract; 

We recognize the 
importance of adding value 
to our local community by 
solving tough challenges and 
inspiring positive change. 

Wa'<e County rs our ultrmate pr orrty We are ver 1 selectrve 1n 'he emergency management related contracts that we take on and are 

generally r;miting our pursurts to our core mfrastructure clrents HDR has no active debns monitoring commitnen's m North Carolma, 

South Caroli1a or Virgmia at th' t rme 'vVe do however pro•:rde our tradrtronal transportal on, water/wastewa•er solrd waste. a:1d other 

rnfrastructure related ser•/ · es to dozens of cl ents rn these states 

0 r team I 1es he~e a"'d works here. \\'e recogr'lize the ·nportance of add,ng value to our local com-numty by so vmg tough 

challenges and rnspiring p~s·tive cha1ge We have bee1 provrdrng ser·/ ces r-: North Carolrna srnce 1948 and have burlt sold working 

rclationshrps with the ma;ont•t of state agenC:es. Through our local offrces we ha1e a strong ocal famrl.arrty wrth a so d and rn-depth 

understand ng of the requirements and constraints in•Jolved n s~ate proiects 

HDR s Resources Group. which ,,.eludes solid wasr• ~nd po.ver professronals, Nrth n the Caro rnas region are current11 provrdrng 

eng neer ng snrvices to a number of ..,un c:r:>al an ::: r un• 1 governnents and pnvate corporatrons rn the South Atlant c These e~istrng 

contracts rnc ude the fol o·::rng clients: 

• \Vak • Cun•y Solid W aste Departmer t 

• Wake Coun•y Facilrt e<. Desrgn & Constr ..~ c! ion 

• CrtJ of Ra eigh Solid Wa;•e Ser 1 t"S Depart men: 

• Orange County Sold vVaste D••J si ,n 
• Crt 1 of Greensboro Freid Operatrons Department 

• ~ ,ty of W nston/Salem SanitatiOn D v son 

• Ra·:Ja1 ( ounty Department of Enviro1-nentai •'v1anagement 

• Gaston Count/ Solid Waste Departnent 

• Mecl( er.burg CoJnt; Solid Waste Management Div rs on 

• Crty of H gh Point Public Ser•1ices Deoartment 

• Gree1•11lle County. SC 

• Charleston County. SC 

• Three Rrvers So 1d Was;e Au:honty. SC 

• Harry County Solid Waste Authority SC 

• Roanol<e Valle Resource Authorrty, VA 

• Southeasterr. Public Ser·11ce Author 't'J, VA 

• C1ty of Newport '\Jews. VA 

• Fairfax County, IJA 

• Charah, Inc 

Duke Energy Inc 

• Waste Management Inc of Virgtnia 

c 
c 

- Page 192 -



- Page 193 -



Wake County \ • Hourly Rates • Fees J-)~ 

We are committed to chargmg our clients competitive, market based rates Understanding that s gn•f cant ·:anances between our 

ra~es and those of our competitors can result in federal rermbursement challenges for our clrents . we do oL.r best to carefull·1 alrgn 

our rate structures w ti". the pre•Jailing market. This sect1on SJmmarizes the hourly rates and 'ees that HDR proposes to charge Wai<e 

'"o ·ntv in providing debr's monitoring and ancillary services The hourly rates presented in the tables belo.v mclude a' a;:>plicable 

o. erhead and profit. Pro ect expenses. includi:'lg travel and per d1em. for essent'al perso:-;r.ei•,•J be b I ed to the County at cost v1ith 

r 'J mark·u;:> ctilizing published cost schedules (e.g., GSA rates). 

Disaster Debris Monitoring Services 
- -. . . 

HOUR LY fU\ T: ~ • fEE S FOR DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES 

FroJcc: Dr•ccto· 
I 

t 

Frc· j Supe~ 1is:~· 

Gl5 .1\nai)'.it 

FrJJect Coudmato~ 

J'i! En'r:t Clt:rk 

595 00 

';;79.50 

:559.00 

SS?GO 

55900 

549 50 

$49 so 
53<!. 50 

53•! ::o 
534 50 

$3<1 0 

53l 50 

Emergency and Debris Management Planning and Training Services 
Tc ·he e~.ten· that Wake C U'lty r· :q ,est energency management plann ng .;er•J,ces be1ond tr·ose required as par: 0f the debns 

mon,tonng scope of •:~ork (e.g, annua. tra mng V1or<snop) then 5uch serv ccs woulc be b•lled to the Coun• 1 at the rates Included m 

the tab e beiO\'. Please not tnat t ;e hourly rates shO\'Jn be o•:~ for planrr ng and tra ,nrng se~·Jices a·e ::on.;istent ~·11th the rate schedJie 

1ncluded n HDR's general sold ,•,as·e management engrneermg ser 1 ces contract t. 1th the Count'/. 

H OURLY RATE S =oR UviFRGEN CV + D E3~ 1 S MANAHM r~T 

PLANNING • T'l AIN l l'-.(, ~ERV IGS 

FllrCI;Jil n (hJ·ge 

Fr 'lect ''lar ager 

Sen a· E-,g•neer/P an~er 

E g n.;e•/P ar "' 

Assocra·e Erg.nrer/ Piann t • 

s 210 00 

s 170 00 

S 150 OG 

5130 00 

S9S 00 

s 75 00 

- Page 194 -



FEMA Grant Management Consulting and Reimbursement Services 
Tl-:e sco::>e of \'.ork for HDR s debns mon1toring serv1ces me udes contractor invo1ce reconciliation and basic ass1stance to the County 

n reco11c 1·,..g debris management costs Tot-e extent that the County wou d need to engage HDR's e>. :Jerienced grant management 

team fo· cieb· s management or other re1mbursement relatec matters the hou• y rates fo: our grant manageme~t profess or.a l5 a·e 

i-o::luded n the table below 

'f"t c·,I·JFn Y R A I ES FOR FEMA GRANT .MANAGEMENT CONSULTING 
• Rf 1'.H lJ'<'> EMENT SERVICES 

' 

St95 co 
!1,!5 co 
5' 2J CJ 

575 0C 

- Page 195 -



- Page 196 -



COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 

This Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (“Purchasing Agreement”) is entered into this _____ day   

of ___________, 2020 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Apex (“TOWN”), and   

HDR Engineering, Inc. of the Carolinas (“HDR”), each of which may be referred to individually as   

“Party” or collectively as the “Parties.”  

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, Wake County, a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina, (“COUNTY”) 

issued a of Disaster Debris Monitoring Services Request For Qualifications (RFQ) #15-039 and HDR 

Engineering, Inc. of the Carolinas (HDR) submitted a response to the RFQ; and 

 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY selected HDR as the COUNTY’s primary consultant to provide 

disaster debris monitoring and related services for the County; and   

 

WHEREAS, the County and HDR entered into a Services Agreement for Disaster Debris 

Monitoring Services (“CONTRACT”) on July 27, 2015; and   

 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACT was extended on July 13, 2020 through to June 30, 2021 

(“EXTENSION”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Wake County’s RFQ document specifically identified the potential need for other 

municipalities in Wake County to cooperatively purchase off of the COUNTY contract; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town has simultaneously approved a Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with 

the COUNTY, a copy of which is attached and incorporated herein as Exhibit A (“Wake County 

Cooperative Purchasing Agreement”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the TOWN desires to purchase debris monitoring services from HDR pursuant to 

the Wake County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement.  

  

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree to the following:  

 

1) The above referenced recitals are incorporated herein, and made a part of this Purchasing  

Agreement.  

 

2) The TOWN desires to engage HDR to provide Services, and HDR desires to provide such  

Services to the TOWN. Upon written request by the TOWN, HDR shall provide the TOWN with  

Services in accordance with the terms and conditions of the CONTRACT and the EXTENSION, 

such that the TOWN is effectively being substituted for the COUNTY in the CONTRACT terms 

and conditions.   

 

3) The TOWN shall pay HDR for the Services in accordance with Section I (Services) and  

Section III (Payment) of the CONTRACT.    

- Page 197 -



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Purchasing Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date first 

written above and shall be provided until July 31, 2021.  

 

  

Town of Apex, North Carolina      HDR Engineering, Inc. of the Carolinas   

  

By:  _____________________________    By: __________________________________  

 

Title: ____________________________    Title: _________________________________  

 

Signature: ________________________    Signature: _____________________________  

 

Date: ____________________________    Date:  _________________________________  

  

Attest:    

  

____________________  

 

Donna Hosch, Town Clerk  

  

 

 

This Instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 

Control Act.  

  

____________________  

Finance Director  

   

  

- Page 198 -



EXHIBIT A 

Wake County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 

- Page 199 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  S te ve  Ad a ms  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ad mi n i s t r a t i on  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  a p pro ve  c on t rac t  be t wee n the  Tow n an d H a l le  P ro per t i e s  t o  t r a de  a  To wn o wne d  

pro per ty  a t  O l d  M i l l  v i l l ag e  fo r  a  H a l l e  o wn ed pro per ty  on  Hun te r  S t ree t  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

As  a  p ar t  o f  th e  on g o i ng e f f o r t  to  i mpr o ve  ou r  Park s  an  agr ee me nt  h a s  be en  draf te d t o  t ra de  a  

parc e l  o f  Town  o wne d pro per ty  i n  O l d  M i l l  V i l l a ge  f o r  a  p arc e l  o n  Hun te r  S t ree t  a d j ac ent  t o  the  

Hun te r  S t ree t  Park .  Th i s  i s  to  be  an  even  e xc han ge .  Ac q u i r i ng  th i s  parc e l  o n  Hu nt e r  S t r e et  w i l l  

a l lo w i mpro ve me nt s  a nd e xp an s i on  o f  t he  p ark  and  c au se  the  re mo va l  o f  an  ab an d on ed h ous e  

an d re l a te d s t ruc tu re s .  As  a  c onc lu s i on  t o  t hese  d i sc us s i on s  the  a t tac h ed  c on t r ac t  an d  exh i b i t  

ma p s  h a ve  b een  de ve lo pe d to  f ac i l i t a te  t he  t r an sac t i on .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Con t r ac t  fo r  lan d s wa p b et wee n J o r dan  O i l  an d the  To wn o f  Ap e x  

  Exh i b i t  A o f  th e  c on t r ac t  Town  P r op er t y  

  Exh i b i t  B  o f  the  c on t r ac t  H a l le  P ro per t y  

  Exh i b i t  C  Ma p wi th  bo th  p ro per t i e s   

 

- Page 200 -



 
 

 

NORTH CAROLINA     LAND EXCHANGE AGREEMENT  

 

WAKE COUNTY 

 

THIS LAND EXCHANGE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 

___ day of __________, 2020, by and between North Carolina II LP (“NC II”) and the Town of 

Apex (“Town”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 

WHEREAS, Section 160A-271 of the North Carolina General Statutes expressly provides 

that a city may exchange any real property belonging to the city for other real property by private 

negotiations if the city receives full and fair consideration in exchange for its property; and  

 

WHEREAS, NC II and the Town desire to exchange with each other certain tracts of real 

property of like value. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and other 

good and valuable consideration, the receipt and legal sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Land Exchange. 

 

(a) The Town is the owner of a certain tract of land comprising 1.441 acres located in 

the County of Wake, State of North Carolina, which is designated as PIN #0742-71-4334 by the 

Wake County Revenue Department, and is more particularly described in the deed recorded in 

Deed Book 16213, Page 1421, and as “Lot 5” as shown in “Recombination & Major Subdivision 

Final Plat Old Mill Village Lot 3 – Phase 1 for Apex First Development Co, LLC,” recorded in 

Book of Maps 2007, Page 2390-2391, Wake County Registry. The entire tract shall be known as 

the Town Tract. 

  

(b) NC II is the owner of a certain tract of land comprising 1.722 acres located in the 

County of Wake, State of North Carolina, which is designated as PIN #0742-53-2930 by the 

Wake County Revenue Department, and is more particularly described in the deed recorded in 

Deed Book 12626, Page 0412 and as “Lot 7” as shown in “Major Subdivision Final Plat The 

Villages of Apex South Village – Phase 1 Lot 3 and Lot 4, Lot 5, Lot 6 and Lot 7,” recorded in 

Book of Maps 2009, Page 05, Wake County Registry. The entire tract shall be known as the NC 

II Tract. 

 

(c) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, NC II agrees to exchange 

the NC II Tract for the Town Tract and the Town agrees to exchange the Town Tract for the NC 

II Tract (the “Exchange”).  The consideration provided by each party to the other shall be the 

simultaneous conveyance of the NC II Tract by NC II to the Town and the conveyance of the 

Town Tract by the Town to NC II. 

- Page 201 -



 

 
 

2  

 

Section 2.  Commissions; Agency. 

 

Neither party shall be responsible for payment of any commission payable to a broker or 

agent arising out of this transaction except as specifically retained and agreed by that party, and 

each party agrees to otherwise indemnify the other, non-retaining, party from liability for any 

such commission. 

 

 Section 3.  Cooperation. 

 

 Each party agrees to take such action and execute such documents as are reasonably 

necessary to enable the other party to use the property it acquires under this agreement for the use 

intended by the acquiring party. 

 

 Section 4.  Environmental.   

 

Each party warrants that, to the best of that party’s knowledge, the property being 

conveyed by that party is free of underground storage tanks, pollution, contamination, hazardous 

materials, toxic wastes, asbestos, and products containing same, and is in compliance with all 

environmental regulations.  Each party shall, upon signing this contract, furnish the other party 

with any available environmental reports or audits pertaining to the property being conveyed by 

that party. 

 

Section 5.  Property Condition.   

 

Except as specifically set forth above, neither party warrants the physical condition of the 

property being conveyed by that party or any improvements thereon, and each tract is conveyed 

“as-is” as to physical condition. 

  

Section 6.  Closing.   

 

The closing (the “Closing”) of the Exchange shall occur no later than _______________, 

2020 (the “Closing Date”), at a location designated by the Town.  At Closing, the following 

shall occur: 

 

(a) Each party shall deliver to the other party the items set forth below, to the 

reasonable satisfaction of each party’s counsel: 

 

(i) A General Warranty Deed (the “Deed”) fully and duly executed and 

acknowledged by the party, that conveys to the other party the tract as provided in Section 

1.  Each party agrees to pay at Closing the cost of the excise tax if any due and payable in 

connection with recording the General Warranty Deed from it to the other party and to 

pay at Closing the cost of recording the General Warranty Deed to it from the other party; 

 

(ii) Each party shall provide the other with an affidavit (the "Title Affidavit”) 

stating that there are no unpaid debts for work performed on or materials provided to that 

- Page 202 -



 

 
 

3  

party’s tract as of the Closing Date; 

  

(iii) Each party shall provide the other with a certificate (the “FIRPTA 

Certificate”) executed and sworn to by it that it is not a "foreign person" as defined under 

Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code; 

 

(b) Each party shall pay for the cost of the title insurance policy (if any) obtained by it 

for the tract to be conveyed to it.  Each party shall pay its own costs and expenses incurred in 

connection with this Agreement, including its respective attorneys' fees and any other expenses 

specifically allocated hereunder. 

 

(c) Each party shall pay the real estate taxes due on its own tract that it is conveying 

to the other party, or will be due in the year at closing. Each party shall be responsible for any 

special assessments which are owing or due on its property as of the Closing Date. The 

provisions of this Section shall survive the Closing.  

 

Section 7.  Title. 

 

 (a) At Closing, each party shall deliver to the other the Deed, subject to Acceptable 

Encumbrances (as defined below), conveying to the other, an indefeasible, fee simple, 

marketable title to the Property, insurable at regular rates by a reputable title insurance company 

of Purchaser's choice (the “Title Company”). 

 

 (b) Within ten (10) days after the Execution Date of this Agreement, each party 

agrees to deliver to the other copies of all relevant title information and title policies in 

possession of, or reasonably available to it. 

 

(c) As a condition to being obligated to close, each party shall be able to obtain a 

commitment for a policy of title insurance insuring title to the property it will receive at standard 

rates from the Title Company, subject only to the following (collectively the "Acceptable 

Encumbrances"): 

 

(i) Real property taxes for the year in which the sale and purchase shall be 

closed. 

 

(ii) Any other exceptions that specifically approved in writing.  

 

(d) Acceptable Encumbrances are limited to the following:  any easements to the 

Town of Apex. 

 

(e) Each party shall have until fifteen (15) days before the Closing Date within which 

to cause the title to the Property to be examined and then to notify the other party of any 

objections thereto that render title other than good, marketable and insurable.  If a party so 

notifies the other party and the other party does not cure the title defect within ten (10) days of 

the mailing of the Notice, then notifying party shall have the right to terminate this contract by 

written Notice to the other party.   

- Page 203 -



 

 
 

4  

 

Section 8.  Further Warranties. 

 

The parties respectively make the following representations to each other.  Such 

representations also shall be deemed made as of the Closing.  

 

(a) Each party has the full right, power, and authority to execute, deliver, and 

perform this Agreement. 

 

(b) There are no unpaid bills for labor or materials related to the tracts.  There 

are no taxes, charges or assessments that would constitute a lien against the tracts that are 

unpaid other than ad valorem taxes for the current year now due and payable. 

 

 (c)  Each party has complied with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, 

and restrictions relating to its tracts. 

 

Section 9.  Notices. 

 

Any notice required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered in 

person, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized overnight 

delivery service.  Notices shall be effective as of the time of delivery.  Notices shall be addressed 

as follows:  

 

To NC II: _________________________________________________________ 

 

To Town: Drew Havens, Town Manager, Town of Apex, P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC, 

27502 

 

Either party may, at any time, and from time to time, designate in writing a substitute 

address by giving notice to the other party. 

 

Section 10.  Further Assurances. 

 

Each of the parties hereto agrees to perform, execute, acknowledge and deliver and cause 

to be performed, executed, acknowledged and delivered all such further acts, assignments, 

transfers and assurances as shall reasonably be requested of it in order to carry out this 

Agreement.  Without in any manner limiting their specific rights and obligations set forth in this 

Agreement, the parties declare their intention to cooperate with each other in effecting the terms 

of this Agreement. 

  

Section 11.  Other Terms or Conditions.   

 

This Agreement is the entire agreement between NC II and the Town concerning the 

properties and no modification hereof is effective unless it be in writing and signed by the 

parties.  This Agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of NC II and the Town, their 

heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns.  

- Page 204 -



 

 
 

5  

 

EXECUTED the date and year noted beside the respective signatures. 

 

  

 North Carolina II, LP    

 

 By: _____________________________________  

 

NORTH CAROLINA 

_______________ COUNTY 

 

I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that ________________ personally 

appeared before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing instrument. 

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this ___ day of __________, 2020. 

 

      

[Signature of Notary] 

 

      

[Print of  Type Notary Name] 

 

My Commission Expires:    

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 205 -



 

 
 

6  

Town of Apex 

 

 

       ____________________________ 

(Corporate Seal)     Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAKE 

 

I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Donna B. Hosch personally 

came before me this day and acknowledged that she is Town Clerk of the Town of Apex, a North 

Carolina Municipal Corporation, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the 

corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its Mayor, sealed with its 

corporate seal and attested by her as its Town Clerk.  Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, 

this the ____ day of _______________, 2020. 

 

        

[Notary Signature] 

 

     , Notary Public 

[Print or Type Notary Name]    

 

My Commission Expires: _______________________ 

 

 

 
 

 

- Page 206 -



- Page 207 -

sadams
Polygon

sadams
Text Box
Town of Apex

sadams
Text Box

sadams
Rectangle



Disclaimer
iMaps makes every effort to produce and publish 
the most current and accurate information possible.
However, the maps are produced for information purposes,
and are NOT surveys. No warranties, expressed or implied
,are provided for the data therein, its use,or its interpretation.

0 210 420105 ft

1 inch = 200 feet

±

PIN: 0742532930
PIN Ext: 000
Real Estate ID: 0374005
Map Name: 0742 15
Owner: NC II LP LTD PTNRSP
Mail Address 1: THE HALLE COMPANIES
Mail Address 2: 2900 LINDEN LN STE 300
Mail Address 3: SILVER SPRING MD 20910-
1265
Deed Book: 012626
Deed Page: 00412
Deed Acres: 1.72
Deed Date: 6/28/2007
Building Value: $0
Land Value: $620,362
Total Value: $620,362
Biling Class: Business
Description: LO7 THE VILLAGES OF APEX
SOUTH VILLAGE PH1 BM2008 -02088
Heated Area:
Street Name: AMBERGATE STA
Site Address: 1200 AMBERGATE STA
City: APEX
Planning Jursidiction: AP
Township: White Oak
Year Built:
Sale Price: $0
Sale Date:
Use Type:

- Page 208 -



Old MIll property swap Disclaimer
iMaps makes every effort to produce and publish 
the most current and accurate information possible.
However, the maps are produced for information purposes,
and are NOT surveys. No warranties, expressed or implied,
are provided for the data therein, its use,or its interpretation.

0 450 900225 ft

1 inch = 400 feet±

polygonLayer

Override 1

- Page 209 -

sadams
Polygon

sadams
Text Box
TOWN HALL

sadams
Callout
Olde Mill VillageTown owned lot

sadams
Callout
Halle Company owned lot



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PU BL I C  HE AR I N G  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2 0 2 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  L i z  Lo f t i n ,  Sen i o r  P la n ner  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  De par t men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Pub l i c  He ar i ng an d p os s i b le  mo t i o n  to  ap pro ve  R e zon i n g Ap p l i c at i o n  #20 CZ06  204  &  206  Lync h  

S t ree t .  Th e  a pp l i c an t ,  T r i n i t y  H en der s on ,  see ks  t o  rez one  ap pr ox i mat e l y  ±0.45 acres fo r  the  p ro per t i e s  

loc at ed  a t  204  &  206  Lync h  S t ree t ,  f ro m H i g h  Den s i ty  S i ng le  F a mi l y  (H D SF )  to  H i gh  Den s i ty  S i ng le  

Fa mi l y -C on di t i on a l  Z o n i ng (H D SF -C Z ) .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

The  P l ann i n g a nd  Co m mun i t y  De ve lo p men t  De p ar t me nt  rec o m m end s  a p pro va l .   

The  P l ann i ng Bo ar d h e ld  a  Pu b l i c  He ar i ng  on  Au g us t  10 ,  2020  an d una n i mou s l y  rec o mmen de d  

ap pro va l .   

I tem De ta i l s  

The  fo l l o w i ng P I Ns  a re  i nc lude d i n  th i s  re z on i ng :  0741283934  &  074 1282977  

At t ac h men t s  

  S taf f  R e p or t   

  Vi c i n i ty  M a p  

  Ap p l i c at i on  

 

- Page 210 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ06 204 & 206 Lynch Street    

August 18, 2020 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Prepared by: Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 
Page 1 of 3  

All property owners and neighborhood associations within three hundred (300) feet of this rezoning have 
been notified per UDO Sec. 2.2.11 Public Notification. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Location:  204 & 206 Lynch Street     
Applicant: Trinity Henderson 
Owners: Orchid Homes LLC and 206 Lynch Street Trust    
  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Acreage:  ± 0.45 acre 
PINs:  0741283934 & 0741282977 
Current Zoning:  High Density Single Family (HDSF)/ Small Town Character Overlay District  
Proposed Zoning:  High Density Single Family-Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ)/ Small Town 

Character Overlay District  
2045 Land Use Map: Medium Density Residential  
Town Limits:  Inside Town Limits  
 
Adjacent Zoning & Land Uses: 
 

 Zoning Land Use 

North:  High Density Single-Family (HDSF) Single-Family  

South: High Density Single-Family (HDSF) Lynch Street; Single-Family  

East:  High Density Single-Family (HDSF) Single-Family  

West: High Density Single-Family (HDSF)  Single-Family 
 

EXISTING CONDITIONS: 
The properties to be rezoned are located midblock on the north side of Lynch Street between First and 
Second Streets. Both properties currently have one single-family home on them. The house at 204 Lynch 
Street currently encroaches onto 206 Lynch Street.  
 
NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING: 
The applicant conducted neighborhood meetings on February 20, 2020 and on June 30, 2020. The 
neighborhood meeting reports are attached. 
 
2045 LAND USE MAP: 
The 2045 Land Use Map classifies the subject property as Medium Density Residential. The proposed 
rezoning to High Density Single Family-Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ) is generally consistent with that land 
use classification.  
 

- Page 211 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ06 204 & 206 Lynch Street    

August 18, 2020 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Prepared by: Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 
Page 2 of 3  

PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 
Limitation of Uses: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses 
are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or 
regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such 
references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply. 
 

1. Accessory Apartment 
2. Single Family  

3. Utility, minor  

 
204 Lynch Street Conditions:  

1. The minimum setback from the western property line shall be 3 feet.  
 
206 Lynch Street Conditions:  

1. The minimum lot width shall be 50 feet.  
2. The minimum setback from the eastern property line shall be 8 feet.  
3. The minimum setback from the western property line shall be 4 feet.  

 
 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of Rezoning #20CZ06 (206 & 204 Lynch Street) as proposed by the 
applicant.  
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board heard this item at their August 10, 2020 meeting and unanimously recommended 
approval of the rezoning with the conditions proposed by the applicant.  
 
 
ANALYSIS STATEMENT OF THE REASONABLENESS OF THE PROPOSED REZONING: 
This Statement will address consistency with the Town’s comprehensive and other applicable plans, 
reasonableness, and effect on public interest: 
 

Approval of the rezoning is reasonable because the proposed High Density Single Family-Conditional 
Zoning (HDSF-CZ) district is generally consistent with land use classification on the 2045 Land Use 
Map.   
 
The proposed rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest because it will allow for the shared 
property line to be shifted west in order to remedy the encroachment of the house located at 204 
Lynch Street that currently exists on 206 Lynch Street. This will allow the property owner of 204 
Lynch Street to make improvements to the home.  

 
CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS:  
The Town Council shall find the High Density Single Family-Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ) designation 
demonstrates compliance with the following standards. Sec. 2.3.3.F: 
 

- Page 212 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ06 204 & 206 Lynch Street  

August 18, 2020 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Prepared by: Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 
Page 3 of 3 

Legislative Considerations  
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether 
or not the proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest. These 
considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the 
public interest.  

 
1)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 

appropriateness for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.  

 
2)  Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its 

proposed location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.  
 
3)  Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 

compliance with Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable.  
 
4)  Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District 

use’s minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent 
lands; and avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, 
service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance.  

 
5)  Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 

minimization of environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water 
and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources.  

 
6)  Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of 

having adverse impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and 
wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS facilities.  

 
7)  Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the 

health, safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ.  
 
8)  Detrimental to adjacent properties. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 

substantially detrimental to adjacent properties.  
  
9)  Not constitute nuisance or hazard. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 

constitutes a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of 
persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use.  

 
10)  Other relevant standards of this Ordinance. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) 

District use complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this 
Ordinance for use, layout, and general development characteristics. 

- Page 213 -



- Page 214 -



- Page 215 -



- Page 216 -



- Page 217 -



- Page 218 -



- Page 219 -



- Page 220 -



- Page 221 -



- Page 222 -



- Page 223 -



- Page 224 -



- Page 225 -



- Page 226 -



- Page 227 -



- Page 228 -



- Page 229 -



- Page 230 -



- Page 231 -



- Page 232 -



- Page 233 -



- Page 234 -



- Page 235 -



- Page 236 -



- Page 237 -



- Page 238 -



- Page 239 -



- Page 240 -



- Page 241 -



- Page 242 -



- Page 243 -



- Page 244 -



- Page 245 -



- Page 246 -



- Page 247 -



- Page 248 -



- Page 249 -



- Page 250 -



- Page 251 -



- Page 252 -



- Page 253 -



- Page 254 -



- Page 255 -



- Page 256 -



- Page 257 -



- Page 258 -



- Page 259 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

 

Page 1 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Report Requirements:  
Per NCGS 160A-387, all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall have a written report provided 
from the Planning Board to the Town Council within 30 days of referral of the amendment to the Planning Board, or the Town 
Council may proceed in its consideration of the amendment without the Planning Board report. Furthermore, in no case is the 
Town Council bound by the recommendations, if any, of the Planning Board. 
  
Per NCGS 160A-383, the Planning Board shall advise and comment on whether the proposed zoning amendment is consistent 
with all applicable officially adopted plans, and provide a written recommendation to the Town Council that addresses plan 
consistency and other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a comment by the Planning Board that a 
proposed amendment is inconsistent with the officially adopted plans shall not preclude consideration or approval of the 
proposed amendment by the Town Council. 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
Acreage:  
PIN(s):  
Current Zoning:  
Proposed Zoning:   
2045 Land Use Map:  

  
Town Limits:  

 

 
Applicable Officially Adopted Plans: 

 

The Board must state whether the project is consistent or inconsistent with the following officially adopted plans, 
if applicable.  Applicable plans have a check mark next to them.  
  

 2045 Land Use Map 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

 Apex Transportation Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 Parks, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenways Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

 

August 10, 2020 

#20CZ06 204 & 206 Lynch Street 

± .45 acre
0741283934 & 0741282977

High Density Single Family (HDSF)/ Small Town Character Overlay District 
High Density Single Family-Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ)/ Small Town Character Overlay District 

Medium Density Residential 

Inside Town Limits

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

- Page 260 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

 

Page 2 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Legislative Considerations: 
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the 
proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not 
exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. 
 
1. Consistency with 2045 Land Use Plan. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness 

for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land 
Use Plan. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
  
 
 
 
 
2. Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its proposed 

location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
3. Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s compliance 

with Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
4. Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 

minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, 
parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
5. Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s minimization of 

environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife 
habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
  

August 10, 2020 

#20CZ06 204 & 206 Lynch Street 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

- Page 261 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

 

Page 3 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

 
6. Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having adverse 

impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, 
schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
7. Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the health, 

safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
8. Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 

substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
9. Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes 

a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using 
the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
10. Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 

complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, 
layout, and general development characteristics. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

August 10, 2020 

#20CZ06 204 & 206 Lynch Street 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

- Page 262 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

 

Page 4 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Planning Board Recommendation: 
 

Motion:  

Introduced by Planning Board member:  

Seconded by Planning Board member:  

  
 Approval: the project is consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and the applicable legislative 

considerations listed above. 
 

 Approval with conditions: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the 
applicable legislative considerations as noted above, so the following conditions are recommended to be 
included in the project in order to make it fully consistent: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  
 Denial: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the applicable 

legislative considerations as noted above. 
  
  

 With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “aye” 
 

With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “no” 
  

Reasons for dissenting votes: 
  

  

  

  

  
This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the  day of  2020. 
  
  
Attest:  
 
 

 

   
Michael Marks, Planning Board Chair  Dianne Khin, Planning Director 
 

Motion to approve as proposed.
Reginald Skinner
Mark Steele

7

0

10th August

August 10, 2020 

#20CZ06 204 & 206 Lynch Street 

Michael Marks Digitally signed by Michael Marks 
Date: 2020.08.10 19:04:24 -04'00' Dianne Khin Digitally signed by Dianne Khin 

Date: 2020.08.10 17:14:38 
-04'00'

✔

- Page 263 -



 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #20CZ06 
204 & 206 Lynch Street 

  

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes Section 160A-364 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Planning Board and Town Council of the 
Town of Apex. The purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 
 

Applicant/Authorized Agent: Trinity Henderson 
Property Addresses: 204 & 206 Lynch Street  
Acreage: ±.45 acres  
Property Identification Number (PINs): 0741283934 & 0741282977  
Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential  
Existing Zoning of Property: High Density Single Family (HDSF) 
Proposed Zoning of Property: High Density Single Family -Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ) 
 
Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  

                                   73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  
                                   Council Chambers, 2nd Floor 
 

Planning Board Public Hearing Date and Time:  August 10, 2020   4:30 PM 
If you would like to speak during the public hearing, you may sign-in ahead of time by emailing your name 
and address to bonnie.brock@apexnc.org.  
If you are unable to attend, you may view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. You may share comments by noon on Friday, August 7, 2020, 
following instructions in the Remote Participation policy. The policy includes options to provide comments 
by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-372-7300, 3-minute limit). 
 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time:  August 18, 2020   6:00 PM  
If you are unable to attend, you may view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. You may share comments by noon on Monday, August 17, 
2020, following instructions in the Remote Participation policy. The policy includes options to provide 
comments by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-372-7300, 3-minute 
limit). 

 
Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent this notice via first class mail. All interested 
parties may appear at the public hearing and be heard with respect to the application. Maps showing the location for the above 
site(s) to be considered in addition to a copy of the 2045 Land Use Map can be inspected at the Apex Town Hall or call 919-
249-3426, Department of Planning and Community Development, for further information. To view the petition and related 
documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31550. 
 
 
 
Published Dates: July 24, 2020 – August 18, 2020 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

 

- Page 264 -

mailto:bonnie.brock@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/1414/Remote-Participation
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/1414/Remote-Participation
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/Home/View/478
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31550


- Page 265 -



- Page 266 -



- Page 267 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PU BL I C  HE AR I N G  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Am a n d a Bunc e ,  Cu r re n t  P l ann i n g M an a ger  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Pub l i c  He ar i ng an d p os s i b le  mo t i on  r eg ar d i ng var i ou s  a men d me nt s  t o  the  Un i f i ed De ve lo p men t  

Ord i n anc e as  r eque s t ed by  P la nn i ng s ta f f .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

The  P l ann i n g a nd  Co m mun i t y  De ve lo p men t  De p ar t me nt  rec o m m end s  a p pro va l .  

The  P la nn i ng B o ard h ear d th ese  a men d me nt s  a t  t he i r  Au g us t  10 ,  2020  mee t i ng an d unan i mous ly  

rec o mmen de d a ppr o va l .   

I tem De ta i l s  

UDO  Ame n d men t  Su m mar y  

 

R eques te d b y  P l ann i n g S ta f f :  

1 .  Am e n d men ts  to  Sec .  6 .3 .1 .D  S m al l  T own C harac t e r  Over l ay  D i s t r ic t ,  Ap pr ova l  C r i t e r ia  i n  

o rde r  t o  e l i mi n at e  the  re qu i re men t  f o r  bu i ld i n g la nd sc ap i ng re qu i re men t s  fo r  a l l  

de ve lo p men t  an d e l i mi n a te  the  veh i c u l a r  u se  a re a sc r een i ng a nd s ha d i ng r equ i re me nt s  

fo r  pu b l i c  p ark i n g l o t s  w i th i n  the  Cen t r a l  Bu s i nes s  D i s t r i c t .  

2 .  Am e n d men ts  to  Sec .  10 .3  Nonc onf o rm in g S t ruct u res  i n  o rde r  t o  c or rec t  a  t y po gr aph i c a l  

e r ro r  i n  Sec .  10 .3 .2  an d t o  c h an ge a  w ord  i n  Sec .  10 .3 .4  i n  o r de r  to  c l a r i f y  the  i n ten t  o f  a  

sen tenc e .  

3 .  Am e n d men ts  t o  Sec .  14 .1 .3  Park s ,  R ec reat ion ,  an d Open  S p ac e S i t e s ;  S t and ar ds  f o r  

Ded ic at ion  i n  o r de r  t o  ve r i f y  the  u sa b i l i t y  o f  lan d p ro po se d fo r  de d i c a t i on  b y  requ i r i ng  a  

Ph ase  1  s i t e  a s ses s me nt  p r i o r  to  la nd  d ed i c at i o n  to  th e  Town .  

At t ac h men t s  

  S taf f  R e p or t  

  Ord i n anc e  

  Leg a l  N o t i c e  

 

- Page 268 -



 

1 

STAFF REPORT 
Amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance 

August 18, 2020 Town Council Meeting  
 

 
Requested by Planning Staff: 
 
 
1. Amendments to Sec. 6.3.1.D Small Town Character Overlay District, Approval Criteria in order to 

eliminate the requirement for building landscaping requirements for all development and eliminate 
the vehicular use area screening and shading requirements for public parking lots within the Central 
Business District.  

 
6.3.1 Small Town Character Overlay District 
 … 
 D) Approval Criteria 
  … 

6) No Resource Conservation Area (Sec. 8.1.2 Resource Conservation Area) or 
Buffers (Sec. 8.2.6 Buffering) are required. Within the Central Business District, 
no building landscaping (Sec. 8.2.4 Building Landscaping Requirements) is 
required and no landscaping within vehicular use areas of public parking lots 
(Sec. 8.2.5.B Vehicular Use Area Screening and Sec. 8.2.5.C Vehicular Use Area 
Shading) is required. 

… 
 
 
2. Amendments to Sec. 10.3 Nonconforming Structures in order to correct a typographical error in Sec. 

10.3.2 and to change a word in Sec. 10.3.4 in order to clarify the intent of a sentence. 
 
10.3.2 Enlargement or Expansion 

A non-residential nonconforming structure shall not be enlarged or expanded in area occupied 
unless otherwise stated in 10.3.2(.B)(.1-4). A residential structure may expand so long as there is 
no increase to the noncomnformity. 

 
 
10.3.4 Damage and Restoration of Nonconforming Structure 

No A nonconforming structure which has been damaged by any means to an extent exceeding a 
percentage of its then reproducible value equal to 100 percent minus two percent per year of 
age of the structure, or 60 percent, whichever is greater, shall comply with the use standards of 
this Ordinance when it is re-constructed. Any nonconforming structure that is damaged by any 
means to a lesser extent may continue if it is reconstructed within two years of the damage. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 269 -



 

2 

3. Amendments to Sec. 14.1.3 Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Sites; Standards for Dedication in 

order to verify the usability of land proposed for dedication by requiring a Phase 1 site assessment 

prior to land dedication to the Town.  

 
14.1.3  Standards for Dedication  

All land dedicated for recreation and park development shall substantially meet the following 
standards:  
A)  Unity  

The dedicated land shall form a single parcel of land except where the Town Council 
determines that two (2) or more parcels would be in the public interest and determines 
that a connecting path or strip of land is in the public interest, and in which case the 
width of the connecting property shall not be less than 30 feet wide.  
 

B)  Shape  
The shape of the dedicated parcel of land shall be sufficiently square or round to be 
usable for recreational activities such as softball, tennis, croquet, etc.  
 

C)  Location  
The dedicated land shall be located so as to reasonably serve the recreation and open 
space needs of the development for which the dedication was made and shall bear a 
reasonable relationship to the use of the area by the future inhabitants of the 
residential development.  
 

D)  Access  
Public access to the dedicated land shall be provided either by adjoining street frontage 
or public access easement at least 20 feet in width.  
 

E)  Topography  
Generally areas dedicated for recreation shall not exceed slopes of 5%.  
 

F)  Usability  
The dedicated land shall be usable for recreation; lakes or ponds may not be included in 
computing dedicated land area. In order to determine usability, a Phase 1 site 
assessment shall be submitted by the developer for consideration by Town Council. 
 

G)  Plans  
Municipal and county plans shall be taken into consideration when evaluating land 
proposals for dedication. 

 
 

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of the proposed UDO amendments.  
 
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board heard these amendments at their August 10, 2020 meeting and unanimously 
recommended approval. 

- Page 270 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Unified Development Ordinance Amendments 
Planning Board Meeting Date:  
 

Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Report Requirements:  
Per NCGS 160A-387, all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall have a written 
report provided from the Planning Board to the Town Council within 30 days of referral of the amendment 
to the Planning Board, or the Town Council may proceed in its consideration of the amendment without the 
Planning Board report. Furthermore, in no case is the Town Council bound by the recommendations, if any, 
of the Planning Board. 

Planning Board Recommendation:  

Motion:  

  
  
Introduced by Planning Board member:  

Seconded by Planning Board member:  
  

 Approval of the proposed UDO amendment(s) 
 Approval of the proposed UDO amendment(s) with the following conditions: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 Denial of the proposed UDO amendment(s)  

 With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “aye” 
 

With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “no” 
  

Reasons for dissenting votes: 
  
  
  
  
  

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the ____ day of ____________ 2020. 

Attest:  
   

Michael Marks, Planning Board Chair  Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

August 10, 2020

Motion to approve as proposed.

Beth Godfrey
Reginald Skinner

7
0

10th August

✔

Michael Marks Digitally signed by Michael Marks 
Date: 2020.08.10 19:04:57 -04'00' Dianne Khin Digitally signed by Dianne Khin 

Date: 2020.08.10 17:06:05 
-04'00'

- Page 271 -



- Page 272 -



 

 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION  
OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

AMENDMENTS TO THE  
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
ORDINANCE (UDO) 
 

 
Notice is hereby given of a public hearing before the Town Council of the Town of Apex for the purpose of soliciting 
comments relative to the following amendment(s) to the Unified Development Ordinance: 

 

 
Requested by Planning Staff: 

1. Amendments to Sec. 6.3.1.D Small Town Character Overlay District, Approval Criteria in order to eliminate 
the requirement for building landscaping requirements for all development and eliminate the vehicular use 
area screening and shading requirements for public parking lots within the Central Business District. 
 

2. Amendments to Sec. 10.3 Nonconforming Structures in order to correct a typographical error in Sec. 10.3.2 
and to change a word in Sec. 10.3.4 in order to clarify the intent of a sentence. 

 
3. Amendments to Sec. 14.1.3 Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Sites; Standards for Dedication in order to 

verify the usability of land proposed for dedication by requiring a Phase 1 site assessment prior to land 
dedication to the Town.  

 
 
 

Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  
                                   73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  
                                   Council Chambers, 2nd Floor 
 
 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time: August 18, 2020    6:00 PM 
You may view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 
 
If you are unable to attend, you may share comments by noon on Monday, August 17, 2020, following 
instructions in the Remote Participation policy. The policy includes options to provide comments by 
email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-372-7300, 3-minute limit). 

 
 
 

The UDO can be accessed online at: http://www.apexnc.org/233. 
 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and 
Community Development 

 
 
 
Published Dates: July 24-August 18, 2020 

- Page 273 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/1414/Remote-Participation
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/233


1 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CERTAIN SECTIONS OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as follows: 
 
 
 
Section 1. Section 6.3.1.D of the Unified Development Ordinance is amended to read as follows with 

additions shown as bold underlined text and deletions shown as struck-through text: 
 
6.3.1 Small Town Character Overlay District 
 … 
 D) Approval Criteria 
  … 

6) No Resource Conservation Area (Sec. 8.1.2 Resource Conservation Area) or 
Buffers (Sec. 8.2.6 Buffering) are required. Within the Central Business District, 
no building landscaping (Sec. 8.2.4 Building Landscaping Requirements) is 
required and no landscaping within vehicular use areas of public parking lots 
(Sec. 8.2.5.B Vehicular Use Area Screening and Sec. 8.2.5.C Vehicular Use Area 
Shading) is required. 

… 
 
 
 
Section 2. Section 10.3 of the Unified Development Ordinance is amended to read as follows with 

additions shown as bold underlined text and deletions shown as struck-through text: 
 
10.3.2 Enlargement or Expansion 

A non-residential nonconforming structure shall not be enlarged or expanded in area occupied 
unless otherwise stated in 10.3.2(.B)(.1-4). A residential structure may expand so long as there is 
no increase to the noncomnformity. 

 
 
10.3.4 Damage and Restoration of Nonconforming Structure 

No A nonconforming structure which has been damaged by any means to an extent exceeding a 
percentage of its then reproducible value equal to 100 percent minus two percent per year of 
age of the structure, or 60 percent, whichever is greater, shall comply with the use standards of 
this Ordinance when it is re-constructed. Any nonconforming structure that is damaged by any 
means to a lesser extent may continue if it is reconstructed within two years of the damage. 

 
 
 
Section 3. Section 14.1.3 of the Unified Development Ordinance is amended to read as follows with 

additions shown as bold underlined text and deletions shown as struck-through text: 
 
14.1.3  Standards for Dedication  

All land dedicated for recreation and park development shall substantially meet the following 
standards:  
 

- Page 274 -



2 

A)  Unity  
The dedicated land shall form a single parcel of land except where the Town Council 
determines that two (2) or more parcels would be in the public interest and determines 
that a connecting path or strip of land is in the public interest, and in which case the 
width of the connecting property shall not be less than 30 feet wide.  
 

B)  Shape  
The shape of the dedicated parcel of land shall be sufficiently square or round to be 
usable for recreational activities such as softball, tennis, croquet, etc.  
 

C)  Location  
The dedicated land shall be located so as to reasonably serve the recreation and open 
space needs of the development for which the dedication was made and shall bear a 
reasonable relationship to the use of the area by the future inhabitants of the 
residential development.  
 

D)  Access  
Public access to the dedicated land shall be provided either by adjoining street frontage 
or public access easement at least 20 feet in width.  
 

E)  Topography  
Generally areas dedicated for recreation shall not exceed slopes of 5%.  
 

F)  Usability  
The dedicated land shall be usable for recreation; lakes or ponds may not be included in 
computing dedicated land area. In order to determine usability, a Phase 1 site 
assessment shall be submitted by the developer for consideration by Town Council. 
 

G)  Plans  
Municipal and county plans shall be taken into consideration when evaluating land 
proposals for dedication. 

 
 
 
Section 4. The Planning Director and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to renumber, revise 

formatting, correct typographic errors, to verify and correct cross references, indexes and 
diagrams as necessary to codify, publish, and/or accomplish the provisions of this ordinance 
or future amendments as long as doing so does not alter the terms of this ordinance.  

 
 
 
Section 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. If 

any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision of this ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to such section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or 
provision so adjudged and the remainder of the ordinance shall be deemed valid and 
effective. 

 
 

- Page 275 -



3 

 
Section 6. The ordinance shall be effective upon enactment on the _____ day of August 2020. 
 
 

Introduced by Council Member ________________________________ 
 
Seconded by Council Member _________________________________ 
 

 
Attest:     TOWN OF APEX 

 
 

_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Donna Hosch, MMC, NCCMC  Jacques K. Gilbert 
Town Clerk     Mayor 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Laurie L. Hohe 
Town Attorney 

- Page 276 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  OLD BU S I NE SS  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Co l leen  Mer ay s ,  D o w nt own  an d S ma l l  Bu s i nes s  De ve lo p men t  C o ord i n at o r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ec on o mi c  D e ve l op me nt  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  t o  mo di f y  c u r re n t  Par k i ng - t o -D i n i ng  P ro gr a m l a y out  ad o pt ed  b y  Town  Cou nc i l  on  

June  2 ,  2020  t o  ne w l ay ou t  p r esen te d .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

Th i s  p os s i b le  mo t i on  i s  i n  l i ne  w i t h  the  Ap ex  Do wn to wn Bus i nes s  As soc i a t i on ’ s  le t te r  re qu es t  

da te d Au g u s t  7 ,  2020  &  Au g u s t  1 1 ,  2020  f o r  the  “ P ark i ng - to - Di nn i ng ”  p r o j ec t .  Th e  on - s t r eet  

par a l le l  p ark i ng s pac es  a lo n g N .  Sa le m S t r eet  f r o m Saun der s  S t .  to  Ch a th a m S t .  were  c los ed  t o  

a l lo w fo r  ex ten de d ou t do or  d i n i ng an d a lc o ho l  c onsu mp t i on  as  p e r mi t te d by  AB C  La w or  

regu l a t i on s ,  an d a p pr o ved  an  o r d i nanc e  te mp or ar i l y  mo di f y i n g Town  C od e S ec t i o ns  14 -14  an d 

1 8 -11  a s  the y  re l a te  t o  s i d ew al k  d i n i ng a nd  a lc oho l  c onsu mp t i o n  on  pub l i c  s t ree t s  an d  s i de w alk s  

th r oug h  Sep te mb er  18 ,  2020 .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Le t te r  an d e mai l  f ro m  Ap ex  Do wn to wn  Bu s i nes s  As s oc i a t i on  d a te d 8 -7 -2020  a nd  8 -1 1 -2 020  

  Ne w Par k i ng- t o -D i n i ng P ro j ec t  Ar e a  L ay ou t  d at ed  8 -1 0 -2 0 2 0  

 

- Page 277 -



 

August 7, 2020 

 

Mr. Drew Havens 
Town Manager 
Town of Apex 
73 Hunter Street 
PO Box 250 
Apex, NC 27502 
 
 
Dear Mr. Havens: 
 
The Apex Downtown Business Association (ADBA) appreciates the Town Council’s and Town 
employees’ efforts in the implementation of the “parking-to-dining” program that we proposed 
and encouraged back in May. In our letter of May 23rd, we also recommended that the program 
be evaluated after 60 days to ensure it is having the desired results. We believe the time is now 
upon us to make changes to the current program. 
 
As you are aware, we are not where we expected to be, at this juncture, relative to the Governor’s 
phased reopening approach. At the time of Town Council’s approval and the parking-to-dining 
layout envisioned by the Town, we expected to move to Phase 3 prior to implementation of the 
program. With the Governor’s actions extending Phase 2, this has left us with a number of closed 
parking spaces not being utilized as the Town envisioned in its layout and implementation. With 
the Governor’s most recent action, we will remain in Phase 2 until at least September 11th, thus 
likely resulting in these closed spaces being underutilized until that date. 
 
Some downtown retail businesses have reported a decrease in foot traffic downtown since the 
installation of the water barricades and closure of the parking spaces.  We realize it difficult, if 
not impossible, to quantify the effect of the parking closures on downtown foot traffic especially 
in light of the current Covid-19 pandemic and the extreme heat we have been experiencing. 
Nonetheless, we believe now is the time to modify the current parking-to-dining program given 
it is not being fully utilized as envisioned by the Town and because of the Governor’s recent 
actions extending Phase 2 to almost the end date of the approved parking-to-dining program. 
 
The ADBA is, therefore, requesting that the Town modify the current parking-to-dining program. 
As the Town designed the initial layout taking into consideration public safety and other issues, 
we request the Town to develop several modification proposals for our review and input to 
include the reopening of some currently closed parking spaces. We have reviewed the Town 
Council’s action at its June 2nd, 2020 meeting approving the parking-to-dining program and 

- Page 278 -



believe there is some flexibility in their action to allow modifications to the current program 
without further action on their part. 
 
The ADBA appreciates your consideration of this request and looks forward to providing our input 
to any modification proposals to make this a successful program. Thank you also for your 
guidance on this issue. 
 
 
       Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
       Shane Reese 
       President 
       Apex Downtown Business Association 
 
 
Cc: 
Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 
Colleen Merays, Downtown and Small Business Development Coordinator 
Mayor Gilbert 
Mayor Pro Tem Dozier 
Council Member Killingsworth 
Council Member Gantt 
Council Member Stallings 
Council Member Mahaffey    

- Page 279 -



1

Colleen Merays

From: Shane Reese <shane.reese@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, August 11, 2020 11:58 AM
To: Colleen Merays
Subject: Re: Parking-to-Dining Modified Layout

 

Notice: This message is from an external sender. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you trust the sender, and can 

verify the content is safe. 
 
Hi Colleen, 

The ADBA concurs with the proposed modified Parking-to-Dining Program layout, per your Aug. 10 email, 
and requests that the Town Council approves the modifications as shown in the new layout. 
 

Best, 

Shane 

 
On Mon, Aug 10, 2020 at 3:15 PM Colleen Merays <Colleen.Merays@apexnc.org> wrote: 

Shane, 

  

Attached is a modified layout of the Parking-to-Dining Program. If you would please share this layout with 
members of the ADBA. If this new layout is something the ADBA concurs with and responds by the COB 
tomorrow, with either an email or letter stating that: The ADBA concurs with the proposed modified Parking-
to-Dining Program layout, and requests the Town Council approve the modifications as shown in the new 
layout be made. I will then work to have the ADBA’s request as part of the Town Council’s agenda for next 
Tuesday, August 18, 2020. If you have any questions please let me know. 

  

Thanks, 

Colleen 

  

Colleen Merays 

Downtown & Small Business Development Coordinator 

- Page 280 -



2

Town of Apex, NC 

The Depot  220 N. Salem Street   Apex, NC 27502  

C: 518-894-6431 

     

  

- Page 281 -



Anna's Pizzeria

La R
ancherita

The R
usty Bucket

W
oom

er Insurance & Financial Services

Sophie & M
ollies Boutique

Sixpence Accents

The Beer D
ispensary

Antiques O
n Salem

 Street

The D
oodling Bug

621 Productions

Stylish Living

D
ow

nTow
n Knits

The Peak on Salem

E C
H

ATH
AM

 ST

N SALEM ST

W
 C

H
ATH

AM
 ST

SAU
N

D
ER

S ST

N
O

R
T H  CA RO L

I N
A

APEX
1873

TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC WORKS & TRANSPORTATION

ENGINEERING DIVISION
73 HUNTER STREET

APEX, NC 27502
919-249-3417

PROJECT REFERENCE NO. SHEET NO.
EB-5895

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT USE

FOR
CONSTRUCTION

Au
gu

st
 1

0,
 2

02
0

Feet
0 20 40

- Page 282 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
27917



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  OLD BU S I NE SS  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  D rew H a vens ,  Tow n M ana g er  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ad mi n i s t r a t i on  

 

R eques te d Mo t i on  

D i sc us s i on  an d po ss i b le  mo t i on  t o  a do p t  Te mp or ary  Or d i na n c e M odi f i c a t i ons  ex t end i n g the  

c u r ren t  su sp ens i on  o f  u t i l i t y  d i sc o nnec t i ons  an d ap p l i c at i on  o f  pe na l t i e s  and  fee s  fo r  un pa i d  u t i l i t y  

ba lanc es .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

 

I tem De ta i l s  

At  t he i r  Jun e  2 ,  2020  mee t i ng ,  the  To wn C o unc i l  pa ss ed  a  r e s o lu t i on  t o  c on t i nue  the  su spen s i on  

o f  u t i l i t y  d i sc onnec t i o ns  fo r  non -p a y men t  a nd the  a pp l i c a t i on  o f  la te  fe es  an d pen a l t i e s  th rou gh  

Au g us t  31 ,  2020 .  Ac kn ow le d gi ng th a t  the  c u r ren t  p an de mi c  h as  ma d e  i t  d i f f i c u l t  f o r  s o me  of  ou r  

c us t o mer s  t o  pa y  the i r  en t i re  b i l l ,  the  C oun c i l  wa nt ed  t o  en su re  ou r  c us t o mer s  d i d  no t  ha ve  

se r v i c e  d i sc onnec te d due  t o  the i r  i nab i l i t y  t o  p a y .  At  th i s  mee t i n g ,  Counc i l  a l so  re v i ewe d ou r  

c u r ren t  pa y men t  p l an  op t i on s  an d d i rec te d  s ta f f  t o  le t  c u s to mer s  kno w ab out  th i s  wa y  to  be g i n  

pa y i ng  fo r  se r v i c es  as  the y  a re  ab le  t o .   

 

S ta f f  ma i le d i n fo r ma t i on  to  u t i l i t y  c u s to mer s  a le r t i n g  the m to  t he  ex i s t enc e  o f  p a y me nt  p l an  

op t i on s  a nd  a le r te d a genc i es  wh o work  w i t h  pe op le  h a v i ng f i n an c i a l  d i f f i c u l t i e s  to  le t  the m 

kno w a s  we l l .  As  o f  t h e  end  o f  Ju l y ,  we  ha d  36  i nqu i r i e s ,  bu t  h a ve  no t  h a d any  c u s to m er  s i gn  up 

fo r  a  p ay men t  p l an .   

 

As  o f  Ju l y  31 s t ,  w e  h a d 1 ,532  c u s to mer s  w i t h  b a l anc es  t ha t  w ou l d  mak e  the m su b j ec t  to  

d i sc on nec t i on  w i th  a  to t a l  o f  $992 ,036  i n  p as t  due  u t i l i t y  b i l l s .  

 

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Te mpor ar y  Or d i na nc e  Mo di f i c at i on  

 

- Page 283 -



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-0818-23 

AN ORDINANCE TEMPORARILY SUSPENDING TOWN CODE  

SECTIONS 12-37 through 12-39 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as follows: 

Section 1. Under the authority of N.C.G.S. § 160A-314(b), Sections 12-37 through 12-39 of 

the Apex Town Code of Ordinances is temporarily suspended through _______________, 2020. 

Section 2. The following utility customer fees designated on the Town of Apex Fee 

Schedule are suspended through ________________ 2020: 

a. Non-Payment Service Fee 

b. Late Fee 

c. Reconnect Disconnected Water Fee 

 

Section 3. The ordinance shall be effective upon enactment. 

 

 This the 18th day of August, 2020. 

 

 

Introduced by Councilmember          

 

Seconded by Councilmember          

 

 

 

Attest:                           TOWN OF APEX 

 

______________________________  _________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC   Jacques K. Gilbert  

Town Clerk      Mayor 

 

 

 

Approved As To Form:     

 

______________________________   

Laurie L. Hohe 

Town Attorney                        

- Page 284 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  N E W BU S I NE SS  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  1 8 ,202 0  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  D rew H a vens ,  Tow n M ana g er  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ad mi n i s t r a t i on  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

D i sc us s i on  an d p o ss i b le  mo t i on  t o  p r o v i d e  f i nanc i a l  sup por t  f o r  t he  K i s sen a L ane  Af f o r d ab le  

Hou s i ng  p r o j ec t  i n  th e  fo r m of  w a i ve r s  o f  ad mi n i s t ra t i ve  fee s  a nd  i s su anc e o f  g r an t s  f ro m t he  

Af f o r d ab le  H ous i n g Fu nd f o r  Wa t e r  an d Se w er  C ap i ta l  R e i mbur se men t  Fe es  an d  R ec re at i o n  Fee s -

i n - l i eu  c on t i ngen t  u po n  ap p l i c at i on  fo r  ann exa t i on  o f  the  as soc i a te d p r o per ty  i n to  the  Ap e x  t own  

l i mi t s .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

The  o wner  o f  p ro per t i e s  o n  K i s sen a  L ane  i s  a t te mp t i n g t o  c o l l ab o rat e  w i th  Ha b i t a t  f o r  Hu man i ty  

to  p r o v i de  9  a f fo r d a b le  s i n g le - fa mi l y  un i t s .  To  ma ke  the  p ro j ec t  more  v i ab le  an d re du c e the  

c os t s  o f  lan d f o r  Ha b i ta t  fo r  Hu man i ty ,  the  own er  i s  re ques t i n g a ppr ox i ma te l y  $5 ,335  i n  

ad mi n i s t ra t i ve  fee  w a i ve r s  o r  re i mbur s e men ts ,  $30 ,561  i n  g ran t  fu nd i ng  fo r  R ec re a t i on  Fee - i n -

l i eu ,  an d $49 ,122  i n  g r an t  fun d i ng f o r  Wa t e r  an d Se wer  C a p i t a l  R e i mbur s e men t  Fees .  The  o wner  

has  i nd i c a te d th at  t h e  w a i ve r s  an d gra nt s  wou l d  re duc e the  la n d c o s t s  b y  14 .5 % .  

 

To wn  C ounc i l  re z one d  the  p r oper t y  i n  J anu ary  w i t h  a  c on d i t i on  t ha t  the  h ous i n g be  af fo rd a b le  

fo r  hou seh o l d s  w i th  a n  i nc o me  a t  70 % o r  le s s  o f  the  a re a me di an  i nc o me .  Al l  un i t s  i n  t he  p r o j ec t  

w i l l  be  c ons t ruc te d f o r  a f fo r d ab le  h ous i n g .  I n f ras t ruc tu re  c on s t ru c t i o n  i s  e xp ec t ed t o  be g i n  i n  

Se pt e mber  w i th  l o t s  p os s i b l y  b e i ng a va i la b l e  b y  the  en d o f  2020 .  The  de ve l o per  i s  re qu es t i ng 

ad mi n i s t ra t i ve  fee  w a i ve r s  an d re i mbur se ment s  at  t he  To wn’ s  e a r l i e s t  c on ve n i enc e  t o  reduc e 

c os t s .  R ec re at i o n  Fee s  a r e  d ue  at  p la t  an d Wa t e r  an d Se wer  C a p i ta l  R e i mbur se men t  Fe es  w i l l  

l i ke ly  be  due  a t  bu i ld i ng pe r mi t .   T he  de ve l oper  a sk s  f o r  the  gr an ts  t o  c o ver  tho se  fe es  be  ma d e 

i n  t i me  f o r  the  rec or d i ng o f  the  p l a t s ,  w h i c h  i s  exp ec t ed  t o  be  i n  l a t e  2020  o r  ear l y  2021 .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Le t te r s  requ es t i n g gra nt s  a nd  fee  wa i ve r s  

 

- Page 285 -



 

 919.439.0100 p 
 1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 
Kissena Lane – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

 
July 21, 2020 
 
 
Shawn Purvis – Assistant Town Manager 
Town of Apex 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 
(919) 249-3302 
Shawn.Purvis@Apexnc.org 
 
 
Re: Kissena Lane Affordable Housing 

Water and Sewer Capital Reimbursement Fee Grant 
 
Shawn, 
 
 The owner of the properties on Kissena Lane is requesting Town Council approval for a 
Water and Sewer Capital Reimbursement Fee Grant to support the Town’s affordable housing 
goals. The following summary is provided for Town Council review and approval of the requested 
grant application as the project approaches Construction Document approval through the Town’s 
Master Subdivision and CD process: 
 

- Water Capital Reimbursement Fee (3/4” meter): 
o $1,783.00/ lot x 9 lots = $16,047.00 

- Sewer Capital Reimbursement Fee (3/4” meter): 
o $3,675.00/lot x 9 lots = $ 33,075.00 

 
Please let me know what the next step is for approval of the Grant request. If you have any 

questions concerning this request, do not hesitate to give me a call at your convenience. 
 

 
 
 
Mr. Jeffrey A. Roach, P.E. 
Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC 
 
 
cc: Mr. Hector Cuales, Property Owner (via email) 
 Mr. Jim Middleton, Habitat for Humanity of Wake County 

- Page 286 -

mailto:Shawn.Purvis@Apexnc.org


 

 919.439.0100 p 
 1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 
Kissena Lane – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

 
July 21, 2020 
 
 
Shawn Purvis – Assistant Town Manager 
Town of Apex 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 
(919) 249-3302 
Shawn.Purvis@Apexnc.org 
 
 
Re: Kissena Lane Affordable Housing 

Parks and Recreation Fee-in-Lieu Grant 
 
Shawn, 
 
 The owner of the properties on Kissena Lane is requesting Parks, Recreation and Cultural 
Resources Advisory Commission recommendation and Town Council approval for a Parks & 
Recreation Fee-in-Lieu Grant for the aforementioned site. The development is focused on the 
supporting the Town’s affordable housing goals with this request. The following summary is 
provided for the Advisory Commission and Town Council review and approval of the requested 
grant application as the project approaches Construction Document approval through the Town’s 
Master Subdivision and CD process: 
 

- Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Fee-in-Lieu: 
o $3,395.67/ lot x 9 lots = $30,561.03 

 
Please let me know what the next step is for the recommendation by the Advisory 

Commission and approval by Town Council for the Grant request. If you have any questions 
concerning this request, do not hesitate to give me a call at your convenience. 

 
 
 
 
Mr. Jeffrey A. Roach, P.E. 
Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC 
 
 
cc: Mr. Hector Cuales, Property Owner (via email) 
 Mr. Jim Middleton, Habitat for Humanity of Wake County 

- Page 287 -

mailto:Shawn.Purvis@Apexnc.org


 

 919.439.0100 p 
 1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 
Kissena Lane – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

 
July 28, 2020 
 
 
Shawn Purvis – Assistant Town Manager 
Town of Apex 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 
(919) 249-3302 
Shawn.Purvis@Apexnc.org 
 
Re: Kissena Lane Affordable Housing 

Administrative Fee Waivers 
 
Shawn, 
 
 Pursuant to the on-going discussions related to affordable housing in Apex, the owner of 
the properties on Kissena Lane is requesting Administrative Fee Waivers and reimbursements to 
support the Town’s affordability goals. The following Administrative Fees are being requested for 
reimbursement or waiver as the project approaches Construction Document approval through the 
Town’s Master Subdivision and CD process: 
 

- Master Subdivision Plan submittal fee: $790.00 (paid) 
- Construction Document submittal fee: $1,090.00 (paid) 
- Water permit fee: $200.00 (paid) 
- Sewer permit fee: $200.00 (paid) 
- Tree Protection Fencing Inspection fee: $75.00 
- Inspection Fees through Development Services: TBD (estimated at $1,429.60) 
- Site Plan Final Plat Review Fee: $250.00 
- Site Inspection Fee (Zoning Compliance Office): $500.00 
- Record Drawing Review Fee: $200.00 
- Bond Administration Fee: $600.00 

 
Thank you for your continued assistance with the affordability aspect of the Kissena Lane 

development. Please let me know what the next step is for reimbursements or waivers. If you have 
any questions concerning this request, do not hesitate to give me a call at your convenience. 

 
 
 
 
Mr. Jeffrey A. Roach, P.E. 
Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC 
 
 
cc: Mr. Hector Cuales, Property Owner (via email) 
 Mr. Jim Middleton, Habitat for Humanity of Wake County (via email) 

- Page 288 -

mailto:Shawn.Purvis@Apexnc.org


 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  N E W BU S I NE SS  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  D rew H a vens ,  Tow n M ana g er  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ad mi n i s t r a t i on  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  t o  p r o v i de  a  o ne - t i me gr a nt  t o  the  AD B A t o  c o ver  exp ense s  re la te d t o  the i r  no w -

c anc e l le d Pe ak T i que  fund r a i se r .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

S i mi l a r  t o  g r an ts  t o  o t he r  non -pr o f i t s  the  To wn sup por t s  and  pr o v i de d ad di t i o na l  fun d i ng to  i n  

l i gh t  o f  t he  c u r ren t  p an de mi c ,  th i s  r eque s t  i s  t o  p r o v i de  a  gr an t  to  t he  AD B A t o  pa y  f o r  the  

expen se s  the y  i nc u r re d i n  p re p ar i ng t o  h a ve  th e i r  annu a l  Pe ak T i que  fun dr a i se r .  Due  t o  the  

pan de mi c ,  th i s  e ven t  ha d to  be  c anc e le d ,  bu t  t hey  ha d a l r ea d y  expen de d s o me  fu n ds  i n  

an t i c i pa t i on  o f  t he  e vent .  The  ex pens es  a re  as  fo l lo w :  

 

E ven t  I n su ranc e      6 52 .89  

Po s te r s  an d F l ye r s    10 5 .37  

Co p i es                    21 2 .36  

Bann er s                   3 03 .00  

TOTAL                 $ 1 , 27 3 .6 2  

 

Th i s  g ran t  w ou l d  s i mp l y  make  t he m “ who le ”  as  a  r e su l t  t h i s  s t a l le d fun dr a i s i ng  e f f o r t  d ue  t o  

c i rc umst anc e s  ou t  o f  the i r  c on t r o l .  Al l  ex pe nses  wer e  i nc u r red be fo re  the  pa nd e mi c  an d i t s  

e f fec t s  were  be i ng f e l t  i n  ou r  a re a .    

 

At t ac h men t s  

  N/ A 

 

- Page 289 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  N E W BU S I NE SS  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  1 8 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Te r r y  Mah af fe y ,  Coun c i l  Me mber  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  To wn C ounc i l  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

D i sc us s i on  a nd  p os s i b le  mo t i on  to  a men d  S ec t i on  14 -33  o f  the  Apex  C ode  of  Or d i n an c es  re la te d 

to  p r oh i b i te d n o i se s .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

 

I tem De ta i l s  

P l ann i n g C o mmi t t ee  d i sc us se d th i s  i t e m a t  the i r  Jun e  26 ,  2020  m eet i n g .   The  p ro po se d  o rd i n anc e 

wou l d  p r oh i b i t  no i se s  f ro m c on s t ruc t i on  ac t i v i ty  be t ween  th e  h ou r s  o f  7 :00  p m an d 7 :00  a m,  

Mon da y –  F r i d a y ;  7 :00  p m a nd  9 :00  a m on  S at u rd a ys  an d s t a te  h o l i da ys ;  and ,  p r oh i b i t  n o i se s  

f ro m c on s t ruc t i on  ac t i v i ty  on  Sun d ay s ,  Ne w  Ye ar ’ s  D a y ,  Ch r i s t ma s  D ay ,  an d Th anks g i v i ng D a y .  

 

He re  i s  h o w s o me of  o u r  ne i gh bor s  re gu l a te  th i s  k i n d o f  no i se :  

 

Hol ly  Sp r i ngs :  

Con s t ruc t i on  ac t i v i ty  a l lo we d f ro m 7 :00  a . m.  t o  6 :00  p .m.  o n  we ekd ay s  an d 8 :00  a .m.  to  6 :00  

p .m.  o n  Sa tu r da y s .  

Cary :  

Con s t ruc t i on  ac t i v i ty  a l lo we d M on da y th r o ugh  F r i d a y  be t wee n t he  hou r s  o f  7 :00  a .m.  an d 6 :00  

p .m.  o r  be t ween  t he  hou r s  o f  9 :00  a .m.  an d 6 :00  p .m.  on  S atu r d ay s  an d ho l i d ay s  wh i c h  a re  

ob se r ve d by  the  s t a te .  

Ra le igh :  

Con s t ruc t i on  ac t i v i ty  a l lo we d be twe en the  hou r s  o f  7 :00  a .m.  an d 8 :30  p .m.  d a i l y .  

M or r i sv i l le :  

I n  any  re s i de nt i a l l y  z o ned are a o f  t he  to wn o r  w i th i n  1 ,000  fee t  o f  an y  oc c u p i ed r e s i de nt i a l  

s t ruc tu re  i n  a l l  z on i ng  d i s t r i c t s  o f  th e  to wn :  

1 )  Op era t i n g a  f ron t - end lo a der  o r  o the r  t r uc k  fo r  re fu se  c o l lec t i on  a l l o we d M on da y t h rou gh  

Sa tu r d ay  be t ween  t h e  hou r s  o f  7 :00  a .m .  a nd 8 :00  p .m.   

2 )  Con s t ruc t i on  ac t i v i ty  a l l ow ed  be t ween  t he  hou r s  o f  7 :00  a .m.  an d 9 :00  p .m. ,  Mon d a y th rou gh  

Sa tu r d ay .  C o mme rc i a l  c on s t ruc t i o n  on  Su n da y i s  p r oh i b i te d e xc ep t  where  pe r mi t te d by  th e  Tow n 

Man a ger .   

 

- Page 290 -



Wake Fo res t  

I n  any  re s i de nt i a l l y  z o ned are a o f  t he  to wn o r  w i th i n  300  fee t  o f  a ny  oc c up i ed  re s i d en t i a l  

s t ruc tu re  i n  a l l  z on i ng  d i s t r i c t s  o f  th e  to wn :  

(1 )  O pera t i n g a  f ron t - end lo a der  o r  o the r  t r uc k  fo r  re fu se  c o l lec t i on  a l l o we d M on da y t h rou gh  

F r i d ay  be t ween th e  h ou r s  o f  7 :00  a .m.  an d 8 :00  p .m.   

(2 )  Con s t ruc t i on  ac t i v i ty  a l lo we d M on d ay t h rou gh  F r i d ay  be t wee n th e  hou r s  o f  7 :00  a .m.  an d 

8 :00  p .m.  an d be tw ee n th e  hou r s  o f  8 :00  a .m.  an d 6 :00  p .m.  on  S at u rd a ys  an d Sun da y s .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Pro po se d Ord i n anc e Am e n d men t  

 

- Page 291 -



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-0818-18 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 14-33 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE TOWN OF APEX 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as 

follows: 

 

Section 1. The definition of “Construction” in Section 14-29 of the Code of Ordinances of 

the Town of Apex is hereby amended as follows with additions shown as bold 

underlined text and deletions shown as struck-through text: 

Construction means on-site erection, fabrication, installation, alteration, repair, 

demolition, or removal of any structure, facility or addition thereto including all related 

activities including, but not restricted to, clearing of land, earth moving, blasting and 

landscaping.  Construction does not include owner occupied residential projects 

completed solely by the property owner and which do not require a building permit.  
 

Section 2.  Subsection (7) of Section 14-33 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Apex 

is hereby amended as follows with additions shown as bold underlined text and 

deletions shown as struck-through text: 

 

Sec. 14-33. - Other prohibited noises. 

The following acts are specifically declared to be unreasonably loud, annoying, 

frightening, loud or disturbing noise, the emission of which shall be unlawful: 

(7) The creation of loud and excessive noise from construction activities 

The erection (including excavating), demolition, alteration or repair of any 

building or other structure in a residential or business district Monday 

through Friday between the hours of 8:30 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., or on 

Saturdays and holidays observed by the state between the hours of 

7:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m., or at any time on Sundays and the following 

holidays: New Year's Day, Thanksgiving Day, or Christmas Day, except 

by permit from the building inspector when, in his opinion, such work will 

not create objectionable noise. The building inspector may permit 

emergency work in the preservation of public health or safety at any time. 

Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed.  If any part of this ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, such 

adjudication shall apply only to such part so adjudged and the remainder of the 

ordinance shall be deemed valid and effective. 

- Page 292 -



2 
 

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect on January 1, 2021. 

 

Introduced by Council Member _______________________________________ 

 

Seconded by Council Member ________________________________________ 

 

 

Attest:          TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

____________________________      __________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC      Jacques K. Gilbert         

Town Clerk         Mayor 

 

Approved As To Form: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Laurie L. Hohe  

Town Attorney 

- Page 293 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CLO SE D SE S S I ON  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Au g us t  18 ,  2020  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Ma yor  P r o  Te m Doz i e r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  To wn C ounc i l  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  t o  g o  i n to  C l ose d Se s s i on  t o  d i sc us s  a  pe r s onne l  ma t te r .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  N/ A 

 

- Page 294 -


	Top
	PR1	Proclamation - League of Women Voters of Wake County
	CS - Proclamation_League Women Voters
	Proclamation - League of Women Voters_2020

	PR2	Wayfinding Signage Program
	Wayfinding Program Presentation Cover

	CN1	Minutes
	Cover_Minutes
	2020.07.21 Work Session
	2020.07.21 Meeting
	2020.08.04 Meeting

	CN2	Annexation #695 Perry Hills Phase 6
	Annex695CN-SPH
	Clerk Documents
	PetitionLegalMaps
	LegalDesc_695

	CN3	Encroachment Agreement - Colonial Pipelne
	Cover_Colonial Pipeline Encroachment
	WTW-806-283.1-20-007 Water line S Salem St Apex

	CN4	DOT Encroachment Agreement - Tobacco Trail Greenwauy
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet- Apex West Greenway Encroachment Agreement 81820
	NCDOT-Town of Apex-License Agreement for Property Encroachment_MP DD 16.0
	Apex West Greenway Location Exhibit 81820

	CN5	EAP Contract
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet EAP Contract
	BHS_Town of Apex Service Agreement 2017
	BHS_Town of Apex Amendment 2020

	CN6	Ordinance - Sunny Creek Lane
	01 CN - Sunny Ck Ln & Windy Ck Ln - Ord 20-164(38)
	02 CN - Ord 20-164(38)
	03 CN - Map Ord 20-164(38)

	CN7	Special Events  Amendment
	CN Special Events Policy Amendment
	Special Events Policy Amendment 1

	CN8	Debris Monitoring CPA
	01 Agenda Item Cover Sheet
	02 CPA Apex-Wake County 2020-21
	03 Cooperative Purchasing Agreement Apex - HDR - 2020-21

	CN9	Old Mill Land Swap
	CS Old Mill Village swap
	Agreement NC II Old Mill Village land swap
	A-Old Mill Village Map
	B-Ambergate Drive map
	C-Old Mill Swap Map

	PH1	20CZ06 204 & 206 Lynch Street-PH
	20CZ06 204&206 Lynch Street Cover-PH
	20CZ06 204 & 206 Lynch St TC Staff Report-Attachments

	PH2	August UDO Amendments-PH
	Cover August UDO Amendments-PH
	TC Staff Report-August UDO Amendments
	Ordinance-August UDO amendments

	OB1	Parking to Dining Program
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - Downtown Parking-to-Dining Project Layout Modification
	02_ADBA letter to Drew Havens August 7 2020
	03_ADBA email request to modify barriers - 08-11-20
	salem-Layout1

	OB2	Utility Disconnection Suspension
	OB Utility Disconnection Suspension
	Temporary Ordinance Modification - Utility Disconnection (3)

	NB1	Kissena Lane Fees and Grants
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - Kissena Ln. Request ver 2
	Kissena Lane - Water-Sewer Grant Request
	Kissena Lane - Parks-Recreation Grant Request
	Kissena Lane - Admin Fee Waivers (revised)

	NB2	Grant for PeakTique Expenses
	NB PeakTique expense grant

	NB3	Noise Ordinance
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet
	Proposed Ordinance Amendment - Noise RE Construction (REVISED_CLEAN)

	CS1	Closed Session
	CS - Closed Session

	Bottom

